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Overview

2016:
beginning of recovery

Interview with ÉRIC MARÉE,
chairman of the executive
board of the Virbac group

HOW DO THE 2016 RESULTS
COMPARE TO FORECASTS?

Although below the 7% announced at the beginning of the
year, our organic growth of 4.4% is nonetheless in line with
our latest forecasts. Our financial performances were heavily
impacted by currency fluctuations that had an adverse effect
on our results in a number of major markets, in particular
the United Kingdom, Mexico, India and South Africa. At
constant exchange rates, the current operating profit before
depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions, up by 61%,
exceeds the target set at 10% of sales. By the same token,
debt reduction of €58 million in 2016 is beyond the announced
target of €50 million.

WHAT ABOUT DEVELOPMENTS IN VIRBAC’S
BUSINESS INTERNATIONALLY?

Our expectations were generally met, albeit with varying
intensity. The predicted recovery in the United States did
indeed take place, but not to the extent that was hoped,
primarily due to a slower than expected return of our main
products on the market. The lifting by the FDA of the warning
letter impacting the St. Louis facility only occurred at the
end of the year. In Chile, we had reservations about our
outlook for aquaculture due to competitive and health-related
pressures on the salmon sector. These difficulties were
unfortunately confirmed and magnified by the spread, at
the beginning of the year, of an algae bloom that decimated
20% of the Chilean farms. The situation remains quite
sound in the other regions that account for three quarters
of our business. Growth has been in line with our ambitious
expectations in the Latin American and Asia-Pacific regions,
with two-digit growth at constant rates in several countries,
including Brazil and China. Europe saw growth beyond
expectations thanks to excellent developments in most of the
countries, mainly driven by our new products.

AND THE RESULTS BY SPECIES?

In the companion animal segment, Virbac growth has
increased in all regions, in particular in the United States,
with a catch-up effect on the abnormally weak sales volumes
in 2015. However, our food producing animal business has
been stagnant, with registered growth in the cattle industry
unfortunately being masked by the decline in aquaculture.

‘‘

We are especially building
on the development
potential of nutrition and
reproduction products.

WHAT IS THE FINANCIAL OUTLOOK
FOR 2017?

Our research and development effort should remain at
8% of sales before deduction of the research tax credit,
as in previous years. We will continue to improve our ratio
of operating expenses to sales, which should result in an
improved operating profitability rate of around half a point
at constant exchange rates. Our focus on investments and
the positive change in working capital requirements should
support the Group’s efforts in reducing debt by about
€30 million to €50 million.

‘‘

IN THIS CONTEXT, HOW IS THE 2017
YEAR SHAPING UP?

Our business is expected to see moderate growth in 2017.
Our outlook remains rather good in Europe and even very
good for the Asia-Pacific and Latin American areas. In the
United States, the remaining products still not on the market
whose registration dossier does not require any changes
will be marketed again in the early months of the year. At
the same time, we can finally work on variations to existing
registration dossiers and consider submitting new ones. Our
sales volume is expected to rival 2016 levels: products sold
to distributors at the end of 2016, like Iverhart Max, will have
to be cleared before restocking orders pick up. Chile remains
plagued by market disruptions. Therefore, we are not yet
counting on a clear improvement in our outlook.

HOW DOES THE MEDIUM-TERM FUTURE
LOOK TO YOU?

We will continue to rely on the two pillars that have historically been the driving force behind Virbac: innovation and
business momentum. We have maintained our research and
development effort these past few years despite weaker
financial results. We remain confident in the potential of the
resulting product innovations, especially in the field of parasiticides, for both companion animals and cattle, as well as in
dermatology and, in the longer term, the biological market.
We are also building on the strong development potential of
some of our products or ranges, especially in the reproduction and companion animal petfood segments. Finally, our
stepped-up efforts to digitise our approach to sales will boost
relations with our customers, whether they be veterinarians
or petowners.

FIND THE MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN AT
WWW.VIRBAC.COM
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A worldwide laboratory
that has always been dedicated to animal health
In the 1960s, the various preparations manufactured by
human pharmaceutical laboratories at that time did not make
it possible to treat all the animal diseases. In 1968, while
these major groups were looking to invest in animal health,
Pierre-Richard Dick, a veterinary doctor in Nice, drew upon
his training at the Pasteur Institute to devise and develop
new medications. He founded Virbac with the intention of
providing veterinarians, farmers and petowners with a range
of innovative solutions to fight animal diseases.
Present today in more than 100 countries, Virbac has
maintained its independence and its DNA. Linking the needs

of health care providers to the latest technological advances,
Virbac’s innovation offers a practical and comprehensive range
of products and services covering the majority of species and
pathologies. Thanks to this offer supported by an industrial
tool meeting the highest international quality standards, Virbac
has been forging personalised relationships with veterinarians
and farmers in each country for nearly fifty years. Through
this privileged partnership, in which social, health and
environmental issues come together, Virbac contributes day
after day to shape the future of animal health.
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Finance :
towards cash optimisation
In 2015, two significant events profoundly changed
the Group’s financial structure. The acquisition
of Sentinel products in the United States tripled
Virbac’s debt. At the same time, quality problems
at the American industrial site in St. Louis impacted
our profits, splitting them in half between 2014 and
2015. These events led us to consider improving our
financial leverage as a matter of priority. They also
helped accelerate Virbac’s move towards a cashoptimisation culture at all levels of the organisation.

HABIB
RAMDANI,

chief financial
officer

included in a cash pooling. In 2016, we indeed
successfully launched the Group’s first factoring
programmes in Europe and the United States. In the
sales subsidiaries, beyond the traditional indicators
of sales and operating income, we adopted indicators
to monitor the improvement in working capital
requirements and initiated numerous local projects
in order to optimise cash generation.
These developments will be sustained in 2017
and over the coming years. They will enable us
to continue to optimise our cash generation while
continuing the recovery of our business and our
march forward.

At the Group level, numerous projects began in
this way, such as the introduction of pre-financing
programmes and the optimisation of the cash
collection from subsidiaries, many of which are
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Balanced governance to support
Group’s development
The principles on which Virbac bases its governance are those
that provide the balance required for the Group’s performance
and successful development.
Separation of powers and collegiality
Since 1992, there has been a clear separation between
Virbac’s strategic and operational management functions,
exercised by the executive board, and supervision of this
management function, devolved to the supervisory board.
This structure meets the desire to establish a balance of
power between the executive and supervisory functions.
It involves a regular and effective dialogue between the
executive board and the supervisory board, as well as mutual
trust. Collegiality is a key organisational principle in Virbac’s
governance. Its two governing bodies, the supervisory
board and the executive board, operate on the basis that
their respective members seek common positions and take
collective decisions, working as real team.
Committed and experienced management
Virbac’s governance is based on enhanced governing bodies,
composed of members with a strong and long-term level

of commitment. Their professional experience covers many
of the aspects involved in the day-to-day management of
a major international group. With the exception of its vicechairwoman, all of the supervisory board’s members are
corporate executives with extensive operational management
experience. Virbac’s management, whether members of its
supervisory board or members of its executive board, is
committed to providing sustained support for the Group’s
long-term strategy. Moreover, the involvement of supervisory
board members and the non-voting advisor is not limited to
their participation in formal board debates. Their involvement
also includes regular informal discussions and periodic ad hoc
meetings if circumstances so require.
Continual improvements to governance
Virbac follows the recommendations of the current AfepMedef corporate governance Code. The Group continues to
improve its governance practices. In some cases, it surpasses
the objectives set by the Afep-Medef Code, particularly with
regard to representation between women and men, the board
being composed of three women and three men.

THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

It ensures the permanent control of the management of the executive board, and the regular review of the accounts and of all
major projects and investments. The supervisory board comprises six members including three independent members:

MARIE-HÉLÈNE
DICK,
chairwoman

JEANINE
DICK,
vice-chairwoman

OLIVIER
BOHUON,
independent
member

PHILIPPE
CAPRON,
independent
member

Two special committees aid the supervisory board in its tasks:
the audit committee and the compensation committee. The
supervisory board is assisted by a non-voting advisor,
Xavier Yon.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee is responsible for:
• ensuring the monitoring of the financial reporting process;
• ensuring the existence and effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems;
• issuing a recommendation on the statutory auditors
proposed for appointment by the shareholders’ meeting;
• monitoring the achievement by the statutory auditors of
their duties;
• ensuring that the statutory auditors comply with the
conditions of independence;
• approving the provision by the statutory auditors of nonprohibited services other than certifying accounts;
• and reporting to the supervisory board on the performance
of its duties.
It is comprised of Philippe Capron, chairman, Olivier Bohuon
and Pierre Madelpuech.

PIERRE
MADELPUECH,
permanent
representative
of the company
Asergi

GRITA
LOEBSACK,
independent
member

XAVIER
YON,
permanent
representative
of the company
XYC, non-voting
advisor

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
The compensation committee is responsible for:
• drawing up recommendations and proposals regarding the
compensation of the members of the executive board;
• remaining informed about the Group’s general human
resources policy and more specifically, the compensation
policy for the Group’s main executives;
• reviewing proposals and conditions relating to stock grants;
• drawing up proposals regarding the amounts of directors’
fees to be paid to the members of the supervisory board.
It is comprised of Marie-Hélène Dick, chairwoman, Olivier
Bohuon and Grita Loebsack.
NON-VOTING ADVISOR
Xavier Yon, permanent representative of the company XYC.
STATUTORY AUDITORS
Deloitte & Associés, represented by Hugues Desgranges
and Vincent Gros.
Novances-David & Associés, represented by Jean-Pierre Giraud.

4

3

1

2

5

THE EXECUTIVE BOARD
1
2
3
4
5

-

Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board
Christian Karst, general manager and executive vice-president Corporate Development
Sébastien Huron, head of Global Business Operations
Habib Ramdani, chief financial officer
J ean-Pierre Dick, responsible for special projects and chairman of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac

The executive board is responsible for the strategic and
operational management of the Virbac group. Its five members
work closely together and they take collective decisions. This
way of working encourages joint reflection and the search for a
consensus.
The members of the executive board regularly discuss the
company’s long-term vision and operational requirements
outside the formal meetings of the executive board. This
flexible organisation allows a high level of responsiveness
when taking strategic decisions.

The executive board reports on its work to the supervisory
board and submits all of the Group’s strategic operations to the
supervisory board for its formal approval.
It is supported in its work by a regular dialogue with the
members of the strategic committee. In addition to the
members of the executive board, the strategic committee also
includes the Group’s nine functional directors and five area
directors.
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Innovation:
acting on both fronts

Corporate
Product
Innovation
director

In this context, 2016 was mainly devoted to
substantial work relating to the protection,
maintenance and compliance of our products and
active ingredients. This is all the more crucial since
the principle of extraterritoriality of the controls
operated by the regulatory agencies is increasingly
applicable outside of Europe and the United States.
For innovation we can rely on our strengths. Starting
with a strong responsiveness and the international
presence of our teams dedicated to development,

this allows us to adapt our innovations to the
specific needs of each territory. In addition, Virbac
is committed to co-mature agreements with public
research laboratories, in the field of vaccines and
antibiotic substitutes, and is working with biotech
companies to develop new markets in other fields.

‘‘

The big event in 2017 will undoubtedly
be the gradual resumption of
development at the St. Louis facility.
In the rest of the world, significant
registration dossiers and development
projects should be finalised with
several market authorisations targeted
for 2018.

‘‘

JEAN-PASCAL
MARC,

In a growing global veterinary market, major
upheavals are taking place: the development of
prevention products, the restriction of the use of
antibiotics, new parasiticide molecules in companion
animals... Backed by life sciences, where scientific
progress is particularly rapid, the sector imposes
strong regulatory constraints while promoting
innovation.

EVEN FURTHER ADVANCES IN PETFOOD

With the preventive range of petfood for dogs and cats,
Virbac made a notable breakthrough in the market in 2016.
These products are distinguished by their composition which
is specifically adapted for carnivores. In November 2016,
Veterinary HPM Adult Small & Toy was described by the
French independent consumer association UFC-Que Choisir
as one of the “best choices” among the twenty complete
dog foods tested. At the same time, Virbac continued to
develop the diet range that will result in 2017 in the launch
of 14 references covering the main dog and cat pathologies.
To support its scientific approach, Virbac has carried out
no fewer than 28 studies in partnership with six
European universities.

WITH VIRBAC’S DERMATOLOGY RANGE

Reveal your
derma touch
BREAKTHROUGH INNOVATION
IN DERMATOLOGY

More
than

500

April 2016. © Virbac.

One in four dogs has a dermatological problem during their
lifetime and a veterinary surgeon treats an average of one
dermatological case per day. On the strength of this twofold
observation, Virbac made a landmark presentation of Skin
Innovative Science (S-I-S) at the 2016 World congress of
veterinary dermatology. This new technology unparalleled in
the animal health market is present in five dermatological
products including several shampoos, stimulates the
endogenous antimicrobial peptides and limits the adhesion of
microbes to help the skin of cats and dogs to get back to its
normal balance.

Reveal your Dermatologic Touch with confidence
Virbac, pioneer in dermatology and trusted partner, offers comprehensive skin
solutions tailored to individual needs which are the major assets allowing to
improve the quality of life of pets and their owners

EMPLOYEES DEDICATED
TO INNOVATION IN 2016
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Quality: increasingly
homogeneous systems

MARC
BISTUER,

head of Global
Industrial
Operations
& Corporate
Quality
Assurance

This is why, in 2016, we temporarily suspended the
manufacturing and sale of the LR (leptospirosis/rabies)
combination vaccine after a batch of semi-finished
products from this sector was found not to be
compliant. The resulting biological action plan
must ultimately enhance control of our vaccine
manufacturing processes. A key topic in an area
where we work to reproduce the living, which is
variable by nature. 2016 culminated with the lifting
of the warning letter that had placed the St. Louis
site in the United States under FDA surveillance one
year earlier. This is indeed a positive ending to a year
devoted to the implementation of the plant’s quality
system improvement plan.

ST. LOUIS BROUGHT INTO COMPLIANCE

Under a warning letter from the FDA since the end of 2015,
the St. Louis site in the US continued its extensive work on
aligning its quality system with current Good manufacturing
practices (cGMP) in 2016. Stepped-up training, a review
of processes and an on-the-spot systematised managerial
presence improve the ability of teams to quickly resolve

Finally, we rolled out our new quality policy
across the Group’s subsidiaries. In describing our
commitments in this area, it is part of a larger
system, the Virbac quality system (VQS), which
aims to harmonise the pharmaceutical quality of
our products. Another step closer to international
standardisation of quality systems.

‘‘

In 2017, beyond basic compliance
in all production units, enhanced
operational control of quality
processes will be one of our
priorities, in conjunction with our
overall approach to optimise
Virbac’s industrial park.

‘‘

In a heavily-regulated sector with increasingly
frequent controls throughout the product lifetime,
our manufacturing activity is under strong pressure
to comply.

any quality discrepancy. This course of action is part of a
quality system improvement plan that has substantial human
resources, thanks to 60 recruitments in 2016. At the end of
December, the results were there: the St. Louis site saw its
cGMP status confirmed, ending a two-year freeze on product
launches and variations to registration files.

15

industrial and quality
projects rolled out in 2016

MEXICO: VIRBAC IS MODERNISING
ITS INDUSTRIAL PARK

It’s a major project that culminated with the relocation
of the Mexican subsidiary to the new Argo Navis site in
2016. Created in 1992, the subsidiary doubled its sales
and production between 2010 and 2016. Hence the need
to increase its production capacity while better addressing
local quality requirements. The new site brings together
under one roof industrial activities, a warehouse, a quality
control laboratory and administrative offices. The facility’s
production, 80% of which revolves around injectable
solutions, is presently taking a significant technological leap
forward, going from a manufacturing environment with
limited automation to one that includes the most modern
sterility equipment.

DISCOVER THE ARGO
NAVIS SITE ON
WWW.VIRBAC.COM
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Business:
strengthen the dynamic

head of Global
Business
Operations

The situation by species shows more contrasts. In
Chile, aquaculture is suffering due to the proliferation
of an algae bloom which decimated approximately
20% of the adult salmon population and the
simultaneous return of a major competitor in the
antibiotics segment. In terms of ruminants, the
injectable antimicrobial and the vaccine segments
are growing strongly, +32.5% and +10% respectively.
However, the food producing animal business
recorded an overall decline, hampered by
regulations on critical antibiotics and sluggishness

in the industrial market for pig and poultry
(excluding vaccines). With regard to the
companion animal business, there were several
multiple successes with two-figure growth for the
contraceptive implant Suprelorin, the new range of
physiological petfood, dermatological and dental
products as well as internal parasiticides.

‘‘

With the return of a positive trend
in 2016, 2017 should be a year of
consolidation. If the prospects in
Chile and the United States are still
rather uncertain, growth forecasts
are relatively good for other regions.

FIND OUT THE INTERVIEW
WITH SÉBASTIEN HURON AT
WWW.VIRBAC.COM

DIGITAL REVOLUTION IN CHINA

Virbac is involved in the digitalisation of the Chinese veterinary
market. At the end of 2015, buoyed by average annual growth
of 30% over the last five years, Virbac China boasted 1,200
customers among the main veterinary clinics in the country.
But the products and Virbac brands, which have gained in
reputation, are also sold in an unregulated manner on 1,300
sites online. In 2016, the subsidiary began to regulate this
market: closure of illegal sites or ones that do not meet its
quality charter and signature of partnerships with 60 selected
sites. Virbac also plays the web to clinic card relying on
e-commerce platforms to attract pet owners to veterinary
practices through a system of e-coupons.

WEB TO VET

‘‘

SÉBASTIEN
HURON,

In 2016, two-thirds of our subsidiaries gained
market share and three-quarters of them gained in
profitability. With the exception of Chile, down 18%
compared to 2015, all Virbac areas reveal two-figure
growth rates in a dozen countries including China and
Brazil. The results are below our expectations for the
United States, hit by the temporary suspension of the
GMP status of the St. Louis site.

AN ALTERNATIVE TO
SURGICAL STERILISATION

Suprelorin is an implant the size of a grain of rice which
works on the principle of prolonged and controlled release,
creating temporary and reversible sterilisation. Currently
available for dogs and male ferrets, it is also renewable
during the lifetime of the animal. Available today mainly in
Europe, this concentration of technology offers the benefits
of painless surgical sterilisation. Yet, each year, 30 million
dogs and cats are sterilised in the world. On the back of
its success since 2008 and with sales up 11.3% in 2016,
Suprelorin could benefit other gender and species of animals
in other regions in the future.

subsidiaries
9
1

have achieved above
market growth in 2016

DENTAL MARKET: WAR ON TARTAR

Dental plaque results in bad breath and potential periodontal
infections. This is the case in 80% of dogs over two years. As
a pioneer in the dental market, Virbac offers a large range of
products adapted to the needs of owners and their pets for
effective management of oral hygiene in dogs and cats in most
countries: veggie chews or ones which use enzyme technology,
toothpaste/toothbrush kits and a solution to pour into drinking
water. In 2016, Virbac is showing double figure performance
in its dental range, in the key United States market, due in
particular to an expansion of its distribution network.

17

Sponsoring:
the high-seas veterinarian

SANDRINE
BRUNEL,

head of
Corporate
Communications

For 15 years, Virbac has sponsored Jean-Pierre Dick
in the world’s biggest offshore racing competitions.
A member of the executive board responsible for
special projects and chairman of the Fondation
d’Entreprise Virbac, this doctor in veterinary
medicine promotes the profession on the seven
seas. He embodies the spirit of the company with its
interwoven values of commitment, determination and
self-improvement.
The whole of 2016 has been dedicated to the objective
of participating in the Vendée Globe, the legendary
non-stop solo round the world without assistance race.
Jean-Pierre Dick trained for it, participating in two
transatlantic events in spring 2016 and then found his
bearings on board a particularly physically demanding
new monohull. On January 25, 2017, at the helm of
this new high-performance sailing boat, Jean-Pierre
ended in 4th place after 80 days of racing during which

VENDÉE GLOBE 2016: LOOK
AT THE JP DICK’S HIGHLIGHTS
ON WWW.VIRBAC.COM

he unflinchingly made up for his mistakes and took
bold yet worthwhile chances. With Armel Le Cléac’h,
Jean Le Cam and Mike Golding, the skipper from
Nice (South of France) entered the hall of fame of
the skippers who have completed three Vendée
Globe races.
Over the past 15 years, more than 2,500 veterinarians
from 13 different countries have attended a sailing
event organised in relation to Jean-Pierre Dick’s racing
programme. This has brought special moments filled
with sharing and emotion. Sponsorship of sailing
events also contributes to the reputation of the
company. As the sponsor of the StMichel-Virbac sailing
boat, the brands enjoy abundant media coverage: up
to 1,200 articles per week during the most publicised
races. In November 2017, Jean-Pierre Dick will start
the Transatlantic Jacques Vabre race in partnership
with Yann Eliès.

Day
1

START OF THE VENDÉE GLOBE
“Predict the unpredictable:
that’s what makes the Vendée
Globe beautiful.”

Day
77

Day
5

Day
3

Day
3

StMICHEL-VIRBAC IN THE LEAD
“This is great news! A ranking
due to the option taken off the
Portuguese coast.”

Day
1

Day
6

Day
80

STRATEGIC ERROR IN MADEIRA
“I wanted to shift to avoid wind
shadow. I went too far in the
anticyclone.”

StMICHEL-VIRBAC

Day
70

4 GLOBE 2016
th IN THE VENDÉE

Day
26

ENTERING THE
SOUTHERN SEAS
“The albatrosses have
finally arrived. This is
wonderful and on top
of that the weather is
beautiful!”
Day
28

Day
26

PASSING THROUGH
THE RESTRICTED ICE
AREA
“I made a big mistake.
The race continues with
a dozen hours lost but
I look ahead.”

Day
28

Day
39

AVOIDING STORM BY
GOING THROUGH THE
BASS STRAIT
“Winds are reaching 60-70
knots and waves are over
10 metres high. I take
the option which offers
maximum safety.”

Day
39

Day
70

Day
80

ROUND THE WORLD IN 80 DAYS,
1 HOUR 45 MINUTES AND
45 SECONDS
“Going back up the Sables d’Olonne
channel after a world tour at these
speeds, I feel so happy; it’s a
wonderful moment.”

Day
77

HISTORICAL TIME BETWEEN
CAPE HORN AND ECUADOR
“13 days, 3 hours and 59 minutes!
It is very satisfying to beat the
speed record.”

JP STAPLED
“I cracked my chin open on the line.
I have three stitches including one
in the cheek. Even for a good vet it
is not easy to focus when the boat
is moving!”
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Human resources:
development to enhance performance

FRANCESCA
CORTELLA,
head of
Corporate
Human
Resources

In the face of these new key issues, it has become
essential to offer employees the best chances for
success by developing their skills. So 2016 saw
the introduction of a development interview, the
expansion of our Group’s e-learning platform and
the early stages of the Virbac business school (VBS),
a corporate university to develop the skills of our
marketing and sales employees.
Alongside the recruitment of external talent, we
rely on a dynamic internal mobility policy, not only
between job roles but also between countries.

Since 2016, we now give staff a clearer view of their
potential development within the company through
the internal release of job offers.

‘‘

We are going to continue to invest
heavily in the development of digital
training tools, particularly enhancing
the programmes offered in blended
learning format which combines
individual training online, virtual
classes and face-to-face sessions.

‘‘

Changing markets, the rise of new technologies,
strengthening of regulatory constraints: our
organisation must constantly adapt. In particular,
with higher levels of demands and investments in
production and quality, the capabilities required are
evolving.

DEVELOPMENT: EMPLOYEE AT
THE HEART OF THE PROCESS

Developing skills and anticipating how they will evolve are
crucial to the company’s performance. In 2016 we introduced
a dedicated interview which offers the employees an
opportunity to be a key player in their own development. With
their manager playing a key support role, they work to build
an action plan geared towards their current position. The
goal: not only to improve certain skills and know-how but also
to consolidate existing strengths. This development dynamic,
for which employee’s commitment is an essential prerequisite,
should allow everyone to better understand the company’s
organisation and culture, and therefore promote the retention
of talent within the Group.

UNITED STATES:
VALUING EMPLOYEES’ INITIATIVES

Constructive feedback and recognising employees’
commitment are key aspects of Virbac’s HR approach
which puts people at the heart of the organisation. With
this in mind, Virbac United States launched the Compass
Award programme in 2016, which awards gift cards and a
classic compass to one or two employees of the subsidiary
nominated by their peers, every month. The selection
committee is made up of six employees from different
departments and all levels of the hierarchy and selects the
winners based on the company’s values: it rewards positive
contributions to the company’s goals above and beyond what
is expected of their position.

More
than

25%

OF POSITIONS FILLED

BY INTERNAL MOBILITY
WITHIN THE GROUP

ANDREW HERDEN,
chief financial officer, Virbac Australia
“After five years in Fort Worth (Texas), I was

named to the position of chief financial officer
of Virbac New Zealand, then recently in Virbac
Australia. Appling my technical and behavioural skills in
different cultures and business models has helped me learn to
become an efficient manager in a multicultural environment.
The company benefits from this cross-functionality that favours
the sharing of good practices from a subsidiary to another.”

ARNAUD LE GOFF,
corporate industrial projects manager,
Carros

“I joined Virbac in 2012 as Production manager,

before joining the American team at St. Louis in
late 2014 on a temporary assignment in connection with a
technology transfer. This mobility gave me some outstanding
opportunities not only to advance my technical and
behavioural skills and my ability to adapt, but also to develop
my network, which all serves to benefit the company. Mobility
is also a real challenge, because as an expert, people expect
a lot from you.”

VANESSA MACDONALD,
general manager of Virbac New
Zealand, following a position of global
marketing manager at headquarters

“When you say you are mobile, you have to
accept you will go outside your comfort zone. But if you are
committed, mobility is a win-win situation: added value for
the company, and a career boost for the staff member. On
a personal level, it is a gratifying experience at any age. It’s
certainly easier when you’re young and don’t have children,
but when you are a parent, there is no better way of offering
them an opportunity for open-mindedness.”

FRANÇOIS DENNEWALD,
director of Legal Affairs & business
development manager for Latin America

“After two years at headquarters as legal counsel
for governance and acquisition projects, I now
hold a dual responsibility with regard to the Latin America
area: business development and legal support function,
which is pretty rare in big companies which usually look for
very specialised resources. I appreciate this flexible mobility
approach, which allows me to develop whilst performing my
duties in a more productive way for the Group, with a real
bridging role between the centre of strategic decision-making
and operational teams.”
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Sustainable development

Company profile
Presentation

STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS
G4-1 Statement from the senior decision-maker on the importance of sustainable
development for the organisation and its strategy
There are several reasons why long-term development is natural for Virbac. The majority of Virbac’s capital is
controlled by one family, that of its founder, Dr Pierre-Richard Dick. His profoundly humane values have
distinguished the company and remain the foundation upon which the company strategy is built. As with many
family businesses, the ability to envisage the long-term and act accordingly is part of its structural heritage.
Furthermore, being a listed company only serves to advance this vision, because increasing numbers of shareholders
favour companies whose strategies incorporate sustainable development goals that enhance, rather than impede,
economic performance. Virbac’s mission of developing, manufacturing and selling veterinary medicines and, more
generally, animal health products places it at the heart of the food chain. Its customers, veterinarians and farmers,
are becoming increasingly aware of their impact on the environment and human health. So Virbac is, as a result,
naturally driven to orientate its activities appropriately.
The rapid growth of the Group strengthens at once both its local and its global character, leading to additional
requirements. Virbac is consequently deeply anchored in its native region, the Côte d’Azur, where it is the largest
company of local origin. Its visibility grows with its workforce and its investment in its place of origin. So it must
endeavour to set both a social and environmental example for its employees and its community. At the same time,
however, Virbac has also become a global company, realising over 60% of its sales outside Europe and with affiliates
in 31 countries and on every continent. The company must ensure that its development respects certain common
guiding principles, regardless of where it operates, in particular in relation to social and environmental issues, whilst
incorporating development targets.
Since 2012, the company’s sustainable development strategy has been audited by one of the company’s statutory
auditors. The audit has a solid basis in three areas.
In the social sphere, respect for human beings was one of the key values of the company’s founder: the maintenance
of real social dialogue, a favourable remuneration and welfare policy for employees at the lower end of the salary scale,
and the trust and interest shown in every employee form part of Virbac’s historic values. The company is committed to
preserving and fostering this legacy by complementing it with ambitious skills development policies.
In the environmental sphere, the company’s operations themselves guarantee strict quality requirements (compliance,
for example, with Good manufacturing practices and with Good laboratory practices). In addition, several years ago the
company launched lean manufacturing and continuous improvement projects designed to steadily cut waste and
optimise use of resources. The search for energy efficiency and respect for the environment are ever more
systematically integrated into the company’s key decisions (on investment, transport, product design, etc.).
In the financial sphere, the company’s objective is to continue pursuing the steady and profitable growth it has seen
almost annually since it was founded. This development is primarily based on solid organic growth, driven by
innovation and the strength of Virbac’s customer relationships. The company regularly boosts its development
through targeted acquisitions, all the while ensuring a controlled level of net debt. This strategy is pursued within
the framework of a straightforward and clear governance structure providing shareholders with a high level of
transparency. Without overdoing the communication, Virbac uses a genuine approach, targeting long-term
development that respects customers, employees, shareholders, partners and its environment.
Éric Marée

G4-2 Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities
In its capacity as a veterinary pharmaceutical company, Virbac provides veterinarians and farmers with medicines
and vaccines that improve the health of food-producing animals, and so contributes to a more abundant global
supply of meat and milk, of higher quality and at less expense. The key issue is to respond to a demand for nutrition
that requires constant quantitative and qualitative improvement, for a growing global population that wishes to feed
itself better. Virbac also offers veterinarians and owners of companion animals medicines, vaccines and health
products which make animals live longer and improve their quality of life. This in turn contributes to the increased
well-being of the owners and is a particular benefit for those who live alone. Virbac’s efforts in research and
development have led the field in the development of treatments and vaccines against infections that are still hardly
combated (e.g. the vaccine and treatment for canine leishmaniosis) or that present a new epizootic risk.
The primary risks for Virbac, as for all veterinary pharmaceutical companies, are:
• producing medicines or vaccines of inadequate pharmaceutical quality, which could have potentially damaging
effects on the health of animals and, therefore, humans. The obligation to obtain a marketing authorisation (MA)
from the health authorities, the obligation to conform to Good laboratory and Good manufacturing practices, as well
as the obligation to establish adequate quality assurance and quality control procedures allow the Group to reduce its
exposure to this risk;
• not being innovative enough to respond to the needs of veterinarians, for several reasons:
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− insufficient R&D budget;
− too few quality projects that would facilitate obtaining new molecules, new pharmaceutical forms, or new
vaccines;
− taking excessive risks, particularly in insufficiently regulated countries, enabling products to come onto
the market which are ineffective or even potentially dangerous;
− excessive caution in well-regulated countries that could lead to insufficient innovation, harmful to the
community;
• taking environmental risks or risks to the health of employees because of insufficient management of certain
materials used in the composition of medicines or used in the R&D or production processes.
Detailed analysis of risks based on the internal map of the Group is available on page 96 of the annual report.
As for any industrial company, there are opportunities for improvement in the environmental sphere:
• the industrial policy that encourages local production (from one to three production sites per world region)
allows limitation of transportation of finished products. There are, however, opportunities to optimise the
transportation of finished products, as well as raw materials, that could further limit emissions of CO2;
• energy use at the various production sites could be further reduced by optimising processes, by better
insulating in the different operations buildings, and by constructing new buildings with better environmental
quality standards. Water consumption can also continue to be optimised. Within the limits imposed by
pharmaceutical regulations, it is possible to increase the use of recycled materials in finished products. The
volume of waste generated from the various sites could be further cut and the percentage of waste sorted could
be increased.
In the social sphere, the main areas for improvement are found in an improvement in employee safety in the
workplace: the reduction of accidents, better protection from potentially hazardous materials, ergonomic
improvement and management of psychosocial risks. Continuing to improve skills through training and better
diversity management are also areas of progress retained by Virbac.
Finally, in the economic sphere, there are three areas for improvement:
• helping customers to better prescribe and to use the products, by promoting the responsible use of veterinary
medicines through tailored support and training activities;
• further developing relations with suppliers engaged in sustainable development practices;
• extending risk management practices throughout the Group.
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ORGANISATION PROFILE
G4-3 Name of the organisation
See pages 24, 149 and 190 of the annual report.

G4-4 Primary brands, products and/or services
See pages 240 to 241 of the annual report.

G4-5 Location of the registered office of the organisation
See page 149 of the annual report.

G4-6 Number of countries where the organisation operates, and names of countries
with either major operations or that are particularly important in terms of the issues of
sustainable development dealt with by the report
See pages 6, 14, 20 and 190 of the annual report.

G4-7 Type of ownership and legal structure
See pages 119 and 149 of the annual report.

G4-8 Markets in which the organisation operates (including geographic breakdown,
sectors served, and types of customers or beneficiaries)
See pages 80 to 85 of the annual report.

G4-9 Size of the organisation (total number of employees, of sites, net sales, total capital
separating debts and equity, quantities of products and services supplied)
See pages 8-9, 59 and 91-92 of the annual report.
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G4-10 Total workforce by gender, type of employment, contract, and geographical area
The scope of the workforce for 2016 covers 16 countries and represents 4,113 employees i.e. 85% of the total staff.
The change in the permanent workforce is +5.44% (3,955 in 2016 compared with 3,751 in 2015). The change in the
total workforce is 193 including 117 in connection with the integration of Uruguay into the scope of reporting.
Excluding Uruguay, the number of employees increased by 1.94% (76 employees).
Breakdown of total employees (by number)



Women



Men

3 000

2 406

2 500
2 000

1 549

1 500
1 000
500

61

-

Permanent
Permanent

97

Temporary
Temporaire

Temporary employees include contracts terminating at the end of a specified period or when a specific task, given an
estimated date of completion, is completed.
Breakdown of permanent employees (by number)



Women



Men

2 376

2 500
2 000

1 407

1 500
1 000
500

142

30

-

Full-time
Temps
Plein

p

Part-time
Temps
Partiel

y

Within the permanent workforce, 9% of women work part-time and thus account for the vast majority of part-time
contracts (83%).
Regional breakdown men/women (by number)



Women

1 000
900
800



Men

944

852
719

700
600
500
400

246

300

272

221

327

200

145

156

100

98

48

85

-

Europe
Europe

North America
Amérique
du Nord

Latin America
Amérique
Latine

Pacific
Pacifique

Asia
Asie

Africa
& Middle
East
Afrique
& Moyen

Orient

Europe remains the only geographical area where women are in the majority (54% of the workforce). The Pacific areas
with 48% and North America with 47% have a very balanced proportion. Latin America with 40% and Africa and the
Middle East with 36% show a greater imbalance. Asia has the lowest number of women in the workforce (9%). This
very low representation is due to India, which has only 2.5% women. This country remains a special case: the sales
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teams, for reasons of local culture, difficulty and security (2-wheel farm visits) are more naturally composed of men.
Excluding India, the Asia area represents 213 employees and consists mostly of men at 64%.

G4-11 Percentage of employees covered by a collective agreement
Each subsidiary of the Virbac group applies the social regulations in force in its country regarding collective wage
bargaining.
Employees covered by collective agreements
Australia

0%

Brazil

100%

France

100%

Germany

0%

India

71%

Italy

0%

Japan

0%

Mexico

8%

South Africa

0%

Spain

98%

United States/Canada

18%

United Kingdom

0%

Colombia

96%

Vietnam

0%

New Zealand

0%

G4-12 Supply chain of the organisation
PRODUCTION
ASSEMBLY

WAREHOUSING
DISTRIBUTION

CUSTOMERS
SALES

3 categories of
suppliers directly
connected to industrial
activity (worldwide):

2 categories of
industrial sites:

2 categories of
distribution centre:

2 categories of
customers:

• approximately 900
suppliers of raw materials
and packaging (€120
million worth of
purchases);

• Virbac plants (located in

SUPPLIERS

• approximately 100

fabrication subcontractors
(€65 million worth of
purchases);

• approximately 40

suppliers of finished
products (€35 million
worth of purchases).
2016 data
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10 countries), whose
products contributed to
64% of Group sales;

• Virbac internal

distribution centres
(located in the country or
area of each subsidiary);

• user customers
(veterinarians, farmers,
integrators, animal
owners);

• external industrial sites
(located all over the
world) whose products
have contributed to
generate 36% of Group
sales.

• external distribution
centres (located all over
the world);

• intermediary customers
(purchasing centres,
distributors and
wholesalers).

• internal and external

distribution costs
represent 3.2% of Group
sales.

8,023 product references
have been sold to these
customers located in more
than 100 countries.
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To supply its factories, Virbac buys the active ingredients, excipients and packaging from suppliers meeting high
standards of quality and reliability. All new suppliers of raw materials and of primary packaging are subject to a
rigorous qualification procedure aimed at limiting ruptures in supply. Whenever possible, Virbac strives to qualify
several sources for the same need.
Purchases of industrial equipment are also subject to rigorous selection which leads Virbac to work with the leaders
in industrial pharmaceutical equipment for important investments. The selection of new partners in development is
carried out in the same spirit by multidisciplinary teams who ensure that they meet the highest criteria of reliability
and respect the best standards.
For certain products for which the industrial investments may not reasonably be amortised, Virbac calls upon a
network of sub-contractors specialised in pharmaceuticals: aerosol, freeze-drying, tablets etc. Production is carried
out in proximity to the regions where the products are sold, with certain exceptions for very high technology
products such as biological products.
Other than purchases directly linked to development and production, Virbac make purchases of over €220 million at
Group level:
• products and services related to marketing, the sales and communication forces (promotional and advertising
articles, design or post-production agency services, advertising spaces, and at an earlier stage, market studies,
without forgetting IT support and events such as seminars and conferences);
• products and services not linked to production and commonly called “indirect” products or services
(intellectual services, trips, travel, facility management, energy, interims, training, IT and telecommunications);
• products and services indirectly linked to production and R&D (consumables, chemical products,
maintenance, parts);
• investments for the whole Group (€40 million of which two-thirds is for production) destined for equipment,
works and small materials.
To cover all its needs, Virbac calls upon several thousand suppliers worldwide. The Group’s purchases are managed
by dedicated teams at headquarters, sharing a host of good practices.

G4-13 Significant changes in size, capital or the supply chain of the organisation during
the reporting period
See pages 85 and 119 of the annual report.

COMMITMENTS TO EXTERNAL INITIATIVES
G4-14 Clarification of the organisation’s position regarding the approach
or the precautionary principle and its actions regarding this matter
Given the nature of pharmaceutical activities, Virbac systematically follows the precautionary principle. However, the
Group ensures that this principle does not disproportionately impact the innovation process by favouring, when
appropriate, a risk/benefit analysis.

G4-15 Economic, environmental and social charters, principles, and other external
initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or which it endorses
Virbac’s commitments are based on the principles set out in the following international documents:
• the Universal Declaration of Human Rights;
• the international conventions of the International labour organisation;
• the guiding principles of the Organisation for economic co-operation and development (OECD) as regards
multinational companies.
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G4-16 Membership of professional associations or national/international advocacy
organisations in which the company has management positions or in which it
participates in projects or committees, or provides funding above routine subscriptions
or where it considers its membership as strategic
As with all the large veterinary pharmaceutical companies, Virbac is a member of the main professional
organisations representing animal health nationally, regionally or worldwide:
Among the main professional organisations:
• at national level
− SIMV (Syndicat de l’industrie du médicament vétérinaire [Association for animal health industry]) in France
− NOAH (National office of animal health) in Great Britain
− BfT [Federal association for animal health] in Germany
− AISA (Italian association of environmental sciences) in Italy
− VeterIndustria in Spain
− A.H.I. (Animal health institute) in the United States

• at regional level

− IFAH-Europe (International federation of animal health - Europe)

• at world level

− HealthforAnimals (Global animal medicines association)

Virbac’s representatives regularly participate in the work of these professional organisations through telephone
conferences, email consultations and physical meetings. The main objective is to contribute to common work, to
make Virbac’s voice heard and to distribute internally such information as may be useful to the company.
The representatives take part:
• either in working groups as experts
At national level, Virbac is, for example, present in 26 working groups within the SIMV. At European level,
Virbac is present in 15 working groups, mainly technical and regulatory.

• or in the governance of these organisations
At national level, Virbac is on the administrative council of SIMV, NOAH, AISA, VeterIndustria, BfT (in this last
organisation, Virbac’s representative was elected as president of the administrative council in 2015). At regional
level, Virbac is on the administrative council of IFAH-Europe whose headquarters is in Brussels. At world level,
Virbac is on the administrative council of HealthforAnimals, as vice-chair.
In terms of financing, Virbac contributes to these professional organisations through subscriptions based upon its
sales in the territory in question.

PERTINENT ASPECTS AND SPHERES IDENTIFIED
G4-17 Operational structure of the organisation, including main divisions, operating
companies, affiliates and joint ventures
See pages 190 and 218 of the annual report.

G4-18 Process of definition of content and scope of aspects
An internal sustainable development working group, managed by the chairman of the executive board, has existed
for nine years. All of the company’s departments are represented in this task force: Human Resources, Finance,
Marketing, Risk, Safety, Regulations, Sourcing, Legal, Communication etc. During collective and sub-group meetings
the content of the report is defined and then produced according to two specific criteria: relevance of topics in
relation to the Group’s activity, and compliance with the Grenelle II law of France. The final contents are discussed
during an open debate chaired by the chairman of the executive board.
In terms of data collection, the working group has been relying on an optimised production and recovery process since
2012, thanks notably to a greater formalisation of the indicators and the scope of reporting within a dedicated data
system used in the Group’s major subsidiaries. This optimisation also applies to the organisation and training of a
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network of local correspondents whose particular assignment revolves around the major areas in sustainable
development: environmental, social and economic.
In 2015, within the framework of the move to the GRI G4 data system Virbac undertook strategic consideration of
CSR (Corporate social responsibility) and carried out an analysis of materiality in order to evaluate the key issues for
the Group in terms of sustainable development. To do this, Virbac used a third party expert who directed the
analyses and evaluations.
This strategy was carried out following a methodology of factual analysis of credible external and internal sources:
• participatory workshops with the internal sustainable development working group (within which all
departments are represented) considering the most important of the CSR key issues;
• sharing information about inquiries and internal and external communication support;
• reviewing sectoral documentation;
• media analysis etc.
Based upon a materiality threshold defined at the confluence of internal expectations (impact of the key issues on
Virbac’s activity and business model) and external expectations (importance of the expectations of stakeholders),
the results were synthesised and submitted to the chairman of the executive board for validation. The office of the
non-financial reporting specialist that accompanied the entire process guaranteed its independence and objectivity.
Key themes of Virbac’s activity

G4-19 Pertinent aspects (key themes) identified in the content process
The significant key issues in the analysis of materiality are as follows.

• Customer relations and partnerships: key issue GRI G4 “Communication and marketing”
• Quality of products and services: key issue GRI G4 “Health and consumer safety”
• Innovation: a Virbac specific key issue

G4-20 Scope of each pertinent aspect within the organisation
The three key issues (Customer relations and partnerships, Quality of products and services, Innovation) were
pertinent and material in relation to all the organisation’s activities.

G4-21 Scope of each pertinent aspect outside of the organisation
The three key themes for Virbac’s activity (Customer relations and partnerships, Quality of products and services,
Innovation) were also pertinent outside of the organisation for the stakeholders listed in G4-24.
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G4-22 Reasons and results for all reformulation of information communicated in
previous reports
A more formalised methodology based on a consistent definition of the indicators and support for the local
correspondents was implemented in 2012. In certain cases, it can be difficult to compare with previous data. In the
event of amendments, they are explained in the relevant sections.

G4-23 Significant changes to the field of study and the scope of aspects compared to
previous reporting periods
In 2016, the Virbac Uruguay subsidiary was included in the reporting scope for environmental and social indicators.
The production subsidiary PP Manufacturing (United States) has also been included in the environmental scope.

STAKEHOLDER INVOLVEMENT
G4-24 List of stakeholder groups included by the organisation
The main stakeholders included by the Group are veterinarians, distributors, farmers, animal owners, employees,
regulatory authorities, suppliers, associations, shareholders and communities.

G4-25 Basis of identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage
Listening to stakeholders is a key factor in Virbac’s sustainable development strategy, allowing awareness of the
expectations of its customers, employees, suppliers, scientists, residents near its sites, representatives of public
authorities, and non-governmental organisations.
The stakeholders with whom Virbac is actively engaged are identified by factors such as:
• their contribution to a better definition of needs within the Group’s areas of activity;
• their alignment with company’s strategy and their added value;
• their expertise in the field;
• staff involvement in the company’s operations;
• their perception of the Group’s activities and products.
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G4-26 Frequency of dialogue by type and by stakeholder group, possible consultation
with specific stakeholders within the framework of preparation of the report
STAKEHOLDERS

APPROACH AND FREQUENCY
OF DIALOGUES

Veterinarians
Farmers
Animal owners
Distributors

Continuous product information via advertising
Continuous information on specific animal diseases
Continuous support programmes for veterinarians and farmers
Technical call centres in France, United States, etc.,
Conferences, specialised trade fairs, scientific conferences
Permanent websites
Market research
Presence on social networks

Financial community
Investors
Analysts
SRI Funds

Meetings between analysts and investors
Annual shareholders’ meeting
Website including all regulatory information
Multi-platform financial bulletins

Suppliers
Partners

Regular monitoring of the Group’s main suppliers (annual meetings)
Audit plan for the Group’s main suppliers
Formal exchanges at each call for tender and for the principal suppliers about
financial, environmental, ethical and quality criteria

Public authorities
Regulatory authorities
Professional
animal health
associations

Regular communication with regulatory managers and the
decision-makers for critical questions that affect the
pharmaceutical industry, the scientific community and Virbac customers
Participation in industry-specific working groups

Civil society
Non-governmental
organisations
Journalists

Multiple contact options via the Group’s website
Transparency of and accessibility to the Group’s official reports
Local contributions to NGO initiatives

Scientific community
Research partners
Opinion leaders
Universities/veterinary
schools
Veterinarians

Establishing research partnerships
Contributing to scientific education programmes
Organising technical symposia

Employees
Applicants

Intranet, magazines, presentations and in-house poster networks
Loyalty programmes for employees and newcomers
Annual conferences
Plenary meetings for managers and employees twice a year
Opinion survey and world compilation every two years
Recruitment websites, professional forums and corporate culture on the Internet
Partnership with schools and universities

G4-27 Key themes and concerns raised during the dialogue with stakeholders and the
manner in which the organisation has responded, particularly in its reporting.
See “Strategy and analysis”, points G4-1 and G4-2. Virbac’s approach is to prioritise dialogue with stakeholders at
local level. The Group does not consolidate all actions taken by the various affiliates in this area, except those
regarding social issues about which an internal opinion survey, coordinated by headquarters, is conducted every two
years, for all Group employees. Based on the results (see page 89-90 of the annual report), the Group is committed
to initiatives for progress in terms of management and communication.

33

REPORT PROFILE
G4-28 Reporting period
January 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016.

G4-29 Date of last published report (if any)
This document is Virbac’s ninth annual sustainable development report and the fifth to have been checked by an
independent auditor for completeness of content and selection of environmental and social indicators. This document
has been compiled according to GRI G4 guidelines. The last Virbac sustainable development report was published on 30
April 2016.

G4-30 Reporting cycle (annual, biennial etc.)
Annual.

G4-31 Who to contact with queries about the report or its contents
Arnaud Brisset - Corporate Communications manager - arnaud.brisset@virbac.com

G4-32 Index of GRI contents
The detailed index is available below. The
compliance option chosen by Virbac for its
second report using GRI G4 guidelines is
“core”. Virbac’s material key issues are
identified by the symbol “KEY ISSUE”.
PROFILE
Page of
annual report

G4-1
G4-2
G4-3
G4-4
G4-5
G4-6
G4-7
G4-8
G4-9
G4-10
G4-11
G4-12
G4-13

G4-14
G4-15
G4-16
G4-17
G4-18
G4-19
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STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS
Statement from the most senior decision-maker on the importance of sustainable
development for the organisation and its strategy
Description of main impacts, risks, and key opportunities
ORGANISATION PROFILE
Name of the organisation
Main products and/or services and corresponding brands
Location of registered office of the organisation
Establishment of the organisation abroad
Type of ownership and legal structure
Markets served
Size of the organisation
Organisation’s workforce
Percentage of employees covered by collective agreements
Organisation’s supply chain
Significant changes in size, capital or the organisation’s supply chain during the
reporting period
COMMITMENTS TO EXTERNAL INITIATIVES
Precautionary principle
Economic, environmental, and social charters, principles, or other external initiatives
to which the organisation subscribes or which it endorses
Membership of national or international associations or organisations
PERTINENT ASPECTS AND SPHERES IDENTIFIED
Operational structure of the organisation, descriptions of the main divisions, operating
companies, affiliates, and joint ventures
Process of definition of content and scope of aspects
Pertinent aspects in the process of content reporting

24
24-25
24, 149 & 190
240-241
149
6, 14, 20 & 190
119 & 149
80-85
8-9, 59 & 91-92
27-28
28
28
85 & 119

29
29
30
30
30
31
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G4-20
G4-21
G4-22
G4-23

G4-24
G4-25
G4-26
G4-27

G4-28
G4-29
G4-30
G4-31
G4-32
G4-33
G4-34
G4-35
G4-36
G4-38
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Role of the highest governance body in the examination of the efficiency of the
process of risk management in the organisation concerning the economic,
environmental and social themes.
Frequency of examination of impacts, risks, and economic, environmental and social
opportunities by the highest governance body
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MATERIALS
Materials consumed by weight or volume
Percentage of materials used of recycled origin
ENERGY
Energy consumption within the organisation
Energy intensity
Reduction of energy consumption
Reduction in the energy needs of products and services
WATER
Total water taken, by source
Water sources significantly affected by drawing water
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TRANSPORT
Significant environmental impacts from product transportation, other goods and
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ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION OF SUPPLIERS
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MECHANISMS FOR SETTLING ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLAINTS
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SOCIAL - DECENT EMPLOYMENT AND WORK
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EMPLOYMENT
Total number and percentage of new employees hired and turnover rate of employees
by tranche of age, sex and geographical area
HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK
Rates and types of work-related injuries, occupational diseases, absenteeism,
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NON-DISCRIMINATION
Number of total incidents of discrimination and corrective actions implemented
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bargaining may not be respected or is strongly threatened, and measures taken to
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forced or mandatory labour and measures taken to contribute to the abolition of this
type of labour in all its forms
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COMPLIANCE
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G4-33 Policy and practices for external verification of the report
This report was audited by one of Virbac’s statutory auditors at Deloitte. This verification, in accordance with the
regulations, has two objects: to attest to the presence of the report in the ensemble of sustainable development
information required by the law and to validate the integrity of the information published in the name of such
regulation. See attestation on pages 74 to 76 of the 2016 annual report.
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GOVERNANCE
Since 1992, Virbac has adopted a dual governance structure with an executive board and supervisory board. For the
purposes of the present report, the term “highest governance body” used by GRI G4 guidelines can refer to either
the supervisory board (indicators G4-34, G4-38, G4-45, G4-46, G4-47), or to the executive board (G4-35, G4-36,
G4-51).

G4-34 The governance structure of the organisation, including the committees of the
highest governance body
See pages 10-11, 105 and 126 of the annual report.

G4-35 Delegation process for powers of highest governance body to management staff
and other employees concerning economic, environmental and social themes
Delegations of the powers of the executive board to management staff concerning the economic, environmental and
social themes follow the same regime as that applicable to other delegations of powers within the organisation. For
more details, see page 134 of the annual report.

G4-36 Indicate if the organisation has named one or several management staff
responsible for economic, environmental and social themes, and if they report directly
to the highest governance body
The economic, environmental and social themes are at the confluence of the Group’s various departments. Virbac’s
main departments responsible for these subjects are the Hygiene, Safety, Environment, Financial Affairs and Human
Resources departments. All these departments are represented on the Group’s strategic committee and all report to
the chairman of the executive board. The financial director is also a member of the executive board.

G4-38 Describe the composition of the highest governance body and its committees in
accordance with the following breakdown: executive or non-executive; independence;
functions in the governing body; number of other posts and commitments of each
member and the nature of their commitments; gender; members belonging to underrepresented social groups; competences relating to economic, environmental and social
impacts; representation of the stakeholders.
See pages 10-11, 105 and 126 of the annual report.

G4-39 Indicate whether the president of the board of directors (or equivalent) is also an
executive administrator (and, in that case, describe their functions in the flow chart of
the organisation and the reasons for this arrangement)
Virbac has adopted a dual governance structure with an executive board and supervisory board. No member of the
supervisory board has an executive role within the Group.

G4-40 Process of determining the qualifications and expertise required by members of
the board of directors (or equivalent) including any consideration of gender and any
other diversity indicator
See pages 10-11, 105 and 126 of the annual report.
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G4-45 Role of the highest governance body in the identification and management of
impacts, risks, and economic, environmental and social opportunities
At the end of 2009, the Virbac group set up a Risk Management department which reports to the executive board.
Its top priority was to create a map of the major risks for the Group, which has been updated twice. The last update
to this map was carried out in the last trimester of 2015.
In parallel, the internal risk controls began to be deployed in the affiliates representing a significant issue for the
Group. This control mechanism consists of creating a map of the risks for the affiliate, nominating risk owners, and
implementing and following up on action plans in respect of the major risks of the affiliate. In 2016, this system was
deployed in the South African and French subsidiaries. The map of the Mexican subsidiary has also been updated.

G4-46 Role of the highest governance body in the examination of the efficiency of the
process of risk management in the organisation concerning the economic,
environmental and social themes.
The maps of the major risks of the Group are regularly presented to the supervisory board which validates the
contents. The risks taken into account are, amongst others, representative of the economic, environmental and
social risks of the company. Risk owners are appointed to define, implement and oversee action plans on priority
risks. The result of these activities is presented annually to the supervisory board, together with the objectives and
orientations of the risk management department for the following year.
In 2016, the Group continued its efforts to develop the risk culture. Among these, of particular note:
• internal training entitled “Risk Management: the fundamentals” (about ten managers trained in 2016);
• the deployment of an IT tool specifically dedicated to risk management (deployed at the headquarters and in
seven subsidiaries);
• the continuation of a project on securing major Group products (sponsored by two members of the executive
board and piloted by the Risk Management department);
• the continued deployment of a code of conduct drawn up in 16 languages and disseminated to all Group
employees and the training of a large number of leaders and managers in accordance with the principles and
rules described in this document. In 2016, the Group continued the deployment of the Code of conduct, in
particular through internal presentations to newcomers.

G4-47 Frequency of examination of impacts, risks, and economic, environmental and
social opportunities by the highest governance body
The maps of the different entities are updated approximately every three years. This may vary depending upon the
environment in which the entity has developed. In 2016, the map of the Mexican subsidiary was updated.
Nevertheless, the action plans implemented on major risk factors are the subject of careful orientation by the risk
owners. With regard to the Group’s major risks a quarterly monitoring of the progress of the action plans is carried
out between the risk owners and the Risk Management department.

G4-51 Current remuneration policy for the highest governance body and the senior
managerial staff
See pages 108 to 111 of the annual report.

G4-53 Method of approach and how stakeholder opinions are taken into account on the
question of remuneration, including the results of votes on the policies and
propositions for remuneration of governance and managerial staff
Since the annual general assembly of June 17, 2014, Virbac annually submits the resolutions to its shareholders for
consultation about all the elements of remuneration of the members of the executive board. At the annual
shareholders’ meeting of 2016, these resolutions received 90.2 % of votes in favour of the chairman of the executive
board and all other members of the executive board.
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ETHICS AND INTEGRITY
G4-56 Values, principles, standards and rules of organisation in terms
of behaviour, such as codes of conduct and codes of ethics
The Virbac values (innovation, customer-driven, entrepreneurship, empowerment and teamwork) are widely
encouraged throughout the Group and brought to the fore at each important company event. They are explicitly and
systematically explained during a presentation given by one of the Group managers for all new arrivals. This
presentation, the “Virbac Way”, illustrates how the company’s values and strategic guiding principles are implemented
in the various Group entities.
In 2015, Virbac has implemented a Code of conduct, copied into 16 languages and communicated to all the Group’s
employees. This Code of conduct is thirty pages describing the norms and rules to respect in the main areas linked
to the life of the company, assembled under four main themes: conduct of business, protection of assets, business
and private life and social responsibility of the company.
In 2016, Virbac updated its Group anti-corruption policy which is now written in 10 languages. Members of the
executive board, members of the strategic committee, members of the French executive committee and directors of
subsidiaries of the Group signed a document formalising their commitment to comply with this policy.
The year 2016 was also marked by the recognition of the new European rules on market abuse by Virbac. Different
presentations on this subject were made especially for members of the executive board, the supervisory board,
members of the strategic committee, members of the French executive committee and the finance department. A
market abuse prevention policy, incorporating the changes related to this new regulation and written in 3 languages,
was disseminated internally.

G4-58 Internal and external mechanisms used in claims relative to non-ethical
behaviours and the law and to questions about the integrity of the organisation
Virbac’s code of conduct gives a specific email address for each theme referred to, allowing employees confidentially
to write to a senior manager specialised in the domain concerned. The Code of conduct is preceded by an
introduction by the chairman of the executive board inviting employees to contact the departments mentioned in the
document in case of questions or when they are witness to behaviour non-compliant with rules defined in the Code
of conduct.
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Economy

Performance indicators

Dedicated exclusively to animal health for nearly fifty years, Virbac aims to continue its development in harmony with
its environment and with its workers. It also wants to ensure the continuity of the Group through sustainable and
profitable growth. In 2016, Virbac returned to organic growth, up +4.4% over the year, thanks in particular to the
gradual recovery in the United States and sustained performance in Europe and emerging countries.
As part of its strategy, Virbac supports its development through regular new product launches, the strength of its
large portfolio and global presence reaching into all the major markets in both developed and emerging countries.
This controlled-growth strategy is reflected by a steady growth in revenues and the workforce. Virbac also benefits
from a stable shareholder family which favours constant and long-term progress over short-term goals. In terms of
the sub-contracted production activities (licensing products or production sub-contracted to a third party), they
represent more than one third of the Group’s sales in 2016, following the acquisition of Sentinel products
manufactured externally over the period. The suppliers in charge of manufacturing these products are managed
according to the evaluation procedures described in the G4-HR5 and G4-HR10 indicators.
Change in revenue (in € million) and Group staff numbers
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Virbac sustains a policy of investment and innovation, which ensures the continuity and independence of the
company. Also, thanks to controlled debt, Virbac is able to pursue internal and external growth with full
independence. The resources thus deployed favour financing innovation that is oriented towards satisfying customer
needs.
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In 2016, resources dedicated to innovation (research, development, licensing) represented 7.6% of its sales. At the
same time, the Group continues to use its investment capacity to support its development through targeted external
growth (acquisitions of companies, products, active ingredients, etc.) and to finance an investment programme,
particularly in industrial projects.

R&D expenses + Licensing (in €million)
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Figures from 2015 include funding for the acquisition of
Sentinel brands in the United States.

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
G4-EC1 Direct economic value created and distributed, including revenues, operating
costs, employee benefits and remuneration, donations and other community
investments, retained earnings, payments
to capital providers and to governments
For the data on the direct economic value created, the distributed economic value and the undistributed economic
value, see pages 123 and 144 to 149 of the annual report.

G4-EC2 Financial implications and other risks and opportunities for the activities
of the organisation linked to climate change
The group has not as yet carried out an analysis of the impacts of its activities on climate change.
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MARKET PRESENCE
G4-EC6 Proportion of management staff hired locally
at the main operational sites
In recruitment for key positions, internal candidates are preferred. Recruitment decisions (internal or external) are
based exclusively on criteria of competence and qualification for the position. The candidate’s nationality does not
interfere with the decision.
Where possible, Virbac entrusts leadership positions to local managers, in order to be closer to customers and the
market culture. At the same time, the group adheres to a policy of skills development at international level that
enables support of managers towards international positions. In 2016, of the sixteen subsidiaries of the company,
92% of senior executives are local and seven subsidiaries have strictly local management.
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INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS
G4-EC7 Development and impact of investments in infrastructure
and services, mainly public, through commercial provision,
in kind or free of charge
A few examples in France: the financial contribution to the humanitarian association SOS Attitude, the donation of dog
and cat food to the Société protectrice des animaux and the contribution to the Fondation d’entreprise Virbac.

G4-EC8 Substantial indirect economic impacts, including the significance
of these impacts
Animal health is at the heart of healthy ecosystems. For this reason, the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac financed the
implementation of the “Screening, control and prevention of zoonoses in the Great Limpopo Transfrontier Park
(Zimbabwe)” programme in 2016. The objective of this project is to improve animal health, for wild as much as
domestic animals at the heart of the park’s ecosystem surrounded by Shangaan communities. The main actions carried
out in 2016 include: raising awareness of zoonoses, improving livestock nutrition, vaccinating domestic carnivores
against rabies, and providing safe drinking water to reduce the risk of disease transmission and conflict between
humans, wildlife and domestic animals.

G4-EC9 Share of expenditure incurred with locally-based suppliers
at the main operating sites
Virbac works with regional suppliers when their conditions are competitive and in line with the requirements of the
Group’s affiliates. In 2016, the proportion of purchases made with regional suppliers amounts to 24% of total
purchases. By regional supplier, Virbac means those situated in the same geographical area as the affiliate (or the
industrial site) in accordance with the partition of the country concerned. For example: for the Carros site - France,
the Provence-Alpes-Côte d’Azur region; for the sites in the United States at Forth Worth and St. Louis, Texas and
Missouri; for Australia, New South Wales etc.
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Environment
Performance indicators

In each of the Virbac group’s industrial sites, resources and impacts are monitored and managed according to key
indicators. They relate to energy consumption and natural resources (water, electricity, gas, fuels), emissions into
water, air and the quantity of waste generated.
The scope of the principal environmental indicators covers all the major production sites, representing almost 60%
of the Group’s sales in 2016: South Africa, Australia, Brazil, the United States, France, Mexico, New Zealand,
Uruguay and Vietnam (excluding Chile which is a joint-venture). For reasons of reporting maturity, certain indicators
are collected within a more limited scope and the Group is continuously working to expand this. All the exclusions or
possible focus countries are specified. Thus, due to a lack of maturity on CO2 emissions linked to transport, these
data are only reported on within France. In 2017, Virbac will work on the reliability and completeness of these
indicators which should therefore be published.
The Grenelle II provision on land use has not been covered, as it has been deemed not applicable in relation to the
activities and locations of the Virbac group. Finally, following the publication of the French decree of May 3, 2012
concerning the compulsory provision of financial guarantees for securing certain facilities classified for environmental
protection, Virbac provided a financial guarantee in France of €124,164.

Circular economy

Taking into account its activity, the Virbac group is not concerned with actions to combat food waste. The
establishment of the waste collection and sorting channels described in the report on page 54 also aims to establish
a circular economy. It should be noted that the reuse of waste is not applicable to pharmaceuticals.

Environmental protection: training and employees’ information.

To sensitise its teams to key environmental issues, Virbac has carried out several activities within France since 2012.
In concrete terms, training process has been implemented for positions subject to environment and security
regulations, as well as welcome sheets explaining the environment and health regulations to be respected are
provided to new employees. Since 2013, an HSE section has been included in the welcome programme for new
employees. In 2015, with the creation of the HSE Corporate board and its connection to the chairman, an audit
programme was built. Also in 2015, the subsidiaries in Mexico, Australia, Taiwan, Vietnam, America, Uruguay and
New Zealand, were audited: an action plan for each of these subsidiaries was established, including regular
monitoring by the HSE Corporate board and local stakeholders.
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MATERIALS
Minimise wastage at every stage of the industrial process

Since the introduction of the continuous improvement strategy, Virbac has stepped up the fine-tuning of its use of active
ingredients, excipients and packaging. This improvement has been implemented through partnerships with dedicated
suppliers and in compliance with different regulations: from procurement of the strictly necessary (reduction of stocks and
internal transfers) to the shipping of end products (in line with customer requirements) and optimised flow organisation
(manufacturing smoothed and tailored to demand). Finally, while taking account of regulatory obligations for the
pharmaceutical industry, Virbac’s innovation policy favours manufacturing products that require less wrapping and packaging.

G4-EN1 Materials used by weight or volume
The total amount of packaging placed on the world market in 2016 amounted to 4,491 tonnes. This value is down
slightly by 3% compared to last year on a like-for-like basis (in other words, excluding Uruguay, incorporates the report
this year). This was due to a decline in the level of production at the St. Louis site in the United States for much of the
year coupled with a reduction of just over 11% from 2015 due to a drop in production especially on insecticide pipettes
and tablets at the Carros site in France.
Packaging (tonnes)
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G4-EN2 Percentage of materials used that are recycled input materials
The pharmaceutical industry is subject to strict regulations regarding the purity, quality and stability of primary packaging
(that is in contact with the medicine). Therefore, at present, recycled materials cannot be used. Secondary packaging
items are made of virgin cardboard but fully optimised in terms of weight. Tertiary packaging and thicker secondary
packaging are made from recycled fibres.

ENERGY
For several years, Virbac has been working to reduce its energy and natural resource consumption by replacing
equipment (better efficiency), adding thermal insulation, optimising air conditioning and by introducing consumption
indicators as close as possible to end users (better control of energy expenditure). Compared to an identical volume of
activity, the overall reduction in electricity consumption in France (which accounts for more than 50% of the Group’s
production) reached almost 37% for the last eight years. With an eco-citizen approach, Virbac, through its Carros site
(in France), is one of the twelve companies involved in the Ecocités initiative launched by the ministry of Ecology and
Sustainable Development in the French department of Alpes Maritimes. Thus, between 2014 and 2016 and at the
request of the incumbent electricity supplier EDF, Virbac undertook to cut the electricity consumption at several heating
installations between 6pm and 8pm during the winter period, by a total equivalent of 500 kWh (for more information:
www.nicegrid.fr). This trial, which ended in the summer of 2016, will be repeated in a more comprehensive form during
2017, Virbac will then make a decision about its participation in this process.
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G4-EN3 Energy consumption within the organization
The 33,769 MWh of gas consumed in 2016 over the entire environmental scope has been broken down in the tables
below. The sites at Vauvert (France), South Africa, New Zealand, Brazil and Vietnam do not use gas.
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On a like-for-like basis (excluding Uruguay which was included this year), gas consumption rose by only 5%, mainly
due to Mexico, with the new production site ramp up (+ 52%) and the gradual restart of the St. Louis site in the
United States.

The 51,233 MWh of electricity consumed in 2016 over the entire environmental scope has been broken down below.
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Consumption of electricity increased by 3% on a like-for-like basis (excluding Uruguay), again due to the ramp up of
the new site in Mexico (+ 10%) and the gradual return to a normal level of production of the St. Louis site in the
United States (+15%).
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G4-EN5 Energy intensity
For each of the subsidiaries, energy intensity is the ratio between energy consumption (gas and electricity) and the
value added in thousands of euros of the same subsidiary (direct labour costs + indirect production costs).
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G4-EN6 Reduction of energy consumption
For all its industrial sites around the world, whether choosing new equipment or implementing continuous
monitoring, Virbac strives to address energy consumption by using the BAT (Best available techniques) that apply to
its activity. For example, on the Penrith site in Australia, a reduction of about 500 MWh per year was recorded in
electricity consumption thanks to the installation of solar panels and optimised power management; again in Penrith,
a reduction in gas consumption of 580 MWh per year was made possible by the implementation of optimised
maintenance of industrial boilers.
Within the framework of the new CO2 regulations for companies with more than 500 employees, Virbac in France has
also signed an agreement with EDF and its partners to implement an Energy saving plan (ESP) over three years,
which, after a detailed inspection of the major sites in France, has identified three major areas of potential gain:
better management of temperatures and renewal rates at its air treatment plants; installation of a heat recovery
unit at the water treatment plant, and, finally, installation of additional insulation on all the steam circuits. Thus
almost 100 “insulating mattresses” have been installed at the Carros site in France. The heat recovery unit at the
water treatment plant is being installed and will be finalised and commissioned in the first half of 2017. This project
will have the twofold advantage of both reducing gas consumption and reducing the capacity of installed boilers.
At the Instrucciones site in Uruguay, the set point for the hot water network was lowered by 15°C, thus reducing gas
consumption by nearly 3%.

G4-EN7 Reductions in energy requirements of products and services
Virbac seeks to optimise facilities that directly consume energy. At Carros the company is avoiding, as far as possible,
installing new electricity generators for its two new production units (vaccine CaniLeish and site dedicated to injectables).
At the Instrucciones site in Uruguay, a “shutdown” of the air-handling plants for the production areas is carried out outside
of periods of activity. Just as during the installation of temperature control systems for raw materials at Carros in France in
2015, the temperature control of stores selling finished product on this same site (in the course of installation) integrates
the optimisation of electricity consumption in technical choices. At the St. Louis site in the United States, and in continuity
of the actions already carried out, the insulation of the storage warehouses has been reinforced by the installation of
insulating gates and LED lighting continue to be installed especially on the exteriors.
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WATER
For many years, Virbac has striven to lower the water consumption volume of equivalent activity by setting up
recycling and production facilities for different qualities of water in accordance with the BAT. Thus, reduction of
water consumption on French sites (representing more than 50% of the Group’s production) reached almost 21%
over the last eight years.

G4-EN8 Total water withdrawal by source
The 208,189 m3 of water consumed in 2016 over the entire environmental scope is up 5% compared to 2015 (on a
like-for-like basis, excluding Uruguay). This increase is mainly due to increases in production at the St. Louis site in
the United States and at the site in New Zealand, as well as the ramp up of the new site in Mexico.
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G4-EN9 Water sources significantly affected by withdrawals
Apart from the site in South Africa, located in a water stress zone according to the criteria of the Food and
agriculture organization and the Water risk filter, none of the Group’s production plants are situated in such an
identified water stress zone.

BIODIVERSITY
G4-EN11 Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas
and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas
Virbac’s various industrial sites at Carros (representing almost 50% of the Group’s production) are located in the
Plaine du Var area, an Operation of national interest (OIN). The national EPA (Établissement public d’aménagement
[Public development agency]), is responsible for planning the sustainable development of the Plaine du Var (see
www.ecovallee-plaineduvar.com). Similarly, the 4 hectares of the site of Penrith in Australia are adjacent to a major
water course.
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EMISSIONS, EFFLUENTS AND WASTE
Taking into account the nature of its pharmaceutical industrial activity (especially inhibiting technologies), Virbac does
not generate any visual, noise or odour pollution. Virbac is investing increasingly in respect of the environment: taking
into account HSE impacts in the management of industrial projects and strengthening of the Risk Management
department. Furthermore, the Group’s environmental principles are adapted in the subsidiaries according to the
different local regulations. Thus in a number of sites such as St. Louis and Boston in the United States, Penrith in
Australia and Carros in France, the majority of waste water from manufacturing is recovered and treated as hazardous
industrial waste in accordance with the local regulations of the countries concerned.

G4-EN15 Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 1)
G4-EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 2)
The direct and indirect emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 1 and 2) correspond to emissions linked to the
consumption of different energies (in this case gas and electricity) in all industrial sites across the world, as well as
the greenhouse gas emissions linked to refrigeration fluids. All of these emissions represented 24,414 equivalent
tonnes CO2, these emissions are up sharply (+20%) on a like-for-like basis (excluding Uruguay) due to the increase
in energy consumption (see indicator EN3); but mainly due to a very strong increase (+282%) in emissions of
refrigerant gases in 2016, representing 2,083 equivalent tonnes CO2, following several successive breakdowns at a
Carros facility in France using refrigerants with a high CO2 emission.
Greenhouse gas: emissions linked to energy (equivalent tonnes CO2)
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Greenhouse gas: emissions linked to refrigeration gas (equivalent tonnes CO2)
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In accordance with the CO2 regulations for companies with more than 500 employees, Virbac has committed to a
plan for the reduction of greenhouse gases linked to energy consumption (gas and electricity). Thus, in addition to
all the thermal insulation already installed, all the “anomalies” (valves, taps, bends etc.) have also been insulated on
all the steam networks at the Carros sites in France. This additional thermal insulation has already led to a 1% gain
in total gas consumption. This savings plan will be continued in 2017 with the installation of an energy recovery
system on the effluent treatment plant for organic production units.
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G4-EN17 Other indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 3)
In the current state of affairs and for the Virbac group, other indirect emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 3)
correspond to emissions related to the transport of finished products from all sites to customers; to date, only
French sites are able to report on these CO2 emissions. In addition to the expansion of this indicator to all
subsidiaries and under the new regulations, Virbac is working to objectify and quantify the main sources of CO2
emissions such as those related to travel and transport of employees, in the manufacture and transport of raw
materials or subcontracted products.
France (tonnes CO2)
Sea transportation
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Air transportation
7,367

Energy
5,558

Road transport
1,205

Refrigerating Gases
1,273

For France, total greenhouse gas emissions from road, sea and air transport are down by around 7% due to a drop
in production; despite a sharp rise in energy and refrigerant emissions (see above), the proportion of transportrelated emissions remains high (56%).

G4-EN18 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity
The intensity of greenhouse gas emissions is the ratio between direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions (scope
1) and the value added in thousands of euros of each subsidiary (direct labour costs + indirect production costs).
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G4-EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
In the framework of transporting finished products while assuring end user satisfaction, Virbac has implemented
grouping for several national and international destinations in France and the United States; this way it also reduces
CO2 emissions from transport. For all staff at the Carros sites, Virbac provides a shuttle service to the railway station
serving the industrial area. Also used for intersite connections and the corporate restaurant, this shuttle transported
nearly 4,096 people per month in 2016, an increase of 28%. This increase is due to a greater use of rail transport by
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employees for commuting, resulting in more frequent use of the shuttle for journeys to the company restaurant and
between sites.
As part of a PDIE (Plan de déplacement inter-entreprises [Business-to-business transportation plan]), in 2012 Virbac
actively participated in setting up an “express shuttle” linking different points of the city of Nice and the Carros
industrial area. In 2013 and 2014, three new lines were added between the West of the department and the Carros
industrial area. Since 2010 in France and 2012 in the United States, Virbac has also developed an incentive-based
policy for company vehicles geared towards limiting the carbon footprint. Still on the theme of transport, financial
incentives and reserved parking spaces are offered to employees of the new production site in Mexico who use
“clean” vehicles or who practice car sharing. The sites in Australia and France take greenhouse gas emissions into
account when choosing refrigeration gases for each industrial refrigeration unit. Finally, in Mexico, a solar boiler
producing industrial hot water has been installed as part of the new production unit.

G4-EN21 NOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions
Due to the nature of its activity and the energy used, Virbac generates low NOx emissions (linked to boilers fuelled
with natural gas at production sites equipped with them) and no significant SOx emissions. Although NOx emissions
are not measured, based on the emission factors provided by the US Environmental protection agency (EPA) site,
the amount of NOx emitted by the United States relating to sites covered by this report represents approximately 15
tonnes for the year 2016. However, analyses will be carried out on combustion installations representative of the
Carros sites in France (which account for nearly 50% of the Group’s production) in order to adapt the emission
factor given by the EPA to the reality of the installations on the Virbac sites. Overall, the other possible emissions,
particularly Volatile Organic compounds (VOC) related to operations, are considered insignificant given the
confinement of operations.
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G4-EN22 Total water discharge by quality and destination
The quantity of industrial water discharged by all the Virbac sites worldwide is 168,407 m3 in 2016. Given the activities
at Virbac’s industrial sites, the main pollutant discharged into industrial waters is COD (Chemical oxygen demand). This
indicator, measured since 2013, shows that 99 tonnes of COD were emitted by the industrial sites of the whole Group
in 2016. Discharges therefore increased by 11.6% (on a like-for-like basis, excluding Uruguay) due to the ramp up at
the new production site in Mexico (+44%), the gradual return to normal at the St. Louis site in the United States
(+20%), the new take-up of the PPM site in Boston in the United States (representing nearly 3% of the total) and an
increase in the discharges from the Carros site in France (+10%). On almost all production sites, the quality of these
industrial discharges improved thanks to the drop of almost 6% of COD rejected (on a like-for-like basis, excluding
Uruguay).
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G4-EN23 Total weight of waste, by type and disposal method
Virbac produces two kinds of waste: non-hazardous industrial waste and hazardous industrial waste. These are
managed by the sectors dedicated to waste collection and sorting in order to recycle or develop it optimally
according to type.

Improving non-hazardous industrial waste sorting at source and reducing its volume

Virbac has contributed to implementing a collection system for non-hazardous waste (aluminium, iron, glass,
cardboard, plastic, paper, etc.) at the Carros industrial area since 2003, through “Carros Indus’tri”. This system
(regularly studied by local communities or other industrial areas wishing to imitate it), managed by the CAIPDV,
evolved in 2015 into “Tri&Co” following the optimisation and harmonisation of collection frequencies, among other
things. Thus, all non-hazardous waste from the Carros sites is treated by service providers located within a radius of
less than 40 km with 100% recycling and therefore 0% landfilling. Like most Virbac sites, the Argo Navis site in
Mexico is setting up pre-packaging facilities for non-hazardous waste to optimise the volumes produced and thus
truck rotations.
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The 2,230 tonnes of non-hazardous waste generated in 2016 on the environmental scope are shown in the graph
below. There was a 5% decline on a like-for-like basis (excluding Uruguay and New Zealand), mainly due to the
discontinuation of the former Mexican site and greater accuracy of data from the United States and Australia (actual
weighing of waste instead of an estimate of weight from volume).
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Controlling volumes of hazardous industrial waste

Virbac ensures traceability up to the point of disposal of all its hazardous waste: soiled packaging, laboratory,
production, medicinal or infectious wastes and chemical effluents (mostly incinerated, and therefore thermally
recovered or recycled for solvent recovery). Finally, Virbac is continuously improving the collection system through
the establishment of new and even more selective channels, making it possible to reduce the proportion of waste
that cannot yet be recycled.
The 3,875 tonnes of hazardous industrial waste generated in 2016 over the entire environmental scope has been
broken down as follows.
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On a like-for-like basis (i.e. excluding Uruguay), the tonnage increase of nearly 15% is the consequence of the
destruction of finished products in stock in the United States (+326% on a like-for-like basis therefore excluding the
PPM site at Boston) and the commissioning of a new cleaning station at the Carros site in France, generating a sharp
increase in liquid industrial waste over the first half of the year (+21%).

G4-EN24 Total number and volume of substantial spills
There were no significant spill at any of the Group’s sites in 2016.
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COMPLIANCE
G4-EN29 Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations
No damages were paid to third parties for any of the Group’s sites in 2016. On the other hand, a warning letter from the
local government in charge of water management was sent to the Boston site in the United States for non-compliance with
permitted limits on the quality of industrial water discharges. Upon receipt of this warning, the site modified its process to
recover all of these waters and treat them as industrial waste in accordance with local regulations.

TRANSPORT
G4-EN30 Significant environmental impacts of transporting products and other
goods and materials for the organization’s operations, and transporting members
of the workforce
The Group’s IT team actively pursues a strategy of installing communication systems that permit a reduction in the
environmental impact arising from transport:
• collaborative tools reduce unnecessary travel (video conferencing in most subsidiaries, shared spaces, instant
messaging);
• communication tools that allow virtual internal and external discussions (workflow, PDA, FTP platform);
• IT infrastructure reducing the material resources required (virtualisation of servers, lean ERP, automation).
In 2016, Virbac continued to encourage its teams to use video conferencing: all subsidiaries are equipped with
dedicated systems (60 rooms in the Group) and all individual computers also allow videoconferencing with the
deployment of a more powerful software. At the Group level, the 6,923 videoconferencing meetings held in 2016 (a
10% increase over the previous year) helped to reduce the physical travel of employees.
Total number of meetings via the video conferencing tool integrated into workstations
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In addition to all these initiatives, e-visits are gradually being set up to optimise the travel of sales teams in France.
After an experimental phase in the first half of 2016, 130 virtual visits took place in the last quarter. This will be
pursued on other populations and in other subsidiaries as early as 2017. In the same vein, six web-seminars have
also been set up (notably on dietetic nutrition topics).
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OVERALL
G4-EN31 Total environmental protection expenditures and investments by type
These budgets are managed locally by subsidiaries and have not yet been subject to consolidation at Group level. In
France, which represents more than 50% of the Group’s production, a monitoring system has been put in place to
obtain this data. Thus in 2016, total investments in the environment, for all French sites, amounted to more than
€1.2 million, representing more than 40% of all investments for safety, ergonomics, working conditions and the
environment.

Safety
Ergonomics

Environment

Working
conditions

G4-EN32 Percentage of new suppliers that were screened using environmental criteria
For every bidding process linked directly to an industrial activity, and for the main suppliers (nearly 80% of the
value of purchases) of raw materials, Virbac administers a questionnaire evaluating respect for environmental
standards currently in force. Since 2015, the new framework contracts incorporate compliance with these
standards.. In 2016, the evaluation process carried out by Virbac with its new suppliers did not identify any relevant
risks. If Virbac identifies a non-compliant supplier, the Group will require compliance by threatening to terminate
their contract.

G4-EN34 Number of grievances about environmental impacts filed, addressed, and
resolved through formal grievance mechanisms
To Virbac’s knowledge, no complaint on environmental impact was made for any of the Group’s sites in 2016.
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Social: employment, social
relations and decent work

Performance indicators

For all social indicators, the 2016 scope includes the Group’s main subsidiaries (85% of the total number of
employees): Australia, Brazil, Colombia, France, Germany, India, Italy, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand, South Africa,
Spain, United Kingdom, United States, Uruguay and Vietnam for the first time this year. These social indicators
cover both permanent and temporary contracts.
The social reporting does not cover the following themes:
• the Group’s policy on health and safety at work;
• a record of agreements reached about this with staff representative bodies.
Virbac is working towards an extension of the scope of reporting, by progressive integration of these themes in the
coming years.

Assess and improve well-being at work

Following the internal opinion survey carried out in 2015 for all Group employees, analysis of the results by country
and by management made it possible to construct action plans on topics selected as priorities leading to the
implementation of numerous initiatives in 2016.
Throughout the year, the emphasis was placed on the topics of information and communication as well as those of
training and development. The first aspect is illustrated in particular by improving the transmission of strategic
decisions taken within the company through regular and cascaded information meetings within the departments or
by the deployment of the formalisation and the application of best practices on subjects such as information sharing,
improving organisational transversality and “working better together”.
Increasing the visibility of the actions carried out within the various departments also makes it possible to enhance
Virbac’s expertise, both individually and collectively.
Actions taken in respect of training and development, have intensified on an international level. A process for the
development of employees has been deployed in four subsidiaries: France, Australia, Mexico, Uruguay. It includes a
special appointment with the manager to discuss the development of skills, access to an online training course and
participation in workshops.
The Group is continuing to invest in digital learning, which has a prominent place in the deployment of training
courses, combining e-learning and practical activities over a period of time.
In addition, the annual interview course, launched in 2015, which allows managers and employees to train
themselves in the best practices of annual appraisal interviews and salary reviews, was extended to 20 subsidiaries.
Several tailor-made management and leadership development programmes have been established in several
countries, particularly in Brazil, Australia and Germany. In France, in addition to the topics covered in the annual
interview, a specific section on the workload dialogue and how to control it was introduced.
In addition, specific tailor-made training projects tailored to topics as varied as collaboration, project management
or business relationship management have emerged, as well as individual support through coaching or personalised
monitoring.
Developing employees also means offering more career opportunities within the Group. Vacancies for positions
which are available all over the world are brought to the attention of employees by publishing them on the Virbac
Intranet, in order to promote increased internal and international mobility. To better respond to the increase in
employee transfers from one entity to another in the years to come, practices in this area have been harmonised by
developing a comprehensive and equitable international mobility policy at Group level.
Facilitating the transmission of information so that it can be more easily shared, optimising the way it operates to
increase efficiency and enhancing the development of expertise to ensure the quality of the skills are all practices
which aim to strike a balance between the performance of the company and improving the quality of working life
from a sustainable development perspective.
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EMPLOYMENT
G4-LA1 Total number and percentage of new employees recruited and turnover rate of
employees by age range, gender and geographical area
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In 2016, within the scope of the social reporting, Virbac recruited 682 new employees compared to 698 in 2015.
India with 192 new recruits, France with 156 and North America with 114 represent two-thirds of the total
recruitment. In terms of age groups, 48% of new recruits are under 30, 45% are between 30 and 50, and 8% are
over 50. The subsidiary that recruited the most young people was India, with 72% of new recruits under 30 years.
In contrast it was North America that has recruited the most experienced employees with 53% between 30 and 50
years and in particular 31% over 50 years. In terms of gender, India still distinguishes itself by recruiting a majority
of men, this practice being linked to the role of sales representative which is typically masculine in this country.
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With 601 departures, the total staff turnover rate in 2016 is 14.6%, up from 2015 (11.1%). The increase in turnover is
significant in several countries: Colombia with 37.7%, Uruguay with 29.9%, United States with 24.7%, New Zealand with
24.2%, Vietnam with 21.5% and Brazil with 19.1%. In these countries, these high rates usually correspond to
reorganisations.
The proportion of departures between men and women is in line with representativeness: women represent 39% of the total
workforce and the turnover rate is 39%. It should be noted that the highest rate is for men between the ages of 30 and 50,
which represents 30% of the total. However, this rate is similar to the age pyramid: the 30-50 age group represents 59% of
the population studied.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK
G4-LA6 Rates and types of work accidents, occupational diseases, absenteeism,
proportion of lost work days, and number of work-related fatalities, by geographical
area and by gender
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On a like-for-like basis (excluding Uruguay this year), the Group’s 2016 results showed a slight improvement in the
frequency rate (6.06 vs 6.46 in 2015) and, despite a good performance in France increased from a frequency rate of
8.23 to 6.41 in 2016. As a result of a Salmonella epidemic at the Montevideo site in Uruguay (which resulted in
13 accidents and 186 days lost), the Group’s frequency rate is 7.73. In 2016, Virbac deeply regrets a fatal work
accident on the entire social scope, a road accident in India. The frequency rate used is based on French regulations
and defined as the number of work accidents that resulted in at least one lost working day, divided by the number of
hours worked multiplied by one million.
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Occupational diseases
The notion of occupational disease is a concept specific to France. In 2016 in France, only one declaration was made
compared to five in 2015. This disease follows the handling of heavy loads. This occupational disease and two others
in 2015 which ended early 2016 generated 170 sick days.
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In 2016, the proportion of working days lost, also known as the severity rate, is 0.17 an improvement of 27%
compared to 2015 on a like-for-like basis (i.e. excluding Uruguay). This rate is obtained by comparing the total
number of working days lost after an accident at work, or due to an occupational disease, and the number of
working hours originally planned for the workforce present at the end of the reporting period. This rate is given for
1,000 hours worked.
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5,00%

4,00%

3,00%

2,00%

1,00%

0,00%

Total

2015

Total

Europe

North
America

Latin
America

Pacific

Asia

Africa &
Middle East

2016

The rate of absenteeism is based on the number of days of absence experienced (i.e. unauthorised absences)
related to the total number of work days intended for the member of staff, present to end of December. As the
calculation of this indicator differs from previous years, no comparison can be made with previous years. These
elements concern only those persons under contract to Virbac and, therefore, not temporary employees.
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Focus France: safety at work

This is a priority for the Group and becomes a true corporate culture year after year, so the frequency rate has
reached an unprecedented level with a rate of 6.41 over the 2016 year, the severity rate is divided by 2 to get to a
rate of 0.35 (rate still impacted by accidents in previous years).
As in previous years, and in concrete terms, the main advances in 2016 were the following:
• the appointment of correspondents by sector and the gearing-down of the PRAP approach (Prévention des
risques liés à l’activité physique [Prevention of physical activity risks]) on all the production sectors of Carros in
France;
• expansion of training measures on chemical and biological risks.
In the framework of the new regulations on difficult working conditions and the continuation of the action plan designed
in partnership with the CHSCT (Committee on hygiene, safety and working conditions) in 2012, and in addition to the
work carried out in 2015, only 53 people (out of nearly 1,500 employees in France) are affected by one of the ten
criteria mentioned in the regulations of which only two are affected by two factors.

G4-LA8 Health and safety topics covered by formal agreements with trade unions
In all countries, numerous measures have been taken in relation to the theme of health and safety of employees,
without necessarily having the formal agreement of the trade unions.
In France, following the evolution of the legislation on the subject of difficult working conditions, an external
consultancy has been appointed at all sites in France to carry out an analysis to identify those subjected to the 10
newly defined factors of difficult working conditions. It shows that the percentage of employees is well below that
which the company would be obliged to negotiate an agreement or an action plan. However, with the constant
objective of improving the working conditions of employees, an action plan established in conjunction with the
CHSCT will be implemented to further minimise the number of vulnerable employees.
In North America, two agreements were also concluded with the trade unions: the International longshoreman
association (ILA) agreement and the International brotherhood of electrical workers (IBEW) agreement, which aim
to support the company in prevention, participation in the safety committee and providing safety training courses.

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
G4-LA9 Average hours of training per year, broken down by employee,
by gender and occupational category
In 2016, training hours averaged 26 hours per employee (20 hours for women and 30 hours for men). The average
number of training hours in India is 46 hours; outside of India, the average training time is 21 hours with 20 hours for
women and 22 hours for men.
Average annual training hours (per employee)

Women

Men

Total

Leaders

15.60

19.10

18.17

Managers

24.62

23.10

23.73

Technicians/assistants

15.89

41.40

32.01

Workers

15.44

21.11

18.74

Total

19.65

29.79

25.82
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G4-LA10 Skills development and lifelong training programmes to ensure the
employability of employees and to help them manage the end of their career
The Virbac group proposes an advanced development policy with various courses (management, professional efficiency,
business know-how in particular). 2016 marks an intensification of training and development activities at the
international level. Firstly, with the deployment of a development plan process in the middle of the year at four
subsidiaries. Tailor-made management and leadership development programmes have been launched in several
countries, particularly in Brazil, Australia and Germany.
In all countries, staff of all categories are given training aimed to ensure their continued employability and skills
development. These training courses are linked to the development discussions that take place during the year-end or
mid-year interviews, depending on the country where the deployment is carried out continuously in the Group’s
subsidiaries.
In addition to the traditional development programmes, the business skills development courses, complementary to
the training offered by Human Resources, saw the emergence of new projects: a campus innovation, aimed at 100
dedicated employees, a finance course for marketing audiences around the world and finally, good progress in
quality training and best manufacturing practices, including the training of all employees at the St. Louis plant in the
United States.
In addition, specific tailor-made training projects on topics as varied as collaboration, project management or
business relationship management have emerged (as well as individual support through coaching or personalised
monitoring).
Finally, the Group continued to invest in digital learning, with a strong belief in its effectiveness and the strength of its
future. Several courses combining e-learning modules, videos, workshops and also practical activities followed over
time are now an integral part of the Group’s approach to learning. These will intensify in the future and “distance” and
so-called multimodal training will develop. Development is an essential approach for the future and other modules will
emerge in years to come.

G4-LA11 Percentage of employees who benefit from periodic career development
evaluations, by gender and professional category
The large majority of Group staff benefits from, at the least, an annual evaluation that evaluates their performance
over the year and their mastery of their job (job competency and behavioural competency). This evaluation is also an
opportunity to discuss objectives for the following year and development needs.
More and more subsidiaries have set up an additional mid-year evaluation. In that case, the end of year evaluation
focuses on evaluation of performance and mastery of the job, while the mid-year evaluation concentrates on
discussing development. During these evaluations, subjects such as workload and prioritising are also discussed if
necessary, in order to anticipate situations of work overload.

Regular evaluation meetings and career development (% employees)
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DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
For Virbac, professional equality between women and men is fundamental and requires that no form of
discrimination exists and is tolerated, both in terms of access to employment and promotion, wage policy and other
determinants of working conditions.
In France, as part of its diversity approach, Virbac signed its first agreement in 2012, which was renewed at the end
of 2015. The objectives of this new agreement focus essentially on actions to:
• ensure equal access to vocational training for both women and men;
• ensure equality between women and men in career paths;
• ensure equal pay for women and men doing the same job, with the same level of competence and
responsibility;
• develop measures to promote work-life balance.
At the end of 2016, Virbac renewed this agreement in France. Thanks to the mobilisation of numerous internal
stakeholders, a communication aimed at gradually changing the perspective on disability, the appointment of a
dozen disability ambassadors and significant expenses (€190,000 on average over the last three years), the rate of
employment of individuals with disabilities increased significantly from 3% to 4.55%. This increase is mainly due to
recognition of the status of workers with disabilities for Virbac employees and a significant development of the use of
ESATs (Establishment and support services through work) or EAs (Adapted enterprise) within the framework of
outsourcing.
The commitments made under the new agreement focus on the implementation of sustainable actions to encourage
the hiring and integration of people with disabilities as well as the welcoming of trainees and alternates. Virbac will
continue to maintain its financial effort by always devoting significant sums of money beyond the obligatory
contribution, thus confirming its commitment to non-discrimination and equal opportunities.
Negotiations with staff representatives began at the end of 2016, aimed at renewing the intergenerational agreement in
favour of the hiring, integration and sustainable employment of young people and senior citizens.

G4-LA12 Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees by
professional category, gender, age range, membership of a minority and other diversity
indicators
In France, 50% of the members of the supervisory board and 30% of the executive committee are women. The
Group has a recruitment policy that is firmly based on skills. At the level of the social scope, there are 26% women
to 74% men amongst the leaders (senior management in France, general manager and its executive board team in
subsidiaries). The majority of leaders are over 50 years (51%) and it is noted that no leader is under 30 years.
Breakdown within the governance bodies (%)
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Breakdown of employees (%)
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Breakdown of employees (age range)
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In the social reporting sphere, 60% of staff are men and 40% are women. The same tendencies are observed:
the leaders and the manual workers are mostly men.

EQUALITY OF REMUNERATION
BETWEEN WOMEN AND MEN
G4-LA13 Ratio of base salary and remuneration of women compared
to men, by professional category and by main operational sites
Ratio of salaries women/men, by category (%)
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The workforce in India (829 employees) comprising a majority of men (808) leads to a distortion of the analysis.
Thus, excluding India, women are generally paid less than men. Globally, Australia, France, Spain, New Zealand and
Vietnam are the countries with the least unfavourable gap for women in all professional categories.
In all countries combined (excluding India), the salary ratio of women to men in the workforce for labourers is 99%,
for managers 94% and for technicians/staff 93%. The most significant gap is for leaders with 82%. Of the 16
countries, only 3 (Australia, New Zealand and Vietnam) show a positive ratio of women at leadership level.
With regards to equal pay for men and women, action is taken to measure gaps, to look for causes and to take
action, following the example of France through the gender equality agreement.

Remuneration policy

Overall the Group, remuneration inquiries are regularly carried out in order to monitor competitiveness in the
employment market. In line with the results and consistent with the Group’s policies, specific budgets are allocated
to boost remuneration (particularly for sought-after professions) and to develop remuneration policies and social
benefits (for example, variable remuneration of sales forces or insurance guarantees for all employees). For data on
payroll and remuneration policy, see pages 107 to 111, 135 and 145 of the annual report.

Focus on France

In France, 100% of employees receive remuneration above the level of the legal minimum wage. The policy for base
salaries is set at + 5% above the industry minima for all categories of personnel. In addition, the policy follows a
rationale of competitiveness vis-a-vis the life sciences market and is globally at the median for this market.

EVALUATION OF SUPPLIER EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES
G4-LA14 Percentage of new suppliers verified using
criteria relating to employment practices
With each invitation to tender linked directly to an industrial activity, and for the main suppliers (80% of the value of
purchases) of raw materials, Virbac conducts a questionnaire evaluating their compliance with current social
standards. Since 2015, new framework contracts integrate respect for these standards. In 2016, the evaluation
process carried out by Virbac among its new suppliers did not identify any risks in this regard. If Virbac identifies a
non-compliant supplier, the Group will require compliance by threatening to terminate their contract.
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Performance indicators

NON-DISCRIMINATION
G4-HR3 Total number of incidents of discrimination and corrective actions
implemented
No incident of discrimination was recorded in the Group in 2016.

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING
G4-HR4 Sites and suppliers identified where the right to join a union
and to collective bargaining may not be respected or is strongly threatened,
and measures taken to ensure respect for this right
In 2016, no activity of this type was identified within the Group or among its main suppliers of raw materials.

CHILD LABOUR
G4-HR5 Sites and suppliers identified as presenting a substantial risk of incidents
relating to child labour and measures taken to contribute to the speedy abolition of this
type of labour
No child works within the Virbac group. As concerns the main suppliers, Virbac’s ethical evaluation questionnaire
commits them to respect legislation on child labour. In 2016, none of the suppliers questioned proved to be in
default in relation to this criterion. If Virbac identifies a non-compliant supplier, the Group will require compliance by
threatening to terminate their contract.

FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOUR
G4-HR6 Sites and suppliers identified as presenting a substantial risk of incidents
relating to forced or mandatory labour and measures taken to contribute to the
abolition of this type of labour in all its forms
Forced labour does not exist in the Virbac group. Regarding its main suppliers, compliance with the fundamental ILO
conventions, including the prohibition of forced labour, is included in all new contracts. In 2016, none of the suppliers
questioned proved to be in default in relation to this criterion. If Virbac identifies a non-compliant supplier, the Group will
require compliance by threatening to terminate their contract.

RESPECT OF HUMAN RIGHTS BY SUPPLIERS
G4-HR10 Percentage of new suppliers verified using
criteria relating to human rights
With each invitation to tender linked directly to an industrial activity, and for the main suppliers (80% of the value of
purchases) of raw materials, Virbac conducts a questionnaire evaluating their respect for human rights: age of
employees, the existence of a health and safety policy and the absence of discrimination. Since 2015, new
framework contracts integrate respect for these standards. In 2016, the evaluation process carried out by Virbac
among its new suppliers did not identify any risks in this regard. If Virbac identifies a non-compliant supplier, the
Group will require compliance by threatening to terminate their contract.
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Social: civil society
Performance indicators

ANTI-CORRUPTION CAMPAIGN
G4-SO3 Total number and percentage of sites subject to an evaluation
of the risks of corruption and substantial risks identified
In 2016, the Group continued the deployment of the risk management system, by including two new subsidiaries:
South Africa and France. The map of the Mexican subsidiary has also been updated. In addition, since 2015, the
Group has deployed a Code of conduct published in 16 languages and communicated to all employees worldwide.
Virbac’s Code of conduct describes, in particular, the rules to be observed in the fight against corruption and gives an
internal email address so that employees may contact legal counsel confidentially when they are witness to behaviour
which does not comply with these rules. The training carried out as part of the deployment of the Code of conduct, or
more specifically in the fight against corruption, is also an opportunity to evaluate, informally and in collaboration with
the operational teams, the risks of corruption to which Virbac may be exposed (see indicator G4-SO4 below). In 2016,
the Group continued the deployment of the Code of conduct, notably via internal presentations.

G4-SO4 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures
In 2014 and 2015, specific training courses on the risks of corruption were carried out among many managers and
leaders: general managers of European subsidiaries, chief financial officers in Latin America and Apisa (Asia-PacificIndia-South Africa), principal managers of the Indian and Uruguayan subsidiaries. In 2015, a dedicated training was
also organised with all employees at the Virbac Chinese affiliate. To complement these efforts, the training carried
out from July 2015 as part of the deployment of the Code of conduct, provided the opportunity to discuss the risks
of corruption with a large number of employees and to recall the rules in force in the anti-corruption field. This
training involved four subsidiaries in the Apisa area, two subsidiaries in the Latin America area the Apisa regional
team and some internationally recruited new entrants in key positions. In 2016, Virbac continued its efforts in the
fight against corruption. Virbac has updated its Group anti-corruption policy, which is now written in 10 languages
and available on the intranet to all Group employees. The members of the executive board, the members of the
strategic committee, the members of Comex in France and the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries signed a
document formalising their commitment to comply with this policy.

PUBLIC POLICIES
G4-SO6 Total value of political contributions, by country and beneficiary
The Group did not make any contributions of this nature in 2016.

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOUR
G4-SO7 Total number of legal proceedings for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust
and monopolistic practices, and their results
No proceedings of this nature were initiated against any company in the Group in 2016.

COMPLIANCE
G4-SO8 Amount of significant fines and total number of non-pecuniary sanctions for
non-compliance with laws and regulations
In 2016, no notifications of significant fines were received by the Group.
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Performance indicators
RESPONSIBLE INNOVATION
In terms of responsible innovation, Virbac today works with two main themes: alternative methods to animal testing
and the reduction of antibiotics in animal production.
Virbac develops pharmaceutical and biological products for which regulatory research and some quality controls imposed
by the agencies necessitate animal tests. Virbac commits itself to the 3Rs rule (reduce, refine, replace), and is proactive in
substituting of research and investigations on animals by alternative methods and techniques and negotiates with different
agencies worldwide to persuade them to accept alternative methods.
The development of prevention, particularly by vaccination, is one of the ways to reduce the use of antibiotics in
animal production. Recent investments by Virbac in research centres and vaccination production for livestock in
Uruguay, Chile and Taiwan implement this willingness on the part of the company to strengthen its development in
the field of vaccines. Virbac is also involved in several partnership programmes with public research institutes and
private companies with the aim of developing alternatives to antibiotics that will not lead to resistance in treated
bacteria. These partnerships are part of long-term thinking and, like the vaccines strategy, will allow reduction in the
use of antibiotics.
In 2016, the Group’s resources devoted to innovation represent 7.6% of sales.

CLIENT HEALTH AND SAFETY
Virbac is committed to developing, producing and distributing products and services aimed at improving the quality
of life for animals and guaranteeing their health while ensuring comfort and safety for those that administer these
products: vets, farmers, animal owners, etc.
To do this, Virbac meets the highest applicable quality-safety-efficiency standards. At the development stage, good
laboratory practices are followed systematically, for example through data traceability. Good manufacturing practices
are applied during the production stage, particularly through the certification of all Virbac factories. Finally, for the
transportation of medicines, Virbac uses Good distribution practices, such as respect for the cold chain, when the
nature of the products demands it.
Evaluation of product safety during its use is carried out whenever necessary, particularly through the development or
selection of specific packaging. In product labelling, Virbac intends clearly to explain all the information useful to the
proper administration of the product and to the understanding of its properties and contra-indications. The Group also has
a leading role in the development of schemas and pictograms which enable the understanding of information fundamental
to the health and safety of consumers to be optimised.
For species destined for consumption, Virbac ensures that during product development its products respect
pharmaceutical standards relating to residual traces of medicines in foodstuffs: meat, milk, eggs... In addition, the
guidelines for use are systematically brought to the attention of the consumer through product packaging and various
associated communication media.
Throughout the life cycle of the products, including during development, Virbac assesses the expectations of
customers and their satisfaction, in order continuously to adjust product characteristics. In terms of marketing, all
Virbac promotional communications respect the scientific and technical claims demonstrated during the development
stage of the product.
Lastly, the Virbac quality system enables the company to efficiently detect, trace and treat all quality incidents
inherent in pharmaceutical activity.

Regulatory monitoring

Virbac has had an efficient regulatory monitoring system in place for several years, allowing it to keep abreast of
regulatory developments. This monitoring system is carried out through inter-professional organisations:
• Nationally with, for example, SIMV in France, NOAH in the United Kingdom, BfT in Germany, etc.
Regionally with, for example, IFAH-Europe (International federation for animal health - Europe),
AHI (Animal health institute) in the United States.
• At global level with HealthforAnimals (Global animal medicines association).
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It is also carried out using automatic monitoring tools in several hundred Internet sites linked to the company’s
activities. Monitoring is also carried out when Virbac receives feedback during periodic inspections of its facilities,
and this feedback from inspectors helps the Group to progress.
The regulatory monitoring system concerns all types of products:
• veterinary medicines (pharmaceutical or vaccines);
• biocides (products intended for treating the animals’ environment);
• nutritional products (intended as animal dietary supplements);
• food for companion animals.

Customer profile

Virbac customers are particularly diverse throughout the world in terms of profession, size and expectations and they
demand of the company a specific and professional approach that takes their needs into account. Veterinarians remain
Virbac’s principal customer but depending on the country and the economic model, the customer may be different:
• in the field of companion animals, other than veterinarians, owners concerned with the well-being of their
animals are seeking more and more information, especially with the development of the internet. In the
veterinary field, customers are also very varied, the information requirements in a veterinary clinic in which a
single veterinarian operates are not the same as those in a chain of clinics in the United States with more than
1,500 clinics in its network;
• in the field of food-producing animals, the Virbac customer palette is also rich and varied. To give only a few
examples, customers range from an Indian farmer with a few cattle to an Asian producer with over 200,000
sows or a Mexican beef production unit with more than 300,000 head of cattle.
This diversity and heterogeneity of customer profiles requires constant adaptation of communication methods and
the development of high-quality professional relationships that respond to customers’ daily concerns.
Distribution also play an increasingly important role in certain countries and requires specific strategies and
communications. These distributors are considered, mostly, as strategic partners, for example as with an agri-business
chain that is larger than the Virbac group and has more than 400 sales points in Australia.
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G4-PR1 Percentage of important categories of products and services for which impacts
on health and safety are evaluated for improvement
In compliance with all national regulations, Virbac systematically monitors the quality of its products at all stages of
the production process:
• before commercialisation (during the development phase and until the products are launched onto the market);
• after market launch (through continual research into stability, advice and guidance for users and
pharmacovigilance).
Products subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC regulations 82/2001, 28/2004 and applicable national regulations)

EVALUATION BEFORE MARKET AVAILABILITY
Pre-development: safety check
Development: quality check
Development: stability check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: safety check for human use

100%

Development: environmental safety check
Development: effectiveness check
Production: checking all components and raw materials at every stage of production
EVALUATION AFTER MARKET AVAILABILTY
Stability check (continuous research)
Advice and guidance for users

100%

Pharmacovigilance

Products not subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC regulations 767/2009 and internal instructions)

EVALUATION BEFORE MARKET AVAILABILITY
Pre-development: safety check
Development: quality check
Development: stability check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: safety check for human use (for all locally-applied products coming into contact
with human skin)

100%

Development: environmental safety check (at the test batch production stage)
Development: effectiveness check and/or perceived benefits
Production: checking all components and raw materials at every stage of production
EVALUATION AFTER MARKET AVAILABILTY
Advice and guidance for users
Pharmacovigilance

100%
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Nutritional products not subject to pharmaceutical registration
(sources: EC regulations 183/2005, 1069/2009, 767/2009 and internal instructions)

EVALUATION BEFORE MARKET AVAILABILITY
Pre-development: nutritional recommendations check
Pre-development: raw materials check
Development: safety check for animal use
Development: digestibility and palatability check
Development: stability check

100%

Development: effectiveness and perceived benefits check
Development: validation in real conditions of use
Monitoring and compliance of raw materials and products
Monitoring of production process
Monitoring digestibility and palatability
EVALUATION AFTER MARKET AVAILABILTY
Stability check
Advice and guidance for users
Pharmacovigilance

10%
100%

Pharmacovigilance

Like all pharmaceutical laboratories, Virbac is legally obliged to monitor the veterinary medicines it places on the
market, in terms of their safety and efficacy. This obligation is known as pharmacovigilance. Its purpose is to create
an organisation which keeps a list of adverse reactions (whether serious or not) reported by vets or other health
professionals, or even by users of such medicines (owners of companion animals, for example). This organisation,
placed under the responsibility of a person qualified in (veterinary) pharmacovigilance and a qualified interim
person, must collect all of the cases originating from all countries in the world, analyse them, decide if the adverse
effects are attributable or not to the use of the drug concerned and, finally, officially declare these cases to the
supervisory authorities. Periodically, all cases declared during a given period for a given medicine are compiled in a
report, which is then sent to the same authorities. Compiling all the side effects attributable to a drug eventually
allows precautions for use to be added to the packaging leaflets and make their use safer. Due to the increasing
globalisation of its medicines, the Virbac Group has organised the collection of cases of adverse effects on a global
scale, by implementing a reporting system in all subsidiaries. The Virbac group’s ambition is perfect
pharmacovigilance; that is to say, to collect all cases of adverse effects attributable to medicines that it places on
the market, to fulfil all its obligations within the time frames prescribed by the administration, and to use the
pharmacovigilance tool to develop knowledge of its products.

G4-PR2 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary
codes concerning health and safety impacts of products and services during their life
cycle, by result
In 2016, out of a total of 8,023 products marketed worldwide, Virbac declared or was informed by the national authorities
of 52 cases of non-compliance observed in the field. None of these cases presented any danger to animal health.

PRODUCT AND SERVICE LABELLING
G4-PR3 Type of product and services information and their labelling, by organisation
procedures and percentage of major categories of products and services subject to
these information requirements
In terms of the safety of products and their components, Virbac policy is as follows:
• provision of safety data sheets for “raw materials” and “finished products” to Virbac staff and transporters;
• organisation of transportation in accordance with the regulations governing the transportation of high-risk
products:
− availability of safety data sheets for finished products in French and in English;
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− packaging of hazardous products in packaging that meets current standards.

• from the customer’s perspective, Virbac complies with the regulations concerning indications and precautions
for use that must appear on packaging, both for products requiring Marketing authorisations and those referred
to as nutritional. Each claim is supported by appropriate clinical studies.

G4-PR4 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary
codes concerning product and service information and labelling, by result
In 2016, out of a total of 8,023 product references marketed worldwide, Virbac declared or was informed by the
national authorities of 10 packaging non-conformities which had no impact on the distribution of the products.

G4-PR5 Results of customer satisfaction surveys
Qualitative and/or quantitative market research is systematically carried out before and during the development of
new products in order to ensure that the product specifications meet the animal health needs, the practices of the
veterinary profession and the expectations of owners/farmers in terms of compliance. For example, the palatability
of oral products (tablets, liquids) and their ease of administration by the owner are two criteria validated during the
product development stage.
Qualitative market research collecting user feedback is also conducted regularly after the launch of new products.
For example, before the launch of an ear treatment to gauge the degree of satisfaction of owners with the
ergonomics, practicality and perceived efficacy of the product.

MARKETING COMMUNICATIONS
G4-PR6 Sale of prohibited or controversial products
Due to the nature of its pharmaceutical industrial activity, the Virbac group is subject to the requirements defined by
national or supranational veterinary medical agencies. Any product claims must be scientifically proven and kept
available for the regulatory agencies. The qualified pharmaceutical person at each Virbac subsidiary is guarantor of
respect for regulations concerning products sold in his country.
These principles apply both to medicines with Marketing authorisations and also to foods, complementary and
dietetic food for animals for which Virbac complies with local regulations (e.g. for nutritional supplements and food:
European Regulation 767/2009, US NASC accreditation). In addition, Virbac does not directly promote products
which need a prescription (and which may not be subject to derogation) among owners or farmers but refers them
to veterinary consultation in order to promote preventive medicine.

G4-PR7 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary
codes concerning marketing communications, including advertising, promotion and
sponsorships, by result
In 2016, out of a total of 8,023 product references marketed worldwide, Virbac has declared or been informed by
the national authorities of three communications that do not comply with regulations and codes relating to
promotional marketing.

COMPLIANCE
G4-PR9 Amount of substantial fines for non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning the provision and use of products and services
No fine of this type was registered within the Group in 2016.
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Report of one of the statutory auditors,
appointed as independent third party, on
the consolidated human resources,
environmental and social information
included in the management report
External audit - Year ended December 31, 2016

This is a free English translation of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English-speaking readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in
accordance with, French law and professional standards applicable in France.

To the shareholders,
in our capacity as statutory auditors of Virbac SA (the “company”), appointed as independent third party and
certified by COFRAC under numbers 3-10481, we hereby report to you on the consolidated human resources,
environmental and social information for the year ended December 31st, 2016 included in the management report
(hereinafter named "CSR Information"), pursuant to article L.225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code (Code de
commerce).

Company’s responsibility
The executive board is responsible for preparing a company's management report including the CSR Information
required by article R.225-105-1 of the French commercial code in accordance with the reporting protocols and
guidelines used by the Company (hereinafter the "Guidelines"), summarised in the management report and available
on request to the EHS and Human Resources divisions.

Independence and quality control
Our independence is defined by regulatory texts, the French Code of ethics (Code de déontologie) of our profession
and the requirements of article L.822-11 of the French commercial code. In addition, we have implemented a
system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with the ethical
requirements, French professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Statutory auditor’s responsibility
On the basis of our work, our responsibility is to:

• attest that the required CSR Information is included in the management report or, in the event of nondisclosure of a part or all of the CSR Information, that an explanation is provided in accordance with the third
paragraph of article R.225-105 of the French commercial code (attestation regarding the completeness of CSR
Information);
• express a limited assurance conclusion that the CSR Information taken as a whole is, in all material respects,
fairly presented in accordance with the Guidelines (conclusion on the fairness of CSR Information).
Our work involved six persons and was conducted between December 2016 and March 2017 during a three-week
period. We were assisted in our work by our sustainability experts.
We performed our work in accordance with the order dated May 13, 2013 defining the conditions under which the
independent third party performs its engagement and with ISAE 30002 concerning our conclusion on the fairness of
CSR Information.
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1. Attestation regarding the completeness of CSR Information.
Nature and scope of our work

On the basis of interviews with the individuals in charge of the relevant departments, we obtained an understanding
of the company’s sustainability strategy regarding human resources and environmental impacts of its activities and
its social commitments and, where applicable, any actions or programmes arising from them.
We compared the CSR Information presented in the management report with the list provided in article R.225-105-1
of the French commercial code.
For any consolidated information that is not disclosed, we verified that explanations were provided in accordance
with article R.225-105, paragraph 3 of the French commercial code.
We verified that the CSR Information covers the scope of consolidation, i.e., the Company, its subsidiaries as defined
by article L.233-1 and the controlled entities as defined by article L.233-3 of the French commercial code within the
limitations set out in the methodological note, presented in the introduction of the environmental and social chapters
of the management report.

Conclusion

Based on the work performed and given the limitations mentioned above, we attest that the required CSR
Information has been disclosed in the management report.

2. Conclusion on the fairness of CSR Information
Nature and scope of our work

We conducted around ten interviews with the persons responsible for preparing the CSR Information in the
departments in charge of collecting the information and, where appropriate, responsible for internal control and risk
management procedures, in order to:

• assess the suitability of the guidelines in terms of their relevance, completeness, reliability, neutrality and
understandability, and taking into account industry best practices where appropriate;
• verify the implementation of data-collection, compilation, processing and control process to reach
completeness and consistency of the CSR Information and obtain an understanding of the internal control and
risk management procedures used to prepare the CSR Information.
We determined the nature and scope of our tests and procedures based on the nature and importance of the CSR
Information with respect to the characteristics of the company, the human resources and environmental challenges
of its activities, its sustainability strategy and industry best practices.
Regarding the CSR Information that we considered to be the most important3:

• at parent level, we referred to documentary sources and conducted interviews to corroborate the qualitative
information (organisation, policies, actions), performed analytical procedures on the quantitative information
and verified, using sampling techniques, the calculations and the consolidation of the data. We also verified that
the information was consistent and in agreement with the other information in the management report;

• at the level of a representative sample of entities and sites selected by us4 on the basis of their activity, their

contribution to the consolidated indicators, their location and a risk analysis, we conducted interviews to verify
that procedures are properly applied, and we performed tests of details, using sampling techniques, in order to
verify the calculations and reconcile the data with the supporting documents. The selected sample represents
on average 47% of headcount and between 36% and 79% of quantitative environmental data disclosed.
For the remaining consolidated CSR Information, we assessed its consistency based on our understanding of the
company. We also assessed the relevance of explanations provided for any information that was not disclosed, either
in whole or in part.
We believe that the sampling methods and sample sizes we have used, based on our professional judgement, are
sufficient to provide a basis for our limited assurance conclusion; a higher level of assurance would have required us
to carry out more extensive procedures. Due to the use of sampling techniques and other limitations inherent to
information and internal control systems, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement in the CSR information
cannot be totally eliminated.
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Conclusion
Based on the work performed, no material misstatement has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the CSR Information, taken as a whole, is not presented fairly in accordance with the guidelines.

Marseille, March 13, 2017
One of the statutory auditors,
Deloitte & Associés

Hugues DESGRANGES
Partner

Vincent GROS
Partner

______________________________
1

whose scope is available on www.cofrac.fr

2

ISAE 3000: assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial information

3

Quantitative information

Social: total workforce by gender, employment type and geographical area; total number of recruitments; total
number of dismissals; percentage of employees covered by collective agreements; salaries by gender and socioprofessional group; severity rate of work accidents by country; number of work-related fatalities; number of day of
absence for occupational disease; average hours of training per year, by employee, gender, and professional
category.
Environmental: quantity of industrial water discharged; quantity of emitted COD; amount of waste by type; water
consumption; total amount of packaging brought on the global market; gas consumption; electricity consumption;
direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions, emissions by activity on France perimeter.
Qualitative information
Societal: arduousness action plan; gender equality agreement; diversity and equal opportunity; dialogue with
different stakeholders; percentage of new suppliers controlled with environmental criteria; grievance mechanism;
pharmacovigilance; total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning
health and safety impacts of products and services during their life cycle; total number of incidents of noncompliance with regulations and voluntary codes concerning product and service information and labelling; client
satisfaction inquiries.
4

Virbac SA, Virbac France and Virbac corporation.
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Financial report

Management report
In 2016, the Group registered a consolidated revenue of €871.8 million, an increase of 2.3% compared to last year,
of which 4.5% excludes adverse exchange rates impact. At constant perimeter, the organic growth rate was 4.4%.
Geographically, all regions showed a positive trend with the exception of Chile. In the United States, historical
ranges, notably dental and dermatological products, continued to see growth. The internal parasiticides ranges
Iverhart Plus and Iverhart Max enjoyed a favourable base effect over the course of the year and showed good
growth compared to the same period in 2015, while being below the prospects due to a slower-than-expected
market re-introduction. However, increased competition in internal parasiticide segment along with a slight decline
of the latter have affected the Sentinel range which shrunk over the fiscal year. It should be noted that the United
States benefited a stocking effect from distributors in 2016, linked to the return to the market of certain products at
the end of the year, as well as to very gradual recovery in sales to clinics of reintroduced products
Europe is experiencing excellent sales growth, primarily due to steady business activity in France thanks to the
recent launch of parasiticides for companion animals and a favourable base effect related to weak sales of antibiotics
in 2015, and the performance in the United Kingdom, Italy, Greece and Spain. In the other regions, emerging
countries contributed significantly to strong organic growth thanks to the sustained level of growth of ranges
intended for ruminants in India, notably nutritional supplements, parasiticides and antibiotics, the strong
performance of companion animal products (Zoletil, Epiotic, Rilexine) in China and the industrial range in Brazil and
Mexico, in particular on antibiotics for ruminants (Multibio, Shotapen, Fortius).
In terms of species, the companion animal segment grew by 7.9% at constant exchange rates. This good
performance is due to the gradual recovery of sales of historical products in the United States and to the growth of
new products recently launched in Europe, notably the parasiticides for companion animals Effitix and Milpro, and
the new petfood range. The dental, dermatology, hygiene and specialty ranges have also contributed to this
sustained level of growth.
Although the food producing animal segment was down 2.7%, it was up slightly (0.3%) at constant rates and
perimeter. The segment is strongly impacted by the situation in Chile, which is down 18%. Apart from aquaculture,
the two bovine and industrial sectors (pig and poultry) showed contrasting performances at constant rates and
perimeter respectively of 6.3% and -0.7%. Growth was especially driven by emerging countries, mainly India, Brazil
and China, as well as by New Zealand, while business activity in Europe was down in the industrial sector (pig and
poultry) , as a result of the decrease in antibiotic consumption imposed by European agencies on veterinarians.

2016 HIGHLIGHTS
In the United States, the recovery of production, release and marketing of historical products continued in 2016. At
the same time, the Virbac group continued to invest and implement the necessary upgrades to the quality system at
the St. Louis site in order to ensure full pharmaceutical compliance with the rules of cGMP (current Good
manufacturing practices) and arrange for the new inspection to the fullest extent possible.
Further to its inspection carried out in December 2014, the FDA (Food and drug administration) conducted follow-up
inspections at the St. Louis site from August 9 to September 7, 2016. After this inspection, the FDA handed the Virbac
company a 483 page report containing five observations. The Group continued its compliance efforts and, in December,
received a letter from the FDA confirming the lifting of the warning letter. This announcement allows the St. Louis site to
fully regain its cGMP status and thereby restore its ability to submit new registration and variation files with the FDA. This
also allows Virbac to continue the transfer of production of Sentinel Spectrum to the St. Louis site, as originally planned.
Through its pool of banks, Virbac had its financial covenant compliance clause relaxed at the end of 2016. The ratio
of net debt to Ebitda should now be below 5.5 at actual rates versus 4.5 previously. The waiver application made at
the end of the year was accepted for all of the creditors, with the exception of nine Schuldschein investors
amounting to €70 million, early repaid by Virbac at the beginning of January 2017. Furthermore, through its pool of
banks, Virbac also had its financial covenant compliance clause relaxed for 2017 in the same proportions as in 2016.
The main product launches and ranges in 2016 are:
• the availability of Effipro Duo to veterinarians from May 2016: Effipro Duo is a spot-on solution for dogs and
cats combining fipronil and pyriproxifen. This original formula is a treatment that not only eliminates adult
parasites that come into contact with the animal, but also prevents the multiplication of their immature forms in
domestic environments (eggs, larvae and nymphs). After the first wave of launch in the spring in France,
England and Austria, the sale of Effipro Duo is expected to be expanded to the United States under the name of
Effipro Plus as well as the other European countries in 2017;
• distribution in Europe of Activyl drug (an indoxacarb base) for dogs and cats and Activyl Tick Plus (an
indoxacarb and permethrin base) for dogs only since January 1, 2016 as a result of a commercial licensing
agreement with Merck: the integration of these two drugs in the parasiticide product portfolio fulfils Virbac’s
wish to offer complementary solutions to veterinarians, thereby allowing them to adapt their prescriptions to
the widest variety of parasitic situations;
• distribution of Bovigen Scour in eleven countries: Bovigen Scour is a vaccine to reduce the severity of calf
diarrhoea. This well-tolerated vaccine, whose formula is based on a Montanide ISA 206 VG bi-phase adjuvant
system, provides a rapid and sustainable antibody response. Already launched in Germany, Ireland, Great Britain,
France and Italy, further launches will take place in 2017 in Spain, Austria, Benelux, Portugal and Switzerland.
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• launch of Curacef Duo in Central and South America in the first quarter of 2016 after its Mexican launch in

2015: Curacef Duo is the first combination of an antibiotic and an anti-inflammatory injectable for dairy cows. It
will be marketed in Europe as early as 2017;
• launch in August 2016 of a new granulated Inflacam formulation for horses combining meloxicam and apple
flavouring: this anti-inflammatory provides veterinarians with a simple and secure solution for the treatment of
inflammation and pain in cases of severe and chronic musculoskeletal disorders;
• launch of OraStrip in America in March 2016: OraStrip is a test administered to detect periodontal infections in
dogs. This product, brand new on the animal health market due to visual processing of results, allows veterinarians to
better respond to their customers' needs by helping them with their dental treatment recommendations;
• launch of Movoflex by Virbac in the US in March 2016: this product is intended to support joint function in
dogs. These chewable tablets have a unique composition and are easy to chew and provide support for the
dog's joints in a single daily dose.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO DECEMBER 31, 2016
There were no significant events after the end of the year.

THE GROUP’S 2016 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Performance by geographic region
In 2016, all areas, except Africa & Middle East and Chile in Latin America, posted growth compared to 2015. This
trend has been mitigated somewhat by the adverse exchange rates impact over the course of the financial year.
The major contributions by geographical area are as follows:
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France

Business activity in France registered growth of 3.8% in 2016, largely due to the recent launch of parasiticides for
companion animals and a favourable base effect related to low sales of antibiotics in 2015.

Europe (excluding France)

As in 2015, business activity in Europe experienced growth of 2.0% and 4.6% at constant rates. This growth was
driven by strong results in the United Kingdom, Italy, Greece and Spain.
The major developments that contributed to the performance in Europe include:
United Kingdom
The region registered growth of 13.5% at constant exchange rates. However, due to the weakening of the pound
sterling over the course of the fiscal year, only a slight growth of 0.7% was realised at actual exchange rates.
The companion animal segment continues to show very strong growth driven by new parasiticide products with the
full-year effect of Prinovox, and also due to the company’s historical ranges such as dog and cat vaccines (Leucogen
and Canigen). Furthermore, the electronic identification segment showed good growth over the period.
Northern Europe
Growth in the area was up 2.7% at actual rates and 3.1% at constant rates, with the Benelux area and Switzerland
performing particularly well, posting growth of 8.4% and 14.8% at constant rates. At 3.5%, Austria experienced less
growth, and business activity was down 2.2% in Germany, which was heavily impacted by the European restrictions
on consumption of antibiotics.
In the companion animal segment, growth was driven mostly by external parasiticides following distribution of the
Activyl products, the Suprelorin range of reproduction products and petfood thanks to the launch of the range
Veterinary HPM. The other products posted growth for the fiscal year thanks to the range of diagnostic tests. The
dog and cat vaccine ranges declined.
The food producing animal segment showed a drop, in particular in the external parasiticide range of products for cattle.
Southern Europe
In 2016, growth in the region was up 6.7% compared to 2015, thanks to strong results from all subsidiaries, with
Greece posting growth of 17.5%.
In the companion animal segment, growth is largely related to the launch of internal and external parasiticides drugs
with Milpro and Activyl. Petfood is also growing steadily thanks to the Veterinary HPM range. In the food producing
animal segment, the activity is progressing also through the parasiticide range of products for cattle.
The rest of Europe
Results in the region was down 6.6% and 6.0% at actual and constant rates respectively.
The results are contrasted with Scandinavia, Central and Eastern Europe recording growth, while, on the other hand,
Poland recorded a drop of 21% in business activity at constant rates as a result of issues with the manufacturing of
Shotapen and the loss of the Suramox tender.
The companion animal segment grew slightly. This growth was driven by the petfood range, due to the launch of the
Veterinary HPM range in Scandinavia and the range of parasiticides with the launch of Milpro in 2015.
Conversely, the food producing animal segment posted a decline for the year across all ranges.

North America

In the United States, despite a drop in the Sentinel range due to increased competition in the internal parasiticide segment,
growth reached 12% at constant and actual exchange rates. The historical ranges, in particular dental and dermatological
products, continued to see growth. Furthermore, the Iverhart Plus and Iverhart Max ranges of internal parasiticides enjoyed a
favourable base effect over the course of the year and showed good growth. Finally, the United States benefited from a
stocking effect from distributors in 2016, linked to the return to the market of certain products at the end of the
year, as well as to very gradual recovery in sales to clinics of reintroduced products.

Latin America

In 2016, Latin America recorded a drop of 9.8% at actual rates (-4.7% at constant rates). There were however
disparities between the countries. Over the course of the year, Uruguay and Costa Rica saw their business activities
decline by 32.0% and 15.6% respectively on a constant rate basis.
After a year of growth in 2015, Chile ended 2016 with a drop in business activity of 18% at constant rates.
The presence of algae bloom decimated the salmon population by 15 to 20%. Furthermore, the salmon industry is
undergoing a transformation following the recent competition from Norwegian producers who turned to the US
market, suggesting a lower use of antibiotics compared to Chilean producers. The Chilean authorities have launched
a plan to reduce the use of antibiotics, leading to the decline of this segment in 2016.
Brazil posted steady growth, as sales were up 20.4% at constant rates due in particular to product portfolio restructuring.
The Mexican subsidiary also registered sales growth of 8.8% at constant rates. This growth was generated mainly by the
industrial range of products, in particular ruminant antibiotics (Multibio, Shotapen and Rilexine).
The Colombian subsidiary also recorded steady growth of 14.6% at constant rates, attributed to positive earnings from
the food producing animal segment, especially the parasiticide and antibiotic ranges.

Africa & Middle East

In 2016, despite an actual rate drop of 6.5%, Virbac’s business activity in Africa & Middle East grew by 3.2% at
constant rates.
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Virbac’s business activity in South Africa was steady over the period based on constant rates. Business activity in the food
producing animal segment was heavily impacted by a significant drought and, as a result, did not increase this year.
On the other hand, export sales to Africa grew by 23.1% thanks to positive profit from the companion animal segment,
especially the dog vaccines (Canigen), parasiticides (Effipro) and dermatology product ranges (Easotic, Epiotic).

Asia

In this region, sales were up 10.3% compared to 2015 at constant rates and 7.7% at actual rates. All of the area’s
subsidiaries, with the exception of Thailand, had contributed to this growth.
Virbac India saw continued growth and posted a further increase of 8% at constant rates in 2016.
Business activity in the food producing animal segment, which accounts for 95% of the subsidiary’s sales, continued
to register growth that was driven by nutritional supplements, parasiticides and antibiotics for cattle. The pig and
poultry business is also experiencing good growth. However, after a year of growth, sales in aquaculture dropped.
Business activity in the companion animal segment continued to see growth, thanks primarily to vaccine ranges. The
subsidiary’s growth was slowed at the end of the year due to government-imposed demonetisation, which caused
cash flow problems for local customers.
2016 was again a very good year for the Greater China (China, Taiwan and Hong Kong) region, which generated
double-digit growth of 23.3% at constant rates. Growth was driven by the companion animal segment, as Epiotic
(dermatology), Zoletil (anaesthetic) and Rilexine (antibiotic) all performed well. The food producing animal segment
also experienced excellent growth for 2016, thanks to the launches of pig vaccines in Taiwan and the strong
performance of ruminant antibiotics (Shotapen).
Vietnam posted growth of 21.8% at constant rates. These results were mainly attributed to food producing animal
products, as the industrial range with vaccines showed strong growth, not to mention the solid growth of antibiotic
products for cattle, in particular Shotapen.
At constant rates, Virbac Japan registered growth of 7.8% (20.6% at actual rates). Growth was generated by
companion animal products, in particular thanks to the dermatology and dental ranges due to the resumption of
production in the United States, and in oral antibiotics (Rilexine tablets).
The Philippines and SEA (South East Asia) export region continued to see growth for 2016, with increased sales of
12.4% at constant rates (9.5% at actual rates). Growth across the companion animal segment was generated by
the strong performance of the Nutri-plus gel. The food producing animal segment owes its growth to the pig and
poultry antibiotic range of products.
In Korea, growth of 18.3% at constant rates (15.9% at actual rates) was largely due to the positive profits from the
range of dog vaccines across the companion animal segment as well as significant sales growth across the food
producing animal segment, especially in immunological products (Ultra Corn) and the pig and poultry and ruminant
antibiotic ranges.
Finally, Thailand showed decreases of 28.7% and 30.6% at constant and actual rates respectively. This decline stemmed
primarily from slumping sales across the companion animal segment in almost all ranges due to supply problems and a
change in distribution strategy. Only the dermatology and parasiticide ranges showed growth at constant rates. The food
producing animal segment declined to a lesser extent and was supported by the range of antibiotics for cattle thanks to sales
of Shotapen.

Pacific

Virbac’s business activity in the region posted growth of 2.5% at constant rates and 1.9% at actual rates.
The Australian subsidiary recorded a drop of 0.9% at constant rates (-2.0% at actual rates). Business activity in the
companion animal segment posted a slight growth at constant rates notably due to growth in the internal
parasiticide product segment, thanks to the good performance of Milpro. The food producing animal segment
remained relatively stable on a constant-rate basis. Indeed the business activities showed contrasted results. The
Multimin products showed continued growth, however, the ruminant antibiotic segments and ovine and caprine
products declined over the fiscal period. The other segments declined due to the discontinuation of the
manufacturing contract for strategic reasons.
The New Zealand subsidiary posted solid growth (+17% at constant rates and +18.8% at actual rates). Growth in
the food producing animal segment was driven by bovine intramammary treatment products (Penclox) and feed
supplements (Multimin). This growth offsets the slight drop in sales across the companion animal segment,
especially in petfood and internal parasiticides.
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Performance by segment
In 2016, the Group’s activities rose 4.4% at constant rates and perimeter, thanks to 7.9% growth in the companion
animal segment and relative stability (+0.3%) in the food producing animal segment.

2016 sales
at actual rates

Growth by segment
at constant exchange rates and perimeter
> -5%

in € million
Parasiticides

186.6

Immunology

75.6

Antibiotics/dermatology

69.6

Specialties

53.1

Equine

25.9

Specialised petfood

30.6

Others

66.8

Companion animals
Bovine parasiticides
Bovine antibiotics
Other ruminants products

Sales

12.3%
7.7%
4.5%
9.5%
18.2%
7.9%
0.0%

69.1

24.6
54.1

18.5%
2.7%
-6.5%
11.6%
-19.1%

354.7
8.9
871.8

> 15%

1.2%

118.0
42.2

Other businesses

+5% to +10% to
+10%
+15%
6.2%

46.7

Other pig/poultry products
Food producing animals

0% to
+ 5%

508.2

Pig/poultry antibiotics
Aquaculture

- 5% to
0%

0.3%
-11.7%
4.4%

Companion animals

In 2016, this business accounted for 58% of sales, growing by 7.9% at constant rates and perimeter compared to 2015.
The internal and external parasiticide product segment posted an increase of 6.2% at constant rates and perimeter
thanks to the relaunch of Iverhart products on the US market and the growth of new products launched in Europe
(Milpro, Effitix).
The immunological products segment grew slightly by 1.2% this year. Dog vaccines declined in all regions, except the
Pacific, Africa and the Middle East. This drop was offset by the performance of cat vaccines, especially in Africa, the
Middle East and Latin America.
Growth of 12.3% in antibiotic therapies and dermatology was driven by the good results of dermatological products,
notably the Easotic and Epiotic products in China, Japan and the United States as well as the Cyclavance product in Europe
and Cortavance, which grew in all regions. The range of antibiotic products also had a good year, thanks especially to the
performance of Rilexine tablets in Asia and Europe and of Biomox on the US market.
Specialty products saw growth of 7.7%, driven by the strong performance of the reproduction range, in particular
Suprelorin and Ypozane in Europe, and growth in the anaesthetic product range, thanks primarily to Zoletil in Europe and
Latin America and Euthasol in the United States.
The Equine segment grew by 4.5% due to the resumption of production and delivery of Equimax products in the United
States in 2016.
Growth in the petfood segment was up 9.5% compared to 2015, which was due to the growth of the new range
Veterinary HPM in Europe and its launch in emerging countries during the 2016 year.
Finally, the growth by 18.2% of the other products segment was attributed to the increase in sales of the dental range,
especially in Latin America and the United States.

Food producing animals

This business, which accounted for 41% of Group’s sales, remained stable from 2015 at constant rates and perimeter.
The stability of the bovine parasiticide segment conceals contrasting results. While Asia, Latin America and the
Pacific saw sales increase, Europe, Africa & Middle East recorded a drop in business activity. The highly competitive
bovine antibiotic segment rebounded in 2016 with growth of 18.5%. All regions experienced growth, in particular
Latin America where the Multibio, Shotapen and Rilexine products performed well.
The segment of other ruminant products grew by 2.7%, thanks to the good dynamic of vaccines on one hand and
nutritional products on the other hand, especially the Multimin product in the Pacific region.
Unlike the ruminant segment, the pig and poultry antibiotic segment slumped in 2016 throughout the regions,
except in Asia, and posted a drop of 6.5%.
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The other pig and poultry segment grew by 11.6%, enjoying good performance in the Asia area, thanks to Virbagest
and pig vaccines.
Finally, in 2016, the situation in Chile was heavily impacted by the aquaculture business, which ended the year with
a drop of 19.1%.

Other businesses

These sales, which represent less than 1.0% of consolidated sales, correspond to non-strategic ranges which cannot
be treated as companion animal or food producing animal ranges. They mainly include contract manufacturing
performed for third parties in the United States.

CHANGES IN GROUP SCOPE
Scope as of December 31, 2016
The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2016 include the financial statements of the companies that
Virbac controls indirectly or directly in law and in fact. The list of consolidated companies is contained in note A37.
Changes in the scope made during the year are described in the “Scope” paragraph on page 150 of the annual report.

RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT & LICENSING
The different sectors of animal health are constantly evolving due to scientific developments, regulatory changes and
social changes influencing lifestyles and consumption. Innovation at Virbac is at the crossroads of these influences and
evolutions, it analyses the factors of change both scientific and context to anticipate the products of tomorrow and
integrate them into the Group strategic decisions.
Since its inception Virbac’s strategic decisions have focused their innovation and development activities first and
foremost on the companion animal segment. In 2016, this sector was strengthened with resources dedicated not only
to products without Marketing authorisations, but also petfood.
In the field of food producing animals for which Virbac has taken strategic decisions among the various segments,
aquaculture remains a promising segment, especially for warm water species which meets the high demand for protein.
In Chile, in addition to the renewal of Marketing authorisations for important medicines, the business concentrated
mainly on the development of promising autovaccines for warm water species (tilapia, barramundi). In Asia, activity
was dominated by the reorganization following the 100% acquisition by Virbac of SBC Taiwan and to the redefinition
and implementation of warm water aquaculture development priorities, focused mainly on vaccine development.
In the ruminant segment, the dairy sector continues to be a key area driven by the global demand for dairy products
and strong population growth in major consumer countries or regions such as India or the Middle East. Cattle
farming for meat production has shifted towards increased product quality, strengthening the role played by largescale breeding countries like Australia and Brazil, which operate alongside traditional intensive production countries.
In the swine sector, Asia’s development continues and legitimises Virbac’s focus on this food producing species in
this geographical area.
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To support these efforts to develop new products in these strategic segments, the Virbac group spent 7.6% of its
revenues on RDL (Research, Development and Licensing) activities. Expenditures are allocated to early stage
projects designed to offer breakthrough innovations if their results are positive, medium-term projects and projects
at the end of development, the dossiers of which are to be or are being filed with the different drug agencies.
Maintenance and protection of existing products registrations represent a significant part of the resources used,
justified by the need to safeguard assets such as these registrations, Virbac’s quality policy and by increasing
demands from the authorities.
Structurally, innovation at Virbac evolves to adapt to strategy and ambitions; two multidisciplinary teams of product
innovation have been strengthened. The first one is in charge of products without MA and focuses on dedicated
North American and European structures, the second one is in charge of the development of the HPM petfood range.
The Group pharmaceutical R&D continues to pool resources and create synergies among the European and North
American teams around common companion animal projects. It also enhances the exchange of expertise between
the European teams and the South American and Pacific R&D pharmaceutical entities for food producing animal
projects. Significant efforts are also made to ensure quick and optimal internationalisation of projects and Group
products by embracing development plans that, right from the design phase, meet the specific requirements of
major countries outside Europe and North America.
The Group R&D biology focuses on the various vaccine projects for companion animal, ruminant, pig and
aquaculture. Its structure and operations are adapted to harness the expertise of the Group’s various biology
experts assigned to any project, regardless of the development site.
Collaborations with Biotech companies and public research continue with a number of nurturing and proof-of-concept
programmes that, if successful, will lead to licensing for Virbac’s benefit.
Particular attention may be paid to results achieved in the petfood sector with the Veterinary HPM petfood range, the
first part of which, intended for healthy animals, has been successfully introduced in Europe and Latin America. The
first part of this range has just been strengthened by the second wave of foods intended for dogs and cats suffering
from kidney, urinary and arthrosic diseases and from being overweight, which are often related to age and
sedentary lifestyles. These HPM products meet the new expectations of dog and cat owners, as well as those of
veterinarians who prescribe and sell them.
The high-end diet represented by the Veterinary HPM range is a vital preventive and therapeutic support tool for
veterinarians in their daily practice, which results in very rapid market development in veterinary clinics.
Products without MA intended for domestic carnivores are focused on the dermatology, nutraceutical and dental markets.
In 2016, the dermatological range gained momentum with the introduction in Europe of the “S-I-S” (Skin Innovative
Science) technology, providing new benefits to product users who have been involved in Virbac’s leadership in this
field for many decades.
Projects under way in the nutraceutical and dental sectors will quickly contribute to the Group’s growth due to the
short development cycle and to Virbac’s significant presence in the companion animal veterinarian markets.
As for regulatory activities, becoming involved in a significant collective effort has been instrumental in restoring the
cGMP status of the St. Louis site. This site cGMP status is necessary for the development, filing and regulatory
acceptance by the FDA of new registration and variation documents for existing products. Restored status means
that registrations will once again be accessible in 2017 and 2018.
New registrations were filed with European, Japanese, Australian, Brazilian and Indian agencies for products
intended for companion and food producing animals during 2016.
Through its pharmaceutical and biological development teams and international regulatory specialists, Virbac is
implementing a partnership strategy with numerous public and private organisations. The goal of these partnerships
is to develop in conjunction with these organisations new technologies in the therapeutic and vaccine fields as well
as in animal health diagnostics. Start-ups and university teams build on the expertise of the Virbac teams in order to
adapt and expedite the development of their innovations.
The teams in charge of these partnerships work closely with potential partners in order to search for innovations that
are relevant to both companion and food producing animals. The fruits of this labour led to a certain number of
collaborations in 2016 in various fields dealing with important animal health needs.
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PRODUCTION
France
The growing internationalisation of the Group’s business over the course of many years has contributed to the strong
development of its production units in France, both in respect to equipment and to its workforce and it expresses its desire
to have efficient facilities that meet both increasing regulatory requirements as well as those of our business model.
In 2016, blister packaging of pipettes was finalised and automated under optimal productivity and compliance conditions.
This project had begun in 2011 and resulted in an overall review of the process and activity scheduling.
On another note, the Carros industrial tool required additional tweaking of existing equipment to allow for the
manufacturing of new products.
At the Vauvert site, Virbac Nutrition (the Group entity specialising in animal pet food) continued in 2016 to produce
and market the preventive Veterinary HPM range launched in 2015, while preparing the new diet Veterinary HPM
range for dogs and cats range set to be launched in 2017.
Furthermore, in an industry of continuously changing regulatory requirements, Virbac continues to adapt and elevate
its level of quality control of products. It is precisely in this context that the Quality improvement plan (QIP) started
in July 2015 in France. This plan, pursued in 2016, is meant to be a proactive approach to anticipate changes in
Good manufacturing practices (cGMP) and to improve quality processes at the Carros and Magny facilities and
thereby reduce the risk of deviation from the quality benchmark used during inspections by regulatory authorities.

International
United States

The St. Louis site received a letter from the FDA confirming the lifting of the warning letter in December. This
announcement allows the St. Louis site to fully regain its cGMP status and thereby restore its ability to submit new
registration and variation files with the FDA. This also allows Virbac to continue the transfer of production of Sentinel
Spectrum to the St. Louis site, as originally planned.

Asia/Pacific

In Australia, 2016 was marked by the resumption of manufacturing of a product at the Penrith site and of four other
products at the Crockwell site. These products were previously manufactured by third parties.
The Penrith site focused its investments on improving process flexibility and converting an unused tank into a
fermentation tank. At the Macquarie site, investments were made to increase production capacity.
Finally, this year was marked by the recognition of the facilities’ compliance with the cGMP rules. No discrepancies
were identified as part of the APVMA (Australian pesticides and veterinary medicines authority) audit of the Penrith
site. The Macquarie site passed its first FDA-conducted US audit; its European cGMP compliance audit also yielded a
successful result.
In Vietnam, to address a growing demand for chews lamellae, especially in the United States, a third production line
was set up in the Dongnai plant. Furthermore, in keeping with the new American and European food safety regulations
and to ensure a steady supply on the markets, the FSMA (Food safety modernization act) and HACCP (Hazard analysis
critical control point) principles were implemented in 2016, with a goal of achieving certification in 2017.

Latin America

In Mexico, all production operations were transferred to the new Argo Navis site in Guadalajara. This move marks
the end of the project with the same name, which began in 2011, in order to support the growth of the Mexican
subsidiary while increasing its production capacity. The purpose was also to improve the level of operational control
and quality, in addition to grouping all research, production, distribution and administrative activities within a single
site. The main challenge hinged on gradually transferring technology and skills without disrupting product supply.
Today, Virbac Mexico has a first-rate production platform for injectables, which supports the subsidiary’s strong
growth in both the domestic and export markets.
In Uruguay, the presence of a second production site since September 2015 has enabled the subsidiary to meet the
growing local demand for Clostrisan vaccines. Over the course of the year, the new site produced 35.5 million
vaccines as well as 84.5 litres of pharmaceutical products.
In Chile, all manufacturing areas were granted authorisations by the authorities. The main buildings concerned are
powders, oral solutions, injectables and the biological control laboratory. Investments were also made to increase
the vaccine production capacity.
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QUALITY ASSURANCE
In a highly evolving and regionally fragmented regulatory environment, the Group’s Quality Assurance department
gradually rolled out its expertise to all of its subsidiaries.
The Group’s quality strategy is based on three fundamentals that are the product efficiency, the pharmaceutical
efficiency and the sustainable economic performance. The goal is to elevate the quality standards in compliance with
and in anticipation of regulatory requirements that apply to the various Group’s research and production facilities,
and to ensure the Group’s sustainability.
Within the continuous improvement centre, the work for defining and deploying a Group quality reference system
started in 2014. This programme, the Virbac quality system (VQS), based on a participatory approach involving
collaboration across teams, sets the quality standards for all production sites, taking into account the diversity in
countries, products and dosage forms involved. The reference system is designed to cover the entire product cycle,
from research to production and distribution, in order to secure the supply chain and integrate regulatory requirements.
In 2015, the first two chapters of the reference system were drawn up. They cover topics related to quality
management and quality assurance, for example, the management of quality and related risks, training, CAPA
(Corrective actions, preventative actions), control of modifications, customer claims or product recalls.
In 2016, the quality policy was rolled out in all departments and in all subsidiaries worldwide. It outlines Virbac’s
commitments to deliver products that are safe, efficient, reproducible, compliant with regulations and easy to use by
customers.
The Virbac quality system has expanded to include the Group’s organisations, processes, tools and quality
benchmarks. Some automated quality processes are built in a core model format.
In 2017, Virbac continues to enhance and implement the Virbac quality benchmarks and is proceeding with roll-out
of the core model in the United States and Mexico.
Job training is also at the heart of the quality approach. This is precisely why important work was conducted to
update job descriptions with a more precise identification of the skills required, acquired and to be developed, so as
to propose training plans tailored toward enhancing team skills and embracing a pharmaceutical culture.
In parallel, an important effort to mobilise around major product launches was conducted with the establishment of
a multidisciplinary team involving positions in research and development, production and quality assurance, all
aligned to deliver products on time and with the expected level of quality to satisfy the customer.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
The Group employs 4,852 employees in 37 countries.

Strategy
The success of the company is directly linked to the commitment of its employees. This commitment stems from the
role that they play when major decisions are taken at the company.
Its human resources strategy fully fits into the company’s overall strategy and it seeks to “attain excellence”
concerning the management of its people. This constitutes a permanent challenge for a growing company that needs
to change its mode of operation in connection with globalisation, while respecting its close relationship model with
the customer/market.
Seeking excellence in people management in such a dynamic environment requires that change in organisational
operations go hand in hand with the willingness of each person to find opportunities for their own professional
growth and career development by pursuing improved professional effectiveness.
The HR function continues its search for excellence by combining development programmes that continue to improve,
with support for operational management, and by building a strong partnership with managers and all employees.
In the Group, the 2015 survey results were used as inspiration for defining local or overall areas of improvement in
order to increase employee commitment and motivation and therefore retain talent.
In 2016, the roll-out of an individual development management practices enhancement and alignment project
addressed both employee expectations and key business issues by guaranteeing better employability.
A paradigm shift in terms of development was initiated: each employee is the main actor in his development and his
manager becomes his coach by guiding and supporting him in his project of evolution and by focusing primarily on
skills to develop in the position he holds. Employee commitment is an unavoidable requirement to ensure that this
new model is efficient and successful.
The introduction of a recognition programme is another example of initiatives taken in the wake of an internal
survey: this programme is based on the recognition of an exceptional contribution that embraces values promoted
by the subsidiaries (Innovation, Entrepreneurship, Team spirit, etc.).
The approach is original insofar as the rewards are handed out by employees themselves: we’re talking about peer
recognition.
In regards to compensation and employee benefits, Virbac spares no effort in enhancing its market knowledge so as
to perfect its approach by taking into account internal and external equity.
In the past few years, Virbac has put a great deal of energy into recruiting, retaining and developing a significant
number of employees in numerous countries and in all organisations.
The Group also strives to carry out its intention of providing employees with career development opportunities by
fostering internal and international mobility through increased employment offers and effective and appealing
communication that enhances the employer’s image.
The ability to work together globally has proven to be a must-have quality: it’s about gaining a better knowledge
and understanding of each other in order to achieve increasingly ambitious shared objectives.
Strengthening the people centric culture, supporting employee growth in number and in skills and constantly striving
for greater efficiency for the company and people remain the key focus of the HR department.

Recruitment and mobility
2016 was a new dynamic year in terms of recruitment for Virbac, primarily in France, India and the United States,
with close to 800 recruitments worldwide.
All organisations (sales, marketing, industrial operations, research and development, quality, regulatory affairs,
support functions) were involved.
Applications come from a variety of sources, including more than 25% through internal mobility.
In 2016, Virbac’s internal and international mobility policy grew stronger and became one of our corporate priorities.
Internal mobility, not only between professions but also between subsidiaries and countries, is a way to increase
employee skills, commitment and motivation.
In order to support these transfers and thereby respond to our ambition of increasing career opportunities in the
Group, several measures were introduced.
Visibility of international employment offers is now being enhanced through Intranet postings each employee can
view to get information about subsidiary job openings.
With employee transfers becoming more prevalent in the years to come, international mobility practices have been
harmonised through the development of a policy that supports permanent transfers from one Virbac entity to the
other. It makes it possible to provide the best possible support for employees and their families by helping them
relocate to their new country through several mechanisms.
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The main goal of all of these future career development measures in the Group is to retain employees worldwide and
foster transversality through sharing of inter-cultural and inter-professional experiences, in addition to securing key
positions by leveraging skills and knowledge transfer internally.

Training and development
International training and development measures were stepped up in 2016.
Firstly, with the mid-year roll-out of a development plan process across four subsidiaries (France, Australia, Mexico,
Uruguay). In this context, employees were given the opportunity to meet with their manager about developing their
skills, accessing online training and participating in workshops.
On another note, the annual interview, launched in 2015, was extended to 20 subsidiaries. 3,500 managers and
employees were offered training in proper annual assessment interview practices as well as in salary reviews.
It should be noted that there are several personalised management and leadership development programmes in a
number of countries, in particular Brazil, Australia and Germany.
The professional skills development curriculum, which is complementary to training offered by the Human Resources
department, created some excellent projects:
• an innovation campus intended for 100 employee from these teams;
• a finance course for marketing audiences around the world;
• and finally significant advances in training people in quality and Good manufacturing practices, including
training all employees at the St. Louis site in the United States.
In addition, tailor-made training projects tailored to topics as varied as collaboration, project management or
business relationship management have emerged, as well as personalised coaching through coaching or
personalised follow-up.
Finally, the Group continued to invest in digital learning, with profound confidence in its effectiveness and powerful
potential.
Several courses combining e-learning modules, videos and workshops as well as practical activities tracked over
time are today an integral part of the Group’s educational approach.
These will be stepped-up in the future and distance training and so-called multi-modal training will emerge.

Compensation
Grading, the internal job grading system, continued to be rolled out in 2016 in India and Brazil. Uruguay and
Vietnam will follow suit in the first quarter of 2017, which will bring the number of subsidiaries equipped with this
tool to nine.
With this gradual roll-out, grading, used initially for local purposes to manage internal fairness and external
competitiveness and to develop compensation policies, will also expedite international mobility by enabling people to
compare positions on a global scale.
The annual interview, in its new format, reinforces, much like grading, coherence and the common language used at
the Group level.
Several significant initiatives were introduced in the subsidiaries, such as the marketing and sales bonus system
review in Australia, or the health insurance and bonus system review in Brazil. What resulted was a win-win change,
with optimised economic output delivered by the subsidiary and better employee rewards.
In France, following the 2015 survey, the decision was taken to organise plenary communication sessions dealing
with executive compensation. The aim of these meetings is to provide clarity around compensation policies and a
forum for employees to ask questions and voice their concerns.
At the corporate level, a blended Perf course devoted to compensation was developed, with a special focus on salary
decision-making.
This course is available on our e-learning platform and includes three streams:
• a self-assessment quiz to establish the scope;
• an e-learning module that deals with themes related to budget process, roles and responsibilities, and
decision-making steps and criteria;
• a compensation guide that addresses the main components.
This programme is available in three languages, including French, English and Spanish, and is intended first and
foremost for managers.
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Group workforce
As at end of December 2016, Virbac had 4,852 employees: 2,913 men (60%) and 1,939 women (40%).

Breakdown of Group employees
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Africa & Middle East

35.4% of Group employees are in Europe.
Employee numbers recorded on December 31, 2016 increased 1.5% compared to those recorded on December 31,
2015. The largest increase occurred in Asia (7.1%).

Changes to employee numbers by region
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Changes to employee numbers by function
2016
Production
Administration
Commercial & marketing
Research & development
Workforce

2015

1,837
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Virbac in France
Workforce

Virbac has 1,398 employees in France.
This figure includes the fixed-term contracts (CDD) as well as trainees and professional training contracts.
With 56% women and 44% men, the workforce is broken down as follows in terms of socioprofessional classification:

Manual
workers
18.0%

Supervisory
personnel/
technicians/
employees
36.0%

Managers
46.0%

Changes to the workforce

In 2016, with 157 hirings and 151 departures, the balance of personnel hiring/departures was positive (+6 people)
in France.

Compensation

In 2016, gross compensation amounted to €65,443,785 and payroll taxes to €29,764,815. The average annual gross
salary of €49,182 is up 1.05% compared to 2015.

Other employee benefits

The amount paid in 2016 by the company amounted to €641,000.

Training

Training expenses this year amounted to €2,083,116 accounting for 3.18% of payroll.

Working time

All employees are covered by a working time reduction agreement (Réduction de temps de travail - RTT). The
reference period is annual (from June 1 to May 31), and the duration is 1,567 hours (completed by an allotment of
130 hours for supervisors), accompanied by RTT days and that are arranged differently according to the
organisations or categories. For executives, regarded as independent within the organisation for achieving their job
mission, a yearly figure capped at 213 days is applied.
An agreement regarding part-time work allows up to 6% of the employees to benefit from a reduction at 80% or at
90% of working time.
In 2016, three new working time agreements were entered into with the social partners. The first agreement provides
clarity with respect to organising the work time of team leaders; the second one deals with constraints in the French
Industrial Operations department and the Information Systems department.
Finally, shifts in remote communication tools provide an opportunity to consider new organisational methods that
combine flexibility and responsiveness and enable willing workers to establish a better work-family balance by
performing a portion of their work at home. After an in-depth study, a telework agreement was concluded on a
tentative basis for a period of one year and will apply, as of 2017, to voluntary workers occupying positions that are
appropriate for this kind of work arrangement.
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Workplace safety

This axis is a priority for the Group and is becoming a true corporate culture year after year. Thus, the frequency
rate has reached a level never seen before, with a rate of 6.41 over the year 2016, the severity rate is divided by
two to reach a rate of 0.35, a rate still impacted by accidents of the previous years.
Along the same lines as in previous years, and in concrete terms, the main areas of progress in 2016 were the
following:
• as part of the new regulations on stress in the workplace and in line with the 2012 action plan designed in
partnership with the CHSCT (Comité d’hygiène, de sécurité et des conditions de travail [Committee on hygiene,
safety and working conditions]), and to complement the work done in 2015, only 58 people (out of close to
1,500 employees in France) are affected by one of the ten criteria mentioned in the regulations, and only two
people from this group (still out of 1,500) are affected by two factors;
• appointment of area-specific contacts and stepping up the PRAP (Prévention des risques liés à l’activité physique
[Prevention of risks related to physical activity]) initiative across all of Carros’ production areas in France;
• widespread training initiatives in chemical and biological hazards.
With regard to psychosocial hazards and following the results of the 2015 social survey, initiatives were carried out in the
various departments with the support of the HR teams and the joint group "mieux être au travail" [better-being at work].
To this end, the following was made available to the organisations:
• methodology guide for working groups to increase ownership of the priority topics in the action plan;
• a summary of proper practices for discussing workloads and, more broadly on the management of time and
priorities. A document outlining this discussion during the annual interview is attached as a reference;
• personalised theatrical sketches to illustrate, acknowledge and act on the major exposure factors identified.
Examples of initiatives that have been implemented include but are not limited to:
• company decisions: no more Friday afternoon meetings to support local management and move forward with
projects, emails before the weekend;
• year-end seminars that deal with the topics of workload, stress, cross-functional cooperation, alignment with
key issues and objectives;
• definition of a common project management methodology within the department;
• communication of expected management guidelines on the following topics: "working together", meetings, extra
tasks, decision-making processes, information sharing, providing input and questioning, emails and PowerPoint;
• implementation of a organisational and social diagnosis of a department by an external provider with the
definition of an action plan;
• additional assessment (per homogeneous exposure group) in collaboration with a site’s occupational health
department.
Following a joint fact-finding inquiry led by the CHSCT, processes were set out (and conveyed to all employees) for
systematically providing support in potentially stressful situations:
• creating an organisation dealing with managerial absences of more than one month.
• adjusting the definition of function and establishing a development and follow-up plan for any change of
function and/or area of activity.
• strengthening the dialogue on workloads and respective control by local management.
An interactive stress awareness improvisation session intended specifically for the top 100 Carros-based managers
was linked to a communication from members of the executive board in order to ensure message sharing and
departmental support for these prevention initiatives.
The portrayal of a work situation that closely mirrored their reality provided the basis for discussing the signs of stress
and its related factors, encouraging open discussion about the issue, fostering early identification of potentially
sensitive situations, making the various drivers available to each and everyone on the right responses to adopt.
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Absenteeism

Absenteeism within the company amounted to 4.46%, and is broken down as follows:

Part-time
medical
leave
0.05%

Occupational
accident
0.27%
Maternity
0.71%

Commuting
accident
0.07%

Illness
3.36%

Employee representative bodies
The works council and employee representatives
Members of the employee representative committee as well as employee representatives were re-elected to the ESU
(Economic and social unit) in 2013 for a four-year term. Some members are affiliated with the CGT (General
confederation of labour) or the CFDT (French democratic confederation of labour) and some do not belong to a union.
The works council of the ESU is comprised of eight full members, six alternate members and a union representative.
Ordinary meetings are held on a monthly basis.
To date, fifteen employee representatives are present at the Carros facilities (nine full members and six alternate
members). There are two of them at the Wissous location of Virbac Distribution (one full member and one alternate
member), two of them at the La Seyne sur Mer location of Bio Véto Test (one full member and one alternate
member) and two of them at the Vauvert location of Virbac Nutrition (one full members and one alternate member).
No employee representative is present at the Magny-en-Vexin facility as a result of a shortage of candidates at the
last union elections.
A shared electronic communication platform was set up in Carros to facilitate dialogue between employee
representatives and the Human Resources department.
The Committees on hygiene, safety and working conditions (CHSCT)
There are three CHSCT’s within the ESU, whose members were appointed for a two-year term. These CHSCT’s are
made up of seven CHSCT representatives from the Virbac group’s companies in Carros, which include Virbac France,
Alfamed, BVT and Virbac Distribution (to be named in June 2017), a representative in Magny-en-Vexin (to be named
in July 2017) and three representatives at Virbac Nutrition (whose terms of office were extended until July 2017 by
means of a company agreement).
Ordinary meetings are held at least once every quarter.
Union representatives
Two central CGT union representatives are present in France.

Disabled workers

As part of the disability agreement signed in 2014 with the social partners, 2016 saw disabled persons employment
initiatives being maintained and stepped up and partnerships being solidified.
In 2016, Virbac’s initiatives focused primarily on:
• raising awareness and fostering communication with employees and managers through:
− training managers in main-streaming and monitoring employees recognised as disabled,
− supporting disability ambassadors dedicated to providing employees with information and who are in charge
of directing them toward the proper contacts in their daily role in order to reinforce their internal position,
− providing support for health teams in their efforts relating to the employment of disabled persons;
• a clear sign of Virbac’s commitment through their accommodation of ten job applicants recognised as
disabled persons who, as part of their retraining, had to carry out an apprenticeship and were given free
vocational training provided internally to office employees, management of time and priorities;
• employee retention: Virbac continued its efforts in 2016 by dedicating more than €55,000 to setting up of
workshops and work stations in order to keep disabled employees employed. At the same time, job retention
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assessments were initiated with some of the disabled employees in order to assist the Group with solutions to
mobility issues.
Furthermore, use of the protected sector was consolidated and diversified over the course of the year.
All of these initiatives will enable Virbac to reach the targets it set, especially the target of increasing the
employment rate of disabled persons from 3.0% to 4.5%.
At the beginning of 2017, a new agreement will be signed with the social partners. This new agreement is expected
to focus on external recruitment of disabled employees and accommodating disabled apprentices and interns.

Optional and compulsory profit-sharing and company savings plan
Optional profit-sharing agreement
2016 marked the third year of application of the three-year profit-sharing agreement concluded in 2014.
This agreement is applicable to all companies that form the ESU in France: Virbac, Virbac France, Alfamed, Virbac
Distribution, Virbac Nutrition and Bio Véto Test.
This agreement, which correlates with the results of the company, is based on two profitability ratios for calculating
the profit-sharing amount to be distributed:
• a profitability ratio that looks at the Group consolidated net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
over consolidated revenue;
• a profitability ratio that looks at Virbac group share consolidated operating profit over consolidated revenue.
The combination of these two ratios in order to calculate the profit-share has the twin goals of:
• allocating employees a profit-share that is in line with the company’s financial performance (ratio based on
net profit);
• rewarding the collective contribution of employees (ratio based on operating income from ordinary activities).
For this agreement, the beneficiaries are employees with at least three months of service in the Group as at
December 31 in the year to which the calculation relates.
An amendment was concluded in 2016 and set out first and foremost to comply with the Macron act of August 6, 2015.
Compulsory profit sharing in company net profit
The profit-sharing agreement entered into in 2008 constitutes a profit-sharing agreement between Virbac, Virbac
France, Alfamed, Virbac Distribution, Virbac Nutrition and Bio Véto Test.
Each company of the Group contributes to the formation of the overall reserve for the full amount of its own reserve,
calculated according to the statutory formula. The beneficiaries are employees with at least three months of service in
the Group as at December 31 in the year to which the calculation relates. Participation can be assigned to three funds:
the current blocked account, the PEE (company savings plan) and/or the Perco (collective retirement savings plan).
Employee savings plans
The amounts derived from profit-sharing, participation or voluntary payments agreements can be invested in a
mutual fund. A PEE is dedicated to the employees of the ESU formed by the companies Virbac, Virbac Distribution,
Virbac France, Alfamed and Bio Véto Test. Another PEE is also open to employees of Virbac Nutrition. The Perco,
managed by Generali Epargne Salariale, allows employees to build a diversified savings plan for their retirement.
Up until 2014, it was possible to fund the Perco (Collective retirement savings plan) with amounts secured through
employee profit-sharing, incentives or voluntary payments. In 2015, an amendment to the Perco agreement was
signed and thereby allowed for the payment of unused vacation days, up to a maximum of five days.
In 2016 and in accordance with the Macron act, this number was increased to ten days.
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RISK FACTORS
Like any organisation, the Virbac group is prompted to take risks, look for opportunities and create value. The issue
of the Group’s general risk management mechanism lies in its ability to identify risks, whether they are recurrent or
emerging, and to control them over period.
Throughout 2016, the Group continued with the roll-out of its general risk management process through reliance on
its risk management information system that was implemented in 2014. This roll-out came to fruition in 2016 when
risk mapping initiatives were undertaken across new subsidiaries in addition to the updating of previously rolled-out
mapping initiatives in another subsidiary.
Generally speaking, each risk identified is described in detail and assigned to a risk owner in charge of providing followup as well as defining and managing the implementation of adequate control measures.
The organisation and methods for how the tool was implemented within the Group are presented in detail in the
report of the chairwoman of the supervisory board on page 133 of the annual report.
As part of it major risk mapping update performed in 2015, Virbac has conducted a review of risks that could have a
significant adverse effect on its business, its financial situation or its profit and considers that so far there are no
significant risks other than those shown in this report.
However, certain risks not detailed here or not identified to date may potentially affect the Group’s results,
objectives, image or share price.
In keeping with the AMF’s (Autorité des marchés financiers [French financial markets authority]) recommendations
regarding the specificity and importance of risks reported by the issuer, the Virbac group wanted in this section of
the report:
• to change the title and description of the risk “Regulatory environment risks”;
• to include the paragraph “Risks related to workplace accidents and occupational illness” to the paragraph
“HSE (Health, safety, environment) risks”;
• to reclassify the paragraph “Fraud risk” within the category of financial risks;
• and to delete the paragraph “Risks of damaging image” deemed insignificant at the time of the writing of this
report.

Risks related to the Group’s business activities and strategy
The animal health market has undergone significant changes over recent years which have given rise to new challenges
for the animal health sector taken into account in the Group's strategy (by segment and by species).

Risks related to innovation process (research, development, licensing)
and product registration
Risk factors
The field of veterinary pharmaceutical industry is highly competitive, and every year, in order to meet changing
market needs, maintaining its market share and ensuring its development, Virbac devotes significant resources to
research and development.
In 2016, Virbac spent 7.6% of its sales on RDL. The R&D process typically spans several years and involves different
steps to test, among other things, the effectiveness and the safety of the products. There is a risk at each of these
stages, that the objectives are not achieved and that a project is abandoned once large amounts were invested,
including during an advanced stage of development.
Once the research and development phase is completed, Virbac, in its role of veterinary pharmaceutical laboratory,
requires administrative authorisations for marketing its products, the Marketing authorisations. This step is often
long and complex, and its chances of success are not guaranteed. Indeed, an application for registration to the
competent authorities does not automatically lead to the authorisation to market the product. The latter may be
partial, that is, confined to certain countries or indications. When the Marketing authorisation is obtained, products
are subject to constant checks and may still be subject to a marketing restriction or a withdrawal from the market.
Consequently, the current investments in respect of the development and launch of future products may involve
costs that will not necessarily generate additional sales for Virbac.
Alongside internal R&D projects that are subject to extremely defined processes and the regular monitoring of the
various projects underway, the Group also conducts a policy of licence acquisition which enables it to have access
either to new products ready to be marketed or to ongoing projects that it then carries out by itself to their
conclusion. Similar to internal R&D projects, there is a risk that these projects will not be successful or that their
commercial benefits prove lower than expected, which could lead to the recognition of a provision for depreciation of
these asset values.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac seeks to limit these risks by first employing stringent selection criteria for the research and development
projects in which it invests (likelihood of success, as measured by a combination of technical, regulatory and
marketing factors, of over 50%). Likewise, Virbac targets, through in-depth studies, the products subject to
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licensing agreements. Lastly, Virbac relies on the expertise of its Regulatory Affairs department, responsible for
filing, tracking and renewing the authorisations for placing the products on the market.
The animal health market is highly regulated and Virbac displays a strong commitment to compliance by putting in
place all necessary means to achieve it.

Risks associated with product compliance
Risk factors
As for the previous risk, the Group may also be exposed to a temporary or permanent suspension of the operation of
its products since the latter would present, in the opinion of the competent authorities, a critical deviation from the
regulations in force concerning them.
Risk management mechanisms
The Virbac group strives to ensure that its factories and manufacturing processes meet the highest level of
compliance with existing benchmarks (Good manufacturing practices and others). A quality management mechanism
is defined and rolled out in all of the Group’s manufacturing facilities worldwide. This mechanism helps to flag and
correct any identified deviation between a manufactured product and its regulatory framework. This product quality
system is defined and controlled by the Group through the Quality Assurance department, which ensures proper
implementation of the system by conducting its own audits. It also provides follow-up on action plans related to
recommendations it may be called upon to make.
Alongside this recurrent process, a strategic project for ensuring the safety of major products was initiated by the
Group in 2014. This project continued throughout 2016 and will continue in 2017 in order to finalise the
improvement measures identified and currently being implemented.

Risks associated with product liability
Risk factors
Virbac may be liable regarding its products in the event of adverse side effects of drugs (not detected during clinical
trials prior to the Marketing authorisation) or quality failure. The consequences of such events could be the recall of
marketed batches, or even the loss, temporary or otherwise, of the Marketing authorisation. If Virbac’s liability is
admitted in the context of significant claims, the Group’s financial situation as well as its reputation could be strongly
affected. In the case of a quality problem, the drug recall costs would be incurred as well.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac is continuously strengthening its pharmacovigilance procedures and its quality controls over all the products
that the Group markets. In the context of pharmaceutical monitoring procedures, the Group conducts a systematic
review and regular analysis of the safety profile of its products to ensure the safe use of drugs by monitoring the
side effects attributable thereto.
Moreover, Virbac has product liability insurance that applies to all subsidiaries.

Risks associated with the distribution channels
Risk factors
Virbac is present in many countries, either through its subsidiaries or through the distributors in the countries where
the Group does not have a subsidiary. There are multiple distribution networks and their characteristics depend on
the country where products are marketed. However, the Group’s products are essentially distributed via wholesalers
and procurement centres used by veterinarians. Despite the framing of these relations by contracts which are
regularly revised, this mode of distribution could create for the Group a certain dependency or an unsatisfactory
management of its presence and its development.
Moreover, in certain countries the animal health sector has shown for some years now a trend towards the
concentration of distributors and veterinarians in large clinics. Similarly, new distribution channels such as the
Internet, for example, have been appearing. Virbac remains vigilant on this development and the impact it could
have on the level of revenues and margins.
Risk management mechanisms
In order to reduce its dependence on distributors and to reduce the effects of a potential consolidation, Virbac has
implemented a policy of securing its margins and consolidating its commercial positions. This policy involves
systematically studying the opportunity to establish a distribution subsidiary whenever sales are of sufficient
importance in a given market. Virbac then opts for the most appropriate solution, either acquiring its distributor or
establishing a new distribution business.
In more general terms, the Group strives to constantly adapt its marketing strategy in order to limit associated
risks, and to take advantage of the opportunities which arise from these changes.

Risks related to increased competition
Risk factors
The animal health sector has become increasingly competitive. Virbac products are sold in competitive markets in
terms of pricing, financial conditions and product quality.
The Group must often face powerful competitors with a larger size or with greater resources. A consolidation trend
has emerged in the past few years as some laboratories joined forces (by merger or acquisition) and major
pharmaceutical companies partially or completely entered the animal health market. New forms of competition can
also be seen such as the verticalisation of activities among certain large distributors, local development of innovative
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players in niche markets, or even new strategic partnerships between smaller market players. These developments
could alter the Group’s competitive environment, thereby impacting volumes and/or prices.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac analyses and constantly monitors the movements of its competitors across all markets and has a policy of
external growth through acquisitions and/or partnerships, enabling it particularly to participate in the on-going
consolidation in the sector.
Furthermore, the Group remains on the lookout for opportunities that could represent mergers between major
players (divestment of businesses).

Risks related to the external growth policy of the Group
Risk factors
Since its inception, Virbac has pursued an active external growth policy that has helped it to be present today in
many countries and have a wide range of products. The Group is contemplating on continuing this policy in the
future in order to bolster its geographical positions and its product offering.
The choice of growth through acquisition entails financial and operational risks, especially related to the valuation of
assets and liabilities and the integration of personnel, activities and products purchased.
These acquisitions involve, in particular, the following uncertainties:
• the assumptions of future profitability taken into account in valuations that could not be verified;
• the Group may not successfully integrate acquired companies and their product lines.
This external growth can sometimes take the form of a partnership (JV-Joint Venture) whereby the Group does not
directly or solely engage in managing the operations of the businesses in which it invested. This situation may result
in governance issues if the various shareholders are not on the same page when it comes to strategic objectives.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac has defined a rigorous process for mergers and acquisitions to cover the analysis of potential targets and the
integration of acquired companies:
• applying strict criteria of investment profitability;
• establishing expert, multidisciplinary teams, supported where necessary by outside consultants, in charge of
implementing in-depth due diligence.
This process requires the approval of the executive board and/or the supervisory board prior to any acquisition.
The Group now has experience gained from past acquisitions which allows it to understand a wide variety of
situations related to this type of partnership.

Risks associated with the ability to attract and retain key talent
Risk factors
In France, the key skills sought for central functions (industry/quality assurance/research and development) are in
great demand in all of the pharmaceutical industry, human and veterinary. In addition to this competition between
employers, the geographical location of our headquarters can represent a hindrance for hiring, because of the weak
offer of employment for spouses, as well as the high cost of life in the region, in particular concerning real estate.
Meanwhile, in emerging countries, the job market is very dynamic, and Virbac’s size and reputation cannot always
attract the best.
Risk management mechanisms
The ability to identify, recruit, integrate, develop and retain the key talent it needs in order to achieve its
development plan is a major challenge for the Group, not to mention a priority for the human resources department,
which liaises with the main functional and operational departments in question.
With this in mind, the HR talent management strategy consists of repeatedly and continually pointing out the dynamic
and competitive nature of the Group from a standpoint of career development and compensation, while stepping up its
presence in schools and universities, as well as partnerships with major employment stakeholders in the industry.
To strengthen this approach, in 2014 Virbac developed an employer offer that formalises the internal and external
communication of the Group as an employer. Virbac will now have a strong employer message to support its growth
both in France and abroad by making retention of key talent a Group priority.

Country risk
Risk factors
Virbac is an international group that may have to operate in countries with a certain geopolitical and economic
fragility and in which the Group has production units.
Risk management mechanisms
The Group remains vigilant and closely follows the level of political or economic instability in certain countries to
anticipate possible response or prevention methods if the level were to reach a magnitude that could have a major
impact on employees, assets or the operations of Virbac.
Additionally, the Group uses Coface hedging, the leading French insurance company specialising in export credit
insurance to secure its operations in certain regions.
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Industrial and environmental risks
Because of its activities carried out in various strategic sites worldwide, Virbac is subject to industrial and
environmental risks which could result in significant additional operating costs and liability in case of fire or explosion.
The ultimate risk would be temporary or permanent closure of a site for non-compliance with certain rules or following
a major incident.
However, Virbac grants particular attention to industrial risk prevention and environmental protection in line with its
social and environmental policy.
The responsibility for industrial risk management falls mainly to the heads of operational sites, which monitor
compliance with regulations and standards in this field by implementing operating procedures, quality systems and a
series of security measures, as defined and dictated by the Group, in cooperation with its insurers.
More information regarding the industrial and environmental risk factors related to the Group’s activities can be
found in the sustainable development report on page 46 and following.

Risks related to the use of hazardous materials
Risk factors
As part of its veterinary medicine manufacturing business, Virbac uses substances that present health, fire and/or
explosion, air pollution and spillage risks during the various phases of the production and marketing processes (R&D,
manufacturing, storage and transport). These risks could, should they materialise, cause damage to persons,
property and the environment.
Risk management mechanisms
To limit these risks, the Group complies with the safety measures prescribed by the laws and regulations in force,
implements good manufacturing and laboratory practices, and ensures the training of its employees. Its
manufacturing and research and development facilities are also inspected periodically by the appropriate authorities.

Risk of business interruption due to loss or unavailability of equipment
or strategic facilities
Risk factors
Like any industrial activity, Virbac production sites are exposed to the possibility of unforeseen incidents that may
result in the temporary suspension of production or permanent closure of the site.
These incidents are various types: fire, machine breakdown, explosion, natural disaster, contamination, malicious
acts or storage of hazardous materials.
Furthermore, considering the specific nature of the pharmaceutical industry, a national health authority may be
called upon in certain situations to impose an administrative business suspension. This may affect the Group’s ability
to achieve its goals depending on the potential length of such a suspension.
Risk management mechanisms
Virbac has implemented a process to ensure the safety of industrial facilities. The probability of such events as well
as their possible impact on the Group’s production and its results are thus limited by the following measures:
• buildings are in compliance with regulatory safety requirements (e.g. standardised fire detection systems on
the sites);
• annual audits of facilities are performed;
• insurers make preventive visits and audits;
• ongoing investments are made to improve and secure production-related operations activities.
In 2013, the Group set up a new structure by creating an Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department
with the aim of developing and making the production tool at Group level durable over time, on the one hand to
comply with all applicable local regulation and on the other, to create conditions for greater flexibility and synergy
with the different production sites within the Group. Furthermore, in the past two years, the Group has significantly
enhanced its industrial and quality assurance processes at the St. Louis site in the United States. Lastly, Virbac took
out an insurance policy for operating losses that also provides coverage for claims occurring among its suppliers.

HSE risks (Health, safety and environment)
Risk factors
As part of its activities, Virbac is subject to a set of regulations related to health, safety and environmental issues.
The majority of the production sites in France are subject to operating regulations issued by the supervisory authorities.
These regulations include requirements that all sites must meet regarding environmental matters including waste
management, the volume and quality of water discharges, and safety and risk prevention rules.
The operation regulations to which the company sites are subjected can be declarations or authorisations. No site is
subject to the regulations of the European Seveso directive.
Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines and financial burden and potentially lead to the closure
of a site by the administrative authorities.
Meanwhile, given the nature of its activity, the Group may have an impact on the environment even if it does not
cause visual, noise or odour pollution.
Finally, given the nature of Virbac’s industrial activities, the possibility of an accident occurring at work (either
conventional or related to the risk of contamination by products) cannot be ruled out even if the danger level of such
activities must be considered relative to other industries deemed to be more dangerous.

99

Risk management mechanisms
Protecting the environment and the safety of its employees are key priorities for the Group.
Virbac pays special attention to ensuring that its various sites comply with existing regulations. The Group has an
HSE department that is tasked with guiding and assisting its operational departments in developing and maintaining
an adequate level of protection of people and the environment. In tangible terms, the exposure of employees is
covered by specific measures presented on pages 60 to 62 of the sustainable development report:
• defining a clear and precise safety organisation;
• establishing a prevention policy and continuous improvement approach.
For this purpose, the Group has pursued the implementation of tools and means of support for all teams thanks to:
• Reflex Prevention approach (awareness and training of safety personnel);
• analysis of accidents at work as a performance indicator;
• medical evaluation before each recruitment (for instance in the United States).
Finally, HSE problems are taken into account during the due diligence of acquisition of new sites.
Information related to the HSE topic is provided on page 46 et seq. of the sustainable development report.

Legal risks
Virbac attaches special importance to the legal risk management, particularly given the complexity of the
competitive and regulatory environment and growth of the Group. The Legal department ensures proper
management of the legal risks in conjunction with the operational departments. The legal department oversees the
prevention and management of legal risks in conjunction with the Group’s other departments and operational teams.

Risks related to the maintenance of intellectual property rights
Risk factors
The Group’s success rests largely on its ability to obtain and effectively protect its intellectual property rights and, in
particular, its registration records, forms, technology and brands.
The risk incurred by the company is twofold: to have a competitor attack or use its intellectual property rights, and
to be sued for infringement by third-party rights holders.
Risk management mechanisms
The protection of the Group’s intellectual property relies on two departments working in close collaboration.
Within the R&D department, the patents team is responsible especially for:
• drafting and submitting patents related to innovative techniques or products;
• monitoring the competition in order to guard against abusive use of rights by a third party;
• analysing third party patents from the development phase onwards of new products in order to avoid
infringement on the part of Virbac.
The legal department oversees, across the Group, the selection, registration and protection of the various brands
and registered domain names, opposes third-party brands that may be infringing on the Group’s rights and manages
all disputes related to intellectual property. Moreover, the legal department established and put in place an
intellectual property rights protection policy that focuses on protecting registration records.

Risks related to regulatory changes
Risk factors
The regulatory risk lies first and foremost with Virbac’s exposure in terms of compliance with the various laws and
regulations to which the Group is bound in the various countries where it operates. Moreover, the Group may also be
exposed to a risk associated with both legislative and regulatory developments, in particular those regarding health
policies. Any change in the law and regulations can impact the results and the financial position of the Group.
Virbac must obtain and maintain the Marketing authorisations required for the manufacture and sale of its products.
Taking into account the international presence of the Group, these regulatory approvals are produced by authorities
or agencies established in many countries. The withdrawal of a previous authorisation or the failure to obtain an
authorisation for a new product can have a detrimental effect on operational results.
It should be noted that the pharmaceutical industry is subject to increased attention from authorities and the public,
which results in the regular issuance of tougher rules which govern it.
Risk management mechanisms
Each one of the Group’s functional and operational departments is responsible for implementing an ongoing
compliance and monitoring mechanism in order to identify any potential non-compliance situation or anticipate any
regulatory change that might impact the Group’s activities.
Where appropriate, each department may be required to rely on local experts in those countries where the Virbac
group distributes its products.
The Corporate Public Affairs department provides permanent monitoring of the pharmaceutical regulations to which
the Group is subject.
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Risk of legal action
Risk factors
Virbac is established worldwide. While conducting its activities, the Group is likely to be involved in litigation and
judicial, arbitral or administrative proceedings and Group actions anywhere in the world. All significant disputes are
assessed and managed systematically by the Legal department, assisted, if necessary, by external advice.
Risk management mechanisms
The Group considers that the provisions recorded in the accounts in respect of these matters are sufficient to cover
the exposed financial risk if convicted.
At the date of this annual report and to our knowledge, there is no current legal proceeding in which Virbac would be
threatened, which may have significant effects on the financial position or profitability of the Group.

Operational risks
By nature, the various activities of the Group covering the sector’s entire value chain exposes it to operational risks
of various kinds. Within the Group, the Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department as well as the
Corporate Sourcing department contribute to staving off associated risks.

Risks of dependence on third parties for supply or manufacturing of certain products
Risk factors
The majority of raw materials and active ingredients forming the composition of products manufactured by Virbac
are provided by third parties.
In certain cases, the Group also uses subcontractors or industrial partners who have expertise in or mastery of
particular technologies.
However, for certain supplies or certain technologies there exist situations where diversification is difficult or even
impossible, giving rise to a risk of supply outages or price pressures. These cases of mono-sourcing are structural
and characteristic of the pharmaceutical sector.
Risk management mechanisms
Suppliers are selected according to rigorous criteria. To the extent possible, Virbac diversifies its supply sources by
referencing several suppliers, while ensuring that these sources have sufficient quality and reliability characteristics.
To limit these risks, the Group expands as much as possible its search for diverse suppliers and can, in some cases,
secure its supply by acquiring the technologies and capabilities that it lacks and which produce excessive dependence.
Whatever the solution adopted, the Group systematically ensures upstream the sustainability of the source.
In addition, Virbac regularly updates mapping of its major suppliers, including contract reviews and possible
alternative sources.

Risks related to safety and reliability of information systems
Risk factors
The Group’s business is based in part on tightly integrated information systems. The failure of one of these systems
could directly impact Virbac’s business and profits. Other risk factors may be envisaged such as intrusion, piracy,
theft of knowledge, know-how or confidential information, shut-down of one or more systems following a computer
failure, obsolescence of a part of the IT system (application, server, etc.) as well as regulatory developments
particularly linked to the Internet (licences and copyright, personal data, etc.).
Risk management mechanisms
The Group Information Systems department (DSI) ensures the ongoing security of the information system networks.
The areas processed are:
• organisation and general security of information systems;
• physical security (intrusion, accidents);
• networks (local, remote, internet);
• the availability of applications and data.
The DSI regularly develops and updates all measures to preserve the confidentiality of data, protect systems against
intrusion and minimise the risk of interruption of service (back-up, redundancy and server backup procedures,
disaster recovery plan, and so forth).
In addition, an IT systems-use code is applied to all Group employees.
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Financial risks
Policy management of financial risk is controlled centrally by the Group’s Financial Affairs department and in
particular its Treasury and Financing department.
Strategies for financing, investment, and interest and exchange rate risk hedging are systematically reviewed and
monitored by the Financial Affairs department. The transactions carried out by local teams are also managed and
monitored by the Group’s Treasury and Financing department.
The holding of financial instruments is conducted with the sole purpose of reducing exposure to exchange rate and
interest rate risks and has no speculation purpose.

Market risks
Exchange risks



Risk factors
The currency risk arises from the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on the Group’s financial flows when carrying
out its activities. Due to its strong international presence, the Group is exposed to the foreign exchange risk on
transactions, and the foreign exchange risk on the conversion of the financial statements of its foreign subsidiaries.



Risk management mechanisms
The Group’s policy is to hedge foreign currency risk on transactions when the extent of exposure and the risk of
currency fluctuations are high. Accordingly, it uses various instruments available on the market and generally
employs foreign exchange forwards or options. The details associated with this risk are presented in the note A30 to
the consolidated financial statements.
Interest rate risks



Risk factors
The Group’s income statement may be impacted by the interest rate risk. Indeed, unfavourable rate changes can
also have a negative impact on the Group’s financing costs and future cash flows.
The exposure of the Group to the interest rate risk arises from the fact that the Group’s debt consists mainly of
credit lines and variable rate loans; the cost of debt can therefore increase if interest rates rise.



Risk management mechanisms
To manage these risks and optimise the cost of its debt, the Group monitors developments and market rate
expectations and limits its exposure by establishing interest rate hedges, with instruments available on the market
such as caps or swaps of interest rates (fixed rate) not exceeding the length and value of its actual commitments.
The details associated with this risk are presented in the note A30 to the consolidated financial statements.
Liquidity risk



Risk factors
Liquidity is defined by the Group’s capacity to meet its financial payment deadlines within its current activity and to
find new sources of financing as needed, and in this way guarantee ongoing balance of its income and expenditure.
As part of its operations, its programme of recurring investments and active policy of external growth, the Group is
also exposed to the risk of not being sufficiently liquid to fund its growth and development.



Risk management mechanisms
The policy of pooling surplus cash and funding needs in all areas helps to refine the Group’s net position and to
optimise the management of investments and funding requirements, ensuring Virbac’s ability to meet its financial
commitments and maintain an optimal level of availability commensurate with its size and needs.
As part of its specific review of liquidity risk, the Group regularly conducts a specific review of its liquidity risk and
made a waiver application (waiver) at the end of the third quarter of 2016 in anticipation of a breach of the debt
covenant. This waiver was accepted during the fourth quarter of 2016 for all bank debt and part of the marketbased funding; the breach of covenant recorded as at December 31, 2016 is thus authorised and the level of
covenant that will be measured during the financial year 2017 has been amended and revised upward, ensuring
integration of the 2017 outlook. The financial ratio calculated as at December 31, 2016 amounted to 4.88 (4.35
at constant rates) in keeping with the new covenant, which must not exceed 5.5 (compared to 4.5 prior to the
waiver request).
Virbac also had its financial covenant compliance clause relaxed for 2017: the level that will be measured during this
financial year has been amended and revised upward, ensuring integration of the 2017 outlook. It should be below
5.5 at the end of June 2017 and below 4.75 at the end of December 2017. The acquisition of this waiver request was
accompanied by a moderate increase in the margin and commission amounting to €0.4 million.
The market-based contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac received no waiver were
reclassified to other current financial liabilities. The total amount reclassified as current owing as at December 31,
2016 was €70.4 million (€50.0 million and $21.5 million). Repayments were made in January 2017. The
company’s cash and financial resources are sufficient to fund its cash requirements.
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Other financial risks
Fraud risks



Risk factors
The Group could still be the victim of internal or external fraud that could lead to financial losses and affect the
Group’s reputation.



Risk management mechanisms
Virbac seeks to strengthen internal control and attaches particular importance to raising its team’s awareness of
these issues. The Group and, in particular, the corporate functions regularly give strong guidance and directions in
this matter. Segregation of duties, as well as a central management control mechanism and the appointment of
regional controllers help strengthen control and reduce the probability of such practices occurring. Upon acquiring
new companies, the latter are integrated into these mechanisms designed to prevent unethical practices.
Virbac has proceeded with training and roll-out of best practices processes that are intended to, among other things,
prevent the risk of fraud.
Virbac’s Code of conduct underscores the Group’s commitment to pursue its activities in accordance with the law and
ethics, and also defines the nature of the relationships Virbac wishes to have with its partners.
Credit risk



Risk factors
Credit risk may materialise when the Group grants credit through payment terms to customers. The risk of
insolvency, or even of failure for some of them can cause a repayment failure and thereby negatively impact the
Group’s income statement and its net cash position. The impact can be felt at the level of the payment (lack of
payment of services or deliveries made, accounts receivable risk) and of the delivery (failure to deliver services or
supplies paid, accounts payable risk).



Risk management mechanisms
The Group limits the negative consequences of this type of risk through a very high fragmentation and dispersion of
its clients across all countries where it operates. The Treasury and Financing department advises, according to the
rules in force, the uses, the ratings, the limits imposed by the credit insurance, and the fixed and maximum
payment deadlines, and sets the credit limits for customers to be applied by the operational entities. The Treasury
and Financing department manages and oversees these credit aspects at the level of the French entities for which it
has direct responsibility and it advises these same practices via guidelines and best practices at the level of the
Group. In addition, there is a Group credit insurance framework agreement which any subsidiary for which this type
of risk has been identified enjoys or can benefit from. The details of this risk are presented in note A30 of the
consolidated financial statements.
Counterparty risk



Risk factors
The Group is exposed to counterparty risk within its contracts and the financial instruments it buys, in the event that
the debtor refuses to honour all or part of his commitment or finds himself in fine unable to do so.



Risk management mechanisms
The Group pays particular attention to the choice of banking entities which it uses, and is even more critical when it
comes to investing available cash.
Nevertheless Virbac believes it has limited exposure to counterparty risk given the quality of its major
counterparties. Indeed, investments are only made with banking institutions of the highest order. The details of this
risk are presented in note A30 of the consolidated financial statements.
Hedge accounting



Risk factors
The purpose of hedge accounting is to offset the impact of the hedged component and the hedge instrument in the
income statement. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, all hedging relationships must satisfy a series of
stringent conditions in terms of documentation, likelihood of occurrence, effectiveness of the hedge and
measurement reliability.



Risk management mechanisms
The Group only engages in hedging transactions designed to hedge actual or certain exposure; it does not create
speculative risk.
Nevertheless, due to the constraints imposed by the documentation of hedging relationships, the Group has elected
to only classify derivatives it holds at the balance sheet date as hedges for accounting purposes where the impact on
the consolidated financial statements is truly material and where the hedging relationship can be demonstrated.
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Insurance and risk coverage
General coverage policy

The Group’s insurance policy is underpinned by a risk prevention and protection approach specific to Virbac’s activities.
Virbac regularly reviews its insurable risks and financial coverage with the assistance of an international broker who
is part of an integrated network. In this regard, all contracts have been harmonised at Group level, and the parent
company provides assistance and support to the subsidiaries as part of its international insurance programs for the
establishment of local insurance policies.
The broker ensures coordination and control of these programs in conjunction with its local contacts. Insurable risks
are covered by Group insurance policies with a level of coverage that the Group deems appropriate given its
circumstances, barring any wholly unforeseeable events.

Insurance programmes

The international damage and business interruption insurance program, as well as the general third-party liability
and product liability insurance programme, cover the entire Group.
A single Group-wide international transport insurance programme covers all goods transported across the globe
under the responsibility of Virbac or its subsidiaries.
The Group uses leading insurers for all its insurance programmes. The coverage levels were set on the basis of the
Group’s risk profile. Despite unequal local resources, this centralisation of risks provides a better level of protection
for all Group entities, while realising economies of scale.
Property, buildings and equipment are insured against damage based on full replacement value, purchase price or
production cost of merchandise and operating losses based on the loss of gross margin.
The Group’s main production facilities are subject to an inspection and prevention programme conducted by the insurance
company’s department of risk assessment and prevention as part of the damage and operational losses programme.
The Group does not have a captive insurance or reinsurance company.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
The full sustainable development report (on pages 24 to 76) sets out the Group’s values and guiding principles with
regard to social, economic and environmental matters. This report provides information related to climate change,
pursuant to the Law on energy transition for growth.
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GOVERNING, MANAGEMENT
AND MONITORING BODIES
Supervisory board
It has six members, three of whom are independent (in accordance with the criteria of the Afep-Medef corporate
governance code described in the report of the current chairwoman of the supervisory board): Philippe Capron,
Olivier Bohuon and Grita Loebsack.
Marie-Hélène Dick
Chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1998.
Current term ends: 2019.
Aged 52, a doctor of veterinary medicine and holder of an MBA from the HEC business school, Marie-Hélène Dick
was appointed chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board in April 2006.
Other positions held:
• chairwoman and chief executive officer of Okelen, SA (France);
• permanent representative of Okelen, chairing Panmedica, SAS (France);
• chairwoman of the board of directors of Panpharma, SA (France);
• associate manager of the société civile immobilière Ilouet (France);
• executive officer of the Panpharma Australia Pty Limited company (Australia);
• executive officer of the Panpharma UK Limited company (United Kingdom);
• co-manager of the société civile immobilière Samakeur (France);
• manager of the société civile immobilière Investec (France).
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 1,635.
Jeanine Dick
Vice-chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1992.
Current term ends: 2017.
Aged 80, widow of the founder Pierre-Richard Dick, Jeanine Dick was chairwoman of Virbac’s supervisory board for a
number of years.
Other positions held: none
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 8,020.
Pierre Madelpuech
Permanent representative of Asergi, a member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 1995 (individually) and 2005 (as permanent representative of Asergi).
Current term ends: 2018.
Aged 56, Pierre Madelpuech is an Ensam engineering graduate and holds an MBA from the HEC business school.
Other positions held:
• manager of Asergi, SARL (France);
• director of Panpharma, SA (France);
• director of Okelen, SA (France);
• chief executive officer of Panmedica, SAS (France);
• manager of Arteis Developpement, SARL (France);
• chief executive officer of RPG, SAS (France);
• co-manager of the société civile immobilière Igresa (France);
• manager of Art’Pro, SARL (France);
• manager of Crearef, SARL (France);
• manager of Crea Négoce, SARL (France);
• manager of Color’I, SARL (France);
• manager of the société civile immobilière P2LM (France);
• chairman of Fran Angelico, SASU (France).
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016 via Asergi: 10.
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Philippe Capron
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 2004.
Current term ends: 2019.
Aged 58, a graduate of the HEC business school and the Institut d’Études Politiques de Paris, Philippe Capron is an
alumnus of the Ena and was previously a finance inspector.
Other positions held in the Veolia Group:
• director of Transdev Group (France);
• director of Veolia Energie International (France);
• director representing the founding members of Fondation d’Entreprise Veolia Environnement (corporate
foundation) (France);
• chairman of Veolia Environnement Services RE (France);
• member of the supervisory board of Veolia Eau – Compagnie Générale des Eaux (France);
• director of the Institut Veolia (France);
• director of Veolia Environnement UK Ltd (United Kingdom);
• chairman of the board of Veolia North America Inc (United States);
• deputy general manager of Veolia Environnement (France);
• director of Econocom Group SA/NV (Belgium).
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 442.
Olivier Bohuon
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
French.
Date of first appointment: 2011.
Current term ends: 2017.
Aged 56, doctor in pharmacy and MBA graduate of the HEC business school, Olivier Bohuon is a member of the
National Pharmacy Academy and the Academy of Technologies.
Other positions held:
• director of Smith&Nephew Plc (United Kingdom);
• director of HealthCare Promise Investments partners SA (Luxembourg);
• director of the Shire PLC company (Ireland).
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 45.
Grita Loebsack
Member of Virbac’s supervisory board.
German.
Date of first appointment: 2014.
Current term ends: 2018.
Aged 45, with a London School of Economics degree and an MBA at INSEAD.
Other positions held in Kering Group:
• non-voting advisor of Kering (France);
• director of Balenciaga SA (France);
• director of Autumn Paper Ltd (United Kingdom);
• director of Christopher Kane Ltd (United Kingdom);
• director of Brioni SpA (Italy);
• director of Stella McCartney Ltd (United Kingdom);
• director of Tomas Maier Holding LLC (United States).
Other positions held:
• director of Altuzarra LLC (United States).
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 10.

Non-voting advisor
Company XYC represented by Xavier Yon, 76 years old, a graduate of the Faculté des Sciences de Paris and the
Harvard Business School, formerly president and CEO of Laboratoires Galderma, Xavier Yon has been a member of
the supervisory board, either personally or as a legal representative of the XYC company, from 2004 until end 2013.
The XYC company was appointed non-voting advisor by the shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016, for a period of
one year with an option to renew.
Current term ends: 2017.

Policy of staggered terms for supervisory board members

At its meeting of March 18, 2014, the supervisory board decided to stagger the terms of its members in order to
comply with the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code. The members of the supervisory board endorsed the
principle of the resignation of some members for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 in order to enable the assembly to re-elect
them and quickly reach a balanced staggering of the terms. This is the reason why Jeanine Dick, vice-chairwoman of
the supervisory board, had submitted her resignation to the supervisory board of March 18, 2014, effective from the
day of the June 17, 2014 shareholders’ meeting to approve the financial statements, and that the proposal of her
appointment as member of the supervisory board for a new three-year term was approved by the shareholders’
meeting of June 17, 2014. For the same reason, Grita Loebsack and the Asergi company, represented by Pierre
Madelpuech, submitted their resignations to the supervisory board meeting of March 13, 2015, with effect from the day
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of the shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2015 which reappointed them as members of the supervisory board for three
years. The terms of office of Marie-Hélène Dick and Philippe Capron were renewed for three years by the shareholder’s
meeting held on June 24, 2016. The terms of office of Jeanine Dick and Olivier Bohuon will expire at the next meeting,
renewal of their terms of office for a period of three years will be proposed at the next shareholder’s meeting.

Executive board
Éric Marée
Chairman of Virbac’s executive board.
Aged 64, a graduate of the HEC business school and holder of an MBA from Cornell University, Eric Marée joined
Virbac in October 1999 and has been chairman of the executive board since December that year.
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• chairman of Interlab (France), SAS (France);
• chairman of Virbac Corporation (United States);
• director of Virbac Limited (United Kingdom).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 9,460.
Christian Karst
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 58, a doctor of veterinary medicine, Christian Karst joined Virbac in 1984. He has been a member of the
executive board since December 1996 and general manager since September 9, 2013.
Other positions held:
• manager of of the société civile immobilière Karst (France).
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• director of Virbac Limited (United Kingdom);
• director of Holding Salud Animal S.A. (Chile);
• director of Bioanimal Corp. S.A. (Chile);
• director of Productos Quimicos Ehlinger S.A. (Chile);
• director of the Asia Pharma Limited company (Hong Kong).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 5,400.
Sébastien Huron
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 46, a veterinarian, Sébastien Huron joined Virbac in 2006. He has been a member of the executive board since
December 2012.
Other positions held:
• manager of the société civile immobilière P.A.T.H (France).
Other terms performed at subsidiaries of Virbac:
• chairman of Bio Véto Test, SAS (France);
• chairman of Virbac Hellas S.A. (Greece);
• director of Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited (India);
• director of the Holding Salud Animal S.A. (Chile);
• director of Bioanimal Corp. S.A. (Chile);
• director of Productos Quimicos Ehlinger S.A. (Chile).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 720.
Habib Ramdani
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 41, Habib Ramdani, a graduate of the École Centrale de Paris, was appointed Chief Financial Officer deputy as of
February 1, 2016 and subsequently Chief Financial Officer as of April 1, 2016.
Other positions held:
• director of Asia Pharma Limited (Hong Kong);
• permanent representative of Virbac, director of Virbac Chile Spa (Chile);
• permanent representative of Virbac, director of Virbac Patagonia Limitada (Chile).
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: none.
Jean-Pierre Dick
Member of the executive board of Virbac.
Aged 51, Jean-Pierre Dick is a doctor of veterinary medicine and holds an MBA from the HEC business school. He has
been a member of the executive board since December 1996.
Other positions held:
• chairman of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac;
• manager of Absolute Dreamer SARL+;
co-manager of the Terre Du Large, société civile immobilière.
Current term ends: December 2017.
Number of shares held at December 31, 2016: 880.
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COMPENSATION OF THE MEMBERS
OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND
THE NON-VOTING ADVISOR
IN RESPECT OF 2016
Payment policy for directors’ fees to members of the supervisory board
According to the Afep-Medef Code, directors’ fees should be distributed taking into account directors’ effective
participation in committees, and should be primarily variable.
The company does not consider it necessary to implement this recommendation from the Afep-Medef Code. It appears
unwise to the company to link the payment of attendance fees predominantly based on the presence of members of the
supervisory board in its meetings, since the involvement of the members of the supervisory board in the oversight of the
company activities is not limited to their participation in the formal periodic discussions of the supervisory board. The
duration of the supervisory board’s meetings, which last a full day, and the rate of participation of its members, enable us
to state that the attendance of the members of the supervisory board can be ensured without recourse to a mechanism of
complex distribution of attendance fees. It should be noticed that the supervisory board decided to allocate a greater
compensation to Philippe Capron due to his duties as chairman of the audit committee.
A summary table on pages 131 and 132 lists the provisions of the Afep-Medef Code not adopted by the company
and explains the reasons for this.
In accordance with the provisions of the 2016-1691 act of December 9, 2016, the elements of this compensation
policy will be submitted to the vote of Virbac's next shareholder's meeting.
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Table on director's fees and other compensation received by members of the
supervisory board and the non-voting advisor
In accordance with the Afep-Medef recommendations, the table below presents the directors’ fees and other
compensation granted to the members of the supervisory board and the non-voting advisor.
2016

2015

Value paid out during
the year

Value paid out during
the year

Directors' fees

21,000

21,000

Other compensation (chairwoman of Virbac's supervisory board)

95,000

95,000

12,000

12,000

-

-

21,000

21,000

-

-

24,000

24,000

-

-

21,000

21,000

-

-

21,000

21,000

-

-

21,000

21,000

-

-

236,000

236,000

en €
Marie-Hélène Dick

Jeanine Dick
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Pierre Madelpuech
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Philippe Capron
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Olivier Bohuon
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Grita Loebsack
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Non-voting advisor, Company XYC represented by Xavier Yon
Directors' fees
Other compensation
Total

109

COMPENSATION OF THE MEMBERS
OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD IN RESPECT OF 2016
Policy on compensation paid to members of the executive board
The supervisory board, through its compensation committee, establishes the policy on compensation paid to members
of the executive board, on the basis of the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code currently in force.
The supervisory board ensures that the compensation is comprehensive, balanced between its various components,
consistent and easy to understand.
The supervisory board also ensures that the compensation is aligned with market practices and the interests of
shareholders, while taking into account the reality of the tasks performed and the company’s corporate interest.
It was pointed out that, in accordance with the provisions of French law n°2016-1691 of December 9, 2016, all
components of the executive board member compensation policy will be submitted to a vote at Virbac’s next
shareholder’s meeting.

Fixed compensation

The fixed compensation of the executive board members reflects the responsibilities, experience and assigned tasks.
It changes on an annual basis. Annual change is slight and in compliance with the consistency principle set out in the
Afep-Medef Code.

Variable compensation
Each executive board member has a variable compensation target that is a percentage of his fixed compensation
and that is consistent with the company’s compensation practices.
The board sets out the criteria for determining the variable compensation of executive board members as well as the targets.
It ensures that criteria and objectives are aligned with Virbac's strategic key issues and the objectives to be achieved. It
focuses on quantitative criteria with qualitative criteria which, where they exist, underlie a limited part of the variable
compensation. Finally, the supervisory board is aware to ensure that the criteria are intelligible and simple.
Thus, the main financial criteria used by the supervisory board are:
• Group revenue growth;
• Group current operating income growth;
• changes in liquidity indicators (i.e. inventory control).

Long term compensation
Since 2006, in accordance with the authorisation of the shareholders' meeting, the executive board has granted to
managers or comparable employees of Virbac and its subsidiary a compensation a long-term compensation in the
form of performance-related stock grants. These compensation mechanisms are designed to encourage managers to
integrate their actions in the long term, but also to build loyalty and align their interests with the company's social
interest and the interests of shareholders.
The supervisory board, by way of resolution, grants the executive board the authority to award performance-related
stock grants while setting out the general framework. Thus, the supervisory board limits the total number of
performance-related stock grants that may be allocated to employees as well as to members of the executive board.
The executive board, as authorised by the shareholder’s meeting, determines the identity of the recipient executives
and the number of performance-related stock grants to be distributed by ensuring that the allocation is in proportion
to the fixed and variable portion. The executive board ensures that the allocation of shares are depending to the
achievement of targets aligned with the company’s strategic key issues.
The procedures regarding the retention period for managers are: 35% of the shares acquired by the chairman of the
executive board and 25% for the other company officers may not be sold for as long as they exercise an activity
within the Group. This restriction will nonetheless be lifted where the corporate officers have established a Virbac
share portfolio representing two years’ target annual compensation (target gross salary and bonus), except for the
chairman for whom this amount is set at three years’ target compensation.
These allocation of shares are depending of the achievement of a performance target. Performances looked at are
not linked to the performance of other companies or a sector benchmark sector because there are very few reliable
comparisons, most companies with operations similar to those of Virbac being either unlisted or divisions of major
listed pharmaceutical groups.
It should be pointed out that the performance conditions to be met for the acquisition of performance-related stock
grants are measured against the consolidated operating income and the Group’s consolidated net liabilities at the close
of the second full financial year following the plan’s start date. Therefore, these components consider the Group’s
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performance over more than two financial years, but performance is not evaluated periodically throughout the plan, as
specified by the Code.
If the target is met, all of the shares in question are vested. If the target is not met, but the result is at least equal
to 95%, half of the shares in question are vested. The other half of the shares are vested on a prorated basis
according to the percentage of target met between 95% and 100%. For some plans, if 95% of the target is not met
at the end of the second year, but rather 80% of the target is met at the end of the third year, half of the projected
shares shall be vested.
Exceptions to the Afep-Medef Code recommendations on the performance-related stock grants that were not used
by the company are explained in a table on pages 131 and 132 of the report.

Other benefits

In addition to the various compensation items, executive board members enjoy the benefits described below.
Retirement
The executive board chairman Éric Marée, the chief executive officer Christian Karst and Jean-Pierre Dick enjoy a
supplementary defined benefit pension plan (12.5% of reference salary and 22.0% in the event of over 30 years of
service) granted on the following terms:
• over ten years service in the Group (including nine years as a member of the executive board);
• be at least 60;
• finish his career in the Group.
The reference period corresponds to the five years prior to the executive board member turning 60.
The supervisory board does not wish to apply one of the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code regarding the
supplementary pension scheme, which recommends that the group of beneficiaries must be materially broader than
the sole executive directors. Virbac’s policy consists in granting a supplementary pension only to the members of the
executive board for three reasons:
• firstly, the supplementary pensions granted this way are of a controlled amount and subject to the potential
beneficiaries meeting several conditions;
• secondly, expanding the category of beneficiaries is not deemed desirable based on the growing tax weight
within this mechanism;
• finally, Virbac has established a well-balanced social policy for all employees in terms of welfare, voluntary profit
sharing and savings (company savings plan, collective retirement savings plan, employer contribution, etc.).
In addition, the company goes beyond the Afep-Medef recommendations as regards the amount and the increase in
potential rights since they only represent 12.5% of the benchmark amount for seniority of between 10 and 30 years
and are limited to 22% for seniority of more than 30 years.
A summary table on pages 131 and 132 lists the provisions of the Afep-Medef Code not adopted by the company
and explains the reasons for this.
Severance pay
The commitments made by the company and the companies it controls to its managers in the event that their duties
are terminated are as follows:
• Éric Marée: €483,000;
• Christian Karst: €326,000.
On December 17, 2014 the supervisory board reappointed the executive board members for a three-year term. In
line with the provisions of the act of August 21, 2007, the supervisory board, at its March 13, 2015 meeting,
renewed the commitments made by the company and the companies it controls in the event of the termination of
the offices of Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board and of Christian Karst, executive board member and chief
executive officer.
It is stated that:
• the commitments made by the company in the event of termination of office of its directors were adopted by
the general shareholders’ meeting of June 18, 2012. They correspond to the same conditions set out by the
supervisory board at its meeting of December 22, 2008, i.e. termination benefits can only be paid if the
departure is imposed by the company. They are not owed in the event of resignation, retirement or serious
misconduct by the company officers involved;
• the fulfilment of the severance pay performance criteria is assessed over the two half-year periods that
precede the director’s departure, and not a minimum of two years, as advocated in the Code. However, the
amount of this severance pay is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation provided under
the Code and the performance criteria are demanding (current operating income to revenue ratio equal to or
higher than 7%).
Non-competition payments
The chairman of the executive board is the sole member of the executive board to receive a non-competition
payment, which was granted to him when he joined the Group in 1999. The amount of this payment is equal to 60%
of the fixed compensation received during the twelve-month period prior to his departure and is paid out over a
period of eighteen months.
The sum of non-competition and severance payments is less than the two-year fixed and variable compensation
ceiling, as set out in the Afep-Medef Code.
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Summary of compensation paid to members of the executive board
In accordance with the Afep-Medef recommendations, a summary of all types of compensation granted to members
of the executive board is presented below and detailed in the following tables:

Gross value due in respect of 2016
Compensation Value of stock options
due in respect
granted in 2016
of 2016

in €
Éric Marée

480,644

Christian Karst

Total
compensation

-

-

480,644

370,111

-

185,050

555,161

80,801

-

-

80,801

Habib Ramdani

147,716

-

74,020

221,736

Sébastien Huron

318,051

-

185,050

503,101

Jean-Pierre Dick

55,554

-

-

55,554

Compensation Value of stock options
due in respect
granted in 2015
of 2015

Value of stock
grants awarded
for 2015 *

Total
compensation

Michel Garaudet2
3

1

based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements

2

until April 30, 2016, date of his retirement
from June 23, 2016, date he joined the executive board

3

Value of stock
grants awarded
for 20161

Gross value due in respect of 2015

in €
Éric Marée

460,088

-

-

460,088

Christian Karst

335,911

-

-

335,911

Michel Garaudet

262,498

-

-

262,498

Sébastien Huron

291,476

-

-

291,476

Jean-Pierre Dick

41,781

-

-

41,781

* based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements

Summary chart of compensation of members of the executive board
Gross compensation Éric Marée
Financial Year 2015

Financial Year 2016

in €
Fixed compensation
Variable compensation

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

340,472

340,472

332,976

332,976

62,556

50,000

50,000

198,500

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

74,528

74,528

74,024

74,024

Benefits in kind

3,088

3,088

3,088

3,088

480,644

468,088

460,088

608,588

Extraordinary compensation

Total
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Gross compensation Christian Karst
Financial Year 2016

in €
Fixed compensation
Variable compensation

Financial Year 2015

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

265,000

265,000

238,000

238,000

57,200

50,000

50,000

109,600

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

45,000

45,000

45,000

45,000

Benefits in kind

2,911

2,911

2,911

2,911

370,111

362,911

335,911

395,511

Extraordinary compensation

Total

Gross compensation Michel Garaudet*
Financial Year 2015

Financial Year 2016
Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

65,016

65,016

195,048

195,048

-

50,000

50,000

61,500

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

14,952

14,952

14,952

14,952

Benefits in kind

833

833

2,498

2,498

80,801

130,801

262,498

273,998

Financial Year 2015
Value paid out
during the year

in €
Fixed compensation
Variable compensation
Extraordinary compensation

Total
*Until April 30,2016, date of his retirement

Michel Garaudet also received in 2016 a retirement indemnity of € 60,125.

Gross compensation Habib Ramdani*

Value due for
the year

Financial Year 2016
Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

109,016

109,016

-

-

38,700

-

-

-

Extraordinary compensation

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

-

-

-

-

Benefits in kind

-

-

-

-

147,716

109,016

-

-

in €
Fixed compensation
Variable compensation

Total

* from June 23, 2016, date he joined the executive board
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Gross compensation Sébastien Huron
Financial Year 2016

in €
Fixed compensation
Variable compensation

Financial Year 2015

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

245,000

245,000

215,000

215,000

46,575

50,000

50,000

96,000

-

-

-

-

Directors' fees

25,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

Benefits in kind

1,476

1,476

1,476

1,476

318,051

321,476

291,476

337,476

Extraordinary compensation

Total

Gross compensation Jean-Pierre Dick
Financial Year 2015

Financial Year 2016
Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Value due for
the year

Value paid out
during the year

Fixed compensation

41,000

41,000

41,000

41,000

Variable compensation

13,773

-

-

16,000

-

-

-

in €

Extraordinary compensation

-

Directors' fees

-

-

-

-

Benefits in kind

781

781

781

781

55,554

41,781

41,781

57,781

Total

Calculation criteria for the variable portion

For 2016, the allocation criteria for the variable portion of the executive board compensation were fixed as follows:
• growth in the Group’s sales, accounting for 50% of the potential variable part for Eric Marée, Michel Garaudet
and Sébastien Huron, 40% for Christian Karst and 15% for Jean-Pierre Dick;
• growth in the Group’s current operating income before depreciation and research & development costs as well
as regulatory and licensing costs, accounting for 40% for Eric Marée, Michel Garaudet and Christian Karst, 30%
for Sébastien Huron and 15% for Jean-Pierre Dick;
• growth in current aquaculture operating income, accounting for 10% for Christian Karst;
• growth in current operating income before business depreciation, accounting for 10% for Sébastien Huron;
• company and product acquisitions, licensing agreement, accounting for 20% for Christian Karst;
• sales-to-inventory ratio, accounting for 10% for Eric Marée, Michel Garaudet and Sébastien Huron;
• brand reputation score and implementation of customer relations programme, each representing 35% for
Jean-Pierre Dick.
In respect of 2016, the maximum potential variable portion of the executive board members’ compensation
accounted for, as a percentage of their respective fixed compensation:
• 63.4% for Éric Marée;
• 58.5% for Christian Karst;
• 55.9% for Habib Ramdani;
• 59.2% for Sébastien Huron;
• 42.7% for Jean-Pierre Dick.
For the 2016 financial year, members of the executive board should receive the following variable compensation:
• Éric Marée: €62,556 accounting for 18.4% of his fixed compensation;
• Christian Karst: €57,200 accounting for 21.6% of his fixed compensation;
• Habib Ramdani: €38,700 accounting for 35.5% of his fixed compensation since he joined the executive
board;
• Sébastien Huron: €46,575 accounting for 19.0% of his fixed compensation;
• Jean-Pierre Dick: €13,773 accounting for 33.6% of his fixed compensation.
For more information, see pages 110 to 114.
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Share options or share purchase
The company has no share options or share purchase scheme.

Performance-related stock grants
Allocated performance-related stock grants

Due to the non-achievement of objectives, the 2012 performance-related stock grants plan, which initially matured
in 2014, was not allocated. The supervisory board decided to extend the maturity date to December 31, 2016.
Similarly, if performance conditions are not met in 2019, the distribution date of the performance-related stock
grants of the 2016 plan may be extended to 2020.
It should be noted that:
• throughout the 2013, 2014 and 2015 financial years, no performance-related stock grants were granted;
• throughout the 2014 and 2015 financial years, no performance-related stock grants were distributed under
the 2011 and 2012 plans.

Summary table of performance-related stock grants allocations awarded
to the members of the executive board

The chart below is based on five years of historical data (2012 to 2016).
Throughout the 2013, 2014 and 2015 financial years, no performance-related stock grants were granted.

Plan 2012 - 26/06/2012

Number of
shares
granted

Value of
shares 1

Vesting
date

Date
released2

1,130

€135,148

2015

2017

1,130

€135,148

Performance
conditions3

Plan 2016 - 15/09/2016
Shares granted to Éric Marée
Plan 2012 - 26/06/2012

820

€98,072

2015

2017

Plan 2016 - 15/09/2016

1,000

€185,050

2019

2021

Shares granted to Christian Karst

1,820

€283,122

510

€60,996

2015

2017

Shares granted to Michel Garaudet

510

€60,996

Plan 2012 - 26/06/2012

520

€62,192

2015

2017

2019

2021

2019

2021

Plan 2012 - 26/06/2012
Plan 2016 - 15/09/2016

Plan 2016 - 15/09/2016

1,000

€185,050

Shares granted to Sébastien Huron

1,520

€247,242

Plan 2012 - 26/06/2012
Plan 2016 - 15/09/2016

400

€74,020

Shares granted to Habib Ramdani

400

€74,020

5,380

€800,528

Shares granted to
executive board members
1

based on the method used for the consolidated financial statements

2

except in part: refer to stock grant plans chapter above

3

performance linked to the profitability and net debt of the Group ascertained on fiscal year prior to the acquisition year

The June 24, 2016 shareholders’ meeting adopted a resolution to extend for a new 38 months period the possibility
of allocating company performance-related stock grants, in compliance with the provisions of article L225-197-1 et
seq., of the French commercial code.
This resolution allows for performance-related stock grants to be awarded to managers or comparable employees, or
certain categories thereof, as well as to the corporate officers referred to in article L225-197-1 of the French
commercial code, both for Virbac and the companies that are either directly or indirectly associated with it according
to article L225-197-2 of the French commercial code.
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The total number of performance-related stock grants awarded cannot represent more than 1.0% of the share capital
of Virbac. It is also pointed out that the number of performance-related stock grants awarded to the members of the
executive board, during the term of the authorisation, may not exceed 0.5% of the capital as of the day of the award.
The allocation is done without dilution, with the company buying the number of necessary shares on the market. As for
the former authorisation, free allocations of performance-related stock grants will only be definitive at the end of a twoyear acquisition period, and then the securities should be retained equally for at least two years after the end of the
acquisition period. The executive board determines the identity of the beneficiaries as well as the conditions and the
criteria for allocating shares that are linked to the increase in performance of the Group.
The executive board members have undertaken not to resort to hedging transactions for their risk of performancerelated stock grants, until the end of the share lock-in period set by the supervisory board.

Performance –related stock grants distributed throughout the year

In 2016, no performance-related stock grants plan reached its term. Consequently, no performance-related stock
grants were distributed over the course of the financial year.

Performance-related stock grants vested throughout the year

In 2016, the 2011 performance-related stock grants plan was partly vested (see the explanation on the methods
related to the lock-in period on pages 110-111). Details regarding the performance-related stock grants vested per
executive board member are shown below:
Plan number
and date

Number of shares
vested

Éric Marée

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

748

Christian Karst

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

615

Michel Garaudet

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

383

Sébastien Huron

Plan 2011 - 29/06/2011

416

Total number of shares

Acquisition
conditions*

2,162

* The supervisory board has not set any number of shares to be acquired upon the availability of the allocated shares.
See also the explanation in the table on pages 131 and 132 of the report.
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History of performance-related stock grants

The chart below is based on five years of historical data (2012 to 2016).
Throughout the 2013, 2014 and 2015 financial years, no performance-related stock grants were allocated.

Plan 2012

Plan 2016

Date of the meeting

19/06/2009

24/06/2016

Supervisory board meeting date

05/03/2012

15/09/2016

10,000

12,150

Total number of shares allotted, including the number allotted to:
Éric Marée

1,130

-

Christian Karst

820

1,000

Michel Garaudet

510

-

Sébastien Huron

520

1,000

Habib Ramdani

400

Acquisition date of the shares

2015

2019

Retention period end date *

2017

2021

Stock grant conditions

Performance linked to the profitability and net debt of the
Group ascertained on fiscal year prior to the acquisition year

Number of shares acquired on 31/01/2017
Number of shares cancelled or void

-

-

2,980

-

-

-

Stock grants remaining at the end of the fiscal year
* except in part: refer to stock grant plans chapter above

Multi-annual variable compensation
Members of the executive board do not receive a multi-annual variable compensation.
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Contracts, plans and compensation
Managers corporate officers

Employment
contract

Supplementary
pension plan if
conditions fulfilled

Compensation or Compensation due
other benefits due
to a nonor likely to be due
competition
following the term of
clause
due to change in
function

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

No

No

No

Suspended

Yes

No

No

Yes

No

No

No

Éric Marée
Position :
chairman of the executive board
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Christian Karst
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Sébastien Huron
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Jean-Pierre Dick
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : December 2014
Term end date : December 2017
Habib Ramdani
Position :
executive board member
Term start date : June 23, 2016
Term end date : December 2017

118

MANAGEMENT REPORT | FINANCIAL REPORT

TRADING IN COMPANY SHARES
Pursuant to the provisions of articles L621-18-2 of the French monetary and financial code and 223-26 of the
general regulations of the French financial markets authority (AMF), we hereby present a summary of the
transactions carried out during the past year by managers and related parties in respect of which the Group was
notified.

By managers and related parties
No movements were declared in 2016.

By members of the supervisory board and related parties
No movements were declared in 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at December 31, 2016

Dick family group
Company savings plan
Public
Treasury shares
Total

Shares

Voting rights

Capital

Voting rights

4,200,966

8,401,127

49.67%

65.75%

73,333

146,666

0.87%

1.15%

4,154,733

4,229,275

49.12%

33.10%

28,968

-

0.34%

-%

8,458,000

12,777,068

100%

100%

Shares

Voting rights

Capital

Voting rights

4,200,916

8,401,077

49.67%

65.72%

As at December 31, 2015

Dick family group
Company savings plan
Public
Treasury shares
Total

76,894

152,562

0.91%

1.19%

4,152,410

4,229,019

49.09%

33.08%

27,780

-

0.33%

-%

8,458,000

12,782,658

100%

100%
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Information likely to have an impact in the event of a public offering
Pursuant to article L225-100-3 of the French commercial code, it should be noted that certain shares have special
control rights.
Treasury shares (28,968) carry no voting rights.
A double voting right is granted to all shareholders holding their registered shares for at least two years. The shares
that carry double voting rights are as follows:

Company
savings
plan
73,333

Public
74,542

Dick family
group
4,200,161

THRESHOLDS CROSSED
Virbac was not informed of any thresholds crossed as provided by law or the articles of association of its capital or
voting rights over the course of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

STOCK MARKET DATA
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Highest share price

149.85

189.80

184.10

257.95

223.80

Lowest share price

106.50

136.20

139.90

153.60

127.00

Average share price

129.06

156.97

166.44

205.43

162.29

Closing share price

149.85

155.30

174.30

219.80

167.20

in €

Shareholder structure and stock market performance
Virbac provides clear, consistent and transparent information to its individual and institutional shareholders and their
advisors (financial analysts).
This information is relayed by means of financial announcements published in the French media, press releases
published on financial websites and the French financial markets authority website, and publication of Group
quarterly sales figures and interim results as required by law.
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Employee participation in the company’s share capital
Pursuant to article L225-102 of the commercial code, the employees of the company and companies associated with
them owned 73,333 Virbac shares, representing a share capital of 0.87%, which were held through an employee
savings plan and performance-related stock grants as at December 31, 2016.

Relations with individual investors
The virbac.com website has a financial information section that is regularly updated.
It enables for financial information of the Group to be obtained and downloaded: press releases, annual and semiannual financial statements and annual reports. Visitors also have the opportunity to ask questions of a financial
nature to the Group, at the email address finances@virbac.com.
Since 2007, in accordance with the obligations of the transparency directive and the general regulation of the French
financial markets authority, the Investors tab contains of all the information required by the directive.

Relations with institutional investors
Managers are heavily involved in communicating with the investors and analysts they meet over the course of the
year, primarily in the Paris and London markets.
Analyst meetings and conference calls are arranged to coincide with the publication of results, acquisitions or other
major events for the Group.
The Financial Affairs department is available to answer any questions investors and analysts may have regarding the
Group’s strategy, products, published results or major events.

REVIEW OF THE 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated financial statements
Operating performance

Revenue from ordinary activities amounted to €871.8 million, showing an increase of €19.2 million which represents
an overall growth of 2.3% at actual rates (of which 4.5% excluding the unfavourable impact of exchange rates)
compared to 2015. This change in sales is the result of various factors, the main ones of which are described below:
• all areas showed positive developments at constant rates (with the exception of Chile);
− in the United States, historical ranges continued to grow. The Sentinel range is down because of increased
competition in the internal parasiticide segment,
− Europe showed a strong growth at comparable rates, notably due to sustained activity in France, as well as
the performance of the United Kingdom, Italy, Greece and Spain,
− in the other areas, emerging countries contributed strongly to organic growth, due to the dynamism in
2016 of India and China, as well as Brazil and Mexico, through in particular the antibiotics for ruminants;
• foreign exchange effects had a negative impact on sales of €19.1 million.
Current operating profit before depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions increased from €57.5 million at the
end of 2015 to €82.9 million as at December 31, 2016, +44.2% from the previous financial year. Current operating
profit before depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions as a percentage of sales was 9.5% in 2016 and 10.4%
at constant exchange rates. This change was due largely to the United States’ positive contribution to the Group’s
operating income, thanks to the re-launch of the subsidiary’s historical ranges as well as the strong performance of
the Europe, Latin America (except Chile), India, Asia and Pacific regions. These elements were offset by Centrovet’s
negative contribution, impacted by the drop in salmon populations related to the presence of killer algae as well as
by increased competition from Norwegian producers.
Foreign exchange rates had a negative impact on current operating profit before depreciation of assets arising from
acquisitions of €9.7 million.
Purchase margins increased by 3% at actual rates, slightly faster than sales growth (2.3% at actual rates).
Other current operating expenses net of income amounted to €488.8 million, a decrease of €8.5 million at actual
rates (-1.7%). This is mainly due to reductions in sales and marketing spending in the United States, as well as
spending control in Chile and other Latin American countries.
The increase in personnel costs is mainly focused on industrial and quality activities in the United States, as well as
on sales and marketing activities in other regions.
Other non-current income and expenses amounted to €2.6 million in 2016 compared to €-3.8 million in 2015.
Details are available in note A24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The net financial income was -€16.5 million compared to -€19.1 million the previous year.
The tax charge amounted to -€15.0 million compared to -€1.9 million at the end of 2015. The Group’s effective tax
rate increased from 32.47% in 2015 to 33.88% in 2016. The tax rate is explained in note A26 to the consolidated
financial statements.
The result for the period attributable to the non-controlling interests amounted to €3.2 million in 2016 compared to
€3.3 million in 2015.
The result for the period attributable to the owners of the parent company amounted to €34.6 million in 2016
compared to €9.4 million the previous year, representing an increase of € 25.2 million at actual exchange rates. This
improvement is mainly due to the positive contribution of the United States to the consolidated result, partially
offset by Centrovet's declining contribution.

Consolidated financial position and financing
The goodwill item remained unchanged, with the exception of exchange rate effects. Intangible assets increased
slightly. This increase in 2016 is mainly related to IT projects and an R & D project in the United States, for which
the subsidiary had committed $2.5 million as of December 31, 2016.
Virbac US saw a €16.2 million increase in tangible assets, a large part of which are investments intended to prepare
Virbac's takeover of the Sentinel product line (€10.2 million).
Furthermore, productive investments were made in Carros (including more than €4 million in building fixtures and
fittings), in Australia, as well as in Chile and Mexico as part of the finalisation of the Argo Navis site.
The currency effect generated a €3.4 million increase in the net asset value.
The working capital requirement decreased significantly compared to the previous year and amounted to €177
million, compared with €222 million in 2015. This change was mainly due on one hand to the increase in the level of
inventories related to the ramp-up of the activity in the United States, and on the other hand to a significant
reduction in trade receivables and a two-to-one drop in other operating receivables (see note A10 to the
consolidated financial statements).
The Group's cash flow amounted to € 71.8 million, compared to € 56.4 million in 2015, representing an increase of
27.3%. Net financial debt amounted to €547.1 million, compared to €605.0 million at December 31, 2015. Net debt
at the end of 2016 represents 9 times cash flow and 1.15 times.
The main features of Virbac’s two funding instruments are as follows:
• a syndicated loan of €420 million, drawn in euros and dollars, contracted with a pool of banks and repayable
in full upon maturity in April 2020, with the option to extend the term to April 2022;
• market-based contracts (Schuldschein) consisting of eight instalments, with maturities of five, six, seven and
ten years, at variable and fixed rates.
Virbac also received bilateral loans and BPI financing.
As at December 31, 2016, the position of the funding instruments is as follows:
• the syndicated loan is drawn for amounts of $368 million and €5 million;
• the market-based contracts amounted to $37.0 million and €65 million;
• the bilateral loans and BPI financing amounted to €44.2 million.
These funding instruments include a financial covenant compliance clause that requires the borrower to comply with
a financial ratio based on the consolidated financial statements and reflecting net consolidated indebtedness for the
period considered on the consolidated Ebitda (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation) for the
same test period.
The Group regularly conducts a specific review of its liquidity risk and has proceeded to a waiver request at the end
of the third quarter of 2016, anticipating a breach of the debt covenant. This waiver was accepted in the course of
the fourth quarter of 2016 for all bank indebtedness and a portion of the market-based financing, thereby
authorising the breach of the covenant recorded as at December 31, 2016. The financial ratio calculated as at
December 31, 2016 amounted to 4.88 (4.35 at constant rates) thus respecting the new covenant, which should not
exceed 5.5 (compared with 4.5 prior to the waiver request).
Virbac also obtained a relaxation of the compliance clause of the financial covenant for 2017: the level to be measured
during this year has been amended and revised upwards, allowing for the integration of 2017 outlook. It will now have
to be below 5.5 at the end of June 2017 and below 4.75 at the end of December 2017. Obtaining this request for
renunciation was accompanied by a moderate increase in the margin and a commission amounting to €0.4 million.
The market-based contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac received no waiver were
reclassified to other current financial liabilities. The total amount reclassified as current liabilities as at
December 31, 2016 was €70.4 million (€50 million and $21.5 million). Repayments were made in January 2017.
The Company's cash and financing resources remain sufficient to finance its cash requirements.
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Statutory financial statements
As at December 31, 2016, sales of Virbac’s parent company amounted to €256.7 million compared to €271.9 million in
2015, a drop of €15.2 million (5.6%).
The share of the sales made by Virbac with the Group’s subsidiaries accounted for 90.2% of its total sales. The
remaining 9.8% involved direct sales by Virbac in countries where the company does not have a subsidiary.
2016 saw a decline in companion animal products, impacted by supply problems, especially with dog vaccines, as
well as by regulatory issues. This was partially offset by the growth of the ranges of equine products, internal
parasiticides, such as Milpro and Milteforan, and dental products as a result of the resumption of production in the
United States. Food producing animal products were also down from 2015, primarily in the industrial ranges, with
the pig and poultry antibiotics.
This decrease in sales in 2016 (-€15.2 million) was the major cause of the €16.8 million drop in operating profit
compared to 2015.
Net financial income rose by €5.6 million (16.9%), due mainly to the increase in dividends earned (+€6.7 million
compared to 2015), which was partially offset by a decrease in proceeds realised based on the difference between
income from loans and interest on loans over the financial year (+€1.2 million in 2016 compared to +€6.7 million in
2015). Provisions for foreign exchange losses also dropped by €1.7 million compared to 2015.
The net non-recurring income was €15.2 million, an increase of €19.3 million compared to 2015, due primarily to
the redemption by a subsidiary of its own securities, generating a net accounting capital gain of €17 million for the
financial year. Special depreciation allowances also affected the net non-recurring income with a net depreciation of
-€1.5 million.
Non-deductible expenses referred to in article 39-4 of the French general tax code amounted to €298,920 in respect
of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. Net profit after tax stood at €47.7 million compared to €39.3 million in
2015.

Table of net profit over the previous five fiscal years (Virbac parent company)
in €

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

10,572,500

10,572,500

10,572,500

10,572,500

10,572,500

8,458,000

8,458,000

8,458,000

8,458,000

8,458,000

Financial position at year end
Share capital
Number of existing shares
Overall results from operations
Revenue before income tax

231,213,892

232,795,954

262,986,936

271,890,991

256,691,480

Earnings before tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

48,019,531

44,220,515

53,827,212

51,424,402

61,235,284

Income tax payable

-6,623,939

-8,673,947

-7,886,956

-7,301,645

-7,932,626

Employee holdings

-

-

-

-

-

Allowances for depreciations and provisions

18,487,592

18,937,032

13,511,112

19,462,111

21,490,116

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

36,155,878

33,957,429

48,203,056

39,263,936

47,677,793

Earnings distributed

16,070,200

16,070,200

16,070,200

-

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

6.46

6.25

7.30

4.87

8.18

Earnings after tax, employee holdings,
depreciations and provisions

4.27

4.01

5.70

4.64

5.64

Dividend per share

1.90

1.90

1.90

-

1,014

1,083

1,095

1,176

1,178

Total payroll

45,057,692

47,776,070

52,055,870

53,445,252

57,130,754

Total benefits (social security,
other employee benefits, etc,)

23,156,256

23,628,028

25,254,103

25,317,677

27,095,012

Result from operations per share

Personnel
Average number of employees

•
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Supplier payment terms

According to article L441-6-1 of the French commercial code, introduced by the law on modernising the economy,
the information on payment periods of vendors from the Virbac parent company is shown below.
As at December 31, 2016
Due between

Overdue
0 and 30 days

in €
Trade payables

5,552,321

10,956,942

Total

31 and 60 days More than 60 days
7,979,561

707,375

25,196,199

As at December 31, 2015
Due between

Overdue
0 and 30 days

in €
Trade payables

9,822,342

13,049,952

Total

31 and 60 days More than 60 days
7,239,277

89,125

30,200,696

OUTLOOK FOR 2017
2017 should see moderate growth of the Group's operations at constant exchange rates. The outlook remains
moderate in Europe and very good for Asia-Pacific and Latin America. In the United States, the latest products that
are still absent from the market and do not require a change in their registration files will be marketed again in the
first months of the year. In parallel, as a consequence of the lifting of the warning letter end 2016, Virbac United
States can finally work on file variations and consider new registrations. The volume of business ex-distributors will
continue to grow well in this country. On the other hand, ex-Virbac sales are expected to be close to 2016: the
products sold to distributors at the end of 2016, such as Iverhart Max, will have to be sold before the restocking
orders take momentum. In Chile, the aquaculture market remains disrupted, so the Group does not yet expect an
improvement in the outlook in this country.
In this context, the Group's organic growth at constant exchange rates in 2017 should be at a low-single digit level
(the evolution of 1st quarter sales is expected to be negative compared to 2016). The gradual recovery in the United
States should result in an improvement in the margin. R&D spending will increase slightly as a ratio on sales in order
to pursue development programs. As a result, the Group anticipates an improvement in the current profit before
depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions to sales, which should be around +0.5 points at constant exchange
rates, but could rise more at current exchange rates. On the financial front, the recovery in profitability and a strict
control of the capital employed should allow for the continuation of the deleveraging that will occur during the
second half of the year, given the Group's usual pattern of generation and consumption of cash, and should be
between 30 and 50 million €.

PROVISIONAL TIMETABLE
FOR FINANCIAL COMMUNICATION
The provisional timetable for 2016 is as follows:
• January 17, 2017 after the close of trading: communication of 2016 annual revenue;
• March 13, 2017 before the opening of trading: communication of 2016 annual results;
• April 12, 2017 after the close of trading: communication of sales for the first quarter of 2017;
• June 23, 2017: annual shareholders’ meeting;
• July 17, 2017 after the close of trading: communication of revenue for the second quarter of 2017;
• September 11, 2017 after the close of trading: communication of the results of the first half of 2017;
• October 12, 2017 after the close of trading: communication of revenue for the third quarter of 2017;
• January 16, 2018 after the close of trading: communication of 2017 annual revenue.
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FEES OF THE AUDITORS AND MEMBERS
OF THEIR NETWORKS BORNE BY THE GROUP
As at December 31, 2016
Deloitte

In € thousands

Network

Auditor
(Deloitte &
Associés)

Novances - David & Associés
Nexia Network

Deloitte Novances

Network

Auditor
(Novances &
Associés)

Total

Audit and limited review of the
individual and consolidated
accounts
Issuer
Consolidated subsidiaries
Subtotal

143.5

100%

-

-

54.1

100%

-

-

143.5

54.1

-

-

784.1

94%

-

-

22.7

100%

784.1

22.7

143.5

88%

784.1

94%

54.1

100%

22.7

100%

927.6

76.8

19.6

100%

-

-

-

-

-

-

19.6

-

-

-

47.7

100%

-

-

-

-

47.7

-

19.6

12%

47.7

6%

-

-%

-

-%

67.3

-

163.1

100%

831.8

100%

54.1

100%

22.7

100%

994.9

76.8

Other services
Issuer
Consolidated subsidiaries
Subtotal
Total

As at December 31, 2015
Deloitte

In € thousands

Network

Auditor
(Deloitte &
Associés)

Novances - David & Associés
Nexia Network

Deloitte Novances

Network

Auditor
(Novances &
Associés)

Total

Audit and limited review of the
individual and consolidated
accounts
Issuer
Consolidated subsidiaries
Subtotal

163.8

89%

-

-

67.0

100%

-

-

163.8

67.0

-

-

892.2

100%

-

-

23.4

100%

892.2

23.4

163.8

89%

892.2

84%

67.0

100%

23.4

100%

1,056.0

90.4

19.6

100%

-

-

-

-

-

-

19.6

-

-

-

164.5

100%

-

-

-

-

164.5

-

19.6

11%

164.5

16%

-

-%

-

-%

184.1

-

183.4

100%

1,056.7

100%

67.0

100%

23.4

100%

1,240.1

90.4

Other services
Issuer
Consolidated subsidiaries
Subtotal
Total

2015 was adjusted. Novances audit fees of BVT were added for €3,595.

125

Report by the chairwoman of the
supervisory board on corporate
governance and on the internal
control and risk management
systems
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Article L225-68 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce)
This report was submitted to the audit committee and its recommendations were taken into account and unanimously
adopted by the supervisory board at its meeting on March 3, 2017.
The content of this report is based on an analysis of the Group’s position and organisation primarily carried out through
a series of meetings with Virbac’s executive board.
The report refers to the recommendations of the corporate governance code for listed companies drawn up and
consolidated by Afep-Medef (the Afep-Medef Code), which was adopted by the supervisory board as its code of
reference. The Afep-Medef Code can be consulted online at the following address: www.medef.com.
In accordance with recommendations from the AMF, a summary table on pages 131 and 132 lists the provisions from
the Afep-Medef Code that the company has decided not to implement and gives the reasons behind this decision.

Preparation and organisation of the work of the supervisory board
Responsibilities and membership of the supervisory board

The mode of governance chosen by the company, i.e. an executive board and a supervisory board, allows a clear
distinction to be made between the management of the company and the supervision of the company.
The supervisory board is responsible for supervising the management activities of the executive board. It exercises
its supervisory powers by meeting every quarter to examine in particular the company’s and Group’s performance
indicators and the annual and interim financial statements presented by the executive board. Where necessary, it
carries out its responsibilities by getting information from the statutory auditors. It also reviews in more detail any
proposed acquisitions based on analyses drawn up by the executive board.
The supervisory board has six members, three of whom are independent, Philippe Capron, Olivier Bohuon and
Grita Loebsack.
At its meeting on March 3, 2017, the supervisory board reviewed the independence criteria for its three members
based on the criteria of the Afep-Medef Code, namely:
• is not and has not been at any time during the previous five years an employee or executive director of the
company or an employee or director of its parent company or a company that the latter consolidates;
• is not an executive director of a company in which the company directly or indirectly holds a directorship or in
which an employee designated as such or an executive director of the company (currently or having been
within the last five years) holds a directorship;
• is not a customer, supplier, corporate or investment banker:
− of significance to the company or its group
− or for which the company or its group represents a significant part of the business
• does not have close family ties with a corporate officer;
• has not been an auditor for the company at any time during the previous five years;
• has not been a director of the company for more than twelve years. The Afep-Medef Code states that the loss
of status as an independent director under this criterion should occur only upon expiry of the term of office
within which it would have exceeded the period of twelve years.
The supervisory board noted that Philippe Capron reached 12 years seniority in August 2016, but considers that,
based on the seniority criteria, a member of this supervisory board with more than 12 years of seniority does not
automatically lose independence.
Indeed, the supervisory board considers:
• that the length of tenure criterion of even more than twelve years, may provide a member of the supervisory
board with an increased capacity to question the executive board, along with a greater degree of independence.
It is in this capacity that the supervisory board was asked to make a case by case assessment of the independence
of its members;
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• that it is important that members of the supervisory board have a good understanding of the Group, based
on hindsight and reasoned judgement concerning the Group’s major strategic directions and the ability to gain
perspective based on decisions and actions taken in the past;
• that the leadership functions exercised by members of the supervisory board in companies other than Virbac
strengthen their authority and constitute a guarantee of the independence of their judgement.
Moreover it is specified that under the rules of the Afep-Medef Code, the loss of status as a member of the
independent supervisory board under the length of tenure criterion should occur only upon expiry of the term of
office which should be submitted for renewal at the next general meeting of shareholders, the term of office during
which it will have exceeded the period of twelve years.
Regarding Philippe Capron’s situation, it is noted that Philippe Capron’s length of tenure will not have reached twelve
years at the time of renewal of his term of office by the general assembly in June 2016.
In particular, the supervisory board discussed whether significant ties existed between the members considered to
be independent and the company or one of the Group’s companies.
The supervisory board noted that none of these members had a direct or indirect business relationship with the
company or the Group and, in particular, that none of the aforementioned members was a customer, supplier,
corporate banker or investment banker of the company or group and that none of these members had established
any particular interest or special relationship with the Group or its officers.
Consequently the supervisory board declared that the three members of the aforementioned supervisory board meet all
the independence criteria of the Afep-Medef Code, with the exception of that of length of tenure, but decided not to
retain the length of tenure criterion of more than twelve years, as this criterion would automatically mean the loss of
Philippe Capron’s independence status, and thus confirmed the independence of the three aforementioned members.
At its meeting of March 18, 2014, the supervisory board decided to stagger the terms of office of its members in
order to comply with the recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code. Therefore, the members of the supervisory
board endorsed the principle that some members should resign in 2014 and 2015 to allow the shareholders’ meeting
to re-elect them and rapidly ensure that the terms of office are spread out regularly. Therefore, Jeanine Dick
resigned from her position as a member of the supervisory board in 2014 and was reappointed for a period of three
years at the shareholders’ meeting held on June 17, 2014. To continue the policy of spreading the terms of office out
regularly, Grita Loebsack and the Asergi company, represented by Pierre Madelpuech, resigned as members of the
supervisory board during the supervisory board meeting held on March 13, 2015, with effect from the general
shareholders’ meeting on June 24, 2015, which reappointed them as members of the supervisory board for three years.
The shareholders’ meeting on June 24, 2016 renewed the terms of office for Marie Hélène Dick and Philippe Capron for
a period of three years and also reappointed the XYC company, represented by Xavier Yon, as a non-voting board
advisor for a period of one year.
The supervisory board is gender-balanced and made up of three women, including the chairwoman and vicechairwoman, and three men. The members of the supervisory board have a variety of skills related to their
professional experience. Its members are aged between 46 and 80. Five members of the supervisory board are
French and one is German.
As regards the diversity of its composition, the supervisory board’s policy aims to maintain the current level of
diversity, and particularly the diversity of its members’ skills.
Lastly, it should be noted that no members of the supervisory board combine their terms of office with an
employment contract with the Virbac group.
The offices held by supervisory board members are listed on pages 105 and 106 of the annual report.

Meetings of the supervisory board

Statutory auditors are invited to all supervisory board meetings. Documents, technical material and information
necessary for the performance of the duties of board members relating to items on the agenda are sent out as early as
possible prior to the meeting. Supervisory board meetings are generally held at the head office of Virbac.
Discussions are chaired by the chairwoman of the supervisory board. If the chairwoman is unable to attend, the
vice-chairwoman exercises the role of chairwoman, as determined by law. Minutes of supervisory board meetings
are drawn up at the end of each meeting and submitted for the approval of supervisory board members at the
subsequent meeting. In accordance with the articles of association, the supervisory board meets at least once a
quarter. During the past year, the supervisory board met four times. Marie-Hélène Dick, Pierre Madelpuech and
Philippe Capron attended all of the meetings. Jeanine Dick, Grita Loebsack and Olivier Bohuon attended three of the
four supervisory board meetings. Supervisory board members also met informally several times during the year for
work and discussion sessions. During the 2016 financial year meetings, the supervisory board notably reviewed the
annual and interim financial statements, quarterly revenue, the budget, the reports by the executive board on the
Group’s business activities, results, performance and outlook as well as developments in each of the Group’s major
operational areas and its strategic outlook and plans and proposed acquisitions. Depending on the content of the
meetings, all or some of the members of the executive board were present, as well as the Group’s area directors or
functional directors on an ad hoc basis.
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The supervisory board’s internal bylaws and operating procedures

At its March 13, 2009 meeting, the supervisory board approved its internal bylaws covering its membership, operation,
responsibilities, the board’s reporting procedures as well as the membership, operation and responsibilities of the
special committees.
The supervisory board’s internal bylaws do not stipulate any cases of specific prior authorisation by the supervisory
board in relation to decisions taken by the executive board. Indeed, the company considers that it is preferable to
limit itself to prior authorisations that are expressly stipulated by law, given that the role of the supervisory board is
to supervise the management of the executive board without taking part in it.
Nevertheless, the company does submit all operations involving significant acquisitions and disposals as well as,
more generally, any significant strategic operations, to the supervisory board for approval.
In December 2015, the supervisory board conducted a formal review of its assessment, in accordance with the
recommendations of the Afep-Medef Code, which calls for such a review every three years. Prior to the meeting, an
assessment questionnaire was sent to each member of the supervisory board. At a specific meeting, the members of
the supervisory board talked about their answers, exercising their freedom of expression.
The assessment finds that the board’s composition and operation as well as the attendance and contributions of
each of its members are entirely satisfactory. The supervisory board is a long-term commitment, which promotes
dialogue and trust throughout the board and with the executive board.
The supervisory board provided recommendations and suggestions in order to improve its operations and information.
Special committees



Compensation committee
The membership and responsibilities of the compensation committee are set out on page 10 of the annual report.
The compensation committee is chaired by the chairwoman of the supervisory board. The company considered it
preferable for the compensation committee to be chaired by a member of the supervisory board who represents the
family majority shareholder. It should be noted that because of the division between the executive board and the
supervisory board, the compensation committee acts independently of the executive board members whose
compensation it discusses.
The compensation committee met once during 2016.
All the members of the compensation committee attended the meeting.
At this meeting, the topics covered were:
• review of executive board member performance in 2015 in relation to their variable compensation;
• 2016 compensation of executive board members;
• the implementation of performance-related stock grants for members of the executive board and some of the
Group’s directors and executives;
• review of compensation paid to the Group’s key management.



Audit committee
The membership and responsibilities of the audit committee are set out on page 10 of the annual report. The audit
committee, chaired by Philippe Capron, an independent member of the supervisory board, met two times during
2016 with the chairman of the executive board, the chief financial officer and the statutory auditors in attendance.
All the members of the audit committee attended all meetings, with the exception of Olivier Bohuon who was
excused due to a business trip abroad and who, prior to the supervisory board meetings, was informed by the
president of the audit committee about the issues and discussions raised at these sessions.
At the end of the statutory auditors’ term of office, the audit committee, in conjunction with the Financial Affairs
department, makes a recommendation about the statutory auditors put forward for appointment by the shareholders
meeting. This recommendation to the supervisory board is developed in accordance with the provisions of article 16 of
(EU) regulation 537/2014.
To avoid lengthening the period of time between the closure of the accounts by the executive board and the control
by the supervisory board, and due to the location of the company’s head office near Nice, the audit committee’s
meeting to review the accounts is held the day before the supervisory board’s meeting to close the annual accounts
and on the same day for the interim financial accounts. However, documents relating to the accounts, including a
summary document prepared by the statutory auditors and any comments they may have, are always given to the
members of the audit committee and to the other members of the supervisory board several days before the audit
committee meeting is held.
The audit committee receives a regular presentation from the Risk Management director on exposure to risks. Where
relevant, significant off-balance sheet commitments are brought to the committee’s attention. The audit committee
may also turn to external experts.
During 2016, the audit committee examined the 2015 financial statements and the 2016 interim financial statements.
It checked the financial information and decided upon the accounting treatment for the year’s major transactions,
submitted either by the statutory auditors or by the members of the executive board. It also noted the efforts made
by the executive board to ensure the establishment and effectiveness of internal control procedures, to identify risks
and implement the measures considered necessary to manage them.
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Absence of selection or appointments committee
The supervisory board does not believe it necessary to set up a selection or appointments committee. This decision
is based on the following considerations:
• the size of the company and the stability of its management bodies;
• the small size of the supervisory board;
• members of the supervisory board wish to be directly involved in the definition of the composition of the
managing bodies.

Preparation and organisation of the work of the executive board
Executive board membership

The executive board has five members.
At its December 17, 2014 meeting, the supervisory board reappointed all executive board members for three years:
• Éric Marée has been the chairman of the executive board since December 1999. He directly supervises
human resources, communications, information systems, health, quality assurance, safety and environment,
purchasing and production activities;
• Christian Karst holds the position of qualified person and supervises research and development, market
research and competitive intelligence, strategic marketing, licensing and acquisitions;
• Sébastien Huron supervises global commercial and marketing operations;
• Jean-Pierre Dick is responsible for special projects and is president of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac, a
corporate foundation.
At its meeting on June 23, 2016, the supervisory board appointed Habib Ramdani member of the executive board,
thereby replacing Michel Garaudet, who retired on April 30, 2016. Habib Ramdani supervises financial and legal duties.

Executive board meetings

Executive board members meet, as required by the law, in order to report quarterly to the supervisory board and
whenever business it is required by the business. In 2016, the executive board held eight formal meetings.

Compensation and benefits of all kinds granted to executive board members
The policies and rules approved by the supervisory board for determining compensation and benefits of all kinds
granted to executive board members are set out on pages 108 to 118 of the annual report.

Special procedures regarding shareholder participation at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders’ meetings are called and deliberate in the legally required manner. Meetings are either held at the
head office or at any other place specified in the meeting notice. Meetings are chaired by the chairwoman of the
supervisory board. The roles of scrutineers are filled by the two members of the shareholders’ meeting with the
highest numbers of votes and who accept this position. The meeting’s board appoints the secretary, who can be
chosen outside the shareholders.
The main powers of the ordinary shareholders’ meeting consist of the right to approve or reject the parent company
financial statements and the consolidated financial statements, to allocate profits, pay out dividend, appoint or
dismiss supervisory board members and appoint the statutory auditors. The general shareholders’ meeting also has
an advisory vote on the compensation of the chairman and members of the executive board, in accordance with the
Afep-Medef Code recommendations. Decisions by the ordinary general shareholders’ meeting are taken by a
majority of the votes of shareholders present or represented.
The extraordinary general shareholders’ meeting may take decisions such as amending the articles of association,
authorising financial transactions that may change the share capital, approving or rejecting mergers or spin-offs and
granting or refusing stock subscription or purchase options or stock grants. Decisions by the extraordinary general
shareholders’ meeting are taken by a majority of two thirds of the votes of the shareholders present or represented.
Irrespective of the number of shares he or she owns, any shareholder is entitled to attend the shareholders’ meeting
or to be represented there by another shareholder, a spouse, the partner with whom he or she has entered into a
civil solidarity pact under French law as well as by any other individual person or legal entity of his or her choice, or
alternatively to vote by post. Legal entity shareholders attend general shareholders’ meetings through their legal
representatives or any person they appoint for the purposes thereof. In line with the law, the entitlement of
shareholders to attend in person, by proxy or by post at shareholders’ meetings is subject to the registration of the
shares in the name of the shareholder or in the name of the intermediary acting on its behalf, on the second
business day prior to the meeting, at midnight Paris time, either in the registered share accounts administered for
the company by its agent or in the bearer share accounts held by the authorised banking or financial intermediary,
acting as security custodian.
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The registration of shares in the bearer share accounts held by the authorised intermediary must be confirmed by a
certificate issued by the latter, attached to the postal voting or proxy form or admission card request filled out in the
name of the shareholder or on behalf of the shareholder represented by the registered intermediary. To be valid,
postal voting or proxy forms must have been effectively received at the company’s registered office or the location
specified in the meeting notice at the latest three days prior to the date set for the shareholders’ meeting, except
where a shorter period is specified in the meeting notice.
Each shareholder is entitled to exercise as many votes as the shares they hold or represent without limitation.
Nevertheless, a double voting right is granted to all fully paid up shares that have been registered in the name of
the same shareholder for at least two years.
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TABLE SUMMARISING EXCEPTIONS TO
RECOMMENDATIONS GIVEN IN THE AFEP-MEDEF CODE
Recommendations given
in the Afep-Medef Code
"the Code"
Internal bylaws of the
supervisory board
(Article 4 of the Code)
The bylaws of the board of directors
should specify the cases in which
prior approval by the board of
directors is required

Company practices and justifications

Member of the supervisory
board deemed to be
independent
(article 8.5.6 of the Code)
The loss of independent (director)
status occurs on the twelve-year
anniversary date

Philippe Capron reached twelve years seniority in August 2016. The supervisory
board considers that length of tenure criterion of more than twelve years for a
member of the supervisory board does not automatically lead to the loss of
independence of said supervisory board member.
Indeed, the supervisory board considers:
· that the length of tenure criterion of even more than twelve years, may provide
a member of the supervisory board with an increased capacity to question the
executive board, along with a greater degree of independence. It is in this
capacity that the supervisory board was asked to make a case by case
assessment of the independence of its members;
· that it is important that members of the supervisory board have a good
understanding of the group, based on hindsight and reasoned judgement
concerning the group's major strategic directions and the ability to gain
perspective based on decisions and actions taken in the past;
· that the leadership functions exercised by members of the supervisory board in
companies other than Virbac strengthen their authority and constitute a
guarantee of the independence of their judgement.

The company considered it preferable to limit itself to prior approvals that are
expressly stipulated by law, given that the role of the supervisory board is to
supervise the management of the executive board without taking part in it.
Nevertheless, the company does submit all operations involving significant
acquisitions and disposals as well as, more generally, any significant strategic
operations, to the supervisory board for approval.

Time frame for review of
financial statements by the
audit committee
(Article 16.2.1 of the Code)
The time available for reviewing the
accounts should be sufficient (no
less than two days before review by
the board)

To avoid lengthening the period of time between the closure of the accounts by
the executive board and the control by the supervisory board, and due to the
location of the company's head office near Nice, the audit committee's meeting to
review the accounts is held the day before the supervisory board's meeting.
However, documents relating to the accounts, including any comments made by
the statutory auditors, are always given to the members of the committee and to
the other members of the supervisory board, several days before the audit
committee meeting is held.

Creation of a selection or
appointments committee
(Article 17 of the Code)

The company has not followed this recommendation, firstly because of the size of
the company and the stability of its management bodies, and secondly because
supervisory board members wish to be directly involved in the definition of the
composition of the managing bodies.
The company considered it preferable for the compensation committee to be
chaired by a member of the supervisory board who represents the family majority
shareholder. It should be noted that because of the division between the
executive board and the supervisory board, the committee acts independently of
executive corporate officers whose compensation it discusses.

Compensation committee
chaired by an independent
member
(Article 18.1 of the Code)
Supervisory board directors’
fees
(Article 21.1 of the Code)
Rules on the allocation of directors’
fees: the compensation must include
a significant variable portion

The company did not follow this recommendation. In fact, the company does not
consider linking payment of directors' fees to attendance at supervisory board
meetings in a weighted fashion to be desirable, since the involvement of
supervisory board members in the company's supervisory activities is not limited
to their participation in formal periodic supervisory board debates. The length of
supervisory board meetings, which last an entire day, and the high attendance
rates of its members amply confirm that the regular attendance of supervisory
board members is ensured without having recourse to a complex mechanism for
the allocation of directors’ fees. For information purposes, it should be noted that
the supervisory board decided to allocate a higher level of compensation to
Philippe Capron in respect of his role as chairman of the audit committee.

Reference

page 128

Page 126

page 128

page 129

page 128

pages 108
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Performance-related stock
grants
(Article 23.2.4 of the Code)
1. Specify the percentage of stock
grants that may be awarded to
executive directors depending on
each company's situation (size,
sector...)
2. Make the stock grants awarded
to executive directors conditional on
the purchase of a specific quantity
of shares
3. Link the acquisition of stock
grants to performance conditions to
be met over a period of several
years running

1. The performances looked at are not linked to the performance of other
companies or a benchmark sector because there are very few reliable
comparisons, most companies with operations similar to those of Virbac being
either unlisted or divisions of major listed pharmaceutical groups.
2. Performance-related stock grants assigned to the members of the executive
board are not subject to the purchase of a defined quantity of shares when the
shares assigned become available, but 35% of the shares acquired by the
chairman of the executive board and 25% by the other executive corporate
officers cannot be surrendered as long as they conduct business in the Group. It
should also be noted that the total amount ofperformance-related stock grants
assigned to members of the executive board during the five previous years
represents less than 0.25% of the company's share capital.
3. It is specified that the performance conditions to be met for the acquisition of
performnace-related stock grants are measured in relation to the consolidated
operational result and the Group's consolidated net liabilities at the close of the
second full financial year following the plan's start date. Therefore, these
components consider the Group's performance over more than two financial
years, but performance is not evaluated periodically throughout the plan, as
specified by the Code.

page 110

Termination benefits
(Article 23.2.5 of the Code)
1. Authorisation to indemnify an
executive director only when his or
her departure is imposed and linked
to a change in control or strategy
2. Reference period for assessment
of performance criteria

1. The commitments made by the company in the event of termination of office of
its directors were adopted by the general shareholders' meeting of June 18,
2012. They correspond to the conditions set out by the supervisory board at its
meeting of December 22, 2008, i.e. termination benefits can only be paid if the
departure is imposed by the company. They will not be paid in the event of
resignation, retirement or gross misconduct of the corporate officers concerned.
2. The fulfillment of the termination benefits performance criteria is assessed
against the two half-year periods that precede the director’s departure, and not
a minimum of two years, as stipulated in the Code. However, the amount of
benefits is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation
provided under the Code and the performance criteria are demanding (current
operating income to turnover ratio higher than or equal to 7%).

page 111

Supplementary pension
schemes
(Article 23.2.6 of the Code)
The group of potential beneficiaries
must be materially broader than the
sole corporate officers

The company did not follow this recommendation. Virbac's policy is to only grant
supplementary pensions to executive board members for three reasons: firstly,
the supplementary pensions granted this way are of a controlled size and subject
to the potential beneficiaries meeting several conditions, and secondly, it is
preferable to avoid extending the category of beneficiaries due to the growing
tax burden of this scheme, and lastly Virbac has established a well-balanced
social policy for all employees in terms of welfare, voluntary profit sharing and
savings (company savings plan, collective retirement savings plan, employer's
contribution, etc.). In addition, the company goes beyond the Afep-Medef Code
recommendations as regards the increase in potential rights since they only
represent a limited percentage of the beneficiary’s compensation including the
variable portion.

page 111
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
In accordance with article L225-68 of the French commercial code, the chairwoman of the supervisory board has drawn up
her report on the internal control and risk management procedures defined and implemented by the Virbac group.
This report has been drawn up based on contributions from several departments, in particular the Financial Affairs,
Legal and Human Resources departments as well as the Group Risk Management department, and has been
reviewed by the executive board which has confirmed the validity of its content. The entire report was subsequently
communicated to the statutory auditors for discussion by them and to the audit committee for review before final
approval by the supervisory board.
This report was approved by the supervisory board at its meeting on March 03, 2017.

Definition and aims of internal control and risk management
Framework

The Group has drawn on the reference framework and its application guide, first published in January 2007 and
updated on July 22, 2010 by the AMF, in order to define its internal control and risk management framework so as
to structure its approach. In accordance with a recommendation from AMF report 2010-15 dated December 7, 2010,
the Virbac group decided to present the different information requested pursuant to the plan specified in the
reference framework.

Scope

The scope of the internal control and risk management system includes the parent company and the companies
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The list of subsidiaries is given on note A37 of this report.

Objectives and principles of the internal control and risk management system

The risk management system sets out to identify, prioritise, process and manage the Group’s key risk exposures.
In this capacity, the risk management system assists in:
• creating and preserving the Group’s value, assets and reputation;
• providing a secure basis for decision-making in support of strategic, operational and financial objectives;
• deploying an organisational culture of risk by engaging all players.
Internal control sets out to ensure that:
• economic and financial objectives are achieved in compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
• the orientations determined by the executive board are implemented;
• the company’s capital is developed and its assets are protected;
• the integration of acquired companies is carried out in accordance with Group rules;
• and that the Group’s financial and accounting information depicts a true and fair view.
The internal control and overall risk management system must promote and secure the Group’s industrial and
economic development by helping to prevent and control the risks to which it is exposed, all within an environment
of control which is suited to its business areas and their respective issues.
In line with the fixed objectives, the internal control and risk management system of the Virbac group is based on
the following structuring elements:
• appropriate and sustainable organisation;
• internal distribution of reliable and targeted information;
• implementation of this system;
• suitable control activities that help to prepare and process accounting and financial information;
• continuous management and formalisation of the areas of improvement.

Limits

An internal control system can provide only a reasonable assurance, but never an absolute one as regards overall
risk control and limitation of obstacles in achieving the Group’s objectives. The probability of actually achieving these
objectives is subject to the inherent limits of any internal control system, whether potential failings in the decisionmaking process are concerned, or the need for reviewing the cost/profit ratio before implementing controls, or the
malfunctions that may occur on account of a failure or human error.
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An appropriate and sustainable organisation
System components

The control environment which is essential for the internal control system, for good risk management and for the
application of procedures, is based on a specific organisation as well as on behavioural and human aspects.
Organisation
The internal control organisation is based first of all on key factors that are deeply anchored within the company’s
culture and which have formed the basis of its success, such as taking the initiative, placing trust in the Group’s
workers and providing them with a sense of responsibility. The operational organisation of internal control is structured
around three levels: group, areas and subsidiaries. Each level is directly involved and is given responsibility for
designing and implementing the control in accordance with the level of centralisation desired by the executive board. At
each of these three levels internal control is broken down into specific organisational procedures, delegation of
responsibilities, raising awareness and training of staff which are consistent with the Group’s general framework. It
requires heavy involvement on the part of each operational or functional manager by expecting them to adopt the
policies and procedures defined at Group level, play a role in implementing and complying with them and finalise them
via measures that are adapted to the special nature of the business activities or the areas under their responsibility.
The control system implemented within the Group is also based on a strong governance structure which guarantees that
decisions are transparent and traceable, whilst still preserving the principles of subsidiarity and decentralisation that are
viewed as essential and necessary for optimum management of industrial and commercial activities in the Group.
Delegations of powers
The subsidiaries are almost all directly or indirectly wholly owned by Virbac. Special attention is paid to the
composition of the boards of directors at Virbac subsidiaries. Each appointment or change of a director must be
validated by the members of the Virbac executive board.
For companies which are not wholly owned, the rules of governance are defined and governed by shareholders’
agreements (Centrovet in Chile).
Code of conduct
Since June 2015, a Code of conduct has been incorporated into the Group’s core commitments in the industries in
which it operates. This document replaces the Code of ethics adopted in 2004. More comprehensive and more
responsive to the priorities of the Group, this document, written in sixteen languages and available on the Intranet,
is distributed to all employees. The Code of conduct includes the Group’s fundamental principles regarding business
conduct, safeguarding assets, corporate approach to privacy and social responsibility. This document formalises the
ethical values and operating principles of the company. In publishing its Code of conduct, the Group undertakes to
adhere and ensure adherence by its partners and suppliers to the regulations and standards that apply to its
activities, as well as in the areas of finance, competition and social.
Reference documents
The Virbac group has provided employees with other reference documents describing tangible rules applicable to
specific areas covered by the Code of conduct. These documents are available on the Intranet and are listed below.
charter
TheSupplier
supplier charter aims to define the rules governing the relationship between the Virbac group and its suppliers,
as well as the guiding principles the Group expects to see applied by its suppliers in the conduct of their business.



Group anti-corruption policy
The Group anti-corruption policy describes the appropriate conduct governing relations between the Group (or its
employees) and third parties, either in the public or private sector. It specifies, among other things, the conditions
under which it is possible to offer or accept gifts and invitations. In 2016, the Group implemented a new anticorruption policy. All of the general managers of Virbac, the members of Comex as well as the members of the
executive board signed a commitment to comply and ensure compliance with this policy.



Market abuse prevention policy
With the entry into force on July 3, 2016 of European Regulation 596/2014 of April 16, 2014 on market abuse, of act
2016-819 of June 21, 2016 on reforming the sanctions system for dealing with market abuse and of act 2016-1691 of
December 9, 2016 on transparency, the fight against corruption and modernising the economy, the Group implemented a
market abuse prevention policy (thereby replacing its stock market charter of ethics). One of the aims of this policy is to
increase employee awareness of the notion of insider information and sensitive information, the obligations of employees
who have access to insider or unreleased sensitive information (negative window period), sanctions incurred for breaches
of confidentiality related to the holding of this type of information.



Group ethics charter
In keeping with regulations and the focus of providing safe and effective products, the Group, like any
pharmaceutical company, must resort to animal testing in very specific cases: when they are necessary and if, at
this stage, there is no other alternative method available that has been approved by the authorities. However, the
Group will give preference to all alternative methods available and actively encourages any initiatives to replace,
reduce, or improve animal testing. To ensure implementation of these founding principles, the Group has developed
an ethical charter that applies to all of the Group’s employees as well as external partners.
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social networking principles
ThisGroup
document describes company-wide rules governing social networking for personal use.
Procedures and standards governing activities
Group policies have been defined by the functional departments for all processes supplying the financial statements,
in particular sales, purchases and stock and property management. These departments lay down Group policies
which define the organisation, responsibilities and particular operating and reporting principles in the respective area
of expertise under their responsibility. These policies are then broken down into specific procedures for monitoring,
rule validation, authorisation and accounting.
As an example, the Group has implemented the following policies:
• a purchasing policy which determines the rules, the aims and the best practices related to purchasing and ethics;
• a policy for securing payment methods which defines the methods that must be implemented in order to limit
the risks of fraud;
• a policy for protecting individuals aimed at providing the same level of protection to all Group employees,
whether they are expatriates, local or on special assignments;
• a safety and environmental policy which lays down the rules of conduct for a permanent reduction in the risks
inherent in any industrial activity;
• an investment policy, which is validated by the executive board when the strategic plans and then the
budgets are drawn up. Any major investment foreseen in these budgets is still subject to a further validation by
the Group Industrial Operations department or by the executive board. Any change that may occur during the
year relating to projects that have been budgeted is subject to special prior authorisation.
In parallel with this body of procedures in general internal bylaws, the Group complies with the different frames of
reference that apply within the pharmaceutical industry. These texts outline the management operations for each
stage, whether at the research and development method level or at the level of drug and vaccine manufacturing
standards, packaging, distribution, sales and marketing or promotion.
Human resources management policy
Human resources management plays a part in the Virbac internal control system by allowing the Group to ensure that
its employees have a suitable skills level in relation to the roles and responsibilities entrusted to them, and that they
are aware of their responsibilities and their limits, in addition to being aware of and complying with Group rules.
and development policy
TheRecruitment
Group recruits in all countries and for all jobs in order to support its growth. The Human Resources department

defines standards and verifies practices in order to ensure the consistency and relevance of the recruitment process.
In parallel, an employee performance and development management process known as Perf (covering performance,
evaluation, compensation and training) has been deployed; it is made up of several different parts, which include setting
individual objectives and annual achievements assessed by line managers with the situation examined on an individual basis.
Within the annual performance committee the executive board shares the assessments, remuneration and
professional development possibilities of the 60 key individuals in the Group as well as the potential top performers
identified through the Perf process.



Compensation policy
Compensation is reviewed annually. The review covers the base salary as individual and collective bonuses. The
salary review is carried out in accordance with an overall policy aimed at strengthening the competitiveness,
consistency and development of compensation within the Group. The aim is also to remunerate individual
performance pursuant to objective criteria and criteria shared across all jobs. The bonus practices applicable in the
Group are otherwise consistent and are based mainly on comparable criteria in terms of value and type.

Main players
Supervisory board and its special committees
The supervisory board operates a constant control over the Group management which is led by the executive board. Within
this framework, it is informed in particular by the executive board about the internal control systems set up in the Group.
The board has set up two special committees to help in its task: the compensation committee and the audit
committee. The members of these committees are shown on page 10 of the annual report.
The role of the compensation committee is to determine and review the overall remuneration policy of the members
of the executive board taking the Afep-Medef Code recommendations into consideration.
To comply with the latest recommendations of this Code, details of the individual remuneration of members of the
executive board are given in the management report on pages 112 to 114, in the form of summary tables and
remuneration tables based on the presentation indicated in the Code.
Moreover, in accordance with the new measures specified in the Afep-Medef Code, shareholders are consulted each
year on aspects of executive board remuneration due or assigned on the past closed financial year.
The audit committee is responsible for:
• ensuring monitoring of the financial reporting process and, if applicable, makes recommendations for
guaranteeing its integrity;
• ensuring the existence and efficiency of internal control and risk management as well as, if applicable,
internal audit systems as they pertain to the reporting and processing of accounting and financial information,
without its independence being undermined;
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• making a recommendation about the statutory auditors put forward for appointment by the shareholders’
meeting. This recommendation to the supervisory board is developed in accordance with the provisions of article
16 of (EU) rule 537/2014. It also makes a recommendation to this body when renewal of the terms of office for
the statutory auditors is being considered in accordance with the conditions set forth in article L.823-3-1;
• monitoring the performance by the statutory auditors of their duties. It takes into account the findings and
conclusion of the Haut conseil du commissariat aux comptes (Audit office control board) - H3C - following audits;
• ensuring compliance by the statutory auditors with the independence requirements defined in section 2 of
chapter II of title II of book VII of the French commercial code. Where appropriate, it takes the action needed
to enforce paragraph 3 of article 4 of the aforementioned (EU) regulation 537/2014 and ensures compliance
with the requirements referred to in article 6 of the same regulation;
• approval for the provision by the statutory auditors of services non-prohibited other than certifying financial
statements;
• reporting on the performance of their duties to the supervisory board. It also reports on results of the
certification assignment conducted on the financial statements, on how this assignment contributed to the
integrity of the financial information and on the role it plays in this process. It provides prompt notification of
any problems encountered.
Executive board
The executive board has operational and functional responsibility in all Group activities for implementing the strategy
that has been previously discussed in the strategic committee and approved by the supervisory board. In particular,
it is responsible for the effective implementation of internal control and risk management systems within the Group.
In this capacity, the executive board is directly involved in the Group’s risk map updating (identification and
prioritisation) phases. Furthermore, the results of each mapping conducted within a subsidiary are reported to the
executive board
The members of the executive board are shown on page 11 of the annual report.
Responsibilities are distributed among its members as described below.
The chairman of the executive board is responsible for supervising and coordinating the activities of all executive board
members. He performs all the legal functions of a company head and takes responsibility accordingly. He represents
the company and acts on its behalf in all circumstances and particularly before courts. Within the company’s internal
structure, he is also specifically responsible for the following central departments: the Group Human Resources
department; the Group Information Systems department; the Group Communications department (including financial
communication) in conjunction with the Financial Affairs director; the Group Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance
department; the French Industrial Operations department; the Corporate Sourcing department; the Group Public Affairs
department and the Group Health, Safety and Environment department.
The general manager holds the position of qualified person for Virbac in line with articles L5142-1 et seq. of the
French public health code. For the purposes of the company’s internal organisation, he is also executive vicepresident corporate development and supervises the following departments: the Group Product Innovation
department, responsible for laying out the Group’s R&D strategy, carrying out projects and coordinating research
centres spread across the various geographic regions, as well as for strategic marketing and competitive
intelligence, the Business Development department, which is responsible for licensing (an activity that mainly
consists of acquiring or disposing of rights to active ingredients of finished products or products in development in
line with Group strategy), and the Creations and Regulatory Affairs department.
The director of Global Business Operations supervises and coordinates the commercial activities of all of the Group’s
subsidiaries. With his teams, he defines the commercial strategy and develops existing and future business. He also
supervises the Global Marketing and Business Optimization department, which is responsible for defining and
implementing the global marketing strategy for the Group’s key products and ranges and the Aquaculture division.
The director of Financial Affairs is responsible for Group financial policy and supervises: the Group Treasury and
financing department, the Accounting and Consolidation department, which are responsible for drawing up the
consolidated financial and accounting information, the budgetary and financial planning processes and management
control, the financial studies and projects of acquisition, the taxation, the Legal department, which is responsible for
corporate law, insurance policy, negotiations, drawing up and managing contracts and disputes, and the Risk
Management department as shown on page 137 of the annual report.
The head of special projects ensures the communication and development of Virbac’s corporate reputation through
relevant sponsoring initiatives and media relations. Through public relations initiatives organised around the sports
programme in which he plays a key role as skipper on the StMichel-Virbac boat, he continues to reinforce Virbac’s
image amongst veterinarian customers.
He is also chairman of the Fondation d’Entreprise Virbac whose mission is twofold: firstly, to raise awareness,
educate and inform the public about respect for and responsibility towards animals; and secondly, to support
programmes that place animal health at the centre of a healthy ecosystem by protecting and promoting healthcare
for pets or wild animals in their natural habitat, implementing educational or awareness-raising campaigns amongst
local communities and rolling out animal health initiatives that protect the environment and human health. The
foundation fulfils its objectives by developing initiatives and partnerships with health professionals, veterinary
practices, regional and local authorities and French and international institutions.
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Strategic committee
The strategic committee is chaired by the chairman of the executive board and comprises the following departments,
represented as follows:
• executive board members;
• area directors: Europe, North America, Latin America, Apisa, and the director of the Aquaculture division;
• Group Human Resources department;
• Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department;
• Group Product Innovation department;
• Group Legal department;
• Corporate Sourcing department;
• Group Business Development department;
• Group Information Systems department;
• Group Communications department;
• Group Global Marketing and Business Optimization department.
The strategic committee helps draw up and implement the Group’s major strategic decisions that are presented and
approved by the supervisory board: strategy by business, job and major project. In this capacity, the members of
the strategic committee are actively involved in providing the Group with major risk map updates on a regular basis.
Executive committee France
The executive committee France is chaired by the chairman of the executive board and comprises the following
departments, represented as follows:
• executive board members;
• Group Human Resources department;
• French Industrial Operations department;
• Industrial and Corporate Quality Assurance department;
• Corporate Quality Assurance department ;
• Group Product Innovation department;
• Group Communications department;
• Group Information Systems department;
• Europe department;
• France department;
• Group Pharmaceutical R&D department;
• Group Biology R&D department;
• Corporate Sourcing department;
• Group Legal department;
• Group Global Marketing and Business Optimization department;
• Group Creations and Regulatory Affairs department.
The executive committee France is primarily responsible for decision-making, coordination and reporting on all
issues affecting the group of French companies and represents a platform for the dissemination of the information
addressed to various departments.
Operational departments
In accordance with operational decentralisation principles within the Group, managers of each business activity have
necessary powers for organising, directing, managing and delegating the operations for which they are responsible.
Each activity favours the organisation which best suits its markets, taking into account its particular sales, industrial
and geographic features. The managers are responsible for adopting internal control systems consistent with their
organisations as well as with Group principles and rules. For example, for subsidiaries whose risk management
system has been deployed, each director is in charge of monitoring its subsidiary’s risks. The same goes for each
regional director with the various mappings being conducted in the area.
Functional departments
The central functional departments (Finance, Legal, Human Resources, Product Innovation, Communications,
Information Systems, Sourcing, and Health, Safety and Environment) have a dual task: organisation and control of
Group operations falling within their respective skills area and technical assistance with operational activities in these
areas where required. As for the risk management system, corporate departments are in charge of coordinating all
actions related to Group-wide risk identification.
The existence of the central functions and their organisation play a significant role in Group internal control systems.
The managers of these functions exercise, in particular, functional authority over all managers who carry out tasks
falling within their skills area in the operational activities.
Risk Management department
Since its creation at the end of 2009, this department has become a full participant in the Group risk management
and internal control system. Reporting directly to the chief financial officer (member of the executive board) with a
dotted line (functional reporting) to the executive board, the Risk Management director is responsible for defining
and implementing risk management systems. He coordinates risk analysis, makes a contribution across the
organisation and contributes in sharing best practices between Group entities and departments, thereby helping to
develop a risk management culture across the Group. His roles and responsibilities are presented in detail on pages
138 and 139 of the annual report.
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Internal distribution of reliable and targeted information
Information and communication are connected with information flows which support internal control procedures,
from orientations expressed by management to action plans. They contribute to develop the control environment, to
spread an internal culture and to promote relevant control activities that are part of the risk control.
There are different aims:
• informing all Group employees and making them aware of the implementation of best practices;
• sharing experiences so as to promote the use of these best practices, including internal control and risk
management systems.
Special communication tools deployed by the Group encourage achievement of these aims. The in-house staff magazine
publication Action presents Virbac’s general direction, its organisation, activities and projects. Other tools such as the
Intranet allow Group policies and procedures to be distributed. Virbac also strives to provide each of its newly recruited
managers with a view over the entire Group and its organisation, main business areas and strategy. Induction sessions for
new recruits, either organised at head office or locally, are part of this effort. Finally, in addition to training sessions
organised by the operational divisions, Group seminars allow employees to improve certain professional skills (finance,
marketing, human resources, project management, etc.) and encourage an exchange of best practices.
Information and the communication channels also rely on information systems. The Group Information Systems
department is responsible for all Group information systems. It is made up of departments which are under the
direct responsibility of the Group Information Systems department and of decentralised departments within the
operational divisions. The role of the Group Information Systems department is to define information system
policies, to coordinate the processes for managing the information systems function and to manage global IT
infrastructure and services in line with Group priorities. The decentralised departments develop and manage specific
applications within their divisions, as well as the dedicated IT infrastructure and services.
Upward and downward information channels have been defined so as to allow timely transmission of relevant and
reliable information.
As an illustration, accounting and financial information are processed locally based on generally accepted accounting
principles and are being collected centrally through collaborative reporting and consolidation software shared
throughout the Group under the authority of the Financial Affairs department.
For downward information flows, resolutions from decision-making bodies are relayed via the relevant departments.
Any change in the regulatory framework relating to any matter whatsoever is communicated to the relevant entities
and departments in an appropriate manner.
Finally, communication aimed at stakeholders is governed by appropriate systems with the aim to guarantee the
quality of the information.
In addition, the Group distributed a crisis management procedure whose objective is, as far as possible, to anticipate
the potential occurrence of any crises through deployment of management and alert principles covering all Group
areas and activities.

Implementation of the risk management system
Aims

The Group Risk Management department was set up at the end of 2009 in order to strengthen the Group’s ability to
forecast, analyse and prioritise risks of any kind and to ensure the effective management of these risks.
This department has structured its methodology framework in line with market standards and best practices, notably
the AMF reference framework on risk management and internal control.
The aims of the Risk Management department are based on the following areas:
• know and anticipate: ensure that there is constant monitoring of Group risks in order to guarantee that none
are forgotten or underestimated and to forecast any development in their nature or intensity;
• organise: ensure that the main risks identified are actually taken into account by the organisation, at the
most appropriate level within the Group. Numerous operational risks are managed by the subsidiaries; head
office takes charge of other risks which require special skills or that have an essentially cross-organisational or
strategic component;
• control: ensure that the organisations and methods in place are effective in reducing the risks identified;
• train: gradually develop a risk management culture amongst all relevant managers and do so through
appropriate training in France and internationally;
• inform: notify the executive board of any changes in the situation.

Regular structured analysis of the main Group risks

The risk management system is based on the internal control environment and is part of a continuous process for
identifying, assessing and managing risk factors that are likely to have an impact on the aims being achieved and
the opportunities that could improve performance. The responsibilities for identification, assessment and risk
management should be spread out through all appropriate levels of the organisation.
A formal and more accurate report on the main risks for the Group and the methods for managing and controlling
these risks is presented in the chapter on “Risk Factors” beginning on page 96 of the annual report.
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Thanks to a structured process aimed at understanding and analysing the main risks for the Group, Virbac is able to
assess the adequacy of the existing internal control systems, implement relevant action plans for their improvement
and, more generally, to provide increased protection for the Group’s enterprise value in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.
Risk management system
The risk management system is based on a clearly defined risk management process and organisation:
• the organisation is the responsibility of the Risk Management department, which is supported by three
committees (the executive board, the strategic committee and the executive committee France) which validate
the risk management policies and the processes used to identify, assess and address risks. The organisation
also includes “risk owners”, whose role is to define and oversee the action plans for the Group’s major risks;
• the risk management process in place since 2010 is based on:
− identifying risks: by regularly updating the map of the Group’s major risks, the Group’s main exposures can
be assessed;
− assessing risks: senior managers play an active role in assessing and prioritising the risks identified. These
managers have extensive experience in the animal health sector and the company itself, which represents an
asset with regard to ascertaining the impact, the occurrence and the management of each risk;
− addressing risks: each risk classified as a major risk has been analysed and prioritised. A risk owner has
been appointed for each major risk. The risk owners are mainly the senior managers who are members of the
three committees referred to above. Their role is to design and implement action plans in coordination with
the different operational and functional organisations, in order to limit the company’s exposure to the risks
for which they are responsible;
− monitoring action plans: the Risk Management department coordinates the whole process in partnership with
the risk owners. Lastly, it drafts a report for the executive board to provide it with regular updates on progress.
For Virbac, risk management forms part of a continuous improvement cycle of the internal control system by
becoming engrained in company processes and consistently taking the fundamental issues into account that can be
found in the organisation, whether operational, legal, regulatory or related to governance.

Suitable control activities that aid in the process of preparing
and processing accounting and financial information
This system not only covers the processes for preparing financial information, but also all the upstream operational
processes that help to produce this information. Internal control in all its forms, but especially that related to finance
and operations, is essential for Virbac. The Group’s ongoing aim is to maintain the balance between the decentralisation
required for its activities, better operational and financial control and the dissemination of skills and best practices.

Dedicated financial organisation

The control system and the procedures for producing accounting and financial information are consistent within the
Group. This system is made up of a Group cross-functional accounting organisation, uniform accounting standards,
one single consolidated reporting system and quality control of the financial and accounting information produced.
Accounting and financial operations are managed by the Group Financial Affairs department. Its central organisation includes:
• the Accounting and Consolidation department, which is responsible for preparing and presenting the Virbac
company’s financial statements and the Group consolidated accounts. It is also responsible for monitoring tax
affairs within the Group;
• a Financial Studies and projects department, which is responsible for providing financial support to acquisition
initiatives, in addition to monitoring and managing the transfer pricing policy;
• the Management Control department, which is responsible for preparing and consolidating budget data and
for monthly management reporting, which includes an analysis of the Group results both compared with
budgetary objectives and with the previous year;
• the Group Treasury and Financing department which is responsible mainly for coordinating and monitoring the
reporting related to the Group’s borrowings and net finance expenses. With regard to exposure to exchange rate
risks in particular, the guidelines of the Financial Affairs department forbid speculation and only allow for the
hedging of positions that, whether current or future, are certain.
The financial director of each subsidiary exercise a key role on account of the decentralised organisation of the accounting
and finance functions. He is mainly responsible for ensuring that all internal accounting and finance control procedures are
applied correctly on the ground. Each subsidiary financial director reports functionally to an area management controller
who operates at area level. The controller reports functionally to the Group chief financial officer.

Suitable tools: procedures and reference frameworks

The accounting and finance rules set out in the special instructions drafted by the Group Financial Affairs department
apply to all operational and legal entities in the Group. In compliance with the IFRS (International financial reporting
standards) adopted in the European Union, these rules include the following factors:
• a reminder of general accounting principles and instructions that must be followed;
• a detailed chart of accounts;
• a confirmation of the Group accounting methods applicable for the most significant items and/or transactions;
• control procedures for the largest account categories, and in particular the main reconciliations to be carried
out for controlling the information produced;
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• rules defining the framework of management information known as Group financial reporting guidelines;
• rules to be followed in order to manage cash flow requirements and financing thereof, investments of cash
surpluses, hedging of exchange rate risks.

These documents are updated on a regular basis, upon each change or application of new accounting standards,
under the responsibility of the Group’s Accounting and Consolidation department. Virbac has set up a reporting
system, which has been deployed in all entities within the Group, in order to ensure the quality and reliability of its
financial information. It is supplied via local accounting data, either by an interface, by drawing the required data
from the ERP (Enterprise resource planning) financial modules available to these entities, or by manual entry.
Special procedures have been defined for off-balance sheet commitments. These latter items stem essentially from
guarantees provided by the company. The provision of securities, deposits, endorsements and guarantees is subject
to the following controls:
• for the parent company: special authorisations from the supervisory board whenever such guarantees exceed
the annual authorisation given to the executive board;
• for the subsidiaries: material off-balance sheet commitments must be reviewed in advance by the parent company.

Formal processes

The financial processes implemented contribute to the quality and reliability of accounting and financial information.
Accounting and consolidation process
Information is generated via the half-yearly an annual consolidation process, supervised by a dedicated unit within
the Financial Affairs department and underpinned by accounting principles applicable to all subsidiaries, thereby
ensuring consistency of methodology.
Budgetary and management reporting process
Management Control coordinates the monthly budgetary consolidation and reporting process within the Group, using
information provided by the different operational departments and the branches. Concordance between the
management information from reporting and the accounting data constitutes the key principle of control for ensuring
the reliability of accounting and financial information. The management reporting system is used to monitor monthly
results and the main management indicators and to compare them with the budget and with the results from the
previous year. The management indicators are explained and analysed by Management Control in collaboration with
the local financial directors.
Each month, the executive board examines the summaries from the management reporting, analyses the significant
variations and decides on any corrective actions to be implemented where necessary.
Treasury process
A process for establishing an annual treasury plan was also implemented across the Group, making it possible to
control and consolidate the forecasting of cash movements of subsidiaries, a sign of the accuracy of sales and
expenditure forecasts and of working capital requirement management: customer collection, stock management and
supplier payment terms.
A policy of pooling excess cash and financing requirements daily in the euro zone means that the Group’s net
positions can be reduced and the management of its deposits or financings optimised. Outside Europe, a policy of
cash pooling was also implemented in order to limit counterparty risks and to optimise the use of lines of credit.

Items likely to have an impact in the event of a public offer
Pursuant to article L225-100-3 of the French commercial code, the items likely to have an impact in the event of a
public offer, i.e. the existence of a double voting right granted to all shares registered in the name of the same
shareholder for at least two years, are set out in the annual report on page 120.
Virbac’s main shareholder, the Dick family group, holds 49.7% of shares and 65.8% of voting rights.

Management of systems and areas for improvement
Actions to monitor and improve systems

The Virbac group is implementing continuous improvement actions for of its internal control and risk management
systems under the supervision of the executive board and the executive committee France, as well as under the
supervision of the audit committee and the supervisory board.
Supervisory board
The role of the supervisory board and its special committees is described on page 135 and 136 of the annual report.
Executive board
The executive board is responsible for defining and managing the approach of internal control and risk management,
relying on the operational departments to implement these measures (see page 136 and 137 of the annual report).
The functional departments carry out investigations into operations in their respective areas through their network of
experts or via regular audits (see pages 136 and 137 of the annual report).
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Statutory auditors
All the accounting and financial elements prepared by the consolidated subsidiaries are subject, at least and for the
most significant entities, to a limited audit during half-yearly closing and to an audit carried out by external auditors
when the year closes. The audit tasks in the different countries are given to the members of the Group’s network of
statutory auditors. They certify the regularity, sincerity and fair view presented by the consolidated statements and
the individual company statements. They are informed of the key factors in the year ahead in the process of
preparing the financial statements and they present a summary of their work to the Group accounting and financial
managers and to the audit committee at the half-yearly stage and when the year closes.

Financial communication

The importance and increasing role of communication and the need to deliver comprehensive quality financial
information have led the Virbac group to acquire the functions and skills required to present this information and to
control risks to the corporate image.
Annual report and periodic financial information
The Financial Affairs department is responsible for preparing the annual report and periodic financial information,
working closely with the Group Communications department, which involves in particular:
• defining and validating information in the annual document, half-year report and periodic financial announcements;
• supervising the work carried out by the annual report steering committee;
• distributing financial information;
• applying the stock market regulations regarding financial communication and managing relations with the AMF.
Press releases
The Group Communications department is responsible for media activities which could have an impact on the image,
reputation and integrity of the Virbac brand name. To achieve this, it works very closely with the Financial Affairs
department, in particular in activities and by distributing information which could have an impact on Virbac’s share price.

Improvement plan for the internal control and risk management system

The Virbac group has embarked on a process improvement project for its internal control and risk management system
in line with the general directions and priorities fixed by the chairman of the executive board. The actions implemented
are the responsibility of the functional and operational departments. They are presented to the audit committee.
Main achievements in 2016
The members of the executive board approved the following comments on 2016 which was marked by:
• continuing with action plans for major risks identified as priorities based on the Group’s updated major risk
map that was updated in 2015;
• international implementation of the risk management system. In 2016, this system was deployed in the
South African and French subsidiaries. Furthermore, the map of the Mexican subsidiary was updated, the last
edition of which dates back to 2013. It should be noted that the usual subsidiary response guideline was
amended with a particular focus on defining and implementing identified priority risk action plans;
• continuing to roll out internal corporate training to strengthen the risk management culture within the Group.
In 2016, about ten managers were trained at the company’s head office;
• project monitoring and management for the Group’s major products. This project was sponsored by two
members of the executive board and managed by the Risk Management department. The project’s objective
was to safeguard major products against the main threats that might affect them, other than competitive
threats. After a first stage of analysis was initiated in 2014, a set of action plans defined in 2015 have since
been managed with great precision. Twice a year, a steering committee meets with each risk owner to report
on the progress of measures and balance the various priorities.
Outlook for 2017
In terms of internal control and risk management, the outlook for the coming year includes the following:
• continue to roll out the risk management system on an international basis, giving priority to the main
subsidiaries with the highest stakes;
• definition and implementation of a specific operating mode to address the small subsidiaries;
• continue with the project to secure the Group’s major products: managing the action plans and widening the
scope of analysis to some of the Group’s areas;
• continue supporting risk owners and enhance the role they play in the implementation and monitoring of
action plans;
• develop the risk management culture by continuing the training on risk management for head office operating
activities;
• provide operational departments with support by helping them implement a methodology framework to
manage risks in their activities.
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Statutory auditors’ report prepared in
accordance with article L225-235 of
the French commercial code (Code de
commerce), on the report prepared by
the chairwoman of the supervisory board
•

Year ended December 31, 2016
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in French prepared in accordance with Article L225-235
of the French commercial code on the report prepared by the chairwoman of the supervisory board on the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and processing of accounting and financial information issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking users.
This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and the relevant professional standards
applicable in France.

To the shareholders,
In our capacity as statutory auditors of Virbac and in accordance with article L225-235 of the French commercial
code (Code de commerce), we hereby report to you on the report prepared by the chairwoman of your company in
accordance with article L225-68 of the French commercial code for the year ended December 31, 2016.
It is the chairwoman’s responsibility to prepare, and submit to the supervisory board for approval, a report on the
internal control and risk management procedures implemented by the company and containing the other disclosures
required by article L225-68 of the French commercial code, particularly in terms of corporate governance.
It is our responsibility:
• to report to you on the information contained in the chairwoman’s report in respect of the internal control and
risk management procedures relating to the preparation and processing of accounting and financial
information, and;
• to attest that this report contains the other disclosures required by article L225-68 of the French commercial
code, it being specified that we are not responsible for verifying the fairness of these disclosures.
We conducted our work in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.

INFORMATION ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES RELATING TO THE
PREPARATION AND PROCESSING OF ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Professional standards require that we perform the necessary procedures to assess the fairness of the information
provided in the chairwoman’s report in respect of the internal control and risk management procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of the accounting and financial information. These procedures mainly consisted in:
• obtaining an understanding of the internal control and risk management procedures relating to the
preparation and processing of the accounting and financial information on which the information presented in
the chairwoman’s report is based and the existing documentation;
• obtaining an understanding of the work involved in the preparation of this information and the existing
documentation;
• determining if any significant weaknesses in the internal control procedures relating to the preparation and
processing of the accounting and financial information that we may have noted in the course of our
engagement are properly disclosed in the chairwoman’s report.
On the basis of our work, we have nothing to report on the information in respect of the company’s internal control
and risk management procedures relating to the preparation and processing of the accounting and financial
information contained in the report prepared by the chairwoman of the supervisory board in accordance with article
L225-68 of the French commercial code.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES
We hereby attest that the chairwoman’s report includes the other disclosures required by article L225-68 of the
French commercial code.
Nice and Marseille, March 13, 2017
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges and Vincent Gros
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Consolidated financial report
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of financial position
Notes

2016

2015

Goodwill

A1-A3

342,368

330,488

Intangible assets

A2-A3

354,380

353,912

Tangible assets

A4

246,818

229,083

Other financial assets

A5

10,530

12,072

Share in companies accounted for by the equity method

A6

2,513

1,889

Deferred tax assets

A7

27,041

17,606

983,650

945,050

in € thousand

Non-current assets
Inventories and work in progress

A8

197,908

182,314

Trade receivables

A9

129,197

150,907

Other financial assets

A5

81

762

A10

57,870

100,355

Cash and cash equivalents

A11

48,454

51,163

Assets classified as held for sale

A12

-

-

433,511

485,500

1,417,161

1,430,550

Other receivables

Current assets
Assets
Share capital
Reserves attributable to the owners of the parent company
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company

A13

Non-controlling interests
Equity

10,573

10,573

463,055

427,837

473,628

438,410

47,159

43,880

520,787

482,290

A7

43,661

41,321

Provisions for employee benefits

A14

18,016

15,425

Other provisions

A15

2,558

2,986

Other financial liabilities

A16

438,460

523,562

Other payables

A17

Deferred tax liabilities

Non-current liabilities

583

889

503,278

584,183

Other provisions

A15

2,197

2,001

Trade payables

A18

105,261

115,026

Other financial liabilities

A16

157,057

133,305

Other payables

A17

128,580

113,745

393,096

364,077

1,417,161

1,430,550

Current liabilities
Liabilities
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Income statement
in € thousand
Revenue from ordinary activities

Notes

2016

2015

Cha nge

A19

871,828

852,623

2.3%

Purchases consumed

A20

-300,152

-297,852

External costs

A21

-181,927

-208,141

-269,714

-252,183

-11,345

-11,977

Personnel costs
Taxes and duties
Depreciations and provisions

A22

-26,997

-27,107

Other operating income and expenses

A23

1,167

2,097

82,860

57,460

-16,468

-19,150

66,392

38,310

2,621

-3,801

69,013

34,509

-16,453

-19,126

52,560

15,383

-14,987

-1,937

294

-778

37,867

12,668

198.9%

34,646

9,405

268.4%

3,221

3,263

-1.3%

Current operating profit before depreciation of assets arising
from acquisitions *
Depreciations of intangible assets arising from acquisitions

A22

Operating profit from ordinary activities
Other non-current income and expenses

A24

Operating result
Financial income and expenses

A25

Profit before tax
Income tax

A26

Share from companies' result accounted for by the equity method
Result for the period
attributable to the owners of the parent company
attributable to the non-controlling interests

44.2%

73.3%

100.0%

241.7%

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, per share

A27

€4.11

€1.12

268.4%

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, diluted per share

A27

€4.11

€1.12

268.4%

* In order to provide a clearer picture of its economic performance, the Group has been isolating, since 2015, the
impact of the depreciation on intangible assets resulting from acquisition transactions. Indeed, this one is relevant
given the latest business combinations operated by the Group. Consequently, the income statement shows a current
operating result before depreciations of intangible assets arising from acquisitions.
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Comprehensive income statement
in € thousand
Result for the period
Conversion gains and losses
Effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments
Items subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss (before tax)
Actuarial gains and losses
Items not subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss (before tax)
Other items of comprehensive income (before tax)
Tax on items subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss
Tax on items not subsequently reclassifiable to profit and loss
Withholding tax on distributions *
Comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the parent company
attributable to the non-controlling interests

2016

2015

Cha nge

37,867

12,668

198.9%

10,348

13,331

414

-266

10,762

13,065

-1,682

112

-1,682

112

-1601.5%

9,081

13,177

-31.1%

-139

91

-17.6%

576

-61

-5,126

-

42,258

25,875

35,106

24,992

40.5%

7,152

883

710.0%

63.3%

* Virbac has borne, in one of its subsidiaries, a withholding tax of over €5 million on distributions realised in 2016 in order
to channel available cash towards Virbac SA.

146

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT | FINANCIAL REPORT

Statement of change in equity
Share Reserves Conversion
Share
reserves
capital premiums

Result
for the
period

in € thousand
Equity as at 31/12/2014 10,573

6,534

361,867

-11,228

63,596

Equity
Nonattributable controlling
to the owners
interests
of the parent
company
431,342

50,848

Equity

482,190

2014 allocation of net income

-

-

63,596

-

-63,596

-

-

-

Distribution of dividends

-

-

-16,013

-

-

-16,013

-7,851

-23,864

Treasury shares

-

-

-440

-

-

-440

-

-440

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-1,471

-

-1,471

-

-1,471

Other variations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Comprehensive income

-

-

-124

15,711

9,405

24,992

883

25,875

Equity as at 31/12/2015 10,573

6,534

408,886

3,012

9,405

438,410

43,880

482,290

9,405

-

-9,405

-

-

-

2015 allocation of net income

-

-

Distribution of dividends

-

-

Treasury shares

-

-

Changes in scope

-

Other variations

-

Comprehensive income

-

-

-

-3,873

-3,873

205

-

-

205

-

205

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-93

-

-

-93

-

-93

-

-

-5,957

6,417

34,646

35,106

7,152

42,258

Equity as at 31/12/2016 10,573

6,534

412,446

9,429

34,646

473,628

47,159

520,787

The ordinary shareholders’meeting of June 24, 2016 decided to pay no dividend on the 2015 accounts.
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Cash flow statement
in € thousand

Notes

2016

2015

37,867

12,668

A6

-294

778

A14-A22

44,070

47,697

A7

-7,745

-6,168

Result for the period
Elimination of share from companies’ profit accounted for by the equity method
Elimination of depreciations and provisions
Elimination of deferred tax change
Elimination of gains and losses on disposals

A23

Other income and expenses with no cash impact
Cash flow
Effect of net change in inventories
Effect of net change in trade receivables
Effect of net change in trade payables
Effect of net change in other receivables and payables

A8

965
417

71,759

56,357

-11,650

-2,573

A9

23,710

-9,734

A18

-10,292

31,136

A10-A17

49,866

-41,157

51,634

-22,328

19,056

12,192

142,449

46,221

Effect of change in working capital requirements
Net financial interests paid

-47
-2,092

A25

Net cash flow generated by operating activities
Acquisitions of intangible assets

A2-A18

-5,653

-5,519

Acquisitions of tangible assets

A4-A18

-34,380

-37,017

A23

314

1,155

A5

Disposals of intangible and tangible assets
Change in financial assets

-2,618

-3,425

Change in debts relative to acquisitions

-

1,305

Acquisitions of subsidiaries or activities

-696

-377,294

-

-

Disposals of subsidiaries or activities
Withholding tax on distributions

A17

Dividends received
Net cash flow allocated to investing activities
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests
Change in treasury shares
Increase/decrease of capital
Cash investments

A5

-5,126
-

-

-48,159

-420,794

-

-16,013

-3,873

-7,853

-4

49

-

-

673

2,238

Debt issuance

A16

104,612

604,338

Repayments of debt

A16

-177,274

-524,517

Net financial interests paid

A25

Net cash flow from financing activities
Change in cash position

148

-19,056

-12,192

-94,922

46,051

-632

-328,522
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Statement of change in cash position
in € thousand
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft
Accrued interests not yet matured
Opening net cash position

2016

2015

51,163

375,912

-12,098

-7,845

-54

-24

39,011

368,043

Cash and cash equivalents

48,454

51,163

Bank overdraft

-9,158

-12,098

Accrued interests not yet matured
Closing net cash position
Impact of currency conversion adjustments
Impact of changes in scope
Net change in cash position

-36

-54

39,260

39,011

881

-1,181

-

671

-632

-328,522

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
General information note
Virbac is an independent global pharmaceutical laboratory exclusively dedicated to animal health and markets a full
range of products designed for companion animals and food producing animals.
The Virbac share is listed on the Paris stock exchange in section A of the Euronext.
Virbac is a public limited company under French law with an executive board and a supervisory board. Its trading
name is “Virbac”. The company was established in 1968 in Carros.
The joint ordinary and extraordinary shareholders’ meeting held on June 17, 2014 adopted the resolution on reviewing
the articles of association. Therefore, the company’s lifetime was extended to 99 years, i.e until June 17, 2113.
The head office is located at 1ère avenue 2065m LID, 06516 Carros. The company is registered on the Grasse Trade
registry under the number 417350311 RCS Grasse.
The 2016 consolidated financial statements were approved by the executive board on February 16, 2017. They will
be submitted for approval to the shareholders' general meeting on June 23, 2017; the meeting has the power to
have the statements amended.
The explanatory notes below support the presentation of the consolidated financial statements and form an integral
part thereof.

Significant events for the period
Resumption of production at the St. Louis facility and lifting of the warning letter

In the United States, the production, release and sale of historical products resumed in 2016 and continued
throughout the year. At the same time, the Virbac group continued to invest and implement the necessary upgrades
to the quality system at the St. Louis facility in order to ensure full pharmaceutical compliance with the rules of
cGMP (current Good manufacturing practices).
Further to its inspection carried out in December 2014, the FDA (Food and drug administration) conducted follow-up
inspections at the St. Louis industrial site from August 9, to September 7, 2016. After this inspection, the FDA
handed the Virbac Corporation a 483 report containing five observations. The Group continued its compliance efforts
and, in December, received from the FDA the letter confirming the lifting of the warning letter.
This announcement allows the St. Louis production site to fully recover its cGMP status and beyond that, gives it the
opportunity to file new registration and variation files with the FDA. This also allows Virbac to continue the transfer
of production of Sentinel Spectrum to the St. Louis manufacturing site, as originally planned.
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Request for waiver

Through its pool of banks, Virbac had its financial covenant compliance clause relaxed until the end of 2016. The net
debt/Ebitda ratio (based on the definition in note A16) must now be below 5.5 at actual rates compared to 4.5
previously in effect. The request for waiver made at year-end was accepted for all of the creditors, with the
exception of nine Schuldschein investors amounting to €70 million, early repaid by Virbac at the beginning of
January 2017. Furthermore, through its pool of banks, Virbac had its financial covenant compliance clause relaxed
for 2017, for the end of June and the end of December, in the same proportions as in 2016.

Significant events after the closing date
No significant event has occurred since the 2016 year-end closing.

Scope
The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2016 include the financial statements of the companies
that Virbac controls indirectly or directly in law or in fact. The list of consolidated companies is provided in note A37.
No change occurred in the scope during the fiscal year.

Main accounting principles applied
The Virbac group's consolidated financial statements were drawn up in line with the international accounting
standards as adopted by the European Union (accounting basis available on the ec.europa.eu website). The
international accounting standards include the IFRS (International financial reporting standards), the IAS
(International accounting standards) and their interpretations, SIC (Standards interpretations committee) and IFRIC
(International financial reporting interpretations committee).
For the presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the 2016 financial year, the Group applied all
standards and interpretations in force at the European level, applicable to periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. These standards and interpretations are as follows:
• amendments to IAS 1, “disclosure initiative”, applicable for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2016;
• amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, “acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”, applicable for
financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2016;
• amendment to IAS 19, “defined benefit plans: employee contributions”, applicable for financial years
beginning on or after February 1, 2015;
• amendments to IAS 27, “equity method in separate financial statements”, applicable for financial years
beginning on or after January 1, 2016;
• amendments to IFRS 11, “acquisitions of interests in joint operations”, applicable for financial years beginning
on or after January 1, 2016;
• amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, “bearer plants”, applicable for financial years beginning on or after
January 1, 2016;
• amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, “investment entities: applying the consolidation exemption”,
applicable for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2016;
• annual improvements (2010-2012 cycle), “annual improvements to IFRSs published in December 2013”,
applicable for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2016;
• annual improvements (2012-2014 cycle), “annual improvements to IFRSs published in September 2014”,
applicable for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
The application of these new standards had no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for 2016.
On the reporting date of these consolidated financial statements, the following standards and interpretations were
submitted by IASB (International accounting standards board) but were still not adopted by the European Union or
still had no option for early application:
• IFRS 9, “financial instruments”;
• IFRS 15, “revenue from contracts with customers”;
• IFRS 16, “leases”;
• amendments to IAS 7, “information related to financing activities”;
• amendments to IAS 12, “recognition of deferred income tax assets for unrealised losses”;
• amendments to IFRS 2, “classification and assessment of share-based payment transactions”;
• amendments to IFRS 15 clarification;
• amendments to IFRS 4 linkages between IFRS 4 and IFRS 9;
• amendments to IAS 40 on clarification regarding transfers of investment property;
• annual improvements (2012-2014 cycle) - annual improvements to IFRSs published in December 2016;
• IFRIC 22 foreign currency transactions and advance consideration.
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The Group is currently analysing the practical consequences of these new texts and the effects of their application on
the financial statements. Where necessary, the Group will apply these standards in its financial statements once they
are adopted by the European Union.

Consolidation rules
Consolidation methods

Pursuant to IFRS 10, the Group’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the entities controlled
by Virbac. The notion of control is now based on the fulfilment of the three following criteria:
• the parent company has power over the subsidiary where it has actual rights that give it the capacity to direct
the relevant activities;
• the parent company is exposed to or has rights to variable returns because of its connections to that entity;
• the parent company has the capacity to exercise its power over that entity such as to enable it to affect the
amount of returns that it receives.
The entities over which Virbac exercises such control are consolidated by global integration. As applicable, any noncontrolling (minority) interests are valued on the date of acquisition in the amount of the fair value of the identified
net assets and liabilities.
Those companies over which Virbac exercises joint control or significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.
All companies have been consolidated based on the financial statements as at December 31, 2016.

Conversion of the financial statements

The functional currency in the Group's foreign subsidiaries is the current local currency, with the exception of Virbac
Uruguay SA (formerly Santa Elena) whose functional currency is the US dollar.
The financial statements of foreign companies for which the functional currency is not the euro are converted
according to following principles:
• the balance sheet items are converted at the rate in force at the close of the period. The conversion
difference resulting from the application of a different exchange rate for opening equity is shown as equity on
the consolidated balance sheet;
• the income statements are converted at the average rate for the period. The conversion difference resulting
from the application of an exchange rate different from the balance sheet rate is shown as equity on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Elimination of inter-company transactions

All transactions between Group companies, as well as inter-company profits, are eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements.

Accounting principles and methods
Goodwill

Goodwill recognised as an asset in the financial statements represents the excess from the acquisition cost of the
shares in companies acquired at the fair value of the assets and liabilities identifiable on the acquisition date. It also
includes the value of the acquired business.
In line with the provisions of IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", goodwill is at the very least tested once, in the second
half of the year, regardless of whether there is an indication of an impairment loss, and consistently whenever
events or new circumstances indicate an impairment loss.
For the purposes of these tests, the values of the assets are grouped by CGU (Cash generating unit). In the cases of
goodwill, the legal entity is used as the CGU. In the implementation of goodwill impairment tests, the Group uses an
approach based on estimated future cash flow (estimation of value in use). This approach consists of calculating the
value in use of the CGU by discounting estimated future cash flows. When the value in use of the CGU proves lower
than its net carrying amount, an impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised to reduce the net carrying
amount of the assets of the CGU to their recoverable amount, which is defined as the higher of the net fair value
and the value in use.
The assessments made for the purposes of the goodwill impairment tests are sensitive to the assumptions used as
regards not only the selling price and future costs, but also the discount and growth rates. The future cash flows
used for the impairment tests are calculated based on estimates ranging from five to fifteen years. The choice of
cash flow horizon takes into account the product life cycle in the veterinary industry, which is very long and
generally far exceeds five years. For cash flow forecasts, the perpetual growth rates used, which depend on products
and market growth expectations, and the discount rates based on the weighted average cost of capital after tax
method, are presented in note A3.

Intangible assets

In accordance with the criteria stipulated in IAS 38, an intangible asset is recognised as an asset in the financial
statements where it is likely that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Group.
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Intangible assets are evaluated at the historical acquisition cost, including acquisition charges, less accumulated
depreciation and, if necessary, less any accumulated impairment loss.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed annually to ensure that their useful lives have not become finite.
The intangible assets with finite useful lives are subject to a linear depreciation, from which time the asset is ready
to be used:
• concessions, patents, licences and Marketing authorisations: amortised over their useful lives;
• standard software (office tools, etc.): amortised over a period of three or four years;
• ERP: amortised over a period of five to ten years.
During the useful life of an intangible asset, it may happen that the estimation of its useful life has become
inadequate. In addition to what is stated in IAS 38, the duration and method of depreciation of this asset is reexamined and if the useful life of the asset is different from previous estimations, the depreciation period is
consequently modified.
Research and development costs are capitalised from the moment they satisfy the criteria set out in IAS 38. Within
the framework of the Group's activities, the main development costs are associated with the products that may only
be exploited with Marketing authorisation. The Group considers that until the date when this Marketing authorisation
is obtained, all IAS 38 criteria are not fulfilled and the related costs are posted as expenses.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in standard IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the potential impairment loss
of intangible assets is examined each year. In the case of assets with indefinite useful lives, the tests are carried out
during the second half of the year, regardless of whether there is any indication of impairment, and consistently
whenever events or new circumstances indicate an impairment loss for assets with defined useful lives. For the
purposes of this testing, the Group takes account of sales generated by the intangible asset acquired. When carrying
out intangible asset impairment tests, the Group takes an approach based on estimated future cash flows (estimate
of value in use). The future cash flows used for the impairment tests are calculated based on estimates ranging from
five to fifteen years. For cash flow forecasts, the perpetual growth rates used, which depend on the products and
market growth expectations, and the discount rates based on the weighted average cost of capital after tax method,
are presented in note A3.

Tangible assets

In accordance with IAS 16, tangible assets are evaluated at the historical acquisition cost, including acquisition
charges, or at the initial production cost, minus the accumulated depreciations and, where applicable, the
accumulated impairment losses.
In accordance with IAS 23 revised, loan costs are incorporated into the acquisition costs of eligible assets. In
accordance with IAS 17, the goods acquired through capital leases are tangible when the lease contracts have
transferred to the Group almost all risks and advantages inherent to the ownership of these goods.
Assets are broken down by component, each component having its own specific depreciation period, in line with the
depreciation period of similar assets.
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, namely:
• buildings:
− structure: forty years;
− components: ten to twenty years;
• materials and industrial equipment:
− structure: twenty years;
− components: five to ten years;
− computer hardware: three or four years;
• other tangible assets: five to ten years.

Financial assets

The Group's other financial assets include mainly loans (especially loans to personnel), other fixed receivables and
other operating receivables.
They are recognised and posted at the initial loan amount. A provision is recorded, if applicable, where there is a risk
of non-recovery.

Other financial assets at fair value

Observable data is used in the calculation of the Group's financial assets where these are measured at fair value.
The only financial assets that come under this category are hedging instruments and investment securities.

Inventories and work in progress

Inventories and work in progress are accounted for at the lowest value of the cost and the net realisable value.
The cost of inventories includes all acquisition costs, transformation costs and other costs incurred to bring the
inventories to their current location and condition. The acquisition costs of inventories include the purchase price,
customs fees and other non-retrievable taxes, as well as transport and handling costs and other costs directly
attributable to their acquisition. The rebates and other similar items are deducted from this cost.
Inventories in raw materials and supplies are evaluated in accordance with the “weighted average cost method”.
Inventories in trading goods are also evaluated in accordance with the “weighted average cost method”. The
acquisition cost of raw material inventories includes all additional purchase costs.
The work in progress and the finished products are valued at their actual manufacturing cost including direct and
indirect production costs.
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Finished products are valued in each subsidiary at the price invoiced by the Group's selling company, plus
distribution costs; the margin included in these inventories is cancelled in the consolidated accounts taking into
account the complete average production cost stated for the Group's selling company.
Spare parts are part of rotating inventories and the inventory at closing is valued based on the last purchase price.
An impairment loss is recorded in order to return the inventories to their net realisable value, when the products
become damaged or unusable or also according to sales forecasts for these products assessed according to the market.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are classified as current assets to the extent that they form part of the Group's normal operating cycle.
Trade receivables are recognised and recorded at the initial invoice total, minus provisions for depreciation. An
estimation of the total bad debt is made when it becomes unlikely that the full amount will be recovered. Bad debts
are written off when identified as such.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash is made up of bank balances, securities and cash equivalents providing good liquidity. The bank accounts
subject to restrictions (frozen accounts) are excluded from the cash flow and reclassified as other financial assets.

Treasury shares

Shares in the parent company held by the parent company or its consolidated subsidiaries (whether classified in the
separate financial statements as non-current financial assets or marketable securities) are recognised as a deduction
from shareholders' equity at their purchase cost. Any gain or loss on disposal of these shares is directly recognised
(net of tax) in shareholders' equity and not recognised in income for the year.

Conversion reserves

This item represents the conversion difference of net opening positions for foreign companies, arising from the
differences between the conversion rate at the date of entry into the consolidation and the closing rate of the period,
and also other conversion differences recorded on the profit for the period arising from differences between the
conversion rate of the income statement (average rate) and the closing rate for the period.

Reserves

This item represents the share attributable to the owners of the parent company in the reserves accumulated by the
consolidated companies, since their entry into the scope of consolidation.

Non-controlling interests

This item represents the share of the shareholders outside the Group in the equity and the income of the
consolidated companies.

Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

The Group holds derivative financial instruments solely for the purpose of reducing its exposure to rate or exchange
risks on balance sheet items and its firm or highly probable commitments.
Virbac uses hedge accounting to offset the impact of the hedged item and of the hedging instrument in the income
statement, on a quasi-systematic basis, when the following conditions are met:
• the impact on the income statement is significant;
• the hedging links and effectiveness of the hedging can be properly demonstrated.

Other financial liabilities

The other financial liabilities mainly represent loans from credit institutions and debts related to capital lease
contracts. These loans and receivables are accounted for at depreciated cost.

Pension schemes, retirement bonuses and other post-employment benefits
Defined contribution retirement plans
The advantages associated with defined contribution retirement plans are expensed as incurred.
Defined benefit retirement plans
The Group's obligations resulting from defined benefit retirement plans are determined by using the actuarial
method for projected unit credits. These commitments are measured at each balance sheet date. The commitment
calculation model is based on a number of actuarial assumptions. The discount rate is determined in relation to the
yield on investment grade corporate bonds (issuers rated "AA"). The Group's obligations are subject to a provision
for their net amount of the fair value of the hedging assets. In accordance with IAS 19 revised, actuarial differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Other provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation resulting from a past event which will probably
lead to an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated. The amount recorded under provisions is
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date and is
discounted if the effect is material.
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Taxation

The Group's subsidiaries record their tax impact depending on the fiscal regulations applicable locally. The parent
company and its main French subsidiaries are part of a fiscally integrated group. Under the terms of the tax
consolidation agreement, each consolidated company is required to account for tax as if it were taxed separately.
The income or expense of tax consolidation is recognised in the parent company's accounts.
The Group recognises deferred taxes on temporary differences between the carrying amount and the tax base of an
asset or liability. Tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
In accordance with IAS 12, which under certain conditions authorises the offsetting of debts and tax loans, the
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset by fiscal entity.

Non-current assets held with a view to sale and abandoned activities

IFRS 5 states that an activity is considered abandoned when the classification criteria of an asset being held with a
view to sale have been fulfilled or when the Group ceases the activity. An asset is classified as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be mainly recovered through sale rather than through continued use.
At December 31, 2016, no asset was classified as held for sale.

Revenue from ordinary activities

Revenue from ordinary activities comprises the value before tax of the goods and services sold by the integrated
companies as part of their normal operations, after elimination of intra-group sales.
Sales are recognised on the date on which the majority of the risks and advantages inherent to ownership are
transferred, generally when the customer physically receives the product. Sales are measured at fair value of the
consideration received or to be received, that is net of commercial discounts or rebates.
Some expenses, the amount of which is proportional to sales and that meet the definition of income from ordinary
activities, are recognised as a deduction from Group sales.
Financial discounts and provisions for returns are also recognised as a deduction from sales.
The Group measures its provisions for deferred discounts granted to customers based on its contractual or implicit
commitments identified at the reporting date.

Personnel costs

Personnel costs especially include the cost of retirement plans. In accordance with IAS 19 revised, actuarial
differences are posted as other comprehensive income.
They also include optional and compulsory profit sharing.

Taxes and duties

The Group has opted for a classification of the business added value assessment (CVAE) in the "taxes and duties"
item of the operating income.

Operating profit

Operating profit corresponds to income from ordinary activities, minus operating expenses.
Operating expenses include:
• purchases consumed and external costs;
• personnel costs;
• taxes and duties;
• depreciations and provisions;
• other operating income and expenses.
Operating items also include tax credits that may be characterised as public subsidies and that meet the criteria of
IAS 20 (it may mainly concern research tax credit and tax credit on low salaries).
Current operating profit before depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions
In order to provide a clearer picture of its economic performance, the Group now uses the current operating profit
from ordinary activities before depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions as the main indicator of performance.
To this end, it isolates the impact of the depreciation on intangible assets resulting from acquisition transactions.
This turned out to have a material effect considering the latest external growth that took place through acquisitions.
Operating profit from ordinary activities
Operating profit from ordinary activities corresponds to operating profit, excluding the impact of other non-current
income and expenses.
Other non-current income and expenses
Other non-current income and expenses are non-recurring income and expenses, or income and expenses resulting
from one-off decisions or operations for an unusual amount. They are presented on a separate line in the income
statement in order to make it easier to read and understand current operational performance.
This mainly includes the following items which, where appropriate, are described in a note to the consolidated
financial statements (note A24):
• restructuring costs linked to plans of a significant size;
• impairment of assets of a considerable size;
• the effect of revaluing inventories acquired as part of a business combination at fair value;
• and any revaluation of the interest previously held, in the event of a change in control.
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Financial income and expenses

This mainly includes interest and other assimilated income and expenses.
They also include exchange gains and losses.

Result per share

The net result per share is calculated by dividing the net result attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company by the total number of shares issued and outstanding at the close of the period (that is net of treasury
shares). Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net result attributable to the shareholders of the
parent company by the total number of shares outstanding, plus, in the event of the issue of dilutive instruments,
the maximum number of shares that could be issued (upon conversion into ordinary shares of Virbac equity
instruments, thereby giving deferred access to Virbac capital).

Main sources of uncertainty relating to estimations
The drawing up of consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with international accounting standards
implies that the Group makes a number of estimates and assumptions believed to be realistic and reasonable.
Certain facts and circumstances could lead to changes in estimates and assumptions, which could affect the value of
assets, liabilities, equity and Group income.

Acquisition prices

Some acquisition contracts relating to business combinations or the purchase of intangible assets, include a clause
likely to change the price of the acquisition, depending on the objectives associated with financial income, the
obtaining of Marketing authorisation, or results of efficacy testing.
In this case, the Group should estimate the acquisition price at the close of the fiscal year, based on the most
realistic assumptions as regards for achieving these objectives.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group has intangible assets that were purchased or acquired through business combinations, in addition to the
resulting goodwill. As indicated in the "Accounting principles and methods" section, the Group performs at least one
test annually on impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for which the useful life cannot be defined. These
impairment tests are based on an evaluation of future cash flows for a period of five to fifteen years. The evaluations
made at the time of these tests are sensitive to assumptions relating to the sale price and future costs, but also in
terms of discount rates and growth. These sensitivity calculations make it possible to measure the Group's exposure
to significant variations in growth rates into infinity.
The Group may depreciate certain fixed assets in the event of deterioration in earning prospects for these assets or
if there is a loss index value for one of these assets.
As at December 31, 2016, the net total of goodwill was €342,368 thousand and the value of the intangible assets
was €354,380 thousand.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences between tax and accounting values of assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax assets, in particular those relating to carried forward tax losses, are recognised only if it
is likely that the Group will have sufficient future taxable income, which is based on a significant assumption.
At each balance sheet date, the Group has to analyse the origin of losses for each of the tax entities in question and remeasure the amount of deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of making sufficient taxable profits in the future.

Provisions for pension schemes and other post-employment benefits

As indicated in note A14, the Group has established retirement plans as well as other post-employment benefits.
The corresponding commitments were calculated using actuarial methods that take account of assumptions such as
the benchmark salary for scheme beneficiaries and the likelihood of the persons in question being able to benefit
from the scheme, and the discount rate. These assumptions are updated annually. Actuarial differences are
immediately recognised in other comprehensive income.
The total commitment relating to personnel benefits was €18,016 thousand as at December 31, 2016.

Other provisions

The other provisions deal essentially with miscellaneous commercial and social liabilities and disputes.
No provisions are established if the company considers that the liability is contingent (as defined by IAS 37). As at
December 31, 2016, the total amount of other provisions was €4,755 thousand.
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A1. Goodwill
Change in goodwill by CGU
Gross value
as at
31/12/2015

Impairment
value as at
31/12/2015

Book value
as at
31/12/2015

Increases

Sales

Italy

1,585

-

1,585

-

-

-

-

1,585

Denmark

4,643

-

4,643

-

-

-

-

4,643

Leishmaniosis
vaccine

5,421

5,421

-

-

-

-

5,421

Greece

1,358

-

1,358

-

-

-

-

1,358

Colombia

1,837

-

1,837

-

-

-

131

1,968

Impair- Conversion
ment of gains and
value
losses

Book value
as at
31/12/2016

in € thousand

15,727

-

15,727

-

-

-

89

15,816

236,563

-3,767

232,796

-

-

-

7,588

240,384

Australia

3,388

-335

3,054

-

-

-

37

3,091

Peptech

3,241

-

3,241

-

-

-

67

3,308

New Zealand

15,957

-166

15,791

-

-

-

793

16,584

Chile

30,614

-

30,614

-

-

-

2,678

33,292

Uruguay

4,370

-

4,370

-

-

-

143

4,513

SBC

7,555

-

7,555

-

-

-

310

7,865

Other CGUs

4,206

-1,710

2,496

-

-

-

44

2,540

336,465

-5,978

330,488

-

-

-

11,881

342,368

India
United States

Goodwill

A2. Intangible assets
Change in intangible assets
Concessions,
patents, licences
and brands
in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2015
Acquisitions and other increases
Disposals and other decreases
Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2016
Depreciation as at 31/12/2015
Depreciation expense
Impairment losses (net of reversals)
Disposals and other decreases
Changes in scope

Other
intangible
assets

Intangible
assets
in progress

Intangible
assets

Indefinite life

Finite life

169,755

236,425

46,482

6,497

459,159

-

10

2,274

5,204

7,489

-280

-85

-

-

-365

-

-

-

-

-

-149

605

2,020

-2,544

-68

7,775

8,580

400

319

17,074

177,102

245,535

51,176

9,476

483,289

-540

-64,727

-39,733

-248

-105,248

-

-17,425

-3,826

-

-21,251

69

-19

-

-

50

249

29

-

-

279

-

-

-

-

-

-

169

14

-

183

3

-2,539

-343

-43

-2,922

-219

-84,512

-43,888

-291

-128,909

Net value as at 31/12/2015

169,215

171,698

6,749

6,249

353,912

Net value as at 31/12/2016

176,883

161,023

7,288

9,185

354,380

Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Depreciation as at 31/12/2016

156

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT | FINANCIAL REPORT

The other intangible assets largely corresponds to IT projects in several of the Group's subsidiaries.
The “Other intangible assets” all have definite useful lives.
The increase in the item “Other intangible assets” is primarily due to software investments at Virbac SA (amounting to
€1.6 million). Virbac SA’s software investments also account for a €2.6 million increase in intangible assets in progress.
The increase of the intangible assets in progress is, for €2.3 million, also linked to a licensing agreement with a CRO
(Contract research organisation) developing a range of products for food producing animals. A total consideration of
€9.5 million is anticipated for the worldwide rights and split between upfront and milestone payments, on a productby-product basis, conditional on their successful development and on the registration of each project within certain
predefined timelines.
The increase in the item “Concessions, patents, licences and brands” appearing below is related to currency rate fluctuations.

Concessions, patents, licences and brands

The Group's intangible assets are comprised mainly of:
• rights relating to the patents, know-how and Marketing authorisations necessary for the Group's production
activities and commercialisation procedures;
• trademarks;
• distribution rights, customers lists and other rights on intangible assets.
This item mainly includes intangible assets purchased and treated as per the principles set out in standard IAS 38,
as well as assets acquired as part of external growth operations as defined by IFRS 3.
As at December 31, 2016, this item comprised the following:
Acquisition
date

Brands

Patents
and
know-how

Marketing
authorisations
and registration
rights

Customers
lists and
others

Total

United States: Sentinel

2015

47,529

35,837

54,890

16,241

154,497

SBC

2015

-

4,392

2,006

-

6,398

Uruguay: Santa Elena

2013

3,719

10,466

-

-

14,185

Australia: Axon

2013

987

1,585

-

-

2,572

Australia: Fort Dodge

2010

1,657

493

-

-

2,150

New Zealand

2012

3,497

1,046

-

3,984

8,527

in € thousand

2012

22,633

42,488

-

12,445

77,566

Multimin

2011-2012

3,626

6,629

-

-

10,255

Peptech

2011

1,061

246

-

-

1,307

Colombia: Synthesis

2011

1,958

-

1,103

-

3,061

Schering-Plough Europe

2008

4,879

435

6,802

-

12,116

India: GSK

2006

12,583

-

-

-

12,583

Leishmaniosis vaccine

2003

-

2,068

15,827

-

17,894

7,768

1,438

4,437

1,151

14,794

111,897

107,122

85,065

33,821

337,906

Centrovet

Others
Total intangible assets

The classification of intangible assets, according to their useful life, arises from the analysis of all relevant economic
and legal factors, making it possible to conclude whether or not there is a foreseeable limit to the period over which
the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity.
Innovative or differentiated products in general, and vaccines and other assets from biotechnologies in particular,
are generally classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, once a detailed analysis has been conducted
and experts have given their opinions on their potential. This approach is founded on Virbac's past experience.
As at December 31, 2016

in € thousand

Intangible assets with
indefinite life

Intangible assets with
finite life

Total

111,897

-

111,897

Patents and know-how

46,003

61,119

107,122

Marketing authorisations and registration rights

Brands

18,961

66,104

85,065

Customers lists and others

22

33,800

33,822

Total intangible assets

176,883

161,023

337,906
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No brands are classified as intangible assets with finite useful lives and therefore no trademarks are amortised.

A3. Impairment of assets
At the end of the 2016 financial year, Virbac conducted intangible asset impairment tests. These involve comparing their
net carrying amount, including acquisition goodwill, to the recoverable amount of each CGU.
A fair value assessment of assets acquired during the year was conducted on the date of acquisition. Accordingly,
unless there is an indication of a loss of value between acquisition date and year-end closure of the financial
statements, the assets in question are not tested for impairment at year-end.
The CGUs are homogeneous groups of assets whose continued use generates cash inflows that are substantially
independent of cash inflows generated by other groups of assets.
The net carrying amount of the CGUs includes acquisition goodwill, tangible and intangible assets as well as other
assets and liabilities that can be directly assigned to the CGUs and that contribute directly to the generation of
future cash flows.
The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined using the value in use. This is based on estimates of future
discounted cash flows, commonly known as the DCF method.
Future cash flows are cash flows, net of tax, and are valued based on cash flow forecasts consistent with the budget
and the latest mid-term estimates.
Beyond the future cash flow horizon (from 5 to a maximum of 15 years based on tested CGUs and product life cycle,
market projections and the latest business developments), an infinite growth rate is applied to the terminal value.
Virbac assumed a zero infinite growth rate for Marketing authorisations and patents. For companies, the infinite
growth rate was calculated at 2% for mature markets like Europe, North America, Japan and Australia, at 3% for
Chile and at 5% for emerging markets like India.
The discount rate used for these calculations is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital, amounting to 7.5%
for 2016. This rate was increased by 2 points for some CGUs, i.e a rate of 9.5% in 2016 (in particular for Chile), in order
to take into account risks inherent to some markets. This discount rate is post-tax applied to post-tax cash flows.
The CGUs are detailed in note A2.
As at December 31, 2016, based on these tests, no impairment was recorded.
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Sensitivity tests

The Group tested for sensitivity to key assumptions as they pertain to all of the tested CGUs. Changes in
assumptions are as follows:
• increase of 2.0 points in the discount rate;
• decrease of 2.0 points in the infinite growth rate.
Both changes in key assumptions would not involve any impairment of tested assets, except on the Centrovet CGU,
which would require an impairment of €32.4 million in the event of a 2.0 point increase in the discount rate and an
impairment of €9.6 million in the event of a 2.0 point decrease in the infinite growth rate.
Moreover, for the five most significant CGUs (which accounted for 80% of the gross value of intangible assets and
goodwill as at December 31, 2016), Virbac carried out sensitivity tests on a change in operating income (Ebit rate).
Only the Centrovet CGU would require impairment in the event of rate decreases of 2 and 4 points, amounting to
€1 million and €21.6 million respectively.
Moreover, the Group conducts additional sensitivity testing based on the break-even point for all of the tested CGUs.
The break-even point refers to the discount rate, combined with a zero perpetual growth rate, on the basis of which
Virbac would have to record an impairment.
For the major CGUs, the results of the break-even point are presented below.
Net book value of
CGU as at 31/12/2016

Discount rate, combined into a zero perpetual
growth rate, from which impairment is
established

482,172

8.9%

SBC

19,211

12.9%

Uruguay: Santa Elena

31,956

13.1%

Australia

23,459

43.5%

31,211

19.6%

179,035

8.6%

in € thousand
United States

New Zealand
Centrovet
Multimin

12,712

39.9%

Peptech

7,529

80.0%

Colombia

7,465

47.0%

Schering-Plough Europe

14,606

14.7%

India: GSK

48,415

34.5%

Leishmaniosis vaccine

26,983

8.7%

Finally, for some significant CGUs, additional sensitivity testing on the level of business activity is carried out by
Virbac. This testing involves significantly lowering sales and operating margin expectations.

A4. Tangible assets
Tangible assets are goods that have been bought or acquired through leasing contracts.
As at December 31, 2016, the gross value of goods acquired through leasing contracts and restated as tangible
assets, in accordance with IAS 17, totalled €9,415 thousand (€4,475 thousand in assets at the Centrovet production
site in Chile and €4,264 thousand in Virbac computer hardware).
The main assets constituting the Group's tangible assets are:
• the land;
• the constructions, which include:
− the buildings;
− development of buildings;
• technical facilities, materials and industrial equipment;
• other tangible assets, which notably include:
− IT equipment;
− office furniture;
− vehicles.
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Land

Buildings

20,345

168,235

25

Other
tangible
assets

Tangible
assets
in progress

Tangible
assets

163,465

30,261

33,982

416,288

5,463

5,488

3,194

23,019

37,189

-64

-250

-4,306

-968

-

-5,588

-

-

-

-

-

0

in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2015
Acquisitions and other increases
Disposals and other decreases
Changes in scope

Technical
facilities,
materials and
industrial
equipment

-

469

6,179

163

-12,361

-5,550

596

1,428

1,517

631

1,265

5,437

20,902

175,345

172,344

33,280

45,905

447,775

Depreciation as at 31/12/2015

-

-78,850

-89,216

-19,139

-

-187,206

Depreciation expense

-

-7,085

-10,945

-3,884

-

-21,914

Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2016

Impairment losses (net of reversals)

-

-3

-21

-

-

-24

Disposals and other decreases

-

238

4,295

875

-

5,408

Changes in scope

-

-

-

-

-

0

Transfers

-

1,053

2,656

1,115

-

4,825

Conversion gains and losses

-

-675

-1,007

-367

-

-2,048

Impairment as at 31/12/2016

-

-85,322

-94,237

-21,400

-

-200,958

Net value as at 31/12/2015

20,345

89,385

74,249

11,122

33,982

229,083

Net value as at 31/12/2016

20,902

90,023

78,107

11,880

45,905

246,818

Virbac US recorded a €16.2 million increase in tangible assets, most of which were investments made in preparation
for the resumption by Virbac of manufacturing of its Sentinel range products (€10.2 million).
Furthermore, productive investments were made in Carros (including more than €4 million in building fixtures and
fittings), in Australia, as well as in Chile and Mexico, to finalise Argo Navis facility.
Commissioning of these various investments are shown on the line “Transfers”.
This is also where the disposals of completely depreciated assets are isolated.
The currency effect generated a €3.4 million increase in the net asset value.

A5. Other financial assets
Change in other financial assets
2015

Increases Decreases

Changes Transfers
in scope

in € thousand

Conversion
gains and
losses

2016

741

2,645

-37

-

39

-55

3,332

11,283

-

-4,133

-

-

-

7,150

43

-

-

-

-

-

43

5

-

-

-

-

-

5

12,072

2,645

-4,171

-

39

-55

10,530

762

15

-678

-

3

-21

81

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Restricted cash

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

762

15

-678

-

3

-21

81

12,834

2,661

-4,849

-

41

-76

10,611

Loans and other financial receivables
Currency and interest rate derivatives
Restricted cash
Other
Other financial assets, non-current
Loans and other financial receivables

Other financial assets, current
Other financial assets
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The decrease in value of derivatives is due primarily to the portion of the exchange rate included in the re-evaluation
of the €/CLP cross currency swap.
The increase in the line loans and other fixed receivables basically refers to the security deposit made as part of the
factoring contracts that were set up.

Other financial assets classified according to their maturity
As at December 31, 2016
Payments
in € thousand

less than 1 year

from 1 to 5 years

Total

more than 5 years

81

3,332

-

3,413

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

7,150

-

7,150

Restricted cash

-

43

-

43

Other

-

-

5

5

81

10,525

5

10,611

Loans and other financial receivables

Other financial assets
As at December 31, 2015

Payments
in € thousand

less than 1 year

from 1 to 5 years

Total

more than 5 years

762

741

-

1,503

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

11,283

-

11,283

Restricted cash

-

43

-

43

Other

-

-

5

5

762

12,067

5

12,834

Loans and other financial receivables

Other financial assets

A6. Information about IFRS 12
Information about non-controlling interests

The information below concerns non-controlling interests in the company Holding Salud Animal (HSA) deemed to be
significant in respect of the information required by IFRS 12. That group comprises the following entities:
• Holding Salud Animal SA;
• Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada;
• Farquimica SpA;
• Bioanimal Corp SpA;
• Productos Quimico Ehlinger;
• Centrovet Inc.;
• Centrovet Argentina;
• Inversiones HSA Limitada;
• Rentista de capitales Takumi Limitada.
The share of non-controlling interests in the Group stands at 49%. Equity allocated to non-controlling interests
amounts to €46,944 thousand, including €3,222 thousand in respect of the result for the period.
The table below provides a summary of the financial position of the HSA group as at December 31, 2016.
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in CLP thousand

in € thousand

Goodwill

23,563,558

33,291

Intangible assets

54,928,464

77,604

Tangible assets

20,657,548

29,186

99,149,570

140,081

Inventories and work in progress

10,061,671

14,215

Trade receivables

19,795,272

27,967

5,467,706

7,725

774,977

1,095

36,099,627

51,003

135,249,197

191,084

91,374,039

129,096

Non-current assets

Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Assets
Equity
Non-current financial liabilities

959,047

1,355

15,985,910

22,585

Non-current liabilities

16,944,957

23,940

Current financial liabilities

20,097,934

28,395

6,832,267

9,653

26,930,201

38,048

135,249,197

191,084

Other non-current liabilities

Other current liabilities
Current liabilities
Liabilities

The net change in cash and cash equivalents over the course of the financial year showed a €252 thousand increase.
The dividends paid out by the HSA Group in 2016 totalled €7,615 thousand (including €3,731 thousand paid out to
owners of non-controlling interests).
The table below provides summarised income statement of the HSA group in respect of 2016.
in CLP thousand

in € thousand

Revenue from ordinary activities

47,390,871

63,299

Other income and expenses

-39,646,723

-52,956

7,744,149

10,344

967,748

1,293

Profit before tax

8,711,897

11,636

Income tax

-3,789,195

-5,061

Result for the period

4,922,701

6,575

Operating result
Financial income and expenses

Information about equity accounted companies
Company's individual accounts using equity method

in € thousand
AVF Animal Health Co Ltd

Consolidated financial
statements

Balance
sheet total

Equity

Sales

Result

Share of
equity

Share of
result

N/A

N/A

-

-

2,513

294

2,513

294

Share in companies accounted for by the equity method

Because the impact of equity accounted companies was not deemed to be significant on the Virbac group’s accounts,
the information required by IFRS 12 is limited to the above.
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A7. Deferred taxes
In accordance with IAS 12, which under certain conditions authorises the offsetting of debts and tax loans, the deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset by fiscal entity. The Group records all identified temporary differences.
The impact of future tax rate increases, in particular in France (28.92% by 2019) and in Chile (27% as of 2018), was
taken into account for the calculation of the deferred income tax expense.

Variation in deferred taxes
2015

Variations

Changes
in
scope

Transfers

Deferred tax assets

36,434

9,360

-

Deferred tax liabilities

60,149

1,754

-

Deferred tax offset

-23,715

7,606

0

in € thousand

Conversion
gains
and losses

2016

662

1,213

54,783

-4

2,391

71,403

666

-1,177

-16,620

The variation in deferred taxes shown above excludes deferred taxes on the effective share of the profits and losses
on hedging instruments, which totalled -€139 thousand in 2016.

Deferred taxes broken down by type
As at December 31, 2016
Deferred tax
assets

in € thousand

Deferred tax
liabilities

in € thousand

Internal margin on inventories

8,179

Adjustments on intangible assets

Retirement and end of career severance commitments

4,971

Adjustments on tangible assets

5,202

Tax loss carryforwards

15,401

55,139

Adjustments on fiscal provisions

9,075

Sales adjustments (IAS 18)

1,427

Activation of expenses linked to acquisitions

1,005

Inventory adjustments (IAS 2)

4,068

Leases adjustments

Other non-deductible provisions

1,706

Other charges with deferred deduction
Other income taxed in advance

981

18,675
356

Total by type

54,783

Total by type

71,403

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-27,742

Impact of compensation by fiscal entity

-27,742

Deferred net tax assets

27,041

Deferred net tax liabilities

43,661

Deferred tax asset use horizon

The table below indicates the use horizon of tax losses and other charges for deferred deduction:

in € thousand
Tax loss carryforwards in the United States (1)

Deferred tax
assets as at
31/12/2016

less than 1 year from 1 to 5 years

more than 5 years

14,188

-

-

14,188

1,213

-

1,213

-

Deferred tax on other charges with deferred
deduction in the United States (3)

10,702

-

-

10,702

Deferred tax on other charges with deferred
deduction in Chile

1,709

755

954

-

Deferred tax on retirement and end of career
severance commitments

4,971

-

-

4,971

Deferred tax on other bases

22,000

15,736

6,264

-

Total deferred tax assets

54,783

16,491

8,431

29,861

Tax loss carryforwards in France (2)

(1) Estimated turnaround beginning in 2022 - time limit in effect locally for carry-forwards = 20 years
(2) No time limit in effect locally for carry-forwards
(3) Estimated turnaround in 10 years
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A8. Inventories and work in progress

in € thousand
Gross value as at 31/12/2015
Variations

Raw materials
and supplies

Work in progress

Finished products
and goods for resale

Inventories and
work in progress

82,060

12,353

104,481

198,894

4,183

698

5,310

10,190

-

-

-

-

40

-

148

187

1,823

104

2,336

4,263

Gross value as at 31/12/2016

88,106

13,155

112,274

213,535

Depreciation as at 31/12/2015

-8,525

-71

-7,983

-16,579

Allowances

-1,986

-1,431

-3,206

-6,622

Reversals

2,714

71

5,297

8,082

Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses

-

-

-

-

-4

-

-184

-187

-239

-

-83

-322

Depreciation as at 31/12/2016

-8,039

-1,431

-6,158

-15,627

Net value as at 31/12/2015

73,535

12,282

96,497

182,314

Net value as at 31/12/2016

80,067

11,724

106,117

197,908

Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses

The increase in the total amount of inventories of finished and semi-finished products is in large part due to the
resumption of production activities in the United States. Conversely, in Europe and especially in France, streamlining
efforts enabled to decrease the level of inventories.
Unrealised exchange gains resulted in a relevant increase in the inventory’s net value by €3.9 million.

A9. Trade receivables
in € thousand

Trade receivables

Gross value as at 31/12/2015

154,362

Variations

-23,694

Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Gross value as at 31/12/2016
Depreciation as at 31/12/2015

150
3,115
133,932
-3,455

Allowances

-175

Reversals

160

Changes in scope
Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Depreciation as at 31/12/2016

-1,285
20
-4,735

Net value as at 31/12/2015

150,907

Net value as at 31/12/2016

129,197
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The decrease in trade receivables is primarily due to the factoring contracts that were set up in 2016. Through these
contracts set up in many of the Group’s subsidiaries, each subsidiary in question transfers to a financial institution the
receivables relating to a list of selected customers. The analysis of contracts put in place led the Group to de-recognise the
transferred receivables, in accordance with IAS 39. Total de-recognised receivables as at December 31, 2016, in the Group's
various entities, amount to €27 million.
The credit risk from trade receivables and other receivables is presented in note A30.

A10. Other receivables
2015

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2016

18,124

-42,892

-

28,589

-276

3,545

in € thousand
Income tax receivables
Social receivables
Other receivables to the State
Advances and prepayments on orders

736

-228

-

13

5

526

27,231

-877

-

1,399

-636

27,117

3,152

-184

-

-

179

3,147

-

-

-

-

-

-

Depreciation on various other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Other various receivables
Other receivables

9,183

-2,251

-

-1,272

-25

5,635

41,929

5,570

-

-29,972

372

17,899

100,355

-40,861

-

-1,243

-381

57,870

The main events in 2016 that account for the decrease in this item are:
• the repayment by the US administration of the carry-back receivable applied for by Virbac US (€14.9 million);
• the repayment by the French administration of the research tax credit receivable (€4.9 million);
• the transfer to a financial institution of research tax credit receivables from financial years 2013 to 2015,
amounting to €21 million.
Research tax credit receivables have been reclassified between other receivables and income tax receivables.
The amount of the tax credit on low salaries in France totalled €1,394 thousand in 2016.

A11. Cash and cash equivalents
2015

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2016

in € thousand
Available funds

30,108

14,587

-

-

1,435

46,130

Marketable securities

21,055

-18,131

-

-

-599

2,324

Cash and cash equivalents

51,163

-3,544

-

-

836

48,454

-12,098

2,895

-

-

45

-9,158

-54

18

-

-

-

-36

-12,152

2,913

-

-

45

-9,194

39,011

-632

-

-

881

39,260

Bank overdraft
Accrued interests not yet matured
Overdraft
Net cash position

The decrease in marketable securities mainly concerns a subsidiary of the Group, which held €19,153 thousand at the opening.

A12. Assets classified as held for sale
During the 2016 financial year, as in 2015, no asset was classified as held for sale.
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A13. Equity
in € thousand
Capital
Premiums linked to capital
Legal reserve

2016

2015

10,573

10,573

6,534

6,534

1,089

1,089

Other reserves and retained earnings

297,167

257,904

Consolidation reserves

117,576

152,172

Conversion reserves
Actuarial gains and losses
Result for the period

9,429

3,012

-3,386

-2,279

34,646

9,405

473,628

438,410

Other reserves and retained earnings

49,197

49,807

Conversion reserves

-5,260

-9,190

Result for the period

3,222

3,263

47,159

43,880

520,787

482,290

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent company

Non-controlling interests
Equity

Capital management policy

Within the framework of capital management, the Group aims to preserve the continuity of operations, to serve as a
return to shareholders, to procure the advantages from other partners and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group can:
• adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders;
• return capital to shareholders;
• issue new shares; or
• sell assets to reduce the total debts.
The Group uses various indicators, one of which is financial leverage (net debt/equity), which provides investors with a
vision of debt for the Group comparative to the total equity. In particular, this equity includes the reserve for variations
in the value of hedged cash flows and the reserve for variations in the value of financial asset available for sale.

Treasury shares

Virbac holds shares with no voting rights which are intended primarily to supply the allocation of performancerelated stock grants. The amount of these treasury shares is posted as a reduction in equity.

Shares with a double voting rights

Double voting rights are granted to all shareholders whose shares have been registered in their name for at least
two years. Of the 8,458,000 shares making up the share capital, 4,348,036 have double voting rights.

Share buyback programme

The ordinary shareholders' meeting of June 24, 2016 authorised the Virbac parent company to buy back shares in
accordance with articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code and in line with the terms of the buyback plan
set out in the prospectus published by our professional distributor and on the company's website on May 18, 2016, in
accordance with the provisions of the transparency directive that came into force on January 20, 2007.
As at December 31, 2016, Virbac held 28,968 treasury shares acquired on the market for a total of €3,907,938
excluding fees, for an average price of €134.91 per share.
During the financial year, the company bought 36,589 treasury shares (at an average price of €162.17) and sold
35,401 shares (at an average price of €167.49) as part of the market-making contract.
As at December 31, 2016, treasury shares accounted for 0.34% of Virbac's capital. They are earmarked for market
making and performance-related stock grants, in accordance with the fifteenth resolution adopted by the
shareholders' meeting of June 24, 2016.
A resolution will be submitted for the approval of the shareholders' meeting authorising the company to buy back up
to 10% of the capital. Shares may be acquired with a view to:
• ensuring liquidity or supporting the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant to
a liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets authority
(Autorité des marchés financiers);
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• allocating free performance-related stock grants;
• reduction of the company’s capital stock by cancelling part or all of the shares repurchased, subject to the

adoption by the ordinary shareholder’s meeting of the resolution on the authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancellation of repurchased shares.
The maximum unit purchase price may not exceed €350 per share. When calculating the maximum number of
shares, shares already purchased under the aforementioned prior authorisations will be included, together with
those that could be purchased under the market-making agreement.

A14. Employee benefits
The commitments related to employee benefit schemes are calculated using the projected unit credit method. Future
commitments are subject to a provision for expenses.
Where a commitment is pre-financed by payments into a fund, the provision corresponds to the difference between
the total commitment at the closing date and the amount of the hedging asset. The hedging asset is made up of the
amount of the fund plus the investment income and any contributions paid during the year.
The Group has been applying the revised IAS 19 standard since January 1, 2012.

Change in provisions by country
2015 Allowances Reversals Transfers
in € thousand

Equity Conversion
gains and
losses

2016

6,077

605

-402

-

668

-

6,948

Italy

644

87

-28

-

84

-

788

Germany

458

108

-

-

-

-

566

Greece

126

14

-

-

-

-

140

Mexico

106

18

-10

-

-7

-14

93

90

124

-40

-

25

2

201

Taiwan

491

72

-16

-

58

35

639

Thailand

213

15

-29

-

-

8

207

Uruguay

1,131

144

-750

-

-

-5

521

Retirement and severance pay
allowances

9,337

1,188

-1,275

-

828

25

10,104

France

1,631

239

-

-

787

0

2,657

Japan

1,376

241

-

-

78

77

1,772

Defined benefit retirement plans

3,007

480

-

-

865

77

4,429

South Africa

888

114

-30

-

2

163

1,137

Medical cover

888

114

-30

-

2

163

1,137

India

483

323

-209

-

-14

7

590

Allowances for absence

483

323

-209

-

-14

7

590

1,495

192

-153

-

-

32

1,565

164

14

-35

-

-

-

143

51

3

-6

-

-

-

48

1,710

208

-194

-

-

32

1,756

15,425

2,314

-1,709

-

1,682

304

18,016

France

Korea

Australia
Austria
Spain
Other long term benefits
Provisions for employee benefits

The main impacts on “equity” are in France and in Italy due to a lower discount rate.

Main commitments

As at December 31, 2016, the main debt linked to employee benefits was located in France, Australia, Japan and South
Africa. They respectively contributed 53%, 9%, 10% and 6% of provisions related to employee benefit schemes.
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Retirement and severance pay allowances



France
In accordance with the collective agreement, the Group's French companies pay their employees an allowance on
their retirement based on their salary and seniority.
The rights vest is as follows:
• managerial personnel: 12% per year of service;
• non-managerial personnel: 10% per year of service.
Defined benefit retirement plans



France
The scheme results in the payment of an income to the individual covered, payable at 60% to the spouse (or exspouse) calculated in accordance with:
• an eligibility criterion: being a member of the executive board and aged at least 60 on the date of retirement;
• an allowance rate which differs according to two criteria:
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for less than ten years or if the recipient has been a
member of the executive board for less than nine years, the allowance rate is 0%;
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for between ten and thirty years or if the recipient has
been a member of the executive board for between nine and fifteen years, the allowance rate is 12.5%;
− if the recipient has been employed by the Group for more than thirty years or if the recipient has been a
member of the executive board for more than fifteen years, the allowance rate is 22%.
This scheme is pre-financed through a fund managed by an insurance company.



Japan
The scheme results in payments in the form of capital.
The eligibility conditions are as follows:
• must have been employed by the company for at least two years at the closing date;
• must be at least 60 years old.
The amount of capital is calculated from the base salary multiplied by a coefficient varying between 5 and 35
depending on years of service.
Medical cover



South Africa
The programme implemented by Virbac South Africa stipulates that the company is responsible for handling the
contributions paid by retired employees who wish to subscribe to voluntary medical insurance.
The eligibility condition is that the employee must have joined the company before April 30, 1995.
The insurance contribution paid by Virbac South Africa is between 50% and 100% depending on the level of
coverage chosen by the beneficiary. In the event that the beneficiary should die, his or her legal successors continue
to benefit from the Virbac South Africa holding under certain conditions.
Because the scheme is not restricted only to Virbac South Africa employees, it has been valued based on
contributions paid by Virbac South Africa, restated to reflect the inflation rate for medical costs.
Long-service leave

In Australia
accordance

with regulations in Australia, Virbac grants employees long-service leave in line with their
compensation and years of service. Each employee is entitled to 3 months' leave after 15 years' service, which is
acquired as follows:
• if the employee is dismissed after 5 to 10 years' service, he has the right to his pro-rata share in the acquired rights;
• if the employee leaves the company for any other reason between 5 and 10 years of service, he or she has no rights;
• if the employee leaves the company, for whatever reason, after 10 years of service, he or she is entitled to a
pro-rata share of the acquired rights.
The provision is calculated as the sum of the individual rights, calculated pro-rata for the ratio of the employee's
years of service at the closing date to the years of service for full rights.

Calculation parameters of the main personnel benefits schemes in the Group
Assumptions as at December 31, 2016
Discount rate

Future salary growth

France

1.30%

2.50% - 1.25%

South Africa

9.62%

N/A

Japan

0.50%

3.00%

India

7.20%

7.00%
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Assumptions as at December 31, 2015

France
South Africa

Discount rate

Future salary growth

2.00%

2.50% - 1.25%

10.84%

N/A

Japan

0.80%

3.00%

India

8.30%

7.00%

Discount rates are based on high-quality corporate bond yields with a maturity similar to that of the bond concerned.
In accordance with IAS 19 revised, the expected return on assets is set equal to the discount rate.
A 0.5 point increase or decrease in the discount rate would entail, respectively, a reduction in the provision for
employee benefits of around €719 thousand or an increase of approximately €766 thousand recognised with a
balancing entry in other comprehensive income.
Also, a 0.5 point increase or decrease in the future growth rate of salaries would entail, respectively, an increase in
the provision for employee benefits of around €600 thousand or a reduction of approximately €560 thousand
recognised with a balancing entry in other comprehensive income.

Allowance for the year
in € thousand
Cost of services rendered
Financial cost
Expected return on assets

2016 allowance
1,996
470
-152

Change of scheme

-

Immediate recognition of actuarial (gains)/losses in the year

-

Administrative costs recognised in expenses
Net cost/(net gain) recognised in income

1
2,314

Employer contributions (including benefits paid directly by the employer) in 2016 totalled €1,709 thousand and are
estimated at €790 thousand for 2017.

Movements of amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The tables below reconcile the movements in the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position (actuarial
debt, hedging assets, provision for employee benefits).
in € thousand
Present value as at January 1, 2016

Actuarial liability
19,858

Benefits paid by employer

-1,459

Benefits paid by funds

-1,049

Cost of services rendered and financial cost
Termination/end of contract
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions
Actuarial experience (gains)/losses

2,466
-1
1,306
289

Change of scheme

-

Other variations

-

Transfers
Conversion gains and losses
Present value as at December 31, 2016

315
21,725

Actuarial liabilities are pre-financed in France, India and South Korea through hedging assets (insurance policies)
covering annual financial interests.
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Hedging assets

in € thousand
Fair value as at January 1, 2016

4,433

Contributions paid

709

Benefits paid by funds

-1,509

Interest income

152

Actuarial gains/(losses)

-87

Tax on premiums paid

-1

Other variations

-

Conversion gains and losses

12

Fair value as at December 31, 2016

3,709
Employee benefits

in € thousand
Fair value of hedging assets

-3,709

Present value of actuarial liability

21,725

(Assets)/Liabilities recognised in provisions as at December 31, 2016

18,016
Employee benefits

in € thousand
Provision to liabilities as at January 1, 2016

15,425

Charge/(gain) recognised in income - allowance

2,314

Amount recognised in equity

1,682

Employer contributions/Benefits paid - reversal

-1,709

Other events

-

Transfers

-

Conversion gains and losses

304

Provision to liabilities as at December 31, 2016

18,016

A15. Other provisions
2015 Allowances Reversals

Changes Transfers
in scope

in € thousand
Trade disputes and industrial tribunals
Fiscal disputes

Conversion
gains and
losses

2016

1,775

817

-985

-

405

20

2,032

114

-

-

-

-16

28

126

Various risks and charges

1,097

462

-1,178

-

-

20

401

Other non-current provisions

2,986

1,279

-2,163

-

389

67

2,558

Trade disputes and industrial tribunals

1,751

515

-467

-

-1,137

-87

576

15

-

-14

-

-1

0

235

1,324

-149

-

178

33

1,621

Other current provisions

2,001

1,840

-630

-

-959

-55

2,197

Other provisions

4,987

3,118

-2,793

-

-570

13

4,756

Fiscal disputes
Various risks and charges

The allocation to other provisions includes, in particular, a provision made to meet the risks associated with a
product recall. This provision amounted to €711 thousand. A provision previously recognised as a provision for
litigation has been reclassified as a provision for depreciation of trade receivables (for €1,137 thousand).
Reversed provisions were used for the purpose for which they were intended.
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A16. Other financial liabilities
Change in other financial liabilities
2015

Increase Decrease Changes Transfers
in scope

in € thousand
515,837

72,926

Bank overdrafts

-

Accrued interests not yet matured

4,948

793

4

1

2,726

1,976

Loans

Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing
Currency and interest rate derivatives

Conversion
gains and
losses

2016

-93,724

-

-74,465

10,134

430,709

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-2,887

182

3,036

-1

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

9

4,711

46

-

-46

-

-

-

0

Other non-current financial liabilities

523,562

75,695

-93,771

-

-77,351

10,325

438,460

Loans

117,949

30,705

-80,104

-

72,492

3,472

144,515

12,098

-

-2,895

-

-

-45

9,158

54

-

-18

-

-

-

36

3,122

145

-3,339

-

3,162

196

3,286

81

41

-60

-

-

-1

61

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other current financial liabilities

133,305

30,891

-86,415

-

75,654

3,622

157,057

Other financial liabilities

656,867

106,587

-180,187

-

-1,697

13,947

595,517

Other

Bank overdrafts
Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing

Virbac has two funding instruments the main features of which are as follows:
• a syndicated loan of €420 million, drawn in euros and dollars, contracted with a pool of banks and repayable
in full upon maturity in April 2020, with the option to extend the term to April 2022;
• market-based contracts (Schuldschein) consisting of eight instalments, with maturities of five, six, seven and
ten years, at variable and fixed rates.
These funding instruments include a financial covenant compliance clause which requires the borrower to comply
with financial ratios calculated on the basis of the consolidated financial statements and corresponding to the
consolidated net debt for the period considered on the consolidated Ebitda for that same test period.
Virbac also benefits from bilateral loans and BPI financing.
As at December 31, 2016, the position of the funding instruments was as follows:
• the syndicated loan was drawn for an amount of $368 million and €5 million;
• the market-driven contracts amounted to $37 million and €65 million;
• bilateral loans and BPI financing were drawn for an amount of €44.2 million.
In the third quarter of 2016, Virbac applied for a waiver, which was accepted in the last quarter for all bank debt and
a part of the market-based funding.
As part of this accepted waiver application, Virbac obtained a relaxation of the financial covenant clause from its pool
of banks at the end of 2016. The ratio of net debt to Ebitda (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation) should from now on be below 5.5 at actual rates versus 4.5 previously.
Consolidated net debt refers to the sum of other current and non-current financial liabilities, namely the following items:
loans, bank overdrafts, accrued interest liabilities, debts related to finance leases, employee profit-sharing, interest rate
and foreign exchange derivatives, and others; less the amount of the following items: cash and cash equivalents, term
deposits, and foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives as shown in the consolidated financial statements.
Consolidated Ebitda refers to operating income for the period under review, plus depreciations and provisions net of
reversals and dividends received from non-consolidated subsidiaries.
The agreement on this waiver request was accompanied by a moderate increase in the margin and commission
amounting to €0.4 million.
Virbac also obtained a relaxation of the financial covenant clause for 2017 from its pool of banks which will now have
to be below 5.5 at the end of June 2017 and below 4.75 at the end of December 2017.
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The market-based contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac did not receive a waiver and
which will have to be reimbursed have been reclassified as other short-term financial liabilities. The total amount
reclassified as of December 31, 2016 and redeemed early at the beginning of January 2017 amounts to €70.4 million
(€50 million and $21.5 million).
The company’s cash and financial resources should remain sufficient to fund its cash requirements. The Group is
exploring financing solutions to replace the lost financing positions of market-based contracts that were repaid at the
beginning of January.

Other financial liabilities classified according to their maturity
As at December 31, 2016
Payments
in € thousand

less than 1 year

Total

from 1 to 5 years more than 5 years

144,515

404,373

26,336

575,224

9,158

-

-

9,158

36

-

-

36

3,286

3,036

-

6,322

61

4

-

66

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

4,711

-

4,711

Other

-

-

-

-

157,057

412,124

26,336

595,517

Loans
Bank overdrafts
Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing

Other financial liabilities
As at December 31, 2015

Payments
in € thousand
Loans

less than 1 year
117,949

Total

from 1 to 5 years more than 5 years
423,659

92,178

633,786

12,098

-

-

12,098

54

0

-

54

3,122

4,948

-

8,071

81

4

-

85

Currency and interest rate derivatives

-

2,726

-

2,726

Other

-

46

-

46

133,305

431,384

92,178

656,867

Bank overdrafts
Accrued interests not yet matured
Debt relating to leasing contracts
Employee profit sharing

Other financial liabilities
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A17. Other payables
2015

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains
and losses

2016

Income tax payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

Social payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other fiscal payables

-

-

-

-

-

-

in € thousand

Advances and prepayments on orders
Prepaid income

-

-

-

-

-

-320

-

-

15

584

-

-

-

-

-

-

889

-320

-

-

15

584

7,409

438

-

-

405

8,252

Various other payables
Other non-current payables
Income tax payables

889

Social payables

36,752

2,760

-

329

541

40,381

Other fiscal payables *

10,842

-4,636

-

5,126

-284

11,048

170

-12

-

-

7
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Advances and prepayments on orders

1,715

999

-

-

94

2,808

56,857

3,640

-

5,345

83

65,925

Other current payables

113,745

3,190

-

10,800

845

128,580

Other payables

114,634

2,869

-

10,800

861

129,164

Prepaid income
Various other payables

The transfers column includes the debt related to withholding tax on distributions that was recognised in equity and
that was paid in fiscal year 2016.
It also includes items that have been reclassified between Other payables and Trade payables.

A18. Trade payables
2015

Variations

Changes
in scope

Transfers

Conversion
gains and losses

2016

114,778

-9,568

-

-7,050

970

99,131

in € thousand
Current trade payables
Payables of intangible assets
Payables of tangible assets
Trade payables

-

1,836

-

-104

1,732

248

2,809

-

981

360

4,398

115,026

-4,922

-

-6,069

1,226

105,261

The transfers column refers to reclassifications made between trade payables and various debts.
Foreign exchange differences generated a €1.2 million increase in trade payables.
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A19. Revenue from ordinary activities
Cha nge

2016

2015

978,894

942,603

3.9%

341

1,329

-74.4%

1,740

1,100

58.2%

327

351

-6.8%

981,301

945,383

3.8%

Discounts, rebates and refunds on sales

-88,059

-73,328

20.1%

Expenses deducted from sales

-16,352

-14,134

15.7%

-4,072

-4,232

-3.8%

in € thousand
Sales of finished goods and merchandise
Services
Additional income from activity
Royalties paid
Gross sales

Financial discounts

-990

-1,066

-7.1%

-109,473

-92,760

18.0%

871,828

852,623

2.3%

Provision for returns
Expenses deducted from sales
Revenue from ordinary activities

Sales amounted to €871.8 million, an increase of €19.2 million, representing an overall growth of 2.3% at constant
rates (+4.5% excluding the unfavourable impact of exchange rates) compared with 2015. This change in sales is the
result of various factors. The main ones are described below:
• all areas showed positive developments at constant rates (with the exception of Chile);
• in the United States, historical ranges continued to grow. The Sentinel range is down because of increased
competition in the internal parasiticide segment;
• Europe showed a strong increase at comparable rates, notably due to sustained activity in France, as well as
the performance of the United Kingdom, Italy, Greece and Spain;
• in the other areas, emerging countries contributed strongly to organic growth, due to the dynamism of India
and China in 2016, as well as Brazil and Mexico, thanks in particular to antibiotics for ruminants.
Foreign exchange effects had a negative impact on sales of €19.1 million.
The expenses presented in deduction of sales are mainly made up of the following elements:
• amounts paid under commercial cooperation contracts (commercial communication actions, provision of
statistics etc.);
• cost of business operations (including loyalty programs), the amount of which is directly related to the sales
generated.
Provisions for returns are calculated using a statistical method, based on historical returns. This provision is mainly
recorded by the US subsidiary (two thirds of the amount).

A20. Purchases consumed
in € thousand
Inventoried purchases
Non-inventoried purchases
Supplementary charges on purchases
Discounts, rebates and refunds obtained
Purchases

2016

2015

Cha nge

-285,653

-265,443

7.6%

-24,359

-24,506

-0.6%

-3,108

-3,041

2.2%

1,318

465

183.5%

-311,802

-292,525

6.6%

Change in gross inventories

10,190

3,731

173.1%

Allowances for depreciation of inventories

-6,622

-13,631

-51.4%

Reversals of depreciation of inventories
Net variation in inventories
Purchases consumed
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8,082

4,573

76.7%

11,650

-5,327

-318.7%

-300,152

-297,852

0.8%
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A21. External costs
Within this item, the research and development costs recorded during the 2016 financial year totalled
€11,119 thousand, compared with €15,040 thousand during the 2015 financial year.

Operating lease agreements
Rents for the
period
in € thousand

Minimum future lease payments as per contracts
less than 1
year

from 1 to 3
years

from 3 to 5
years

more than 5
years

Lands and buildings

-4,422

-4,299

-5,611

-2,806

-1,211

Industrial equipment

-1,523

-491

-159

-60

-39

IT equipment

-617

-107

-23

-23

-23

Office equipment and furniture

-970

-142

-144

-55

-33

-5,483

-1,983

-2,703

-723

-243

-13,015

-7,022

-8,640

-3,667

-1,549

Transport equipment
Lease payments

A22. Depreciation, impairment and provisions
in € thousand

2016

2015

Cha nge

-4,783

-4,670

2.4%

Allowances for impairment of intangible assets

-19

-276

-93.0%

Allowances for depreciation of tangible assets

-21,914

-21,988

-0.3%

-649

-1,008

-35.7%

-

-

-

Reversals of impairment of intangible assets

69

181

-61.9%

Reversals of depreciation of tangible assets

-

Allowances for depreciation of intangible assets *

Allowances for impairment of tangible assets
Reversals of depreciation of intangible assets

-

624

1,079

-100.0%

-26,671

-26,682

0.0%

Allowances of provisions for risks and charges

-3,118

-3,986

-21.8%

Reversals of provisions for risks and charges

2,793

3,561

-21.6%

Provisions

-326

-425

-23.4%

-26,997

-27,107

-0.4%

Reversals of impairment of tangible assets
Depreciation and impairment

Impairment and provisions

* Excluding depreciation of intangible assets arising from acquisitions
The allowance to depreciation of assets arising from acquisitions breaks down as follows:
2016

2015

-10,629

-13,218

-69

-23

Uruguay: Santa Elena

-147

-146

Australia: Axon

-133

-134

in € thousand
United States: Sentinel
SBC

New Zealand

-637

-628

-2,495

-2,588

Multimin

-596

-635

Peptech

-168

-170

Colombia: Synthesis

-113

-127

-1,481

-1,481

-16,468

-19,150

Centrovet

Schering-Plough Europe
Total depreciations of intangible assets arising from acquisitions
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The decrease in depreciation allowance between 2016 and 2015 is mainly due to the fact that one of the assets
recognised as part of the acquisition of Sentinel at the beginning of 2015 has been amortised over 13 months.

A23. Other operating income and expenses
in € thousand
Royalties paid
Grants received (including research tax credit)
Allowances for depreciation of receivables
Reversals of depreciation of receivables

2016

2015

Cha nge

-4,087

-4,179

-2.2%

7,276

8,926

-18.5%

-175

-359

-51.3%

160

429

-62.8%

Bad debts

-247

-469

-47.3%

Net book value on disposed assets

-266

-1,253

-78.7%

314

705

-55.5%

Other operating income and expenses

-1,807

-1,703

6.1%

Other current income and expenses

1,167

2,097

-44.3%

Income from disposals of assets

The amount of research tax credit posted as subsidies for the financial year ending December 31, 2016 was €7,273 thousand.

A24. Other non-current income and expenses
As at December 31, 2016, this item included the following element:
2016

in € thousand
Cancellation of the debt on Virbac Uruguay shares

2,621

Other non-current income and expenses

2,621

A25. Financial income and expenses
in € thousand
Gross cost of financial debt
Income from cash and cash equivalents
Net cost of financial debt
Foreign exchange gains and losses

2016

2015

Cha nge

-20,150

-14,606

38.0%

1,095

2,007

-45.5%

-19,056

-12,599

51.2%

9,219

-9,323

-198.9%

-6,523

2,316

-381.7%

Other financial charges

-344

-628

-45.1%

Other financial income

252

1,108

-77.2%

2,603

-6,527

-139.9%

-16,453

-19,126

-14.0%

Changes in foreign currency derivatives and interest rate

Other financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses

The net cost of financial debt increased from €12.6 million to €19.1 million. This increase is due essentially to higher
financing costs.
Foreign exchange profit is improving favourably especially in the Chilean subsidiary, which is benefiting from a more
favourable parity of USD/CLP this year, as well as in Virbac SA.
The impact of the revaluation of financial instruments, in accordance with IAS 32 and 39, generated an expense of
€6,523 thousand in 2016, almost all of which came from foreign exchange instruments. This expense is largely
offset by an unrealised exchange gain included in the €9,219 thousand of foreign exchange profit.
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A26. Income tax
2016
in € thousand
Profit before tax

Base

Tax

2015
Base

52,560

15,383

Adjustment for tax credits

-8,543

-10,657

Adjustment of non-recurring items

-2,446

-5,675

41,570

-949

Profit before tax, after adjustments

Tax

Current tax for French companies

-545

-2,017

Current tax for foreign companies

-22,188

-6,088

-22,733

-8,105

2,087

-2,961

Current tax
Deferred tax for French companies
Deferred tax for foreign companies

5,658

9,129

Deferred tax

7,745

6,168

-14,987

-1,937

877

-448

27

2,693

-14,084

308

33.88%

32.47%

Tax accounted for
Restatement of adjustments on current tax
Restatement of adjustments on deferred tax
Tax after restatements

Effective tax rate
Theoretical tax rate
Theoretical tax
Difference between theoretical tax and recorded tax

34.43%

34.43%

-14,313

327

675

2,264

The theoretical tax rate used by the Group corresponds to the tax rate in force in France (including the additional
contribution of 3.3%).

A27. Result per share

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company
Total number of shares
Impact of dilutive instruments
Number of treasury shares

2016

2015

€34,645,749

€9,405,071

8,458,000

8,458,000

-

-

28,968

27,780

8,429,032

8,430,220

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, per share

€4.11

€1.12

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent company, diluted per share

€4.11

€1.12

Outstanding shares

A28. Operating segments
In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group provides industry information as used internally by the executive board,
considered as the chief operating decision maker.
The level of the Group's segment information is the geographic sector. The breakdown by geographic area covers
seven sectors according to the place of establishment of Group assets:
• France;
• Europe (excluding France);
• Latin America;
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•
•
•
•

North America;
Asia;
Pacific;
Africa & Middle East.

The Group's operating activities are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the markets.
The two market segments are companion animals and food producing animals but it is not considered as an industry
information level for the reasons listed below:
• nature of the products: the majority of the therapeutic segments are common to companion and food
producing animals (antibiotics, parasiticides, etc.);
• manufacturing procedures: the production chains are common to both segments and there is no significant
difference in sources of supply;
• customer type or category: the distinction is made between the ethical (veterinary) and OTC (Over the
counter) sectors;
• internal organisation: the management structures in the Virbac group are organised by geographic zone. At
Group level, there is no management structure based on market segments;
• distribution methods: the main distribution channels depend more on the country than the market segment.
In certain cases, the sales capacities can be common to both market segments;
• nature of the regulatory environment: the regulatory bodies governing Marketing authorisations are identical
regardless of the segment.
In the information presented below, the sectors therefore correspond to geographic zones (areas where the Group's
assets are located). The results for France include the Group’s head office expenses and a substantial proportion of
its research and development expenses.
As at December 31, 2016
France
in € thousand

Europe
Latin
North
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East

Total

137,223

211,406

135,790

151,786

128,123

86,817

20,684

871,828

Current operating profit before
depreciations of assets aring from
acquisitions

7,769

13,835

19,090

-1,904

19,829

21,172

3,069

82,860

Profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company

6,603

10,059

6,891

-17,375

13,417

13,321

1,730

34,646

3

-

3,219

-

-

-

-

3,221

6,606

10,059

10,110

-17,375

13,417

13,321

1,730

37,867

Europe
Latin
North
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Revenue from ordinary activities

Non-controlling interests
Consolidated profit
As at December 31, 2016

France
in € thousand
Assets by geographic area
Intangible investment
Tangible investment

292,600

576,661

97,310

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East
109,972

11,888

Total

1,417,161

261,904

66,826

4,011

231

551

2,654

33

7

2

7,489

10,362

212

5,578

18,600

960

1,414

63

37,189

Non-controlling interests correspond mainly to the contribution from the Chilean entities (HSA group), in which
Virbac holds a 51% interest.
Sales to a distributor customer in North America in 2016 amounted to $123,454 thousand (€112,238 thousand), or
12.9% of consolidated sales of the Group in 2016.
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As at December 31, 2015
France
in € thousand

Europe
Latin
North
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East

Total

131,158

206,791

151,755

134,981

119,262

85,149

23,527

852,623

Current operating profit before
depreciations of assets aring from
acquisitions

13,941

11,943

25,253

-31,568

17,950

15,378

4,563

57,460

Profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company

15,099

8,536

2,646

-41,828

11,892

9,907

3,153

9,405

3

-

3,260

-

-

-

-

3,263

15,102

8,536

5,906

-41,828

11,892

9,907

3,153

12,668

North
Europe
Latin
(excluding America America
France)

Asia

Revenue from ordinary activities

Non-controlling interests
Consolidated profit
As at December 31, 2015

France
in € thousand
Assets by geographic area

294,132

299,061

534,341

108,746

105,639

Total

1,430,550

10,844

152

1

461

771

3,949

135

10

5,480

13,529

709

10,942

8,716

1,284

1,891

172

37,242

Intangible investment
Tangible investment

77,787

Pacific Africa &
Middle
East

In 2015, no customer accounted for more than 10% of sales.

A29. Financial assets and liabilities
Breakdown of assets and liabilities measured at fair value

In accordance with IFRS 7, Financial instruments - Disclosures, measurements at fair value of financial assets and
liabilities must be classified according to a hierarchy which comprises the following levels:
• level 1: the fair value is based on (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• level 2: the fair value is based on inputs other than the quoted prices mentioned in level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability concerned, directly or indirectly;
• level 3: the fair value is based on inputs relating to the asset or liability which are not based on observable
market data, but on internal data.
For financial asset and liability derivatives recognised at fair value, the Group uses measurement techniques
involving observable market data, particularly for interest rate swaps, forward purchases and sales, or foreign
currency options. The model incorporates various inputs such as the spot and forward exchange rates or the interest
rate curve.

Financial assets

The various categories of financial assets are as follows:
As at December 31, 2016

in € thousand

Assets
Loans
Financial
Financial
available
and assets at fair assets at fair
for sale receivables value through value through
income
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

7,150

2

-

3,380

-

-

129,197

-

-

-

48,690

-

-

-

-

-

81

-

-

81

-

-

46,130

2,324

-

48,455

1

-

227,478

8,666

808

236,952

Non-current derivative financial instruments

-

-

6,342

808

Other non-current financial assets
Trade receivables

-

3,380

-

-

129,197

-

Other receivables*

-

48,690

Current derivative financial instruments

-

-

Other current financial assets

-

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets
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As at December 31, 2015

in € thousand

Assets
Loans
Financial
Financial
available
and assets at fair assets at fair
for sale receivables value through value through
income
equity

Non-current derivative financial instruments

-

Other non-current financial assets
Trade receivables

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

11,283

2

-

789

-

-

150,907

-

-

-

73,048

-

-

-

0

-

762

-

-

762

-

30,108

21,055

-

51,163

1

31,736

602

287,952

-

10,681

602

-

789

-

-

150,907

-

Other receivables*

-

73,048

Current derivative financial instruments

-

-

Other current financial assets

-

Cash and cash equivalents

-

Financial assets

-

255,615

* excluding prepaid expenses and income tax receivables.
Assets available for sale
This asset category notably includes unconsolidated equity interests and marketable securities that do not satisfy
any of the other financial asset definitions. The unrealised gains and losses recognised in this asset class are
recognised in shareholders' equity until disposal.
At the end of 2016, Virbac had no assets in this category.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets, of determined or determinable payments, which are not
listed. The elements in this category are described below.



Loans and other financial receivables
These are mainly security deposits and other advance rental payments, escrow accounts, as well as loans granted
(notably to personnel).



Trade receivables
These are recognised at the initial amount of the invoice, minus provisions for impairment.



Current receivables
These are mainly receivables vis-à-vis tax (excluding corporation tax) and social security authorities, as well as
advances and prepayments on orders.
Cash and cash equivalents
These
are mainly bank account deposits and cash on hand.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss account
Financial assets recognised at fair value through the profit or loss account include interest rate and exchange rate
instruments that Virbac has elected not to classify as hedging, changes to which are immediately recognised in income.
This category also includes marketable securities acquired by Virbac for sale or redemption in the short term. They are
measured at fair value at the balance sheet date, and any fair value changes are recognised in income. The fair values of
marketable securities are mainly determined with reference to the market price (buying or selling price as applicable).
Assets held to maturity
These are financial assets, other than loans and receivables, having a fixed maturity and for which payments are
determined or determinable. Virbac does not hold any securities that meet the definition of held-to-maturity investments.
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Financial liabilities

The different categories of financial liabilities are the following:
As at December 31, 2016
Loans
and
debts
in € thousand

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
income

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

-

4,177

534

4,711

2

Other non-current financial liabilities

433,749

-

-

433,749

-

Trade payables

105,261

-

-

105,261

-

Other payables*

117,520

-

-

117,520

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,158

36

-

9,194

2

147,863

-

-

147,863

-

813,551

4,213

534

818,298

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Current derivative financial instruments
Bank overdrafts and accrued interests not
yet matured
Other current financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

* excluding prepaid income and income tax debt.
As at December 31, 2015
Loans
and
debts
in € thousand

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
income

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
equity

Total

Fair
value
hierarchy

-

1,970

756

2,726

2

Other non-current financial liabilities

520,836

-

-

520,836

-

Trade payables

115,026

-

-

115,026

-

Other payables*

104,621

-

-

104,621

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,098

54

-

12,154

2

121,152

-

-

121,152

-

873,734

2,024

756

876,514

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Current derivative financial instruments
Bank overdrafts and accrued interests not
yet matured
Other current financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

* excluding prepaid income and income tax debt.
At December 31, 2016, the gross cost of financial debt amounted to €20,150 thousand. At December 31, 2015, it
was €14,606 thousand.

A30. Risk management associated with financial assets and liabilities
Policy management of financial risk is controlled centrally by the Group’s Financial Affairs department and in
particular its Treasury and Financing department.
Strategies for financing, investment, and interest and exchange rate risk hedging are also systematically reviewed
and monitored by the Financial Affairs department. The operations carried out by local teams are also managed and
monitored by the Group’s Treasury and Financing department.
The holding of financial instruments is conducted with the sole purpose of reducing exposure to exchange rate and
interest rate risks and has no speculation purpose.
The Group holds derivative financial instruments solely for the purpose of reducing its exposure to rate or exchange
risks on balance sheet items and its firm or highly probable commitments.
As regards cash flow hedging, it is anticipated that cash flows will occur and impact profit during the course of 2017.

Credit risk



Risk factors
The credit risk may arise when the Group grants credit to customers on payment terms. The risk of insolvency, or
even default by some of them, may result in non-payment and thus negatively impact the Group’s income statement
and net cash position. The impact may be felt from a payment standpoint (non-payment for services or deliveries
made, customer risk) or delivery (undelivered services or supplies paid for, supplier risk).
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As at December 31, 2016, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk was €129,197 thousand, which represents
the trade receivables as presented in the Group’s consolidated accounts.
The risk on sales between Group companies is not material, to the extent that Virbac ensures that its subsidiaries
have the necessary financial structure to honour their debts.



Risk management mechanisms
The Group limits the negative consequences of this type of risk thanks to the very high fragmentation and dispersal
of its customers throughout all on the countries in which it operates. The Treasury department recommends, in
accordance with the applicable regulations, the usage, the rating, the limits imposed by credit insurance, the
maximum settlement deadlines and sets the credit limits for customers to be applied by the Group’s operational
entities. The Treasury and Financing department manages and steers these credit aspects for the French entities
which it is directly responsible for and recommends the same practices via guidelines and best practices for the
Group. In addition, there is a master credit group insurance contract that benefits or can benefit any subsidiary for
which this type of risk has been identified.
As regards third-party receivables, the Group considers the counterparty risk to be immaterial given the strength of
the main counterparties and the major geographic dispersal of its client base throughout the world. The Group's
companies have implemented a mechanism for monitoring debts paid, allowing them to limit the amount of bad
debts. Moreover, the Group has established a framework agreement with Coface allowing any subsidiaries - who
need to do so - to hedge their credit risk locally.
The following statements provide a breakdown of trade receivables:
As at December 31, 2016

Receivables
due

Impaired

Total

181

19,418

< 3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months > 12 months

in € thousand
France

Receivables overdue for

18,711

526

0

-

Europe (excluding France)

19,985

1,805

176

55

1

2,132

24,154

Latin America

32,998

5,485

1,761

568

-

2,238

43,050

North America

16,358

-

-

-

-

39

16,397

Asia

10,886

306

1,025

-

-

123

12,340

Pacific

15,304

27

14

150

-

16

15,511

2,957

99

-

-

-

6

3,062

117,199

8,248

2,976

773

1

4,735

133,932

Receivables overdue for

Impaired

Total
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24,370

Africa & Middle East
Trade receivables
As at December 31, 2015

Receivables
due

< 3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months > 12 months

in € thousand
France

23,970

Europe (excluding France)

31,811

1,184

99

23

2

2,098

35,217

Latin America

33,843

12,178

5,343

944

36

1,012

53,356

North America

16,006

-

-

-

-

5

16,011

9,122

562

42

-

-

149

9,875

13,728

94

1

-

-

4

13,827

1,659

43

-

-

-

5

1,707

130,139

14,259

5,496

967

46

3,456

154,363

Asia
Pacific
Africa & Middle East
Trade receivables

198

11

-

8

Receivables due and not settled are periodically analysed and classified as bad debts, whenever the risk that the
receivable will not be fully recovered appears. The amount of the provision funded at the balance sheet date is
defined based on the age of the receivable and, as the case may be, criteria regarding the debtors.
Bad debts are written off when identified as such.

Counterparty risk



Risk factors
The Group is exposed to counterparty risk within its contracts and financial instruments which it buys, in the event
that the debtor refuses to honour all or part of his commitment or finds himself in fine unable to do so.
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Risk management mechanisms
The Group pays particular attention to the choice of banking entities it uses, and is even more critical when it comes
to investing available cash.
However, Virbac considers that it has low exposure to counter-party risk given the quality of its major counterparties.
In fact, investments are only made with first-class banking entities.
As regards other financial assets and particularly liquid assets, the cash surpluses of Group subsidiaries are pooled
by the parent company, which is in charge of managing them centrally, in the form of short-term interest-bearing
deposits. The Group only works with leading banking counterparties.

Liquidity risk



Risk factors
Liquidity is defined as the Group’s capacity to meet its financial payment deadlines as part of its current business
and to find new funding sources as needed, so as to maintain a continual balance between its income and
expenditures. As part of its operations, its programme of recurring investments and active policy of external growth,
the Group is also exposed to the risk of not being sufficiently liquid to fund its growth and development.



Risk management mechanisms
The policy of pooling surplus cash and funding needs in all areas helps to refine the Group’s net position and to
optimise the management of investments and funding requirements, ensuring Group’s ability to meet its financial
commitments and maintain an optimal level of availability commensurate with its size and needs.
As part of its specific review of liquidity risk, the Group completed a waiver application at the end of the third quarter of 2016,
anticipating a breach of the debt covenant. This waiver was accepted during the fourth quarter of 2016 for all bank
debt and part of the market-based funding; the breach of covenant recorded as at December 31, 2016 is thus
authorised and the level of covenant that will be measured during the financial year 2017 has been the subject of an
amendment and an increase, permitting the integration of the 2017 prospects. The company’s cash and financial
resources are sufficient to fund its cash requirements. However, the Group does not exclude the use of its banking pool
or other lenders to set up additional financing with short-term maturity to support its working capital requirements.

Market risks
Exchange risk



Risk factors
The currency risk arises from the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on the Group’s financial flows when carrying
out its activities. Due to its strong international presence, the Group is exposed to the foreign exchange risk on
transactions, and the foreign exchange risk on the conversion of the financial statements of its foreign subsidiaries.
Virbac carries out transactions in currencies other than the euro (its reference currency). The exchange rate risk is
monitored using a client risk summary from the IT system (ERP). The items are updated based on ad hoc reports.
The majority of the Group's exchange risk is centralised on the parent company, which invoices subsidiaries in their
local currency. In the case of sales to countries with exotic currencies, the invoices are denominated in euros or
American dollars.
Taking into account the purchases and sales in other currencies, the Group is exposed to exchange rate risks mainly
for the following currencies: American dollar, pound sterling, Swiss franc and various currencies in Asia, the Pacific
and Latin America.
Given the Group's exchange rate risk exposure, currency fluctuations have a significant impact on its income
statement both in terms of conversion risk and transaction risk.



Risk management mechanisms
In order to protect against unfavourable variations in the various currencies in which sales, purchases or specific
transactions are denominated, the Group’s policy is to hedge the currency risk on transactions when the magnitude
of the exposure and the currency fluctuations are high.
The Group hedges the majority of its significant and certain exchange positions (loans, debts, dividends, intra-group
loans), a portion of its estimated positions, as well as its future sales and purchases.
Accordingly, it uses various instruments available on the market and generally employs foreign exchange forwards or options.
Derivative financial exchange instruments are presented below, at market value:
2016

2015

Fair value hedges

-

-

Cash flow hedges

-83

414

-

20

in € thousand

Net investment hedges

Derivatives not qualifying for hedges
2,875
9,103
The derivative instruments held at closure do not all qualify for hedging in the consolidated accounts. In such a case,
value
variations
directly
impact the
income for the period.
Derivative
financial
exchange
instruments
2,792
9,537
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Interest rate risk



Risk factors
The Group’s income statement may be impacted by the interest rate risk. In fact, unfavourable rate changes can
also have a negative impact on the Group’s financing costs and future cash flows.
The exposure of the Group to the interest rate risk arises from the fact that the Group’s debt consists mainly of
credit lines and variable rate loans; the cost of debt can therefore increase if interest rates rise.
The exposure to rate risks for the Virbac Group mainly results from the floating-rate credit lines implemented for a
maximum amount of €555 million. This facility is indexed on the Euribor and the USD Libor.
The loan in the United States is indexed on the USD Libor.
The local loan in Colombia to finance the acquisition of the Synthesis assets is indexed on the DTF (Depositos
termino fijo).
The local loan in Mexico to finance the construction of new facilities is indexed on the TIIE (Tasa de interes
interbancaria de equilibrio).
The current amount on the credit lines is the following:
2015

2016

in € thousand

Book
value

Average real
interest rate

Book
value

-

-

13.500%

993

Average real
interest rate

Brazil
Chile

1.689%

26,086

1.367%

40,428

Mexico

7.426%

2,818

7.330%

2,203

Uruguay

5.238%

3,878

6.034%

1,887

France

2.760%

71,140

2.548%

70,995

Colombia

8.910%

727

9.227%

Fixed rate debt

104,649

Brazil

917
117,424

-

-

3.928%

270

1.920%

429,458

0.823%

469,488

United States

1.531%

28,460

0.972%

27,556

Mexico

9.553%

3,318

5.050%

8,091

France

Uruguay

-

-

4.825%

2,080

Colombia

10.422%

529

6.992%

1,400

New Zealand

4.467%

4,401

4.791%

4,519

Australia

2.740%

4,111

3.165%

1,678

-

298

-

1,281

Other
Variable rate debt
Bank overdrafts

470,575
-

Loans and bank overdrafts*

516,094

9,158

-

584,382

12,098
645,614

* excluding debt relating to the capital leasing contracts.
Interest rate derivatives are shown below, at market value:
2016

2015

Fair value hedges

-

-

Cash flow hedges

in € thousand

-353

-981

Net investment hedges

-

-

Derivatives not qualifying for hedges

-

-

-353

-981

Derivative financial rate instruments



Risk management mechanisms
To manage these risks and optimise the cost of its debt, the Group monitors developments and market rate
expectations and limits its exposure by establishing interest rate hedges, using instruments available on the market
such as caps or swaps of interest rates (fixed rate) not exceeding the length and value of its actual commitments.
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As at December 31, 2016, the swap rates are considered hedging instruments, but not the cross currency swaps.
Specific impacts from hedging exchange and interest rate risks



Risk factors
The purpose of hedge accounting is to offset the impact of the hedged item and of the hedging instrument in the
income statement. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, all hedging relation-ships must satisfy a series of
stringent conditions in terms of documentation, likelihood of occurrence, effectiveness of the hedge and
measurement reliability.



Risk management mechanisms
The Group only engages in hedging transactions designed to hedge actual or certain exposure; it does not create
speculative risk.
Nevertheless, due to the constraints imposed by the documentation of hedging relationships, the Group has elected
to only classify derivatives it holds at the balance sheet date as hedges for accounting purposes where the impact on
the consolidated financial statements is truly material and where the hedging relationship can be demonstrated.
The exchange rate derivatives used for cash flow hedging generally mature within a year.
The derivative financial interest rate instruments are used to hedge the credit lines or loans and therefore have a
maturity beyond several years, compatible with the hedged flows.
As at December 31, 2016, the unrealised exchange gains and losses in equity for the period showed a net gain of
€275 thousand. The ineffective share of this cash flow hedging recorded as an expense was €50 thousand.
Nominal

Positive fair value

Negative fair value

2016

2015

2016

2015

2016

Forward exchange contract

61,084

46,250

797

965

1,889

856

OTC options exchange

15,444

9,527

217

249

392

147

in € thousand

Cross currency swap
Exchange instruments
Swap rate
Interest rate options

2015

63,742

68,249

5,409

9,420

1,350

93

140,270

124,026

6,423

10,634

3,631

1,096

153,301

133,408

402

90

300

630

128,071

105,631

325

559

779

1,001

Interest rate instruments

281,373

239,039

726

649

1,079

1,631

Derivative financial instruments

421,643

363,065

7,149

11,283

4,710

2,727

Supply risks

All the raw materials and certain active ingredients used to manufacture Virbac's products are supplied by third
parties. In certain cases, the Group also uses finishers or industrial partners who have expertise in or are masters in
particular technologies.
As far as possible, Virbac diversifies its sources of supply by referencing numerous suppliers, whilst ensuring that
these different sources embody the sufficient characteristics of quality and loyalty.
Nevertheless, there are certain supplies or certain technology situations where diversification is practically
impossible, which can result in a disruption to the supply or pressure on prices.
To limit these risks, the Group takes a broad approach to identifying as many diversified suppliers as possible, and
may in certain cases secure its supply chain by acquiring the technologies and capacities it lacks and that create too
high a dependency. An example of this was the acquisition of the intellectual property and industrial facilities to
produce the protein used to make the leading cat vaccine.
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A31. Composition of Virbac share capital
2015

Increase

Decrease

2016

Number of authorised shares

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

Number of shares issued and fully paid

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

-

-

-

-

8,430,220

35,401

-36,589

8,429,032

27,780

36,589

-35,401

28,968

Nominal value of shares

€1.25

-

-

€1.25

Virbac share capital

€10,572,500

-

-

€10,572,500

Number of shares issued and not fully paid
Outstanding shares
Treasury shares

A32. Performance-related stock grant plans
The executive board, in accordance with authorisation from the shareholders' general meeting, granted an allocation
of company shares for certain employees and directors at Virbac and at its subsidiaries.

Fair value of performance-related stock grant plans

In accordance with IFRS 2, these plans are valued in the Virbac consolidated accounts based on the fair value of the
shares allocated on the date of their allocation, that is:
• for the 2012 plan, €1,196,000 corresponding to 10,000 shares at €119.60. This amount has been spread
over a vesting period of 30 months.
The 2012 plan, which should have matured at the end of 2014, was renewed until the end of 2016 by the executive
board following a decision of the supervisory board. The performance criterion for the 2012 plan is measured using
the formula 10 times EBIT minus debt. At the end of the 2015 financial year, acknowledging that the level of EBIT
and debt in the 2016 budget, and the low probability that this budget will be exceeded in a very significant way, it
was considered that the level of the performance criterion would not be achieved and that the shares would
therefore not be effectively acquired by the beneficiaries. At the close of the 2015 financial year, the expenses
recognised in previous years under this plan were therefore fully recovered, for a total of €718 thousand.
• €2,248,358 for the 2016 plan, corresponding to 12,150 shares valued at €185.05 each. This amount was
deferred over the vesting period of 27.5 months.
The expense recognised in respect of the performance share plans in the 2016 consolidated financial statements
corresponds to the 2016 plan alone and amounts to €286 thousand.

A33. Dividends
In 2016, the company did not distribute a dividend.
A proposal will be submitted at the general shareholders meeting that no dividend should be paid for the 2016
financial year.

A34. Workforce
Evolution of workforce by geographic area
2016

2015

Cha nge

1,398

1,392

0.4%

Europe (excluding France)

322

324

-0.6%

Latin America

951

952

-0.1%

France

536

552

-2.9%

1,208

1,128

7.1%

Pacific

303

301

0.7%

Africa & Middle East

134

132

1.5%

4,852

4,781

1.5%

North America
Asia

Workforce
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Distribution of workforce by position
2016
Production
Administration
Commercial
Research & Development
Workforce

2015

1,837

37.9%

1,783

37.3%

542

11.2%

523

10.9%

1,933

39.8%

1,925

40.3%

540

11.1%

550

11.5%

4,852

100.0%

4,781

100.0%

A35. Information on related parties
Compensation of supervisory board members
2016

Marie-Hélène Dick

2015

Compensation

Directors' fees

Compensation

Directors' fees

€95,000

€21,000

€95,000

€21,000

Jeanine Dick

-

€12,000

-

€12,000

Pierre Madelpuech

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

Philippe Capron

-

€24,000

-

€24,000

Olivier Bohuon

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

Grita Loebsack

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

Xavier Yon

-

€21,000

-

€21,000

€95,000

€141,000

€95,000

€141,000

Total

Compensation of executive board members
As at December 31, 2016 - Gross amount due
Fixed compensation Compensation linked to terms
(including benefits of office for administrators in
in kind)
Group companies

Variable
compensation

Total
compensation

Éric Marée

€343,560

€74,528

€62,556

€480,644

Christian Karst

€267,911

€45,000

€57,200

€370,111

Michel Garaudet

€65,849

€14,952

-

€80,801

Habib Ramdani *

€109,016

-

€38,700

€147,716

Sébastien Huron

€246,476

€25,000

€46,575

€318,051

Jean-Pierre Dick

€41,781

-

€13,773

€55,554

€1,074,593

€159,480

€218,804

€1,452,877

Variable
compensation

Total
compensation

Total

* Remuneration to be counted from the time he joined the executive board
Michel Garaudet also received in 2016 a retirement benefit of €60,125.
As at December 31, 2015 - Gross amount due
Fixed compensation Compensation linked to terms
(including benefits of office for administrators in
in kind)
Group companies
Éric Marée

€336,064

€74,024

€50,000

€460,088

Christian Karst

€240,911

€45,000

€50,000

€335,911

Michel Garaudet

€197,546

€14,952

€50,000

€262,498

Sébastien Huron

€216,476

€25,000

€50,000

€291,476

Jean-Pierre Dick

€41,781

-

-

€41,781

€1,032,778

€158,976

€200,000

€1,391,754

Total
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The compensation paid in respect of 2016 corresponds to the fixed compensation paid in 2016, the compensation
linked to terms of office for directors in Group companies paid in 2016, the variable compensation paid in 2017 in
respect of 2016 and the benefits in kind granted in 2016 (company car).
Calculation criteria for the variable portion
Each member of the executive board has a variable compensation target which is a percentage of his/her fixed compensation.
The variable compensation for the executive board is based on the following objectives:
• sales growth;
• growth in operating profit from ordinary activities, as well as specific goals;
• inventory control;
• significant acquisitions, for the Group, of companies or products (in terms of size, financial contribution,
strategic importance).
Other benefits
In addition to the various compensation items, executive board members enjoy the benefits described below.



Retirement
The chairman of the executive board Éric Marée, general manager Christian Karst and Jean-Pierre Dick benefit from
a supplementary defined benefit pension plan (12.5% of the reference salary and 22% in the event of service with
the company exceeding 30 years) whose conditions of allocation are as follows:
• over ten years service in the Group (including nine years as a member of the executive board);
• at least 60 years old;
• finished his/her career in the Group.
Provisions related to defined contribution pension plans amounted to €2,657 thousand as at December 31, 2016
compared to €1,630 thousand at the 2015 year-end. A charge of €-239 thousand was recognised in the statement of
income, and a change of €-787 thousand was recorded under other comprehensive income.



Severance pay
The commitments made by the company and the companies it controls to its executives in the event of dismissal are
as follows:
• Éric Marée: €483,000;
• Christian Karst: €326,000.
On December 17, 2014 the supervisory board reappointed the executive board members for a three-year term. In line
with the provisions of the act of August 21, 2007, the supervisory board, at its March 13, 2015 meeting, renewed the
commitments made by the company and the companies it controls in the event of the termination of the offices of the
chairman of the executive board, Éric Marée, and of Christian Karst, executive board member and general manager.
These commitments were approved by the shareholders' meeting of June 18, 2012 and, in accordance with the Afep-Medef
recommendations, they follow the same terms and conditions as set by the supervisory board on December 22, 2008,
namely: the severance pay shall only be payable in the event of dismissal, on the company's initiative. They will not be
paid in the event of resignation, retirement or gross misconduct by the corporate officers concerned.
The fulfilment of the severance pay performance criteria is assessed over the two half-year periods that precede the
director’s departure, and not a minimum of two years, as advocated in the Code. However, the amount of this
severance pay is substantially lower than the limit of two years of compensation provided under the Code and the
performance criteria are demanding (current operating income to revenue ratio equal to or higher than 7%).
Performance-related stock grant plans
Since
2006, the Virbac executive board, in accordance with authorisation from the shareholders' meeting, has
allocated stock grants to certain Virbac employees and directors and those of its subsidiaries.
These allocations are subject to meeting a performance target linked to the profitability and net debt of the Group.

The performance-related stock grants awarded under the 2012 plan amount to 9,200 shares as at December 31, 2015.
Throughout 2013, 2014 and 2015 no performance-related stock grants were allocated.
The performance shares granted to members of the executive board for the past five financial years are as follows:

Number of shares
2012 plan

Number of shares
2016 plan

1,130

-

Christian Karst

820

1,000

Michel Garaudet

510

-

Sébastien Huron

520

1,000

-

400

2,980

2,400

Éric Marée

Habib Ramdani
Totalthe years 2013, 2014 and 2015, no performance shares were allocated.
During
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Partnership

A sporting sponsorship agreement was signed between the Absolute Dreamer company, of which Jean-Pierre Dick is
manager, and Virbac, where Jean-Pierre Dick is a member of the executive board.
This partnership aims to contribute financially to the participation of a sailing vessel in various offshore races, which
helps to promote Virbac’s brand image throughout the world and increase its visibility.
An amount of €1.2 million was accounted for in expenses in the 2016 financial year as part of this contract.

A36. Off-balance sheet commitments
Deposits and guarantees given by Virbac or certain subsidiaries
A statement of the main deposits and guarantees is presented below.
in € thousand
PP Manufacturing Corporation
Virbac Uruguay
Virbac RSA
Guarantees given

2016

2015

30/09/2020

1,971

2,395

Banco de la Republica Oriental del Uruguay

-

5,527

5,383

Nedbank

Annual renewal

-

177

7,498

7,954

Guarantee provided with

Validity limit date

NDNE 9/90 Corporate Center LLC

Contingent liabilities
No provisions are established if the company considers that the liability is contingent (as defined by IAS 37).
This was particularly the case in 2014 when a competitor of the Group made a request to seek compensation for
alleged damages relating to a use patent.
The same applies to a request made by one of the Group’s competitors at the end of 2016 seeking compensation for
alleged damages resulting from damage to the reputation of one of its trademarks and infringement of that trademark.
In both cases, Virbac considers the application to be legally unfounded and disproportionate in terms of the amount
claimed as compensation for the damage.
It is therefore, in both cases, a contingent liability in regards to which a significant outflow of resources is unlikely.
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A37. Scope of consolidation
Company name

Locality

2016

2015

Control Consolidation

Control Consolidation

Country

France
Virbac (parent company)

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Interlab

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac France

Carros

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Wissous

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Vauvert

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

La Seyne sur Mer

France 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

France

99.70%

Full

99.70%

Full

Virbac Distribution
Virbac Nutrition
Bio Véto Test
Alfamed

Carros

Europe (excluding France)
Virbac Belgium SA

Wavre

Belgium 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Nederland BV *

Barneveld

Netherlands 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac (Switzerland) AG

Glattbrugg

Switzerland 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Bury St. Edmunds United Kingdom 100.00%

Virbac Ltd

Full

100.00%

Full

Milan

Italy 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Kolding

Denmark 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Pharma Handelsgesellshaft mbH

Bad Oldesloe

Germany 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Tierarzneimittel GmbH

Bad Oldesloe

Germany 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Warsaw

Poland 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac SRL
Virbac Danmark A/S

Virbac SP zoo

Budapest

Hungary 100.00%

Full

-%

Virbac Hellas SA

Virbac Hungary Kft

Agios Stefanos

Greece 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Animedica SA

Agios Stefanos

Greece 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Barcelona

Spain 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Vienna

Austria 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Almerim

Portugal 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Fort Worth

United States 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Framingham

United States 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac España SA
Virbac Österreich GmbH
Virbac de Portugal Laboratorios Lda

-

North America
Virbac Corporation *
PP Manufacturing Corporation
* Pre-consolidated levels
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Company name

Locality

2016

2015

Control Consolidation

Control Consolidation

Country

Latin America
Virbac do Brasil Industria e Comercio Ltda

São Paulo

Brazil 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

Mexico 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Laboratorios Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

Mexico 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Inmobiliara Virbac Mexico SA de CV

Guadalajara

-

100.00%

Full

Bogota

Colombia 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Laboratorios Virbac Costa Rica SA

San José

Costa Rica 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Chile SpA

Santiago

Chile 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Patagonia Ltda

Santiago

Chile 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Holding Salud Animal SA

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Centro Veterinario y Agricola Limitada

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Farquimica SpA

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Bioanimal Corp SpA

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Productos Quimico Ehlinger

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Allegheny

United States

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Buenos Aires

Argentina

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Inversiones HSA Ltda

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Rentista de capitales Takumi Ltda

Santiago

Chile

51.00%

Full

51.00%

Full

Montevideo

Uruguay

99.17%

Full

99.17%

Full

Chile 100.00%

Full

-

Virbac Colombia Ltda

Centrovet Inc
Centrovet Argentina

Virbac Uruguay SA **
Virbac Latam Spa

Santiago

Mexico

-

-

Asia
Virbac Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Shanghai

China 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac H.K. Trading Limited

Hong Kong

Hong Kong 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Asia Pharma Ltd

Hong Kong

Hong Kong 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Seoul

South Korea 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Bangkok

Thailand 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Taiwan Co. Ltd

Taipei

Taiwan 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Philippines Inc.

Taguig City

Philippines 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Japan Co. Ltd

Osaka

Japan 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac Korea Co. Ltd
Virbac (Thailand) Co. Ltd

Virbac Asia Pacific Co. Ltd
Virbac Vietnam Co. Ltd

Bangkok

Thaïland 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Ho Chi Minh Ville

Vietnam 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Mumbai

India 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Hong Kong

Hong Kong 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Tapei

Taiwan 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Equity method

50.00%

Equity method

Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited
SBC Virbac Limited
* Pre-consolidated
levels
SBC Virbac Biotech Limited
AVF Animal Health Co Ltd Hong-Kong
AVF Chemical Industrial Co Ltd Hong Kong
AVF Chemical Industrial Co Ltd China

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

50.00%

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

50.00%

Equity method

50.00%

Equity method

Jinan (Shandong)

China

50.00%

Equity method

50.00%

Equity method

Pacific
Virbac (Australia) Pty Ltd *

Milperra

Australia 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Virbac New Zealand Limited

Hamilton

New Zealand 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Centurion

South Africa 100.00%

Full

100.00%

Full

Africa & Middle East
Virbac RSA (Proprietary) Ltd *
* Pre-consolidated levels
** Change of corporation name of Santa Elena
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Statutory auditors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2016
To the shareholders,
in accordance with our appointment as statutory auditors at your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you
for the year ended December 31, 2016 on:
• the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Virbac;
• the justification of our assessments;
• the specific verifications required by law.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the executive board. Our role is to express an opinion
on these financial statements, based on our audit.

OPINION ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, using sample testing techniques or other selection
methods, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the
financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2016 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.

JUSTIFICATION OF OUR ASSESSMENTS
In accordance with article L. 823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce) relating to the justification
of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters.
Goodwill and intangible assets, the net amounts of which total €342.4 million and €354.4 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2016, have been subject to impairment tests in accordance with the methods set forth in paragraph
“Goodwill” of “Accounting principles and methods” note to the consolidated financial statements. We have examined
the methods used to perform these tests based on value in use and reviewed the consistency of the assumptions
used with forecasts taken from the strategic plans prepared for each of the activities or divisions under the Group’s
control. We have also verified that paragraph “Goodwill” in “Accounting principles and methods” note to the
consolidated financial statements provides appropriate disclosure.
These assessments were performed as part of our audit approach for the consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole and contributed to the expression of our opinion in the first part of this report.

SPECIFIC VERIFICATIONS
In accordance with professional standards applicable in France, we have also verified, pursuant to the law, the
information relating to the Group given in the management report.
We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated financial statements.
Nice and Marseille, March 13, 2017
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud
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Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges Vincent Gros
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Statutory financial report
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance sheet – Assets
Notes

2016
Net amount

2015
Net amount

28,258

20,554

22,347

36,177

10,088

9,988

64,435

30,641

32,335

Gross
amount

Depreciation
and provisions

Concessions, patents, licences and brands

48,812

Other intangible assets

46,265
95,077

in € thousand

Intangible assets

B1

Land

1,790

-

1,790

1,790

102,006

59,054

42,952

43,077

98,566

59,032

39,534

40,020

Other tangible assets

3,911

3,242

669

597

Prepayments on assets and assets in progress

5,562

-

5,562

6,522

211,835

121,328

90,507

92,006

283,635

-

283,635

283,255

-

-

-

-

423,282

-

423,282

412,459

1,084

-

1,084

115

708,001

-

708,001

695,829

1,014,913

185,763

829,149

820,170

Raw materials

27,172

1,613

25,558

24,366

Work in progress

12,081

1,431

10,650

11,072

8,932

123

8,810

9,956

48,185

3,167

45,018

45,394

64,670

147

64,522

68,745

65

-

65

69

8,427

-

8,427

27,751

4,240

-

Buildings
Technical facilities, materials and industrial equipment

Tangible assets

B2

Shares in companies and other receivables
Other long-term securities
Loans
Other financial assets
Financial assets

B3

Total fixed assets

Semi-finished and finished goods
Inventories and work in progress

B4

Trade receivables and related accounts
Employee-related receivables
Income tax receivables
Other social and State receivables
Other receivables
Current receivables

47,756

4,240

7,658

47,756

16,576
120,799

B5

125,158

147

125,010

1,032

-

1,032

354

Marketable securities

B6

5,446

-

5,446

5,471

Available funds

B7

Advances and prepayment on orders

598

-

598

325

Cash and cash equivalents

7,076

-

7,076

6,150

Prepaid expenses

1,869

-

1,869

2,979

Deferred charges

1,272

-

1,272

1,496

17,966

-

17,966

10,738

21,107

-

21,107

15,213

1,216,438

189,078

1,027,361

1,007,726

Unrealised foreign exchange losses
Accruals and other assets
Total assets
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Balance sheet – Liabilities
Notes

2016

2015

in € thousand
Share capital

10,573

10,573

Share premium and paid-in capital

6,534

6,534

Legal reserve

1,089

1,089

Regulated reserves

36,287

36,287

Other reserves

36,396

36,396

Retained earnings

224,685

185,421

Result for the period

47,678

39,264

Regulated provisions

29,856

28,331

393,098

343,895

Government loans

-

-

Other equity

-

-

10,187

7,642

2,245

3,941

Equity

B9

Provisions for contingencies
Provisions for foreign exchange losses
Provisions for litigations
Provisions for liabilities and charges

B10

Bonds
Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts - current
Bank overdrafts - other

-

-

12,432

11,583

-

-

502,620

540,483

5,542

8,292

-

-

47

123

27,658

20,245

535,867

569,143

Trade payables and related accounts

46,672

50,885

Employee-related payables

10,304

8,413

9,751

10,159

Income tax payables

-

-

Value added tax

-

-

2,469

3,055

Other borrowings and financial liabilities
Related borrowings and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities

B5 & B11

Social payables

Other social and State payables
Payables to fixed assets suppliers and related accounts

3

98

1,004

3,623

B5

70,203

76,233

-

-

B8

15,762

6,872

B12

15,762

6,872

1,027,361

1,007,726

Other payables
Current liabilities
Prepaid income
Unrealised foreign exchange gains
Accruals and other liabilities
Total liabilities
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Profit and loss statement
Notes

2016

2015

Cha nge

R1

256,691
256,691

271,891
271,891

-5.6%

R2

-121
3,534
990
4,403

-881
14
5,462
764
5,359

-17.8%

R2

-25,728
-58,943
1,867
-76,698
-6,055
-57,131
-27,095
-17,067
-3,202
-2,267
-2,874
-275,194

-25,742
-62,559
632
-80,791
-6,405
-53,445
-25,318
-16,244
-1,126
-547
-3,039
-274,584

0.2%

Net operating income

-14,100

2,666

-628.9%

Dividends received
Other interest receivable and similar income
Reversals of provisions and expense transfers
Foreign exchange gains
Net income on the disposals of marketable securities
Financial income

R3

35,463
18,112
3,941
50,221
107,736

28,749
18,890
2,423
94,684
4
144,750

-25.6%

R3

-2,245
-16,865
-49,508
-68,618

-3,940
-11,886
-95,454
-111,280

-38.3%

Net financial income

39,118

33,470

16.9%

Profit before tax

25,018

36,136

-30.8%

Non-recurring income from operations
Non-recurring income from capital transactions
Reversals of provisions and expense transfers
Non-recurring income

R4

672
17,420
5,608
23,701

326
10,306
5,357
15,989

48.2%

R4

-272
-377
-7,836
-8,484

-2,316
-9,730
-8,070
-20,116

-57.8%

15,217

-4,127

-468.7%

-489
7,933

-47
7,302

47,678

39,264

in € thousand
Sales of goods and services
Net sales
Production transferred to inventory
Government grants
Reversals of provisions and depreciations, expense transfers
Other operating income
Operating income
Purchases of goods
Purchases of raw materials and other supplies
Change in inventories (raw materials and supplies)
Other purchases and external expenses
Taxes and other contributions
Wages and salaries
Social contributions
Depreciations and provisions of fixed assets
Provisions for current assets
Provisions for risks and charges
Other operating expenses
Operating expenses

Depreciations and provisions
Other interest paid and similar expenses
Foreign exchange losses
Net expenses on the disposals of marketable securities
Financial expenses

Non-recurring expenses from operations
Non-recurring expenses from capital transactions
Depreciations and provisions
Non-recurring expenses
Net non-recurring income
Employee profit-sharing
Income tax
Result for the period
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Cash flow statement
2016

2015

47,678

39,264

Elimination of depreciations and provisions

19,332

20,506

Elimination of gains and losses on disposals

-17,107

-522

-450

-

49,453

59,248

376

-787

in € thousand
Result for the period

Other income and expenses with no cash impact
Cash flow
Effect of net change in inventories
Effect of net change in trade receivables
Effect of net change in trade payables
Effect of net change in other receivables and payables

4,223

7,184

-4,308

1,471

-426

440

-135

8,308

49,318

67,556

-4,003

-4,442

Acquisitions of tangible assets

-9,310

-11,398

Acquisitions of financial assets

-19,127

-90,201

Disposals of intangible and tangible assets

24,061

18,145

Net flow allocated to investing activities

-8,379

-87,896

Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company

-

-16,013

Increase/decrease in capital

-

-

Merger premium

-

-

Other increases related to merger

-

-

Investment grants

-

-

Other equity

-

-

Effect of change in working capital requirements
Net cash flow generated by operating activities
Acquisitions of intangible assets

Issuance/repayments of debt
Net cash from financing activities
Change in cash position

-37,940

34,918

-37,940

18,905

2,999

-1,435

2016

2015

-2,496

-1,061

503

-2,496

2,999

-1,435

Statement of change in cash position
in € thousand
Opening net cash position
Closing net cash position
Net change in cash position
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APPENDICES TO THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Significant events of the period
As part of its specific review of liquidity risk, the Group completed a waiver request at the end of the third quarter of
2016, anticipating a breach of the debt covenant. This waiver was accepted during the fourth quarter of 2016 for all
bank debt and part of the market-based funding; the breach of covenant recorded as at December 31, 2016 is thus
authorised and the level of covenant that will be measured during the financial year 2017 has been the subject of an
amendment and an increase, permitting the integration of the 2017 prospects. The acquisition of this waiver request
was followed by a moderate increase in the margin and commission amounting to €0.4 million. The market-based
contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac received no waiver were reclassified as other
short-term financial liabilities. The total amount reclassified as at December 31, 2016 amounts to €70.4 million (€50
million and $21.5 million), see Note B11. The company’s cash and financial resources should remain sufficient to
fund its cash requirements. However, the Group does not exclude the use of its pool of banks or other lenders to set
up additional financing with short-term maturity to support its working capital requirements.
During the year, one of the subsidiaries bought back 6.37% of its share capital, generating a net capital gain of
€17 million for Virbac.

Accounting principles and methods
Financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2015 have been drawn up and presented in accordance with
accounting rules, in line with the principles set out by articles 120-1 and seq. of the 2014 General accounting plan.
The basic method used to evaluate the subsequent articles of the 2014 General accounting plan is the
historic costs method.
The accounting policies were applied in accordance with the provisions of the French commercial code
(Code de commerce), the accounting decree of November 29, 1983 as well as the 2014-03 regulation of the
accounting standards body ANC (Autorité des normes comptables) regarding the rewriting of the 2014 General
accounting plan at the end of the financial year, modified by the 2015-06 regulation of the ANC of
November 23, 2015.

Intangible assets

This sub-heading includes goodwill, marketing authorisations, patents, licences acquired by the company as well as
external trademark application fees which are recorded and appear as assets in the balance sheet at their original
value as long as these brands are used. These fixed assets are valued at the historic acquisition cost, which
corresponds to the acquisition price and the acquisition costs. The loan costs associated with the acquisition or the
production of the assets are not capitalised. The patents, licences and concessions are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their economic useful lives when they can be estimated. The potential impairment of intangible assets not being
depreciated is examined at least once a year. An impairment test is carried out irrespective of any indication of a
loss in value. It combines a fair market value approach (estimate of fair value) and a future cash flow approach
(estimate of value in use). Cash flows are calculated based on estimates that can range from five to ten years. The
discount rate used for these calculations is 7,5%.
The other intangible assets include, in particular, computer software:
• standard office software is amortised on a straight-line basis, as soon as it is capitalised, over four years,
which corresponds to its economic useful life;
• expenditure items relating to information technology projects that, in addition to licence acquisition costs,
include significant consultancy expenditures are recorded as assets as and when they are incurred. These
information technology projects are amortised on a straight-line basis, starting as soon as the information
system is operational.
Research and development costs are fully booked as expenses.
Depreciation period of intangible assets
Trademark

non-amortissable

Patents, licences and know-how

between 10 and 15 years

Marketing authorisations

between 10 and 15 years

Distribution rights
Softwares

contract duration
4 years

Movex ERP software

between 7 and 14 years

Other intangible assets

between 4 and 10 years
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Tangible assets

Tangible assets are recorded at cost and include acquisition costs. Loan costs associated with the acquisition or the
production of assets are not capitalised.
The company proceeds as following:
• breakdown by components (buildings and fittings);
• breakdown by components of the industrial equipments with a gross value over than €50 thousand;
• definition of depreciation schedules according to useful lives.
The depreciation periods applied correspond to the economic useful lives summarized in the table below.
Furthermore, the company continues to use the useful lives defined by the tax authorities and, where possible, applies the
declining balance depreciation method. The differences resulting from the application of specific fiscal depreciation methods
and periods, including the declining balance, are recorded as non-recurring depreciations.
Depreciation period of tangible assets
Buildings

between 10 and 40 years

Facilities

between 10 and 20 years

Equipments

between 5 and 20 years

Other tangible assets

between 4 and 10 years

Financial assets
Shares in company:
Shares in company basically correspond to capital investments in the subsidiaries and are recorded at cost,
excluding incidental expenses. Incidental acquisition costs booked as expenses in the financial year are fiscally
restated and their deduction is spread over five years.
At the end of each financial year, a provision may be made to reflect the depreciation in value of a subsidiary’s
securities. This provision is made according to the securities’ value in the balance sheet and the fair value which
takes into account the following factors:
• share of the subsidiary’s net assets;
• expected cash flows, discounted at 7,5%.
Other financial assets
The loans to subsidiaries are recorded at historic cost. A provision for depreciation is recorded when there is an
objective indication of loss of value, resulting from an event occurring after the asset’s initial recognition.

Operating assets

Inventories of raw materials are stated at the weighted average cost, the acquisition cost including all incidental
acquisition costs.
A provision for depreciation is made when the products have expired or are unusable or if there is a probability that
these products will not be used before their expiry date.
Work in progress and finished products are valued at their actual production cost including direct and indirect
production costs. A provision for depreciation of finished products is applied when the realisable value or the prospects
for sale of these products – assessed according to the market - appear lower than the gross inventory value.
A stock of spare parts is also valued at the closure of the financial year. An impairment loss may be recognised
according to the age of the parts and the probability of use.

Receivables and payables

Receivables and payables are valued at their nominal value. Where applicable, receivables are entered at a loss in value
by means of a provision to reflect any difficulties in recovering outstanding amounts.
Sales are recorded at the time of transfer of ownership, which normally occurs at the time of delivery of the asset.

Marketable securities

Marketable securities are recorded at their acquisition cost. The unrealised gains on portfolio securities are not
recognised in the financial year’s accounting results. A provision for depreciation of the securities is recorded, where
applicable, if their realisable value falls below their acquisition cost.
As regards Undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS), the realisable value
corresponds to the market value at the closing date. Own shares are valued at acquisition cost. As regards plans for
the allocation of performance shares, a provision is made for the vesting period.

Available funds

Foreign currency liquidity is converted into euros based on the latest exchange rate, these exchange gains and
losses are included in the results for the financial year.
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Unrealised exchange gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses are a result of the recognition of payables and receivables in foreign currencies at
closing rate or, where applicable, at the hedging rate.
Unrealised losses result in a provision for exchange losses when the exchange rate has not been definitively hedged
by forward transactions or by de facto hedges. Unrealised gains do not contribute to the results of the financial year.

Provisions

They are intended to cover known costs and litigation (foreign exchange risks, retirement plans, end-of-career
allowances for staff, commercial disputes) as well as general economic risks that are based on an assessment
(regulatory or fiscal product risks, potential litigations).
Employee benefits
Defined contribution retirement plans
The advantages related to defined contribution retirement plans are taken to expenses as incurred.




Defined benefit retirement plans
The Group’s liabilities arising from defined benefit retirement plans are determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial method at each closing date. The method used to calculate the liabilities is based on a number of actuarial
assumptions. The discount rate is determined by reference to the iBoxx Corporate AA10+ rate of return on highgrade private bonds (AA rated companies). The Group’s liabilities are recognised as a debt on the balance sheet for
the fund’s net amount, which was constituted with an insurer. The actuarial gains and losses are immediately
recognised on the income statement.

Operating income

Sales are recorded as follows:
• goods sales of assets are recorded at the delivery of the assets and the transfer of the property title;
• transactions involving service provisions are recorded over the period during which the services were provided.

Financial income and expenses

Financial income is generated mainly by dividends received from subsidiaries and investment income from available
cash flow. The gains realised on monetary investments in UCITS are not recorded in the accounting results of the
financial year, but only upon sale of the securities.
A provision for depreciation of the securities may be recognised when justified by the subsidiary’s financial position.

Income tax

As regards corporate taxes, Virbac and all of its French subsidiaries (Virbac France, Alfamed, Interlab, Virbac
Distribution, Virbac Nutrition, Bio Veto Test) come under the tax integration system instituted by article 68 of the
December 30, 1987 law. Each company recognizes as cost the tax relating to its own profits, and retains the right to
incur further losses in the future.
As the sole company liable for taxes, Virbac records the debt or receivable vis-à-vis the Tax office for the taxconsolidated group.
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NOTES TO THE STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B1. Intangible assets
2015

Increases

Decreases

Transfers

2016

5,332

-

-

-

5,332

Patents and licences

16,227

-

-

-

16,227

Marketing authorisations (AMM)

26,110

-

-

200

26,310

in € thousand
Trademarks and filing fees for trademarks

Domain names

4

-

-

-

4

Distribution rights

473

-

-

425

898

Goodwill

442

-

-

-

442

Other intangible assets

40

-

-

-

40

38,047

1,431

-

2,128

41,606

4,398

2,572

-

-2,753

4,217

Gross value

91,073

4,003

-

-

95,076

Depreciation and amortisation

-58,450

-5,766

-

-

-64,216

-288

-

69

-

-219

-58,738

-5,766

69

-

-64,435

32,335

-1,763

69

-

30,641

Softwares
Advances, prepayments on intangible
assets

Provisions
Depreciation and provisions
Net value

The main patents, licences and marketing authorisations (AMM) are as follows (gross values):
• The Alpha Laval patent at €2,479 thousand;
• The FeLV patent at €2,628 thousand;
• The Alizine patent at €2,592 thousand;
• The Antigenics patent at €3,394 thousand;
• The Oridan patent at €3,000 thousand;
• The Doxicycline 50% marketing authorisation at €690 thousand (net value after impairment and no amortisation);
• The Schering-Plough marketing authorisation at €18,334 thousand;
• The Virbamec, Equimax and Eraquell marketing authorisations at €4,000 thousand;
• AMM Cyclosporin at €1,500 thousand;
• AMM Suramox, Stabox at €463 thousand.
The goodwill (Alizine) acquired for a value of €442 thousand on October 19, 1998 has been fully amortised since
December 31, 2008.
Regarding the computer programmes, upgrades were made to the various systems, in the financial year including
the commissioning:
• of CRM (Customer relationship management) for €783 thousand;
• of the new version of the MIS (Management information system) for €558 thousand;
• of a complementary module for the ERP (Enterprise resource planning) for €661 thousand.
Other IT projects have been recognised as an asset in-progress over a year for a total value of €2,037 thousand.
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B2. Tangible assets
2015

Increases

Decreases

Transfers

2016

1,790

-

-

-

1,790

Buildings

97,800

3,781

-49

474

102,006

Equipment and tools

93,126

3,184

-149

2,405

98,566

in € thousand
Land

Other tangible assets

3,708

203

-1

-

3,910

Tangible assets in progress

2,382

1,511

-

-1,795

2,098

Pending invoices for fixed assets

2,272

277

-

-

2,549

Advances and prepayment orders

1,868

131

-

-1,084

915

202,946

9,087

-199

-

211,834

Gross value
Land

-

-

-

-

-

Buildings

-54,723

-4,380

49

-

-59,054

Equipment and tools

-53,106

-6,699

773

-

-59,032

Other tangible assets

-3,111

-132

1

-

-3,242

Tangible assets in progress

-

-

-

-

-

Pending invoices for fixed assets

-

-

-

-

-

Advances and prepayment orders

-

-

-

-

-

-110,940

-11,211

823

-

-121,328

Depreciation, amortisation and provis
Land

1,790

-

-

-

1,790

Buildings

43,077

-599

-

474

42,952

Equipment and tools

40,020

-3,515

624

2,405

39,534

597

71

-

-

668

Tangible assets in progress

2,382

1,511

-

-1,795

2,098

Pending invoices for fixed assets

2,272

277

-

-

2,549

Advances and prepayment orders

1,868

131

-

-1,084

915

92,006

-2,124

624

-

90,506

Other tangible assets

Net value

Many of capital investments were made over the 2016 financial year on various sites, and for example:
• renovation work at VB1 for €1,734 thousand;
• the installation of a firewall at VB3 for €220 thousand;
• works for a NEP station (cleaning in place) at VB8 for €207 thousand.
Heavy equipment was purchased or put into operation, for example:
• a NEP station at VB8 for €847 thousand;
• an air handling unit at Bio1 for €189 thousand;
• an automatic remover at VB6 for €427 thousand;
• a seamer at Bio4 for €416 thousand;
• a laminar flow trolley for €174 thousand.
A provision for impairment of equipment has been recognised since 2012. In the financial statements as at
December 31, 2016, this impairment amounted to €512 thousand for decommissioned filtration systems and to
€72 thousand for unused equipment. The impact of the adjustment of this provision on the result for the 2016 financial
year is €40 thousand (income), taking into account amortisation recognised elsewhere.

202

STATUTORY FINANCIAL REPORT | FINANCIAL REPORT

B3. Financial assets
2015

Increases

Decreases

Transfers

2016

283,255

384

-4

-

283,635

Related account receivable

-

-

-

-

Other equity securities

-

-

-

-

in € thousand
Long-term investments

Loans and other financial assets

-

412,574

18,742

-6,950

-

424,366

695,829

19,126

-6,954

-

708,001

Impairment of financial assets

-

-

-

-

-

Provisions

-

-

-

-

-

695,829

19,126

-6,954

-

708,001

Gross value

Net value

Equity investments

In 2016, Virbac proceeded with the creation of a new subsidiary in Chile, Virbac Latam, with capital of €1,000.
During the year, Asia Pharma (Hong-Kong) was subject to a capital increase of €383 thousand. The company also
obtained the redemption by one of its subsidiaries of shares it held, generating a net capital gain of
€17,100 thousand recorded in the financial statements for the year.

in € thousand
Asia Pharma Limited
Virbac Latam Spa
Capital increases, acquisitions and
start-ups

2016
383

in € thousand

2016

Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited

-4

Disposals and redemptions

-4

1
384

Other financial assets

The ordinary shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016 authorised the Virbac parent company to buy back shares in
accordance with articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code and in line with the terms of the buyback
plan set out in the prospectus published, by our professional distributor and on the company’s website
on May 18, 2016.
The line item “Loans and other financial assets” includes mainly loans to subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries, i.e.:
• €6,315 thousand to Virbac New Zealand;
• €70,361 thousand to Virbac Chile;
• €2,178 thousand to SBC Virbac (Hong-Kong);
• €740 thousand to Virbac Uruguay;
• €332,038 thousand (or $350 million) to Virbac US;
• €7,018 thousand to SBC Virbac Biotech (Taiwan).
These loans, which are executed in local currency, are fully hedged except for the Virbac Chile loan,
€57,427 thousand of which is hedged and the Virbac US loan which is not hedged but has a de facto hedge with the
loan counterparty in US dollars for the same amount and same repayment maturity.
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B4. Inventories and work-in-progress
2016
Gross

2015
Gross

Raw materials and supplies

27,172

25,304

-1,868

Work-in-progress

12,081

11,143

-

938

8,932

9,990

-

-1,058

48,185

46,437

-1,868

-120

in € thousand

Finished goods
Inventories and work-in-progress

Change in inventories of Change in inventories
raw materials and other
of work-in-progress
supplies
and finished goods
-

As of December 31, 2016, provisions for impairment of inventory amounted to:
• raw materials €1,613 thousand;
• work-in-progress €1,431 thousand;
• finished goods €123 thousand.
The company has not recognised impairment for the inventory of spare parts.

B5. Receivables and payables
2016
Gross
amounts

Due in less than
one year

Due from 1 to 5
years

Due in more than
5 years

-

-

-

-

423,282

26,474

222,252

174,556

1,084

-

1,084

-

424,366

26,474

223,336

174,556

Accounts receivable and related accounts*

64,670

64,670

-

-

Other receivables

60,488

60,488

-

-

Prepaid expenses

1,869

1,869

-

-

Current assets

127,027

127,027

-

-

Total receivables

551,393

153,501

223,336

174,556

502,619

79,746

395,783

27,090

5,543

5,543

-

-

-

-

-

-

47

47

-

-

in € thousand
Receivable related to long-term investments
Loans
Other financial assets
Total fixed assets

Bank loans
Current bank overdrafts
Bank overdraft
Loans and miscellaneous financial debts
Owed to subsidiaries (current accounts)

27,658

27,658

-

-

535,867

112,994

395,783

27,090

Accounts payable and related accounts**

45,445

45,445

-

-

Tax and social payables

Borrowings

22,524

22,524

-

-

Payables to fixed assets suppliers and related
accounts

1,230

1,230

-

-

Other payables

1,004

1,004

-

-

Prepaid income
Operating liabilities
Total payables

-

-

-

-

70,203

70,203

-

-

606,070

183,197

395,783

27,090

Including:
*assignment of receivables (factoring): €2,806 thousand.
**of which bills of exchange payable: none.
Virbac set up a factoring contract as at 31 December, 2016, the amount of receivables assigned amounted to €2,806
thousand (classified as a reduction of trade receivables) and the on-going funding to €1,946 thousand.
As of December 31, 2016, the impairment provision for receivables recognised amounted to €147 thousand.
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Debts for which a waiver was obtained have been classified in accordance with the deadlines stipulated in the
contracts, the others in accordance with the provisions of the General accounting plan (see note B11).

B6. Marketable securities
As at December 31, 2016, this item includes Sicav for €1,538 thousand, the treasury shares of the new 2016
performance plan for an amount of €1,500 thousand as well as the liquidity contract for €1,314 thousand and those
of the previous performance plans (including those of the 2012 plan, cancelled over the financial year) for a total
value of €1,094 thousand.

B7. Available funds
As of December 31, 2016, available funds consisted only of the credit balances in the bank account which amounted
to €598 thousand.

B8. Accruals and deferred income
Prepaid expenses

They are mainly made up of various external expenses and the purchase of goods that can be stored over the 2016
financial year.

Charges spread across several financial years

These expenses consist of the bond issue fees spread over the redemption term of the bonds.

Conversion gains and losses

They consist of €15,762 thousand in unrealised foreign exchange gains and €17,966 thousand in unrealised foreign
exchange losses which have been provisioned up to non hedged financial risks and related to loans granted to
subsidiaries in foreign currencies.

B9. Equity
Share capital

As of December 31, 2016, the €10,572,500 in share capital consisted of 8,458,000 shares with a nominal
value of €1.25.

Statement of change in equity

As at December 31, 2016, Virbac held 28,968 treasury shares acquired on the market for a total of €3,908 thousand
excluding fees, for an average price of €134.91 per share. During the financial year, the company bought 36,589
treasury shares and sold 35,401 as part of the market-making contract.
The ordinary shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016 decided not to pay dividends. The entire result for the previous
period was allocated to retained earnings.
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Prior to
appropriation
of results

2015
allocation of
net income

After
allocation of
net income

Increases

Decreases

2016

Number of shares as of December 31

8,458,000

-

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

Number of dividend-bearing
shares

8,458,000

-

8,458,000

-

-

8,458,000

2015
allocation of
net income

After
allocation of
net income

Increases

Decreases

2016

in € thousand

Prior to
appropriation
of results

Share capital

10,573

-

10,573

-

-

10,573

6,534

-

6,534

-

-

6,534

39,264

-39,264

-

47,678

-

47,678

1,089

-

1,089

-

-

1,089

Regulated reserves

36,287

-

36,287

-

-

36,287

Other reserves

36,396

-

36,396

-

-

36,396

Amount carried forward

185,421

39,264

224,685

-

-

224,685

Distribution of dividends

-

-

-

-

-

-

28,331

-

28,331

5,840

-4,315

29,856

343,895

-

343,895

53,518

-4,315

393,098

Share and merger premiums
Financial year results
Legal reserve

Regulated provisions
Equity

Regulated provisions

This line item consists only of exceptional depreciation arising from different tax depreciation lenght and methods.

B10. Provisions

The entries recognised in this line item are as follows:
2015
in € thousand

Allowances Reversals of Reversals of
amounts
amounts
used
not used

Retirement and severance pay allowances

4,819

688

Provisions for supplementary pensions schemes

1,630

Provisions for foreign exchange losses

3,941
-

Provisions for stock grants
Provisions for risks and charges
Provisions for risks and charges
Impairment of fixed assets

2016

-

-

5,507

1,026

-

-

2,656

2,245

-3,941

-

2,245

209

-

-

209

1,193

1,674

-1,052

-

1,815

11,583

5,842

-4,993

-

12,432

912

584

-693

-

803

Impairment of current assets

1,156

3,202

-1,043

-

3,315

Provisions for impairment

2,068

3,786

-1,736

-

4,118

13,651

9,628

-6,729

-

16,550

Provisions

During the financial year, the company recognised €688 thousand in end-of-career allowances required by the law
and the collective agreement.
The calculation of the allowances factors in remuneration, the employees’ years of service and the following criteria:
• vesting:
− managerial personnel: 12% per year of service;
− non-managerial personnel: 10% per year of service.
• discount rate: 1,3%;
• rate of social charges: 47%;
• employee turnover rate: determined based on the employees’ category, age and years of service;
• life expectancy: determined based on the Insee TD-TV 12-14 mortality table.
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Other criteria:
Managerial Non-managerial
personnel
personnel
Retirement age
Salary adjustment rate

65 years

62 years

1.5%

1.5%

The allowances are calculated based on a retrospective actuarial method. It factors in the changes made by the
2007 Finance Act for Social Security i.e. the impact that the retirement of employees aged less than 65 years of age
will have in terms of social charges. Actuarial differences are immediately recognised in the results. The amount of
charges for defined-contribution pension schemes was €5,123 thousand in 2016.
In addition, the company recognised a provision for complementary retirement benefits for members of the
executive board as a defined-benefit scheme set up in 2003. For the financial year 2016, this provision amounted to
€1,026 thousand. Payments were already made during prior financial years as part of the pre-financing of the
scheme. These amounts are managed by an insurance company and are invested in risk-free financial instruments.
The value related to the hedging assets amounted to €1,723 thousand.
The company also accrues the probable cost arising from the grant of stock to some employees and managers over
several financial years. This year, a new performance plan has been set up, the amount of the provision recorded in
the accounts for the financial year amounts to €209 thousand. The allocation period is set at December 31, 2018.
Other provisions for liabilities and charges include a provision for commercial litigation of €50 thousand, a provision
for labor court litigation of €195 thousand, a provision for charges related to a product recall for the sum of €711
thousand and a provision for litigation following the repayment of the Schuldschein contract for €48 thousand.
The provision for depreciation of fixed assets mainly relates to equipment decommissioned or not used for the sum
of €583 thousand (see note B2). The impaired current assets correspond to inventories and work in progress
totalling €3,167 thousand and trade receivables amounting to €147 thousand.

B11. Borrowings
The policy of pooling surplus cash and funding needs in all areas helps to refine the Group's net position and to
optimise the management of investments and funding requirements, ensuring Virbac's ability to meet its financial
commitments and maintain an optimal level of availability commensurate with its size and needs.
Virbac has two funding instruments the main features of which are as follows:
• a syndicated loan of €420 million, drawn in euros and dollars, contracted with a pool of banks and repayable
in full upon maturity in April 2020, with the option to extend the term to April 2022;
• market-based contracts (Schuldschein) consisting of eight instalments, with maturities of five, six, seven and
ten years, at variable and fixed rates.
Virbac also benefits from bilateral loans and BPI financing.
As at December 31, 2016, the position of the new funding instruments was as follows:
• the syndicated contract is drawn in the amount of $368 million and €5 million;
• the market-based contracts amounted to $37 million and €65 million;
• bilateral loans and BPI financing amounted to €44.9 million (excluding withholding deduction).
These new funding instruments include a financial covenant compliance clause that requires the borrower to adhere
to the following financial ratios based on the consolidated financial statements and reflecting net consolidated debt
for the period considered on the consolidated Ebitda (Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation)
for the same test period.
The Group regularly conducts a specific review of its liquidity risk and made a waiver request at the end of the third
quarter of 2016 in anticipation of a breach of the debt covenant. This waiver was accepted during the fourth quarter
of 2016 for all bank debt and part of the market-based funding, the failure to comply with the covenant as at
December 31, 2016 is thus authorised. The financial ratio calculated as at December 31, 2016 was 4.88, thus
complying with the new covenant, not exceeding 5.5 (compared with 4.5 before waiver request).
Virbac also obtained a relaxation of the covenant for 2017, the level to be measured in this fiscal year was subject to
amendment and an increase, allowing for the integration of the 2017 prospects. It should now be below 5.5 at the
end of June 2017 and below 4.75 at the end of December 2017. The acquisition of this waiver request was followed
by a moderate increase in the margin and commission amounting to €0.4 million.
The market-based contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac received no waiver were
reclassified as short-term financial liabilities. The total amount reclassified in the short term at December 31, 2016
amounted to €70.4 million (€50 million and $21.5 million), repayments were made in January 2017.
The company’s cash and financial resources should remain sufficient to fund its cash requirements.
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B12. Accruals and deferred income
Prepaid income

No prepaid income was recognised in the 2016 financial year.

R1. Sales
Breakdown of sales between French and export sales
in € thousand

2016

2015

France

66,780

65,744

Export

189,911

206,147

Sales

256,691

271,891

2016

2015

241,330

257,187

15,361

14,704

256,691

271,891

Breakdown of sales by type
in € thousand
Sales of finished goods and merchandise
Services
Sales

R2. Operating expenses
Research & development costs

Research and development costs are booked as expenses during the financial year. As of December 31, 2016,
subcontracted research and development costs amounted to €7,267 thousand.

Competitiveness and employment tax credit

During the 2016 financial year, Virbac recognised €1,215 thousand in CICE tax credits minus personnel expense
following the recommendation of the accounting standards board ANC.
The CICE for the years 2013 to 2016 of the integrated tax group were pre-financed with a bank for an overall value
of €4,910 thousand.
The loan monies were used to fund expenses incurred by Virbac strengthening its Carros sites in 2016:
• tangible assets:
− €7,071 thousand for manufacturing;
− €864 thousand for R&D equipment.
• personnel:
− Creation of 37 permanent contracts;
− Creation of 28 temporary contracts.

R3. Financial income and expenses
Net financial income increased by €5.6 million (16.9%), mainly due to higher dividends received (+ € 6.7 million
compared to 2015), partially offset by a decrease in the proceeds between loan income and interest on loans over
the year (+€1.2 million in 2016 against +€6.7 million in 2015). The provision for foreign exchange losses also
decreased by €1.7 million compared to 2015.
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Financial expenses
2016

2015

Provisions for foreign exchange losses

-2,245

-3,940

Provisions for impairment of securities

-

-

Allowances for amortisation and provisions

-2,245

-3,940

Interest, loans and credit lines

-16,339

-11,763

-527

-121

-49,508

-95,454

Other interest paid and similar expenses

-66,374

-107,338

Financial expenses

-68,619

-111,278

2016

2015

35,463

28,749

in € thousand

Other financial charges
Foreign exchange losses

Financial income
in € thousand
Income from investments
Reversal of provisions
Foreign exchange gains
Net income from sales of marketable securities
Income from various receivables
Financial income

3,941

2,423

50,221

94,684

-

4

18,111

18,890

107,736

144,750

R4. Non-recurring expenses and income
Net non-recurring income amounted to €15.2 million, up €19.3 million from 2015, mainly due to the redemption by
a subsidiary of its own shares generating a net capital gain of €17 million over the financial year. Exceptional
depreciation also impacts net non-recurring income with a net allocation of €-1.5 million.

Non-recurring expenses
2016

2015

-377

-9,730

-51

-

-220

-2,316

Allowances for regulated provisions

-5,841

-6,490

Allowances for provisions for risks and charges

-1,411

-956

-584

-624

-8,484

-20,116

in € thousand
Net values of fixed asset disposals
Tax penalties
Other non-recurring

Allowances for other provisions
Non-recurring expenses
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Non-recurring income
2016

2015

17,420

10,306

4,315

2,486

Reversals of provisions for risks and charges

587

1,612

Reversals of provisions for extraordinary impairments

693

1,259

13

-

673

326

23,701

15,989

in € thousand
Income from disposal of fixed assets
Reversals of regulated provisions

Transfers of extraordinary expenses
Miscellaneous income
Non-recurring income

R5. Income tax
As of December 31, 2016, the tax savings realised by Virbac as a result of tax losses incurred by consolidated
affiliates and which may return if the affiliates become profitable again amounted to €19 thousand. As of
December 31, 2016, a €6,220 thousand research tax credit and a €49 thousand corporate sponsorship tax credit
were recognised. If Virbac had been taxed separately, it would have only recognised a total tax income equivalent to
€6,270 thousand of tax credits. As a result of tax consolidation, Virbac this year recognised a tax savings of
€2,178 thousand.

Increases and decreases of the future tax burden

The 2017 Finance Law provides for a reduction in corporate tax. The impact for Virbac will have an effect on 2019
with a rate reduced to 28.92% against 34.43% as of today.
Given this reduction and the prospects for use, tax relief and tax increases from 2019 are calculated at the rate of
28.92%.
2016

2015

34.43%

28.92%

34.43%

2,428

6,595

9,754

9,023

9,754

137

-

151

-

-

-

14

-

26

-

2,361

2,221

104

-

150

in € thousand
Tax rate
Exceptional depreciation and amortisation
Increases related to timing differences
Solidarity contribution
Unrealised gains on investments of cash
Unrealised foreign exchange gains
Retirement obligations
Corporate sponsorship tax credit
Other provisions

169

110

323

Total decreases by tax rate

424

2,471

2,871

2,895

2,871

Total decreases related to timing differences
Tax carry forwards

-

-7,761

-6,133

Items to be charged to the tax

-

-7,761

-6,133
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Exceptional tax evaluations and net income
Tax rate 34,43%
Gross

2016
Taxes

Net

39,745

7,933

47,678

1,526

-525

1,001

-

-

-

1,526

-525

1,001

41,271

7,408

48,679

Gross

2015
Taxes

Net

31,962

7,302

39,264

4,004

-1,522

2,482

in € thousand
Financial year results
Exceptional depreciation and amortisation
Other regulated provisions
Exceptional evaluations (allowances and reversals)
Net income excluding exceptional tax evaluations

Tax rate 38%

in € thousand
Financial year results
Exceptional depreciation and amortisation
Other regulated provisions
Exceptional evaluations (allowances and reversals)
Net income excluding exceptional tax evaluations

-

-

-

4,004

-1,522

2,482

35,966

5,780

41,746

Breakdown of the 2016 income tax
Profit before
taxes

Tax owed

Net income
after taxes

in € thousand
Operating profit from ordinary activities

24,528

7,273

31,801

Non-recurring result

15,217

-5,610

9,607

-

6,270

6,270

39,745

7,933

47,678

Miscellaneous tax credits
Net income for accounting purposes

A1. Lease finance and operating lease transactions
Operating lease agreements

Virbac concluded operating lease agreements for computers. As of December 31, 2016, the commitment in terms of
capital amounted to €2,625 thousand.
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A2. Off-balance sheet commitments
2016

2015

59,102

42,634

in € thousand
Securities, deposits, letters of comfort and guarantees

- of which extended to related companies
Commitments given

59,102

42,634

59,102

42,634

59,044

46,250

Forward exchange contracts
OTC options exchange
Reciprocal commitments

15,444

9,527

74,488

55,777

Real property finance leases

-

-

Finance leases

2,625

2,470

Other commitments

2,625

2,470

Potential liabilities

No provision is made when the company considers the liability to be potential.
For example, this request made by one of the Group’s competitors at the end of 2016 seeking compensation for alleged
damages resulting from damage to the reputation of one of its trademarks and counterfeiting of that trademark.
In this case, Virbac considers the application to be legally unfounded and disproportionate in terms of the amount
claimed as compensation for the damage. It is therefore a potential liability for which the significant outflow of
resources is unlikely.

A3. Exposure to market risks and derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments only for the purpose of reducing its exposure to rate or exchange
risks on balance sheet items and its firm or highly probable commitments.

Credit risk

The following statements show the breakdown of third-party receivables (excluding pending invoices and credit
notes) as of December 31, 2016:
Trade
receivables
in € thousand
Third-party trade receivables

Past due receivables for

Due between < 30 days
3,174

59

< 60 days <90 days
109

105

Trade
receivables
>120 days
-

Total

Impaired
-

3,342

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s highest exposure to credit risk was €64,522 thousand, which represents the
trade receivables as presented in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The risk on sales between Group
companies or €59,794 thousand is not relevant because Virbac ensures that its subsidiaries have the necessary
financial structure to honour their debts. As regards third-party receivables, the Group considers the counterparty
risk to be immaterial because it has set up a mechanism to track past due receivables, making it possible to
minimise bad debt.
In 2016, Virbac set up a factoring contract, as at December 31, 2016, the amount of receivables assigned amounted
to €2,806 thousand (classified as a reduction of trade receivables) and current funding was €1,946 thousand.
Risk factors
The credit risk may arise when the Group grants credit to customers on payment terms. The risk of insolvency, or
even default by some of them, may result in non-payment and thus negatively impact the Group's income statement
and net cash position. The impact may be felt from a payment standpoint (non-payment for services or deliveries
made, customer risk) or delivery (undelivered services or supplies paid for, suppliers’ risk).
Risk management mechanisms
The Group limits the negative consequences of this type of risk thanks to the very high segmentation of its customers
broke up into all countries in which it operates. Based on the regulation in force, the treasury department recommends
applications, ratings, credit-insurance limits, maximum payment periods and sets credit limits for customers to be
applied by the Group's operational entities. The treasury and finance department manages and controls these credit
aspects for the French entities for which it is directly responsible and recommends the same practices via guidelines
and best practices for the Group. Furthermore, there is a credit insurance Group framework contract to which any
affiliate is or may be eligible when it comes to this kind of risk.
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Counterparty risk
Risk factors
The Group is exposed to a counterparty risk within the framework of contracts and financial instruments
subscription, in the case of that the debtor refuses to honour all or part of his/her commitment or is ultimately
unable to do so.
Risk management mechanisms
The Group pays particular attention to the choice of banking entities it uses, and is even more critical when it comes
to investing available cash.
However, Virbac considers that it has low exposure to counterparty risk given the quality of its major counterparties. In fact, investments are only made with first-class banking entities.

Liquidity risk
Risk factors
Liquidity is defined as the Group's capacity to meet its financial payment deadlines as part of its current business
and to find new funding sources as needed, so as to maintain a continual balance between its income and
expenditures. As part of its operations, its programme of recurring investments and active policy of external growth,
the Group is also exposed to the risk of not being sufficiently liquid to fund its growth and development.
Risk management mechanisms
The policy of pooling surplus cash and funding needs in all areas helps to refine the Group's net position and to
optimise the management of investments and funding requirements, ensuring Virbac's ability to meet its financial
commitments and maintain an optimal level of availability commensurate with its size and needs.
Vibrac has two funding instruments the main features of which are as follows:
• a syndicated loan of €420 million, drawn in euros and dollars, contracted with a pool of banks and repayable
in full upon maturity in April 2020, with the option to extend the term to April 2022;
• market-based contracts (Schuldschein) consisting of eight instalments, with maturities of five, six, seven and
ten years, at variable and fixed rates.
Virbac also benefits from bilateral loans and BPI financing.
As at December 31, 2016, the position of the new funding instruments was as follows:
• the syndicated contract is drawn in the amount of $368 million and €5 million;
• the market-based contracts amounted to $37 million and €65 million;
• bilateral loans and BPI financing amounted to €44.9 million (excluding withholding deduction).
These new funding instruments include a financial covenant compliance clause that requires the borrower to adhere
to the following financial ratios based on the consolidated financial statements and reflecting net consolidated debt
for the period considered on the consolidated Ebitda (Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation)
for the same test period.
The Group regularly conducts a specific review of its liquidity risk and made a waiver request at the end of the third
quarter of 2016 in anticipation of a breach of the debt covenant. This waiver was accepted during the fourth quarter
of 2016 for all bank debt and part of the market-based funding, the failure to comply with the covenant as at
December 31, 2016 is thus authorised. The financial ratio calculated as at December 31, 2016 was 4.88, thus
complying with the new covenant, not exceeding 5.5 (compared with 4.5 before waiver request).
Virbac also obtained a relaxation of the covenant for 2017, the level to be measured in this fiscal year was subject to
amendment and an increase, allowing for the integration of the 2017 prospects. It should now be below 5.5 at the
end of June 2017 and below 4.75 at the end of December 2017. The acquisition of this waiver request was
accompanied by a moderate increase in the margin and commission amounting to €0.4 million.
The market-based contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2016 and for which Virbac received no waiver were
reclassified as short-term financial liabilities. The total amount reclassified in the short term at December 31, 2016
amounted to €70.4 million (€50 million and $21.5 million), repayments were made in January 2017.
The company’s cash and financial resources should remain sufficient to fund its cash requirements.

Market risks
Exchange risk



Risk factors
The currency risk arises from the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates on the Group's financial flows when
carrying out is activities. Due to its strong international presence, the Group is exposed to the foreign exchange risk
on transactions, and the foreign exchange risk on the conversion of the financial statements of its foreign affiliates.
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Risk management mechanisms
The Group's policy is to hedge its foreign currency risk on transactions when the extent of exposure and the risk of
currency fluctuations are high. Accordingly, it uses various instruments available on the market and generally
employs foreign exchange forwards or options.
Derivative financial exchange instruments are presented below, at market value:
2016

2015

Fair value hedges

-

-

Cash flow hedges

14

414

-

20

Derivatives not qualifying for hedge

2,902

9,103

Exchange derivatives

2,916

9,537

in € thousand

Net investment hedges

Interest rate risk



Risk factors
The Group's income statement may be impacted by the interest rate risk. In fact, unfavourable rate changes can
also have a negative impact on financing costs and future cash flows of the Group. The exposure to interest rate risk
arises from the fact that the Group's debt consists mainly of credit lines and variable rate loans, the cost of debt can
therefore increase if interest rates rise.



Risk management mechanisms
To manage these risks and optimise the cost of its debt, the Group monitors developments and market rate
expectations and limits its exposure by establishing interest rate hedges, with instruments available on the market
such as caps or swaps of interest rates (fixed rate) not exceeding the length and value of its actual commitments.
Specific impacts from hedging exchange and interest rate risks
The exchange rate derivatives used for cash flow hedging generally mature within a year. The derivative financial
interest rate instruments are used to hedge the credit lines or loans and therefore have a maturity beyond several
years, compatible with the hedged cash.
Nominal
2016

Nominal
2015

Forward exchange contracts

59,044

46,250

797

965

1,765

856

OTC options exchange

15,444

9,527

217

249

392

147

in € thousand

Cross currency swaps
Exchange instruments
Swap rate
Interest rate options

Positive fair
value 2016

Positive fair Negative fair Negative fair
value 2015
value 2016
value 2015

63,742

68,249

5,409

9,420

1,350

93

138,230

124,026

6,423

10,634

3,507

1,096

153,301

133,408

402

90

300

630

128,071

105,631

325

559

779

1,001

Interest rate instruments

281,372

239,039

727

649

1,079

1,631

Derivative financial instruments

419,602

363,065

7,150

11,283

4,586

2,727

Supply risks
All the raw materials and certain active ingredients used to manufacture Virbac’s products are supplied by third
parties. In certain cases, the Group also uses finishers or industrial partners who have expertise in or are masters in
particular technologies. As far as possible, Virbac diversifies its sources of supply by approving several suppliers, as
ensuring that these various sources embody the sufficient characteristics of quality and reliability. Nevertheless,
there are certain supplies or certain technology situations where diversification is practically impossible, which can
result in a disruption to the supply or pressure on prices.
To limit these risks, the Group widens its approach to identify as many diversified suppliers as possible, and may in
certain cases secure its supply chain by acquiring the technologies and capacities it lacks and that create too high a
dependency. An example of this was the acquisition of the intellectual property and industrial facilities to produce
the protein used to make the leading cat vaccine.
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A4. Average workforce
2016

2015

Managers

512

505

Supervisors and technicians

410

403

Workers

212

222

Employees

28

30

Apprentices

16

16

Workforce

1,178

1,176

A5. Information relating to Professional Training Account
The management of the Professional Training Account (Compte Professionnel de formation) system is outsourced to
the Deposits and Consignments Fund (Caisse de Dépôt et Consignation).

A6. Breakdown of accrued expenses and income
Breakdown of accrued expenses
2016

2015

1
3,433
3,434

1
6,489
6,490

19,202
18
1,227
20,447

18,549
21
1,858
20,428

Third-party discounts, rebates and refunds to be obtained
Group discounts, rebates and refunds to be invoiced
Discounts, rebates and refunds to be invoiced

17
242
259

243
50
293

Provision for paid holidays (including social charges)
Provision for various bonuses (including social charges)
Provision for profit-sharing bonus
Provision for other accrued social charges
Provision for various accrued tax charges
Provision for professional training
Provision for the construction effort
Provision for the apprenticeship tax
Provision for the business added value assessment (CVAE)
Provision for the business property tax (CFE)
Provision for the property tax
Provision for taxes and various duties
Provision for the solidarity contribution
Tax and social payables

7,207
6,662
586
112
149
546
246
415
-95
28
39
399
16,294

6,734
4,808
429
28
551
248
447
-75
423
685
43
440
14,761

236
44
280

343
85
428

40,714

42,400

in € thousand
Accrued interest on employee profit-sharing
Accrued interest on credit line
Loans and financial debts
Provisions for pending invoices
Provisions for representation offices
Unrealised exchange differences
Accounts payable and related accounts

Provision for various accrued tax charges
Bank overdrafts and accrued interest not yet matured
Other payables
Accrued expenses
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Breakdown of accrued income
in € thousand
Provision for interest accrued on loans
Other financial assets

2016

2015

4,634
4,634

4,390
4,390

Pending third-party receivable invoices
Pending Group receivable invoices
Unrealised third-party exchange differences
Accounts receivable and related accounts

61
1,445
651
2,157

48
778
487
1,313

505
229
1
735

93
223
1
317

7,526

6,020

Miscellaneous accrued income
Pending supplier credit note invoices
Accrued interest
Other receivables
Accrued income

A7. Related parties
Related companies and investments
in € thousand
Long-term investments
Claims related to long-term investments
Other capitalised claims
Loans
Accounts receivable and related accounts
Other various receivables (current accounts)
Accounts payable and related accounts
Other payables (current accounts miscellaneous financial debts)
Receivables and payables
Financial expenses
Allowance for impairment of financial assets
Miscellaneous financial income
Reversals of impairments of financial assets
Income from investments (dividends)
Financial income and expenses

2016

2015

283,635
423,282
60,998
40,346
4,864
27,666

283,255
412,460
63,213
13,522
5,617
20,275

840,791

798,342

-53
18,102
35,463

-70
18,858
28,749

53,512

47,537

Compensation of corporate officers

The expense recognised by the company during the 2016 financial year and related to directors’ fees and the various
compensation of the supervisory board amounted to €236 thousand. The expense recognised for the total
compensation of the members of the executive board amounted to €1 287 657 this year. Moreover, a retirement
benefit of €60 thousand was paid to one of its member.

Retirement and compensation

Executive board members are entitled to the benefits described below.
Supplementary pension schemes
The chairman of the executive board Éric Marée, general manager Christian Karst and Jean-Pierre Dick benefit from
an additional defined benefit pension plan (12.5% of reference salary and 22% in the event of over 30 years of
service) granted on the following terms:
• over ten years service in the Group (including nine years as a member of the executive board);
• at least 60 years old;
• finished his/her career in the Group.
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Severance pay
The commitments made by the company to its managers in case of function ceased are:
• Éric Marée: €483,000;
• Christian Karst: €326,000.

Other related parties

A sporting sponsorship agreement was signed between the Absolute Dreamer company, of which Jean-Pierre Dick is
the manager, and Virbac, where Jean-Pierre Dick is a member of the executive board. This partnership is aimed at
making a financial contribution to a sail-boat participating in various open sea races, this helps to promote Virbac’s
brand image throughout the world and increase its visibility. An amount of €1,200 thousand was recognised as an
expense in the 2016 financial year as part of this contract.
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A10. Subsidiaries and investments as at December 31, 2016
The company is the parent company of the consolidated Group and as such publishes the consolidated statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.
Company name

Country

Reserves
and
retained
earnings
before

Share
capital

Loans and Endorseme
advances
nts and
extended
deposits

in thousand currency in thousand currency € thousand
French subsidiaries
Interlab
Virbac France
Virbac Distribution
Virbac Nutrition
Bio Véto Test
Alfamed

France
France
France
France
France
France

Foreign subsidiaries
Virbac Nederland BV
Netherlands
Virbac (Switzerland) AG
Switzerland
Virbac Ltd
United Kingdom
Virbac SRL
Italy
Virbac do Brasil Industria e Comercio Ltda
Brazil
Virbac Danmark A/S
Denmark
Virbac Mexico SA de CV
Mexico
Laboratorios Virbac Mexico SA de CV
Mexico
Virbac Pharma Handelsgesellshaft mbH
Germany
Virbac Tierarzneimittel GmbH
Germany
Virbac Sp. z o.o.
Poland
Virbac Hungary Kft
Hungary
Virbac Uruguay S.A.
Uruguay
Virbac Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
China
Virbac HK Trading Co Ltd
Hong Kong
Asia Pharma Limited
Hong Kong
SBC Virbac Limited
Hong Kong
Virbac Hellas SA
Greece
Animedica SA
Greece
Virbac España SA
Spain
Virbac Österreich GmbH
Austria
Virbac Korea Co. Ltd
South Korea
Virbac (Thailand) Co. Ltd Ltd
Thailand
Virbac Taiwan Co. Ltd
Taiwan
Virbac Colombia Ltda
Colombia
Virbac Philippines Inc.
Philippines
Virbac Japan Co. Ltd
Japan
Laboratorios Virbac Costa Rica SA
Costa Rica
Virbac Asia Pacific Co. Ltd
Thailand
Virbac de Portugal Laboratorios Lda
Portugal
Virbac Vietnam Co. Ltd
Vietnam
Virbac RSA (Proprietary) Ltd
South Africa
Virbac Animal Health India Private Limited
India
PP Manufacturing Corporation
United States
Virbac (Australia) Pty Ltd
Australia
Virbac New Zealand Limited
New Zealand
Virbac Chile SpA
Chile
Virbac Patagonia Ltda
Chile
Virbac Latam Spa
Chile
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63,463
240
382
547
200
40

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

45 EUR
200 CHF
2 GBP
1,601 EUR
22,032 BRL
500 DKK
6,197 MXN
4,000 MXN
102 EUR
440 EUR
5 PLN
3,000 HUF
2,173 USD
22,454 CNY
517 HKD
16,055 HKD
- HKD
300 EUR
96 EUR
601 EUR
36 EUR
1,600,000 KRW
20,000 THB
18,000 TWD
7,404,486 COP
48,500 PHP
130,000 JPY
178,750 CRC
10,000 THB
5 EUR
22,606,324 VND
54 ZAR
3,839 INR
- USD
2,500 AUD
18,290 NZD
1,000 CLP
57,398,882 CLP
1,000 CLP

86,744
7,481
40
372
578
125

Share of
the
capital
held

€ thousand

%

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

-

-

100.00%
99.95%
99.84%
99.99%
100.00%
99.60%

1,747 EUR
1,208 CHF
1,349 GBP
1,228 EUR
7,531 BRL
8,123 DKK
400,336 MXN
50,865 MXN
8 EUR
1,851 EUR
203 PLN
8,769 HUF
25,895 USD
-16,704 CNY
-536 HKD
-95 HKD
110,028 HKD
861 EUR
-47 EUR
959 EUR
38 EUR
62,754 KRW
20,278 THB
5,888 TWD
3,647,958 COP
-29,894 PHP
192,910 JPY
1,055,697 CRC
3,500 THB
576 EUR
83,064,645 VND
75,655 ZAR
1,340,449 INR
4,588 USD
59,244 AUD
12,482 NZD
4,115,902 CLP
202,953 CLP
- CLP

749
2,241
6,396
71,454
-

713
1,091
250
1,459
1,971
-

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.60%
99.99%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.18%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
50.00%
100.00%
91.00%
100.00%
99.98%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
95.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
1.00%
100.00%

STATUTORY FINANCIAL REPORT | FINANCIAL REPORT

IFRS
sales
for
the financial
year

Gross
value
of the
shares
held

Net value
of the
shares
held

€ thousand

€ thousand

106,803
40,761
538
2,933
17,601
688

106,803
40,761
538
2,933
17,601
688

4,230,848
10,434
5,741
68,349
30,939
1,004

4,230,849
10,439
5,750
68,354
30,939
1,008

78,200
1,818
28,427
5,045
14,544

10,443
115
3
5,046
11,390
5,350
1,240
2,974
71
1,593
1
10
14,581
2,850
50
1,766
12,575
1,290
125
912
18
1,329
429
485
3,408
1,156
2,834
432
209
5
2,977
5,305
66
4,946
4,346
13,977
2
NS
1

10,443
115
3
5,046
11,390
5,350
1,240
2,974
71
1,593
1
10
14,581
2,850
50
1,766
12,575
1,290
125
912
18
1,329
429
485
3,408
1,156
2,834
432
209
5
2,977
5,305
66
4,946
4,346
13,977
2
NS
1

89
2,000
2,000
179,900
22,032,352
500
6,171,776
3,999,543
2,000
861,200
100
1
99,175
100
517,355
3
102
100,000
32,000
99,999
18,170
320,000
9,100
1,800,000
5,659
37,999,997
6,400
420,658
99,998
380
1,000
56,684
383,899
100
2,499,997
18,290,000
1,000
1
1,000

89
2,000
2,000
179,900
22,032,353
500
6,196,830
4,000,000
2,000
861,200
100
1
100,000
100
517,355
3
102
100,000
32,000
100,000
36,340
320,000
10,000
1,800,000
5,660
38,000,000
6,400
420,658
100,000
400
1,000
56,684
383,900
100
2,500,000
18,290,000
1,000
100
1,000

10,984 EUR
14,705 CHF
33,816 GBP
26,235 EUR
82,522 BRL
70,472 DKK
753,620 MXN
255,417 MXN
81 EUR
48,172 EUR
20,905 PLN
277,603 HUF
11,990 USD
58,423 CNY
424 HKD
- HKD
6,589 HKD
8,068 EUR
- EUR
26,508 EUR
5,078 EUR
7,765,147 KRW
164,513 THB
296,530 TWD
36,578,873 COP
174,602 PHP
1,577,347 JPY
1,912,544 CRC
103,970 THB
6,754 EUR
324,206,385 VND
334,162 ZAR
5,753,735 INR
5,572 USD
112,784 AUD
29,906 NZD
- CLP
- CLP
690,620 CLP

Number
of shares
held

Total
number
of shares

Financial
year
results

Dividends
received
by Virbac

in thousand currency in thousand currency € thousand

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

-1
1,869
49
2,697
1,037
950

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

1,142 EUR
1,057 CHF
2,610 GBP
456 EUR
2,255 BRL
1,293 DKK
31,103 MXN
7,880 MXN
2 EUR
2,444 EUR
-70 PLN
13,712 HUF
-361 USD
3,123 CNY
-104 HKD
-88 HKD
-12,786 HKD
391 EUR
-4 EUR
1,048 EUR
139 EUR
67,861 KRW
4,709 THB
18,049 TWD
3,559,679 COP
7,328 PHP
32,580 JPY
70,638 CRC
11,422 THB
80 EUR
46,022,620 VND
27,955 ZAR
832,830 INR
570 USD
15,016 AUD
4,614 NZD
-1,526,742 CLP
2,753,407 CLP
29,588 CLP

1,052
155
3,001
800
1,059

2016
currency-to-EUR
foreign exchange rate

closing

average

-

-

975
224
1.074
1.090
2,420
0.856
0.819
800
3.431
3.829
7.434
7.445
21.772
20.715
21.772
20.715
3,865
4.410
4.366
309.830
314.679
7
1.054
1.100
7.320
7.364
8.175
8.571
8.175
8.571
8.175
8.571
627
25
- 1,269.360
1,279.410
37.726
38.978
443
33.992
35.648
- 3,162.870
3,396.949
52.268
52.600
443
123.400
119.958
582.610
601.879
730
37.726
38.978
238
- 23,970.000 24,756.456
3,075
14.457
16.156
5,556
71.594
74.447
631
1.054
1.100
9,340
1.460
1.489
1.516
1.579
707.800
748.679
707.800
748.679
707.800
748.679
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Statutory auditors’ report
on the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2016
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report issued in the French language and is provided
solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. The statutory auditors’ report includes information
specifically required by French law in all audit reports, whether modified or not, and this is presented below the
opinion on the financial statements. This information includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the auditor’s
assessments of certain significant accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the
purpose of issuing an audit opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate
assurance on individual account captions or on information taken outside of the financial statements. This report
should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
To the shareholders,
pursuant to the engagement entrusted to us by your annual general meeting, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2016 on:
• the audit of the accompanying financial statements of Virbac;
• the justification of our assessments;
• the specific procedures and disclosures required by law.
These financial statements have been approved by the executive board. Our role is to express an opinion on these
financial statements, based on our audit.

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, using sample testing techniques or other selection methods,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
We certify that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position and the assets and
liabilities of the company as of December 31, 2016 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in France.

JUSTIFICATION OF OUR ASSESSMENTS
In accordance with article L823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce) relating to the justification of
our assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters:

Intangible assets
Intangible assets, the net amount of which totals €30,641 thousand as of December 31, 2016, are valued at cost
and impaired based on their value in use in accordance with the methods described in paragraph “Intangible assets”
of “Accounting rules and methods” note to the financial statements.
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Equity investments
Equity investments, the net amount of which totals €283,635 thousand as of December 31, 2016, are valued at cost
and impaired based on their value in use in accordance with the methods described in paragraph “Equity
investments” of “Accounting rules and methods” note to the financial statements.
Based on the information that has been provided to us, our procedures consisted in assessing the data and
assumptions upon which these values in use have been based, in particular, reviewing the update of profitability
forecasts for the relevant activities and the realization of objectives, and reviewing the consistency of the
assumptions used with forecast data taken from the strategic plans prepared for each of these activities under the
supervision of the executive board.
These assessments were performed as part of our audit approach for the financial statements taken as a whole and
contributed to the expression of our opinion in the first part of this report.

SPECIFIC PROCEDURES AND DISCLOSURES
We have also performed the other procedures required by law, in accordance with professional standards applicable
in France.
We have no comments to make on the fair presentation and consistency with the financial statements of the
information given in the executive board’s management report and in the documents addressed to the shareholders
with respect to the financial position and the financial statements.
Concerning the information given in accordance with the requirements of article L225-102-1 of the French
commercial code relating to remuneration and benefits received by the corporate officers and any other
commitments made in their favor, we verified the consistency of this information with the financial statements, or
with the underlying information used to prepare these financial statements and, where applicable, with the
information obtained by your company, from companies controlling your company or controlled by it. Based on this
work, we attest that such information is accurate and fair.
Pursuant to the law, we confirmed the communication in the management report of the appropriate disclosures
regarding the identity of holders of share capital and voting rights.
Nice and Marseille, March 13, 2017
The statutory auditors
Novances - David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges

Vincent Gros
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Statutory auditors’ special report on
regulated agreements and commitments
Shareholders’ meeting held to approve the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditors’ special report on regulated agreements and
commitments that is issued in the French language and is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking
readers. This report on regulated agreements and commitments should be read in conjunction with, and construed
in accordance with, French law and professional auditing standards applicable in France. It should be understood
that the agreements and commitments reported on are only those provided by the French commercial code (Code
de commerce) and that the report does not apply to those related party transactions described in IAS 24 or other
equivalent accounting standards.
To the shareholders,
In our capacity as statutory auditors of your company, we hereby report to you on regulated agreements and
commitments.
The terms of our engagement require us to communicate to you, based on information provided to us, the principal
terms and conditions of those agreements and commitments brought to our attention or which we may have
discovered during the course of our audit, without expressing an opinion on their usefulness and appropriateness or
identifying other such agreements and commitments, if any. It is your responsibility, pursuant to article R225-58 of
the French commercial code (Code de commerce), to assess the interest involved in respect of the conclusion of
these agreements and commitments for the purpose of approving them.
Our role is also to provide you with the information provided for in article L225-58 of the French commercial code in
respect of the performance of the agreements and commitments already authorized by the shareholders' meeting
and having continuing effect during the year, if any.
We conducted our procedures in accordance with the professional guidelines of the French national institute of
statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) relating to this engagement. These
guidelines require that we agree the information provided to us with the relevant source documents.

AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE
APPROVAL OF THE SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
Agreements and commitments authorised during the year
Pursuant to article L225-86 of the French commercial code, we hereby advise you that we have not been informed of
any agreements and commitments authorized during the year to be approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS ALREADY APPROVED
BY THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Agreements and commitments approved during previous years and having continuing
effect in 2016
Pursuant to article R225-57 of the French commercial code, we have been advised that the following agreements
and commitments, already approved by the shareholders’ meeting in previous years, have had continuing effect
during 2016.

Amendment to the supplementary retirement plan for senior executives:

Senior executives concerned: Messrs. Éric Marée, Christian Karst and Jean-Pierre Dick, members of the Virbac
executive board.
On December 13, 2002, your supervisory board approved, in principle, an amendment to the supplementary
retirement plan for members of the executive board.
The agreement was signed on December 22, 2003 with retroactive effect from January 1, 2003.
As of December 31, 2016, Virbac has a total commitment of €2,656,285 with respect to this plan given the
payments of previous years. The net expense recorded by the company for fiscal year 2016 amounts to €1,026,097.
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Agreement with Absolute Dreamer SARL

Senior executive concerned: Mr. Jean-Pierre Dick, member of the Virbac executive board.
On December 17, 2014, your supervisory board approved the signature of a sports sponsorship and communications
agreement with Absolute Dreamer SARL, whose general manager is Jean-Pierre Dick. The purpose of this
partnership is to fund the participation of a sailboat in various ocean races, including the “Vendée Globe 2016-2017”.
Virbac recorded an expense of €1,200,000 in respect of this agreement for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Senior management termination benefits

Senior executive concerned: Messrs. Éric Marée and Christian Karst, members of the Virbac executive board.
On March 13, 2015, your supervisory board authorized the renewal of senior management termination benefit
provisions under the same terms and conditions as those decided by the supervisory board meeting of
March 5, 2012: termination benefits will only be paid in the event of a forced departure, regardless of whether or not
it is related to a change in control or strategy, and provided that the “current operating income to revenues” ratio
for the two half-years preceding the departure of the relevant senior executive exceeds or is equal to 7%. In such an
event, termination benefits are as follows:
• Mr. Éric Marée:
€483,000
• Mr. Christian Karst: €326,000
Nice and Marseille, March 13, 2017
The statutory auditors
Novances - David & Associés
French original signed by
Jean-Pierre Giraud

Deloitte & Associés
French original signed by
Hugues Desgranges

Vincent Gros
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Statement of responsibility for the
annual financial report
I certify, to my knowledge, that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, and result of the company and all
companies included in the consolidation, and that the management report presents an accurate picture of the
evolution of the business, result, and financial position of the company and all companies included in the
consolidation as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties to which they are exposed.
Carros, 20 March 2017
Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board

224

Observations of the
supervisory board

FINANCIAL REPORT

The executive board presented the financial statements and management report for the year ending December 31,
2016 to the supervisory board which duly acquainted itself therewith.
The Group's consolidated revenue of €871.8 million increased by 2.3% compared to 2015, 4.5% at constant rates
and 4.4% at constant rates and scope.
The adjusted current operating income (adjusted for the impact of amortisation of intangible assets arising from
acquisitions) increased by 44.2% compared to the previous financial year, from €57.5 million at year-end 2015 to
€82.9 million at December 31, 2016.This growth is mainly explained by the resumption of the sales in the United
States of the historical ranges and by the good performance realized by the regions Europe, Asia and Pacific.
The net profit attributable to the owners of the parent company was €34.6 million in 2016, against €9.4 million for
the previous year, an increase at actual rates of €25.2 million mainly explained by the positive contribution of the
United States to the consolidation result.
The Group's net debt as at December,31 rose to €547.1 million, or 115,5% of the equity attributable to the owners
of the parent company.
The share value at closing was €167.20 at the end of 2016, which represents a decrease of 23.9% compared to
January 1, 2016.
At the general meeting a proposal will be made not to distribute a dividend for the 2016 financial year. The desire to
rebalance the financial position by reducing debt explain the absence of a dividend payment in respect of the 2016
financial year.
The supervisory board currently consists of six members, three of whom are independent. They met formally four
times during the year and numerous other times for more informal working sessions. The audit and compensation
committees met two times and one time respectively in 2016.
The terms of office of Jeanine Dick and Olivier Bohuon as members of the supervisory board and of the company
XYC, represented by Xavier Yon, as a non-voting member will expire at the next general meeting; the renewal of
their terms of office will be proposed.
The supervisory board would like to thank the members of the executive board, the management teams and all
Virbac's employees worldwide for their work accomplished in difficult conditions, as well as the shareholders for their
loyalty to the Group.
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Statutory auditor’s report
on the capital decrease
This is a free translation into English of the statutory auditor’s report issued in French and is provided solely for the
convenience of English speaking readers.
This report should be read in conjunction and construed in accordance with French law and professional auditing
standards applicable in France.
Combined shareholder’s meeting of June 23, 2017

Fifteenth resolution
To the shareholders,
In our capacity as statutory auditors of your company and in accordance with the procedures provided for in
Article L225-209 of the French commercial code (Code de commerce) on the decrease in share capital by the
cancellation of shares purchased, we hereby report to you on our assessment of the reasons for and the terms and
conditions of the proposed decrease in share capital.
Shareholders are requested to confer all necessary powers on the Executive Board, during a period of 26 months, to
cancel, up to a maximum of 10% of its share capital by 24-month periods, the shares purchased by the Company
pursuant to the authorization to purchase its own shares as part of the provisions of the aforementioned article.
We performed the procedures that we considered necessary in accordance with the professional guidelines of the
French National institute of statutory auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes) applicable to
this engagement. Our procedures consisted, in particular, in verifying the fairness of the reasons for and the terms
and conditions of the proposed decrease in share capital, and ensuring that it does not interfere with the equal
treatment of shareholders.
We have no comments on the reasons for and the terms and conditions of the proposed decrease in share capital.

Nice and Marseille, March 13, 2017
The statutory auditors
Novances-David & Associés
Jean-Pierre Giraud
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Deloitte & Associés
Hugues Desgranges

Vincent Gros
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Information for voting on
resolutions submitted to the
shareholders’ meeting
ORDINARY BUSINESS
Resolutions 1, 2 and 3: approval of annual financial statements (statutory and
consolidated), allocation of profits from the 2016 fiscal year and determination
of dividends
The shareholders will be asked to approve:
• the statutory financial statements along with an income statement that shows a result for the period of
47,677,793.27 euros in 2016;
• the consolidated financial accounts from the 2016 fiscal year, with details and explanations appearing in
pages 144 to 193;
• allocation of earnings.
It will be proposed at the shareholders’ meeting not to distribute dividends in respect of 2016 fiscal year.
The result for the period, which amounted to 47,677,793.27 euros, shall be recorded entirely under retained
earnings. The willingness to restore balance to the company’s financial situation through debt reduction accounts for
absence of a dividend payment in the 2016 fiscal year.
Dividends over the past three fiscal years
It should be recalled that over the past three fiscal years the following dividends were paid out:

Amounts for previous fiscal
years
in €

2013

2014

Dividend per share

1.90

1.90

Actual distribution

2015

16,011,402 16,012,926

Resolution 4: regulated agreements and commitments

No agreement or commitment governed by article L225-38 of the Commercial Code was concluded in the 2015 fiscal year.
However, a resolution will be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting in order to acknowledge the regulated
agreements and commitments that were previously concluded and approved at a shareholders’ meeting and
continued throughout the fiscal year.

Resolutions 5 and 6: renewal of the terms of office for members of the supervisory
board

The terms of office for Jeanine Dick and Olivier Bohuon expire at the next meeting, renewal of their terms of office
for an additional period of three years will be proposed at the next shareholders’ meeting.

Resolution 7: renewal of the term of office for the non-voting advisor for a period of
one year

The XYC company, as represented by Xavier Yon, was appointed for a term of one year at the general shareholders’
meeting on June 24, 2016. Renewal of the term of office for the non-voting advisor for a period of one year will be
proposed at the next shareholder’s meeting.

Resolutions 8 to 10: advisory opinion on the remuneration elements due or attributed
to the chairwoman of the supervisory board of the supervisory board, the chairman of
the executive board and members of the executive board for the financial year 2016
In accordance with the Afep-Medef Corporate Governance Code, to which Virbac refers, the fixed, variable and
exceptional elements comprising the total remuneration and benefits in kind paid or allocated to the chairwoman of
the supervisory board, the chairman of the executive board and the members of the executive board for the financial
year 2016 will be presented in three separate resolutions.
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Summary tables for consulting with shareholders regarding executive board members’ compensation
items for the 2016 fiscal year

 Eric Marée
Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€340,472

On March 14, 2016, the supervisory board,on the recommendation of the
compensation committee, decided to increase the annual fixed compensation
from €332,976 to €340,472 an increase of 2,3%.

Annual
variable compensation

€62,556

At its March 3, 2017 meeting, the supervisory board drew up variable
compensation components for 2016. It amounted to 18.4% of fixed
compensation.
For more information, refer to pages 112 to 114 of the financial report.

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

€0

No performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As there were no performance plan for 2013, no performance share were
issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€74,528

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€3,088

Company vehicle.

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 and to note B10 of the parent
company financial statements.
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 Christian Karst
Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€265,000

On March 14, 2016, the supervisory board,on the recommendation of the
compensation committee, decided to increase the annual fixed compensation
from €238,000 to € 265,000 an increase of 11,3%.

Annual
variable compensation

€57,200

At its March 3, 2017 meeting, the supervisory board drew up variable
compensation components for 2016. It amounted to 21.6% of fixed
compensation.
For more information, refer to pages 112 to 114 of the financial report.

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

€185,050

Performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As there were no performance plan for 2013, no performance share were
issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€45,000

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€2,911

Company vehicle.

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 and to note B10 of the parent
company financial statements.
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 Michel Garaudet
Member of the executive board until April 30,2016.

Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€65,016

On March 14, 2016, the supervisory board,on the recommendation of the
compensation committee, decided to maintain the annual fixed compensation
to €195 048. Michel Garaudet retired on April 30, 2016.

Annual
variable compensation

€0

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

0€

No performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As there were no performance plan for 2013, no performance share were
issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€14,952

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€833

Company vehicle.

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

€60,125

Retirement benefit.
For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

The retirement fund was withdrawn to serve Michel Garaudet retirement pension. For more
information, refer to page 106 and to note B10 of the parent company financial statements.
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 Sébastien Huron
Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€245,000

On March 14, 2016, the supervisory board,on the recommendation of the
compensation committee, decided to increase the annual fixed compensation
from €238,000 to € 265,000 an increase of 14,0%.

Annual
variable compensation

€46,575

At its March 3, 2017 meeting, the supervisory board drew up variable
compensation components for 2016. It amounted to 19.0% of fixed
compensation.
For more information, refer to pages 112 to 114 of the financial report.

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

€185,050

Performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As the performance conditions were not met, the 2012 performance share
plan was not issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€25,000

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€1,476

Company vehicle.

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 and to note B10 of the parent
company financial statements.
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 Habib Ramdani
Member of the executive board since June 23, 2016.

Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€109,016

Compensation of Habib Ramdani as member of the executive board,
appointed by the supervisory board on June 23, 2016.

Annual
variable compensation

€38,700

At its March 3, 2017 meeting, the supervisory board drew up variable
compensation components for 2016. It amounted to 35.5% of fixed
compensation received since he joined the executibe board .
For more information, refer to pages 112 to 114 of the financial report.

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

€74,020

Performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As the performance conditions were not met, the 2012 performance share
plan was not issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€0

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€0

No benefits in kind in 2016

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 and to note B10 of the parent
company financial statements.
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 Jean-Pierre Dick
Compensation components owed or awarded for 2016
Nature

Amounts or
valuation to be
voted on

Presentation

Fixed compensation

€41,000

On March 14, 2016, the supervisory board,on the recommendation of the
compensation committee, decided to maintain the annual fixed compensation
to €41,000.

Annual
variable compensation

€13,773

At its March 3, 2017 meeting, the supervisory board drew up variable
compensation components for 2016. It amounted to 33.6% of fixed
compensation.
For more information, refer to pages 112 to 114 of the financial report.

Multi-annual
variable compensation

NA

No deferred variable compensation.

Extraordinary compensation

NA

No special compensation.

Stock options, performance
shares or any other long-term
compensation components

0€

No performance shares allocated for the 2016 fiscal year.
As the performance conditions were not met, the 2012 performance share
plan was not issued in 2016.
For more information, refer to pages 115 to 117 of the financial report.

Attendance fees

€0

Attendance fees received with respect to terms held in the group's subsidiary
companies in 2016.

Valuation of benefits in kind

€781

Company vehicle.

Compensation components owed or awarded for the fiscal year ended that are or were voted on at the
shareholders' meeting under the procedure for regulated agreements and commitments
Nature

Amounts voted
on

Presentation

Severance pay

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Non-competition payment

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 of the financial report.

Supplementary
pension plan

No payment

For more information, refer to page 111 and to note B10 of the parent
company financial statements.

Resolutions 11 to 12: remuneration policy for the members of the supervisory board
and members of the executive board - approval of the principles and criteria for
determining, distributing and allocating the fixed, variable and exceptional elements
comprising the total remuneration and benefits in kind attributable to members of the
supervisory board and members of the executive board
Pursuant to article L225-82-2 of the French Commercial Code, the supervisory board submits to the general
shareholders’ meeting for approval the principles and criteria applicable to the determination, distribution and
allocation of fixed assets, variable and exceptional items such as those comprising total compensation and benefits
in kind attributable to members of the supervisory board and members of the executive board due to the exercise of
their mandate for the financial year 2017, until the next general shareholders’ meeting called to approve the
financial statements, and constituting the remuneration policy concerning them.
These principles and criteria adopted by the supervisory board on the recommendation of the compensation
committee are presented in the report provided by the aforementioned article and appearing on pages 110 to 111 of
the management report. Pursuant to Article L225-100 of the French Commercial Code, the amounts resulting from
the implementation of these principles and criteria will be submitted to shareholders for approval at the
shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statements for 2017 and shall apply until the next
shareholders’ meeting called to approve the financial statements. The payment of variable and exceptional items will
be subject to an “ex post” vote which will be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting to be held in 2018 for approval
of the 2017 accounts. We recommend that you approve the principles and criteria set out in this report.

Resolution 13: determination of attendance fees allocated to members of the
supervisory board

Allocation of attendance fees to supervisory board members in the amount of €141,000 will be proposed at the general
shareholders’ meeting. The supervisory board will determine how these will be allocated among its members.
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Resolution 14: authorisation to be granted to the executive board to buy back company
shares

The ordinary shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016 authorised the Virbac parent company to buy back shares in
accordance with articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code and in line with the terms of the buyback
plan set out in the prospectus published, by our professional distributor and on the company’s website on May 18,
2016, in accordance with the provisions of the transparency directive that came into force on January 20, 2007.

As at December 31, 2016, Virbac held 28,968 treasury shares acquired on the market for a total of €3,907,938.15
excluding fees, for an average price of €134.91 per share.
During the fiscal year, the company proceeded to the purchase of 36,589 shares (at the average price of €162.17)
and the transfer of 35,401 treasury shares (at the average price of €167.49) under the market-making contract of
the security. In 2016, no share was purchased or sold under performance-related stock grant plans.
As of December 31, 2016, treasury shares accounted for 0.34% of Virbac’s share capital. They are earmarked in
part for market making and performance-related stock grants, in accordance with the fifteenth resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016.
A resolution will be submitted for the approval of the shareholders’ meeting authorising the company to buy back up
to 10% of the capital. Buybacks may be carried for the purpose of:
• ensuring liquidity or supporting the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant to
a liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets authority;
• allocating of free performance-related stock grants;
• reduction of the company’s share capital by cancelling part or all of the shares repurchased, subject to the
adoption by the ordinary shareholder’s meeting of the resolution on the authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancellation of repurchased shares.
The maximum purchase price may not exceed €350 per share. When calculating the maximum number of shares,
shares already purchased under the aforementioned prior authorisations will be included, together with those that
could be purchased under the market-making agreement.

EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS
Resolution 15: authorisation for the executive board to reduce the share capital by
cancelling treasury shares held by the company
The shareholders’ meeting of 24 June, 2015 authorised the executive board, in accordance with the provisions of
article L225-209 of the French Commercial Code, for a period of 26 months, to reduce the share capital on one or
several occasions within the limit of 10.0% by cancelling all or part of the shares that the company holds or may
hold as a result of repurchases made in the context of article L225-209 of the French Commercial Code, particularly
in respect of the resolution that authorises purchasing the company shares given to the executive board.
A proposal will be made at the next shareholders’ meeting to adopt a resolution to renew the authorisation given to
the executive board for a further period of 26 months, under the same conditions.

Resolution 16: Amendment of article 16 of the articles of association of the company
A proposal will be made at the next shareholders’ meeting to amend article 16 of the articles of association of the
company in order to raise the age limit for members of the executive board from 65 years to 67 years.

Resolution 17: powers to effect formalities
This resolution is intended to confer the necessary powers to carry out the formalities resulting from the
shareholders’ meeting.
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Resolutions submitted to the ordinary
and extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
of June 23, 2017
WITHIN THE COMPETENCE OF THE
ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
First resolution: approval of the statutory financial statements for the 2016 financial
year
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the reports from the executive board, the supervisory board, the chairwoman of the
supervisory board, and the statutory auditors, approves, as they were presented, the statutory financial statements
for the financial year ending December 31, 2016 showing a net result of €47,677,793.27, as well as the transactions
reflected in these financial statements or summarised in said reports.
The shareholders’ meeting also approves the expenditures incurred during the past financial year related to the
transactions that fall within the scope of article 39-4 of the French general tax code representing a total of
€298,920. As a consequence, the shareholders’ meeting grants the members of the executive board full and
unreserved quietus of the execution of their mandate for the aforementioned financial year.

Second resolution: approval of the 2016 consolidated financial statements
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings,
after having heard the reports from the executive board, the supervisory board, and the statutory auditors, approves,
as they were presented, the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ending December 31, 2016 showing
a net result attributable to the owners of the parent company of €34,645,749.
The shareholders’ meeting also approves the transactions reflected in these financial statements or summarised in
said reports.

Third resolution: allocation of the results
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, elects to allocate the net result for the year as follows:
in €

In respect of 2016

Net result for the year

47,677,793.27

Retained earnings carried forward

224,684,775.95

Distributable result

272,362,569.22

Retained earnings

47,677,793.27

Pursuant to article 243 bis of the French general tax code, it is recalled that distributions made for the three
previous financial years were as follows:
in €

Dividend per share

Overall distribution

2013

1.90

16,011,402

2014

1.90

16,012,926

2015
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Fourth resolution: regulated agreements and commitments
referred to in article L225-86 of the French commercial code
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for general shareholders’
meetings, having acquainted itself with the special report of the statutory auditors on the agreements and
commitments subject to the provisions of article L225-38 of the French commercial code:
• takes note that no agreement or commitment of this nature was concluded in the 2016 financial year;
• approves the wording of said report and takes note that the regulated agreements and commitments
concluded and previously approved by a shareholders’ meeting and which are referred to therein continued to
be in effect during the previous financial year.

Fifth resolution: reappointment of Jeanine Dick as a member of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, decides to reappoint Jeanine Dick as a member of the supervisory board for a new three-year term, to
expire at the end of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2019.

Sixth resolution: reappointment of Olivier Bohuon as a member of the supervisory
board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, decides to reappoint Olivier Bohuon as a member of the supervisory board for a new three-year term, to
expire at the end of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2019.

Seventh resolution: reappointment of the non-voting advisor
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings,
reappoints the company XYC, represented by Xavier Yon, as non-voting advisor.
The term of office of the company XYC will end at the close of the shareholders’ meeting convened to approve the
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2017.

Eighth resolution: advisory opinion on the compensation components owed or
awarded to Marie-Hélène Dick, chairwoman of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, consulted pursuant to the recommendation of paragraph 26 of the Afep-Medef Corporate
governance code, which constitutes the company’s reference code in accordance with article L225-37 of the French
commercial code, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings,
delivers a favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or awarded to Marie-Hélène Dick, chairwoman
of the supervisory board, as indicated in the management report (page 109) for the financial year ending December
31, 2016.

Ninth resolution: advisory opinion on the compensation components owed or
awarded to Éric Marée, chairman of the executive board
The shareholders’ meeting, consulted pursuant to the recommendation of paragraph 26 of the Afep-Medef Corporate
governance code, which constitutes the company’s reference code in accordance with article L225-37 of the French
commercial code, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings,
delivers a favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or awarded to Eric Marée, chairman of the
executive board, as indicated in the management report (pages 112, 115 to 117 and 229) for the financial year
ending December 31, 2016.

Tenth resolution: advisory opinion on the compensation components owed or
awarded to executive board members
The shareholders’ meeting, consulted pursuant to the recommendation of paragraph 26 of the Afep-Medef Corporate
governance code, which constitutes the company’s reference code in accordance with article L225-37 of the French
commercial code, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings, delivers a
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favourable opinion on the compensation components owed or awarded to the other members of the executive board,
as indicated in the management report (pages 113 to 117 and 230 to 234) for the financial year ending
December 31, 2016.

Eleventh resolution: compensation policy for member of the supervisory board:
approval of the principles and criteria for determination, distribution and allocation of
the components of the total remuneration and the benefits of all kinds, that may be
granted to the members of the supervisory board
Having reviewed the report provided for in Article L225-82-2 of the French commercial code, the shareholders’
meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings, approves the
principles and criteria for determination, distribution and allocation of the components of the total compensation and
the benefits of all kinds, presented in the management report (pages 108) that may be granted to the members of
the supervisory board.

Twelfth resolution: compensation policy for member of the executive board: approval
of the principles and criteria for determination, distribution and allocation of fixed,
variable and exceptional elements of the components of the total remuneration and the
benefits of all kinds, that may be granted to the members of the executive board
Having reviewed the report provided for in Article L225-82-2 of the French commercial code, the shareholders’
meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’ meetings, approves the
principles and criteria for determination, distribution and allocation of fixed, variable and exceptional elements of the
components of the total compensation and the benefits of all kinds presented in the management report (pages 110111) that may be granted to the members of the executive board.

Thirteenth resolution: determination of attendance fees allocated
to members of the supervisory board
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, elects to grant a sum of €141,000 as attendance fees for the current financial year which will be shared
among the members of the supervisory board.

Fourteenth resolution: authorisation to be granted to the executive board
to buy back the company’s shares
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for general shareholders’
meetings, after having heard the report from the executive board, authorises the executive board, with the option of
subdelegation, in accordance with the provisions of articles L225-209 et seq. of the French commercial code, to buy
back shares representing up to a maximum of 10% of the company’s share capital on the date of this meeting, in
order to:
• ensure liquidity or support the market price via an independent investment services provider pursuant
to a liquidity agreement in accordance with a code of ethics recognised by the French financial markets
authority (Autorité des marchés financiers);
• proceed with the allocation of free performance-related stock grants under the provisions of articles L225-197-1
et seq. of the French commercial code;
• reduce the company’s share capital by cancelling part or all of the shares purchased.
The maximum unit purchase price may not exceed €350 per share.
The maximum transaction amount, taking into account the 29,059 shares already held as at February 28, 2017, is thus
set at €285,859,350.
In the event of a capital increase through incorporation of reserves and allocation of performance-related stock
grants, a stock split or reverse stock split, this amount will be adjusted by a multiplier equal to the ratio between the
number of shares in the share capital prior to the transaction and the number after the transaction.
This authorisation, which cancels and supersedes any previous authorisation of the same nature, in particular the
one granted by the shareholders’ meeting of June 24, 2016 in its fifteenth resolution, is granted for a period of 18
months from this meeting.
All powers are conferred to the executive board, with the power of delegation, to place orders, conclude all
agreements, carry out all formalities and declarations with any organisation, in particular the French financial
markets authority and, more generally, to do what will be necessary for the purposes of carrying out transactions
performed in accordance with this authorisation.
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WITHIN THE COMPETENCE OF THE
EXTRAORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Fifteenth resolution: authorisation for the executive board to reduce the share capital
by cancellation of treasury shares held by the company
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders'
meetings, after having heard the executive board’s report and the special report by the statutory auditors:
• authorises the executive board to cancel, on one or more occasions, part or all the treasury shares the
company may own now or in future as result of buybacks carried out under article L225-209 of the French
commercial code up to 10% of the total number of shares per period provided by the law, by transferring the
difference between the purchase price of the shares cancelled and their par value to premiums and available
reserves, including to the statutory reserve up to 10% of the cancelled capital;
• authorises the executive board to recognise the completion of the capital reduction(s), amend the articles of
association accordingly and perform the necessary formalities;
• authorises the executive board to delegate all the powers necessary to implement its decisions in accordance
with the legal provisions in force during the use of this authorisation;
• sets the term of the validity of this authorisation to 26 months as from this shareholder's meeting.

Sixteenth resolution: authorisation to amend article 16 of the company’s articles of
association.
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for extraordinary shareholders’
meetings, having considered the report of the executive board, decides to amend the third paragraph of article 16 of
the articles of association in the following manner:
“No person over the age of 67 may be appointed as a member of the executive board. If a member of the executive board
exceeds the age of 67, he shall be deemed to have automatically resigned at the end of the next ordinary shareholders’
meeting.”
The rest of article 16 remains unchanged.

Seventeenth resolution: powers to carry out formalities
The shareholders’ meeting, in accordance with quorum and majority requirements for ordinary shareholders’
meetings, confers all powers to the bearer of an original, an extract or a copy of these minutes in order to complete
all formalities provided by law.
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Products glossary
The product names stated in the annual report and listed below are subject to protection in particular in respect of
trademarks. Virbac and/or its subsidiaries are the owners or have exclusive use of them. All medicines or products
mentioned in this document can be not authorised or not marketed in all the countries including France.

Activyl

spot-on solution used to treat and prevent flea infestations in dogs and cats

Activyl Tick Plus

spot-on solution used to treat and prevent flea and certain types of tick infestations in dogs

Biomox

broad-spectrum oral antibiotic for dogs

Bovigen scour

vaccine for cattle which helps to reduce diarrhea in calves

Canigen

vaccines range against canine distemper, hepatitis, rabies, parvovirus, para-influenza and leptospirosis

Cortavance

hydrocortisone aceponate-based corticoid spray with targeted action for inflammatory dermatosis in dogs

Curacef duo

injectable suspension combining ceftiofur and ketoprofen used to treat respiratory diseases in cattle

Cyclavance

ciclosporin-based oral solution prescribed for treating atopic dermatitis in dogs

Easotic

auricular treatment for otitis in dogs which can be administered over 360° with a non-traumatic cannula combining
miconazole, gentamicin and hydrocortisone aceponate

Effipro duo

spot-on solution for dogs and cats combining fipronil and pyriproxyfen used to treat and prevent flea infestations
and to treat tick infestations

Effitix

external parasiticide combining permethrin and fipronil for treating tick, flea and mosquito infestations in dogs

Epiotic

ear cleanser for dogs and cats

Euthasol

multi-species euthanasic injectable solution

Inflacalm

multi-species anti-inflammatory

Iverhart

range of chewable tablets for use in dogs to prevent canine heartworm disease and for the treatment and control of
roundworms and hookworms, as well as tapeworms for Iverhart Max

Leucogen

recombinant subunit vaccine against feline leukaemia developed by genetic engineering

Milpro

internal parasiticide tablets for dogs and cats combining praziquantel and milbemycin for the prevention of canine
heartworm disease and for the treatment of roundworms and tapeworms

Movoflex

soft chews used for joint support in dogs

Multibio

antibiotics and anti-inflammatory combination for treating digestive, respiratory and genito-urinary diseases in food
producing animals

Multimin

trace element injectable supplement for food producing animals
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Nutri-plus gel

food supplement for dogs in oral paste form

Orastrip

diagnostic test that detects periodontal infections in dogs

Penclox

dual combination of penicillin and cloxacillin antibiotic lactating intramammary targeting common bacteria causing
mastitis in dairy cattle

Prinovox

broad-spectrum ectoparasiticide for dogs and cats combining moxidectin and imidacloprid

Rilexine

cephalexin-based antibiotic. In tablets: prescribed for treating skin infections in dogs and urinary infections in cats.
Injectable: prescribed for treating chronic and acute mastitis in dairy cows

Sentinel Flavor Tabs and Sentinel Spectrum

polyvalent parasiticide tablets for dogs to prevent canine heartworm disease and for the treatment of roundworms
(as well as tapeworms for Sentinel Spectrum) and flea infestations

Shotapen

combination of antibiotics prescribed for first-line treatment of numerous bacterial infections in food producing
animals

Suprelorin

deslorelin-based implant for the induction of temporary infertility in male dogs

Ultra-corn

injectable biological suspension used to stimulate the immune system in ruminants, swine and horses

Veterinary HPM

specialised petfood for dogs and cats

Virbagest

altrenogest-based progestin for synchronising return to heat of gilts (batch management)

Ypozane

tablets containing osaterone acetate used for the treatment of benign prostatic hypertrophy in dogs

Zoletil

multi-species general anaesthetic
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